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·1· ·May 17, 2019· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·10:00 a.m.

·2· · · · · · · · · · P R O C E E D I N G S

·3· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Let's go on the record,

·4· ·please.· Good morning.· This is the time and place

·5· ·noticed for a hearing in the formal complaint of SRR

·6· ·Partners, LLC, dba Sorrel River Ranch Resort & Spa

·7· ·against Frontier Communications.· This is Commission

·8· ·Docket No. 19-041-01.· My name is Michael Hammer and I'm

·9· ·the Commission's designated presiding officer.

10· · · · · · · Let's go ahead and take appearances,

11· ·beginning with the complainant.

12· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Good morning.· Steve Mecham,

13· ·representing Sorrel River Ranch.

14· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Good morning, Your Honor.

15· ·George Thomson representing Frontier Communications.

16· · · · · · · REPORTER:· Is your mic on?

17· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· There we go.

18· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· I should have noticed as

19· ·well -- or mentioned as well, I've got Dave Ciani with

20· ·me, who will be testifying for Sorrel River Ranch.· He's

21· ·the managing director of the ranch.

22· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you, Mr. Mecham.

23· ·And, Mr. Thomson, we have his name for the record.

24· · · · · · · Mr. Thomson, would you like to introduce any

25· ·witnesses.
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·1· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Yes, sir.· We've got Mike

·2· ·Giles, who is sitting to my left, and on the phone we

·3· ·have Carlos Cardona.

·4· · · · · · · MR. JOHNSON:· And Mitch Johnson from

·5· ·Frontier.

·6· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Is there anyone else on

·7· ·the line?

·8· · · · · · · MR. JOHNSON:· Mitch Johnson.

·9· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Yes, I understand.  I

10· ·heard you, Mr. Johnson.· I was wondering if there were

11· ·any additional parties.

12· · · · · · · MS. RAD:· Elizabeth Rad for Sorrel River.

13· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Mr. Mecham, do you intend

14· ·to call Ms. Rad?

15· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· It's possible.

16· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Okay.· All right.· Are

17· ·there any preliminary matters before we begin?

18· · · · · · · MR. MOORE:· Excuse me, Mr. Hammer.

19· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Mr. Moore.

20· · · · · · · MR. MOORE:· I'm not in my usual place.

21· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Nice to see you.

22· · · · · · · MR. MOORE:· Robert Moore, AG's office,

23· ·representing the Office of Consumer Services.· If I may

24· ·make a brief statement on the record, if there's no

25· ·objection.
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·1· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Is there an objection?

·2· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· I don't have anything to

·3· ·object to yet, Your Honor.

·4· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· I do not object.

·5· · · · · · · MR. MOORE:· The Office does not generally

·6· ·participate in this type of complaint hearing; however,

·7· ·we're anticipating shortly filing a notice for agency

·8· ·action for a wider investigation of Frontier, and I'd

·9· ·like to participate in this hearing to ask a few brief

10· ·questions in that regard.· I will not stray outside the

11· ·allegations in this -- in the complaints and the

12· ·pleadings so far filed.

13· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Any objection to

14· ·Mr. Moore's participation in the hearing?

15· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Not from us.

16· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· No objection.

17· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· All right.· Thank you.

18· ·Welcome, Mr. Moore.

19· · · · · · · Are there any other matters before we begin?

20· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· No, sir.

21· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Would the counsel prefer

22· ·witnesses who are present take the stand or remain

23· ·seated at counsel's table?· I'll ask you first,

24· ·Mr. Mecham.

25· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· I could go either way.· He's
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·1· ·with me here.· But if it's more comfortable for you, we

·2· ·could have him take the witness seat.

·3· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· I have no preference.

·4· ·Mr. Giles -- or, pardon me.· Mr. Thomson?

·5· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· I think Mr. Giles can testify

·6· ·where he is, unless the reporter prefers him to be on

·7· ·the stand up there.

·8· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Ordinarily, it would be a

·9· ·matter of counsel doing cross-examination, I think,

10· ·wanting to see the witness on the stand.· So if no one

11· ·objects, we'll just allow witnesses to stay seated.

12· · · · · · · Mr. Mecham?

13· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· I may quickly ask if Mr. Dave

14· ·Coke is on the line.

15· · · · · · · MR. COKE:· I am here.

16· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Okay.

17· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· And Mr. Coke is with your

18· ·client?

19· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· He is.· He's a technician that

20· ·does -- he's a contractor that does work on the customer

21· ·premise equipment, and that may come up in the hearing,

22· ·so it's possible he could testify, as well, and be

23· ·sworn.

24· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· All right.· Mr. Ciani --

25· ·Mr. Mecham, I expect you intend to call Mr. Ciani as
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·1· ·your first witness.

·2· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· I do.· May I make just a brief

·3· ·opening statement?

·4· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Of course.

·5· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Let me just set the stage, and

·6· ·if Mr. Thomson wants to do likewise, that's fine.

·7· · · · · · · Sorrel River Ranch filed its complaint

·8· ·because of very troubling service that they'd been

·9· ·receiving.· And a public utility in the State of Utah is

10· ·still -- under Title 54-3-1, 54-8b-3.3, and Rule

11· ·746-340, are under obligation to provide safe, adequate,

12· ·and continuous service.· The Division of Public

13· ·Utilities, under 54-4a-6, is to promote safe and

14· ·reliable service.

15· · · · · · · And the Commission, under 54-4-7 and 8, has

16· ·broad, vast power to require the utility to provide

17· ·adequate service.· Of course, "adequate service" is not

18· ·a defined term in the statute, but our contention is

19· ·that what we've received at Sorrel River Ranch is so far

20· ·below adequacy that this had to be filed and the

21· ·Commission must take action.

22· · · · · · · And I don't know if Mr. Thomson wants to

23· ·respond to that; otherwise, we're prepared to call

24· ·Mr. Ciani.

25· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Mr. Thomson, do you
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·1· ·have an opening statement you'd like to make?

·2· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· No, Your Honor, we'll go ahead

·3· ·and proceed.

·4· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· All right.· Mr. Ciani, do

·5· ·you swear to tell the truth?

·6· · · · · · · MR. CIANI:· I do.

·7· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you.

·8· · · · · · · · · · · · ·DAVID CIANI,

·9· ·called as a witness by and on behalf of the Sorrel River

10· ·Ranch Resort & Spa, having been first duly sworn, was

11· ·examined and testified as follows:

12· · · · · · · · · · · DIRECT EXAMINATION

13· ·BY MR. MECHAM:

14· · · · ·Q.· ·Mr. Ciani, would you identify yourself by

15· ·giving your name, your business address, and for whom

16· ·you're testifying in this proceeding?

17· · · · ·A.· ·Absolutely.· My name is David Ciani.· I'm the

18· ·manager-director of Sorrel River Ranch Resort & Spa,

19· ·which is located at mile 17, Highway 128 in -- outside

20· ·the town of Moab, Utah.

21· · · · ·Q.· ·Thank you.· And just -- sort of as a

22· ·preliminary matter, before we get into the meat of your

23· ·testimony, the parties agreed, after a technical

24· ·conference in this docket, to meet together on May 10th

25· ·to -- I'm not a hundred percent sure what the -- what the
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·1· ·intention was, but certainly one of them was to test and

·2· ·look at the customer premise equipment to see if that was

·3· ·the problem.

·4· · · · · · · Can you tell us what the outcome of that was,

·5· ·since the presiding officer wasn't at that technical

·6· ·conference?

·7· · · · ·A.· ·My report back was that there were no

·8· ·internal deficiencies with our system.

·9· · · · ·Q.· ·And Mr. Coke is also on the line, who is the

10· ·technician, as I stated before, who deals with the

11· ·customer premise equipment who can answer any questions,

12· ·if there are any.· So -- but the implication of that is

13· ·that what the problems are rest on the Frontier network

14· ·side.

15· · · · · · · Okay.· Mr. Ciani, would you just describe the

16· ·kind of service that Sorrel River Ranch is receiving and

17· ·the impact it's having on your business?

18· · · · ·A.· ·The service has been tremendously awful, to

19· ·an extent of bringing us here today, and the impact on

20· ·the business has been significant.· And I do have some

21· ·detailed data to share, both from our current year pace

22· ·report from reservations on the books, as well as a lot

23· ·of anecdotal information that I'd be happy to share about

24· ·the experiences and comments we've received from both our

25· ·staff and our residents of the property who reside on
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·1· ·property to operate the ranch, as well as our valued

·2· ·guests.

·3· · · · ·Q.· ·Go ahead and just describe what's happening,

·4· ·the lost calls, the outages, all of that.

·5· · · · ·A.· ·Yeah.· Well, I started with the ranch in

·6· ·April of 2017, and when I first got involved, I was

·7· ·appalled by the lack of quality and reliability in both

·8· ·the phone and internet service at the property.

·9· · · · · · · We are a luxury guest ranch.· We have an

10· ·average daily rate of over $700 per night, and the

11· ·expectations for service and reliability of technology

12· ·and operations is crucial and critical to the success.

13· ·Our reputation is critical.· On-line reviews, and our

14· ·relationship with high-end agencies, travel agents, and

15· ·wholesalers is also critical for the success of the

16· ·business.

17· · · · · · · Upon initially investigating what was going

18· ·on with the service, I became aware of our infrastructure

19· ·that brought the phone service to the property.· And I

20· ·also became aware that we simply had no other

21· ·alternatives.· We did not have another service provider

22· ·available to us.· And for the time between April 2017 and

23· ·November of 2018, I, like the majority of our staff and

24· ·our guests and other residents and business owners in the

25· ·area, accepted what I would describe as an inadequate
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·1· ·level of service.

·2· · · · · · · It was commonplace that we would have calls

·3· ·dropped or have poor reception.· I'd liken it to what you

·4· ·would expect to get if you were on a cell phone in a very

·5· ·remote area.· It wouldn't be uncommon to drop calls or to

·6· ·not be able to make a call going out.· Oftentimes, you

·7· ·might be talking to someone and it sounds like you're in

·8· ·a wind tunnel, that they're far away or there's just

·9· ·undue static.

10· · · · · · · But, generally speaking, we accepted this

11· ·level of service as being our only alternative.· And for

12· ·well over the year that I was with the property, that was

13· ·just our status quo, our normal as we operated.

14· · · · · · · In -- beginning around November of 2018 is

15· ·when we had what I would describe for the business as a

16· ·catastrophic event.· We began to consistently lose the

17· ·ability to use our phone service.· We would drop calls

18· ·routinely, and we would go, many times, several hours

19· ·without any phone service whatsoever.

20· · · · · · · Oftentimes, I was not able to get in touch

21· ·with the property.· I couldn't get ahold of the general

22· ·manager.· We would -- were losing guest reservations and

23· ·creating negative experiences before our potential guests

24· ·had even booked.

25· · · · · · · In February, we started logging dropped calls
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·1· ·because it was becoming such a problem.· And I have a

·2· ·dropped call log that I printed out with me, and this is

·3· ·a Google sheet that we used internally to log calls.

·4· ·These are, by no means, all of the dropped calls, but

·5· ·every one that was manually logged.· Starting on the 8th

·6· ·of February, I have 141 dropped calls between then and

·7· ·the end of March, to give you an idea of the magnitude.

·8· ·And that's only during the time when we actually did have

·9· ·phone service.

10· · · · · · · The level of impact it had on our business --

11· ·right now I'm looking at our pace report for the year,

12· ·and we're $214,000 down from the same time last year in

13· ·individual transient reservations.· Over the last several

14· ·years, we've been seeing between a 5 and 20 percent

15· ·annual increase in those statistics.

16· · · · · · · Beyond the lost revenue, the magnitude of

17· ·guest experiences has hurt us tremendously.· We've had

18· ·many guests leave upset.· Again, at our level of service

19· ·for our business, it's just simply unacceptable to not

20· ·have phones work.· If you're a guest and you're staying

21· ·in a guest room and you can't call to the front desk, if

22· ·you have an emergency and you can't get out, if you can't

23· ·call your loved ones, there is no exception, there is no

24· ·excuse, and there is no response that we can provide.

25· · · · · · · That impact further resonates into our staff
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·1· ·and the people who live on our property.· We have, in

·2· ·season, over 70 people who live on the ranch, and these

·3· ·are full-time employees who operate the property.· And

·4· ·they also suffer from the lack of service, can't call

·5· ·their friends and family and have to put up with an

·6· ·incredibly frustrating work environment that hurts the

·7· ·staff morale and, certainly, you know, leads to a

·8· ·negative work environment for the staff.

·9· · · · ·Q.· ·Mr. Ciani, does your internal network monitor

10· ·the downtime?

11· · · · ·A.· ·Yes, it does.· We have a service called

12· ·Binary Canary, and it's a monitoring service that is

13· ·constantly pinging the signal that Frontier is bringing

14· ·into the property.· And we have a report here that we

15· ·printed out since 2017.· It monitors all of the

16· ·interruptions in service.· You've -- I think that the

17· ·Public Service Commission has been provided with a list

18· ·of outages from Frontier that were over 30 minutes.

19· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Actually, you haven't yet, but

20· ·that will become an item we'll discuss.· In discovery,

21· ·Frontier provided us a number of outages that occurred

22· ·within the last two years.· And during a light period,

23· ·we have a document to introduce now that is an internal

24· ·measurement of the downtime that their own network

25· ·monitored.
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·1· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· And I'm not sure how we're

·2· ·going to mark these, Mr. Hammer.· How would you --

·3· ·SRR-1, is that good?

·4· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· That's fine.

·5· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Okay.

·6· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Do you have copies for

·7· ·everyone?

·8· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· I do.· Yes, I do.

·9· · · · · · · (Exhibit No. SRR-1 was

10· · · · · · · · marked for identification.)

11· · · · ·Q.· ·(BY MR. MECHAM)· Perhaps you could repeat

12· ·again exactly what this is showing.

13· · · · ·A.· ·Yes.· So this service is monitoring the

14· ·signal coming in from Frontier, and it is calculating the

15· ·minutes of downtime every time there's been a service

16· ·interruption.· And so you can see the date and the

17· ·minutes of downtime and every incidence of service

18· ·interruption.

19· · · · · · · So my point being is that in addition to the

20· ·outages as defined as, you know, 30 minutes or more by

21· ·Frontier, we've had many, many short-term outages in

22· ·addition to the numerous dropped calls, which, again, had

23· ·been commonplace at the property for many years, as well

24· ·as reception challenges, including static, wind-tunnel

25· ·effects, and other types of impairments that would
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·1· ·prohibit communication.

·2· · · · ·Q.· ·And so one of the reasons this is significant

·3· ·is because it's within the same time period as the

·4· ·document that -- of outages that Frontier gave us, but it

·5· ·isn't exactly the same because it's showing both

·6· ·internal -- what's happening to you internally as well as

·7· ·what's -- and they show what's happening externally; is

·8· ·that correct?

·9· · · · ·A.· ·Correct.

10· · · · ·Q.· ·Okay.

11· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· And you'll note that it does

12· ·show how many minutes and gives the date that the system

13· ·was down based on the Binary Canary product that they

14· ·use to monitor.

15· · · · · · · You know, for simplicity's sake, we did one

16· ·short round of discovery, and whether it's in direct or

17· ·on cross, I'm going to be referring to that a lot.· I'm

18· ·wondering if, perhaps, I could enter that as Exhibit 2

19· ·-- SRR-2.

20· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· I don't have any

21· ·objection.

22· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Okay.

23· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· I hear none from the other

24· ·parties.

25· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Well, Your Honor, this is the
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·1· ·first time we've seen this document.

·2· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Why don't you give

·3· ·Mr. Thomson an opportunity to take a look at it before

·4· ·you --

·5· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· I mean, I'm not sure.

·6· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Actually, it's not the first

·7· ·time.· They're the ones that provided it to us.· This is

·8· ·their response to us with all of the general objections.

·9· ·It's their document, not mine.

10· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· I'm sorry, Your Honor.  I

11· ·thought they were referring to the Binary Canary report

12· ·that they placed in front of us for the first time

13· ·today.

14· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Well, you're right.

15· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Well, go ahead and

16· ·distribute the next document and we'll discuss them

17· ·both.

18· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· May I just say, yeah, it's

19· ·true, we just -- they did no discovery.· We're on a

20· ·short, expedited time frame of the difficulty that their

21· ·service is causing the Sorrel River Ranch, so there's

22· ·likely going to be quite a few things that come up that

23· ·they haven't yet seen.· Under normal circumstances, we

24· ·would have done prefiled testimony, but we didn't do

25· ·that in an effort to try to get this thing fixed on an
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·1· ·expedited basis.

·2· · · · · · · (Exhibit No. SRR-2 was

·3· · · · · · · · marked for identification.)

·4· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· And we've marked that as SRR-2,

·5· ·on the assumption that we would use that during the

·6· ·proceeding.· And, perhaps, I was going to use this on

·7· ·cross, but we may as well get it out.

·8· · · · · · · This is -- this is the document that

·9· ·Frontier gave to us in response to -- I believe it's

10· ·1.3.· We asked for the number of outages that their

11· ·system recorded during the most recent two-year period

12· ·and these -- this shows from May of 2017 to about May of

13· ·2019.

14· · · · · · · And I will say, Mr. Hammer, that we -- this

15· ·is a very long document, horizontally, going left to

16· ·right, and so the way I had to print it out was one page

17· ·at a time.· So each sequential page would really be to

18· ·the right of the one before it.· So you will see that

19· ·there are 44 outages recorded in that period, and then

20· ·the 44 lines in each subsequent page refer to that first

21· ·page, and I will mark that as SRR-3.

22· · · · · · · And I will likely just use this mainly on

23· ·cross, but I wanted it next to the analysis done by the

24· ·internal system as well, because there is -- they really

25· ·don't -- they correspond in time, but not necessarily

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 19
·1· ·per minute.

·2· · · · · · · And you will see in one of the -- in the

·3· ·response that Frontier's network records outages that

·4· ·are 30 minutes or greater.· And Sorrel River Ranch is

·5· ·anything, and that is a minute or even less than that

·6· ·that cause down or outages and lost calls.· So it -- it

·7· ·shows the impact of -- a broader impact.· And in fact,

·8· ·let's talk about --

·9· · · · · · · I would like to move the admission of SRR-1,

10· ·2, and 3.

11· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· We don't have any objection.

12· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· All right.· They're

13· ·admitted, then.

14· · · · · · · Before we move on to additional questions,

15· ·it would help me if we could lay a little foundation for

16· ·SRR-1.· It's been admitted into the record, but help me

17· ·just understand a little better what it is.· Is this a

18· ·direct printout, for example, from the Binary Canary

19· ·software or --

20· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· That's correct.

21· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Okay.· And the date format

22· ·appears as day, month, year?

23· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· That's correct.

24· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· So this hasn't been

25· ·transcribed into a separate spreadsheet?· This is
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·1· ·printed directly from the software?

·2· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· No, sir, we printed that

·3· ·straight from the software -- the report from the

·4· ·software.

·5· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you.· Go ahead,

·6· ·Mr. Mecham.

·7· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Thank you.

·8· · · · ·Q.· ·(BY MR. MECHAM)· Mr. Ciani, has Sorrel River

·9· ·Ranch entered into a contract for service with Frontier?

10· · · · ·A.· ·Yes, we have.· Most recently -- in July of

11· ·2014, there was a contract that was signed.· It was a

12· ·three-year contract.· And upon termination of that

13· ·contract, we continued, under the clause of that

14· ·contract, to pay the same tariffs that we had agreed to

15· ·in 2014.· I contacted Frontier in 2018 and began

16· ·communications with an account rep who provided us a

17· ·relatively significant better rate if we were to sign a

18· ·two-year agreement.

19· · · · · · · During the negotiations, we were having the

20· ·experiences that we're here today to discuss and,

21· ·essentially, was told that the only way that we would not

22· ·continue to be charged what, to me, I believe is an

23· ·exorbitantly high tariff of nearly over $4,000 a month

24· ·for both our phone and internet service -- they were

25· ·willing to lower it to a more reasonable rate that is
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·1· ·certainly more competitive with any market in the U.S.,

·2· ·but we were forced to sign another two-year agreement,

·3· ·with the option of some longer term agreements.

·4· · · · · · · And so we entered into an agreement in the

·5· ·very beginning of February of 2019, despite having,

·6· ·essentially, no service at that time.· We have absolutely

·7· ·no other options, and it's critical to have phone service

·8· ·for the operation of our business and the health and

·9· ·safety and well-being of our staff and of our guests.· So

10· ·we really had no other alternatives.

11· · · · ·Q.· ·So let me reiterate -- or have you reiterate.

12· ·You signed -- even after you had less-than-adequate

13· ·service, you signed the second contract because you could

14· ·find no alternative?

15· · · · ·A.· ·That's correct.· We were paying $4,000 a

16· ·month for no service and we were able to lower that by

17· ·agreeing to another two-year term, because we had no

18· ·other alternatives.

19· · · · ·Q.· ·Okay.· Thank you.· And let me go back to what

20· ·we marked as SRR-1 and SRR-3, the outages reports,

21· ·internal and external.

22· · · · · · · Do you know what dates those -- can you tell

23· ·us what dates those cover, approximately?

24· · · · ·A.· ·I'm sorry, what was the question?

25· · · · ·Q.· ·When does the report begin recording the
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·1· ·outages?

·2· · · · ·A.· ·I think we started that report in the

·3· ·beginning of 2017 and ran it through the current 2019

·4· ·year.

·5· · · · ·Q.· ·And as far as you know -- actually, we can

·6· ·look.· When you look at the date -- dates of the outages

·7· ·from Frontier, it begins --

·8· · · · ·A.· ·It looks like it started in May of 2017 --

·9· · · · ·Q.· ·Okay.

10· · · · ·A.· ·-- and goes through current time.

11· · · · ·Q.· ·So is -- we can anticipate -- we know that

12· ·Frontier changed out radio equipment in December of 2018

13· ·and in March of 2019.

14· · · · · · · What was the service like, according to these

15· ·outages, in 2017?

16· · · · ·A.· ·Previously, as I mentioned, the service was

17· ·not very good.· It was -- it had come to, I think, what

18· ·the staff and the residents -- was a generally accepted

19· ·bad service.· It was as I likened it to cell phone

20· ·service in a remote area.· It was not unusual to drop

21· ·calls.· It wasn't unusual to have static or otherwise

22· ·feedback or interruption, wind-tunnel type of effects.

23· · · · · · · And generally speaking, the service, you

24· ·know, would eventually work, so you may drop a call two

25· ·or three times and 10 or 15 minutes later, everything
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·1· ·would seem to be back to normal.· And that was kind of a

·2· ·generally accepted level of service from the time I

·3· ·started in April of 2017 all the way up through until

·4· ·this, you know, catastrophic event where we, you know,

·5· ·lost -- wholesale lost service and consistently had

·6· ·problems for a -- more often than not, we would have

·7· ·either no service or complete interruptions or unusable,

·8· ·you know, service that worked but was of such bad quality

·9· ·that we couldn't communicate.

10· · · · ·Q.· ·And with the changeout of the radio in March

11· ·of 2019, has there been any perceived difference -- any

12· ·improvement?

13· · · · ·A.· ·Improvement from the catastrophe of the

14· ·winter, yes.· We have, since that time, still had more

15· ·than one documented outage and some reception issues as

16· ·well.

17· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Mr. Ciani is available for

18· ·cross-examination.

19· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Mr. Thomson?

20· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Thank you, Your Honor.

21· · · · · · · · · · · CROSS-EXAMINATION

22· ·BY MR. THOMSON:

23· · · · ·Q.· ·Good morning, Mr. Ciani.

24· · · · · · · Is there any reliable cell service at Sorrel

25· ·River Ranch?
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·1· · · · ·A.· ·I would not call it reliable.· It's possible

·2· ·to get a signal in certain areas of the ranch at certain

·3· ·times.

·4· · · · ·Q.· ·And you described the ranch as located in a

·5· ·remote rural area?

·6· · · · ·A.· ·It's 17 miles upstream on the Colorado River

·7· ·from the town of Moab, Utah.

·8· · · · ·Q.· ·And it's a fact that you never provided this

·9· ·Binary Canary report to Frontier before today, correct?

10· · · · ·A.· ·I personally did not.

11· · · · ·Q.· ·Do you know if anyone at Sorrel River Ranch

12· ·did?

13· · · · ·A.· ·I do not know that.

14· · · · ·Q.· ·Let's see.· You've already discussed that you

15· ·signed a new Frontier service agreement in February of

16· ·2019, correct?

17· · · · ·A.· ·That's correct.

18· · · · ·Q.· ·Are you aware that tariff service rates are

19· ·filed with and approved by this Commission?

20· · · · ·A.· ·Well, I would assume that's true, because you

21· ·just said that, but I did not know exactly how tariffs

22· ·are set in the State of Utah.

23· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Your Honor, I don't have any

24· ·further questions.

25· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Mr. Moore?
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·1· · · · · · · MR. MOORE:· Just a couple of questions.

·2· · · · · · · · · · · CROSS-EXAMINATION

·3· ·BY MR. MOORE:

·4· · · · ·Q.· ·Just a couple of questions.

·5· · · · · · · What's the earliest that you can recall that

·6· ·you reported THE problems that you've described to

·7· ·Frontier?

·8· · · · ·A.· ·That's a good question.· I don't know that I

·9· ·can answer that with a hundred percent certainty of the

10· ·date.· I would say that I believe that there was reports

11· ·of challenges in the year of 2017.

12· · · · ·Q.· ·And your testimony is these problems have

13· ·been fairly continuous?

14· · · · ·A.· ·Yeah.· As I said, that -- you know, between

15· ·the time that I started with the ranch in April of 2017

16· ·and November of 2018, there were -- it was not uncommon

17· ·to drop calls or have poor reception and, at times,

18· ·outages, as shown on the document that Frontier provided.

19· · · · ·Q.· ·Have you ever received a bill credit from

20· ·Frontier?

21· · · · ·A.· ·We have been receiving some credits, as they

22· ·communicated, on our recent bills.· We have not fully

23· ·been credited back all of the expenses that we incurred

24· ·during the time that they had committed to reducing our

25· ·invoices.· They've been adding those credits towards
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·1· ·current invoices as we move forward.

·2· · · · ·Q.· ·Have you ever experienced an outage that

·3· ·lasted over 24 hours?

·4· · · · ·A.· ·I can't answer that question for certainty.

·5· · · · ·Q.· ·Do you have a copy of SRR-2?

·6· · · · ·A.· ·I have reviewed it, yes.

·7· · · · ·Q.· ·On the second page there seems to be, about

·8· ·halfway down, a 41-hour outage.· Is that how you

·9· ·understand the document?

10· · · · ·A.· ·That is what it looks like to me, yes, sir.

11· · · · ·Q.· ·I'm going to hand you a document that I got

12· ·from a footnote -- I'll represent that I got it from

13· ·footnote 2 on Frontier's Answer to your formal Complaint.

14· ·It was represented to be the terms and conditions of

15· ·Frontier's business services.

16· · · · · · · Can I have you -- have you seen a document

17· ·like that before?

18· · · · ·A.· ·You know, I don't know that -- this is a

19· ·rather significant document.· I can't say I've seen this

20· ·exact document before, but I have reviewed the agreements

21· ·that we have engaged with Frontier.

22· · · · ·Q.· ·If you haven't seen that exact document

23· ·before, I just won't ask you the question.

24· · · · · · · MR. MOORE:· I'm finished.· Thank you.

25· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Let me just ask a couple
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·1· ·of questions.

·2· · · · · · · With respect to Exhibit SRR-2, my

·3· ·understanding is that this is a document provided by the

·4· ·company that records its record of outages.· Correct.

·5· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Correct.

·6· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· And those have to be

·7· ·outages of at least a duration of --

·8· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Thirty minutes.

·9· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· -- thirty minutes.· So --

10· ·and this is confusing, because the pages aren't

11· ·numbered.· And I appreciate, Mr. Mecham, that it's very

12· ·difficult to print a spreadsheet, but if we flip to the

13· ·page where we see the end date of the outage, which is,

14· ·perhaps, five pages -- I think it's the fifth page in

15· ·the exhibit -- the first line says --first row says

16· ·"Start Time," "End Date."

17· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· We got it.

18· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· So the first outage we see

19· ·recorded on the company's document is May 29th, 2017.

20· ·When I turn around and I look at SRR-1, if I'm reading

21· ·it correctly, I don't see any outage recorded there on

22· ·that date.

23· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· You know, Your Honor, I can't

24· ·say with any definitivity, but what I would say is if

25· ·there was a loss of power, that may have resulted in
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·1· ·that monitoring service not recording the data.· But I'm

·2· ·not -- I don't have enough technical knowledge to tell

·3· ·you exactly what would happen from looking at those two

·4· ·pieces of information.

·5· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· So if power at the ranch

·6· ·were lost, then Binary Canary wouldn't necessarily

·7· ·capture the outage?

·8· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· That's possible.

·9· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· That's the only question I

10· ·have right now.· Mr. Mecham, did you have any recross --

11· ·or redirect?

12· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· I do not.

13· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you.· Would you like

14· ·to call another witness?

15· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Your Honor, may I have an

16· ·opportunity to ask a couple of questions, based on the

17· ·Attorney General's questions?

18· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Of course.

19· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Thank you.

20· · · · · · · · · FURTHER CROSS-EXAMINATION

21· ·BY MR. THOMSON:

22· · · · ·Q.· ·Mr. Ciani, looking at SRR-2, would you agree

23· ·with me that there were a total of two trouble tickets

24· ·called in regarding service in 2018 and 2019?

25· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· I think that document speaks
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·1· ·for itself, does it not?

·2· · · · ·Q.· ·(BY MR. THOMSON)· So you agree with me?

·3· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Where are you pointing him to?

·4· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Down at the bottom of the

·5· ·document.

·6· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Which page?

·7· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· There's one page on this

·8· ·document.

·9· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Which exhibit are you

10· ·referring to?

11· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· SRR-2 is --

12· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Is this SRR-2?

13· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· No.· I haven't entered that one

14· ·yet.

15· · · · ·Q.· ·(BY MR. THOMSON)· All right.· Can you look at

16· ·the document that's labeled Sorrel River Ranch Repair

17· ·Ticket History that was produced in discovery?

18· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· But it's not part of the

19· ·record.

20· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· I don't have a copy of

21· ·that document yet.· It hasn't been entered.

22· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Well, then we'll look at this

23· ·on our direct, then, Your Honor.

24· · · · ·Q.· ·(BY MR. THOMSON)· The other question I had:

25· ·Who is the commercial power supplier at the ranch?
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·1· · · · ·A.· ·Rocky Mountain Power.

·2· · · · ·Q.· ·And are there outages frequently with Rocky

·3· ·Mountain Power?

·4· · · · ·A.· ·Define "frequently."

·5· · · · ·Q.· ·Well, more than once every six months?

·6· · · · ·A.· ·I would say that it's likely that there's at

·7· ·least one outage every six months, but I'm sure you could

·8· ·find that information out from them.· I don't have the

·9· ·record of all their power outages in my head.

10· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Sure.· I have no further

11· ·questions, Your Honor.

12· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you.

13· · · · · · · Mr. Mecham, anything else from Mr. Ciani?

14· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Nothing at this time.

15· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· All right.· Would you like

16· ·to call another witness?

17· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· I don't think we need to at

18· ·this point.

19· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· All right.· Then we'll

20· ·turn to you, Mr. Thomson.

21· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Thank you.· Your Honor, we'll

22· ·call Mike Giles.

23· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Mr. Giles, could you swear

24· ·to tell the truth?

25· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· I do.
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·1· · · · · · · Is that better?· There we go.

·2· · · · · · · I do.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · · MICHAEL GILES,

·4· ·called as a witness by and on behalf of Frontier

·5· ·Communications, having been first duly sworn, was

·6· ·examined and testified as follows:

·7· · · · · · · · · · · DIRECT EXAMINATION

·8· ·BY MR. THOMSON:

·9· · · · ·Q.· ·Please give us your name.

10· · · · ·A.· ·Mike Giles.

11· · · · ·Q.· ·And are you employed by Frontier

12· ·Communications?

13· · · · ·A.· ·Yes, I am.

14· · · · ·Q.· ·In what capacity, sir?

15· · · · ·A.· ·Currently, I serve as local manager for

16· ·Frontier.

17· · · · ·Q.· ·And in that position, can you briefly

18· ·describe your duties?

19· · · · ·A.· ·Currently, I'm an operations supervisor, is

20· ·technically what I am, and so I'm over the technicians

21· ·and all the services provided in the State of Utah for

22· ·Frontier as well as in Arizona.

23· · · · ·Q.· ·How long have you been with the company?

24· · · · ·A.· ·This is my 40th year.

25· · · · ·Q.· ·And have you worked in Utah that entire time?
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·1· · · · ·A.· ·No.· I worked in Arizona and California and

·2· ·-- the largest amount of time in Utah, some 20 years.

·3· · · · ·Q.· ·Are you familiar with issues in Castle

·4· ·Valley?

·5· · · · ·A.· ·I am.

·6· · · · ·Q.· ·Can you describe Frontier's network leaving

·7· ·Moab and going into Castle Valley?

·8· · · · ·A.· ·Castle Valley and where Sorrel is, in

·9· ·Professor Valley, is currently served by a radio that

10· ·goes from Moab up to a mountaintop called Bald Mesa

11· ·approximately 9,000 feet.· And then that microwave radio

12· ·shot hits a bluff above Castle Valley and then down into

13· ·our Castle Valley office, and then SRR is served via

14· ·copper facility from that office, some five miles out to

15· ·their location.

16· · · · ·Q.· ·And when you say "office," describe what

17· ·exists on the ground at the end of the microwave radio

18· ·shots.

19· · · · ·A.· ·Our Castle Valley remote office is what we

20· ·call a central office.· It's basically a wire center in a

21· ·location where we have equipment to serve not only voice

22· ·but data from that office.

23· · · · ·Q.· ·Does anyone physically work there --

24· · · · ·A.· ·No.

25· · · · ·Q.· ·-- on a daily basis?
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·1· · · · ·A.· ·No.

·2· · · · ·Q.· ·So would this be characterized as a remote

·3· ·terminal?

·4· · · · ·A.· ·It's a remote terminal, correct.

·5· · · · ·Q.· ·And how is the signal taken from the Moab

·6· ·central office to Bald Mesa?

·7· · · · ·A.· ·Via microwave radio.

·8· · · · ·Q.· ·Was there ever any copper cable into Castle

·9· ·Valley that was used to serve customers there?

10· · · · ·A.· ·No.· It's been radio for the entire time.

11· · · · ·Q.· ·And when you say "the entire time," how long

12· ·has that radio been in existence?

13· · · · ·A.· ·I'm aware they've had phone service out there

14· ·for some 50 years.· Could be longer, but I'm aware of at

15· ·least 50.

16· · · · ·Q.· ·Is there any cell service in that valley?

17· · · · ·A.· ·Extremely spotty, depending on the -- you

18· ·know, the provider.

19· · · · ·Q.· ·So you've described the terrain generally.

20· ·Can you tell us a little bit about what exists at Bald

21· ·Mesa?

22· · · · ·A.· ·Bald Mesa is a plateau in the La Sal

23· ·mountains, and I would describe it as extremely remote.

24· ·There's a forest road that goes by it, but it's a couple

25· ·miles to get up to Bald Mesa.· It's a radio site that's
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·1· ·not -- used only by Frontier, but other entities as well.

·2· · · · ·Q.· ·So it's two miles off the forest road?

·3· · · · ·A.· ·I believe two miles is the shortest.

·4· · · · ·Q.· ·Do you know why Frontier changed the radio

·5· ·there in December of 2018?

·6· · · · ·A.· ·The radio was changed out primarily for

·7· ·Connect America Fund to increase data out to --

·8· ·there's -- there was some pressure to increase the

·9· ·internet usage out there and the data out there.· So as

10· ·-- part of that radio changeout was to increase the

11· ·bandwidth to provide to the customers in Castle Valley,

12· ·Castleton and Professor Valley.

13· · · · ·Q.· ·And Connect America Fund is something managed

14· ·by the FCC, correct?

15· · · · ·A.· ·That is correct.

16· · · · ·Q.· ·Do you recall how much it cost to replace

17· ·that radio?

18· · · · ·A.· ·I do not have the exact figures in there.

19· ·Somewhere in the neighborhood of a hundred thousand.

20· · · · ·Q.· ·Mr. Giles, after the formal complaint was

21· ·filed, what has Frontier's response been, at least

22· ·internally to manage the service?

23· · · · ·A.· ·A couple of things that go -- number one,

24· ·daily calls, because we were aware of the issue after the

25· ·radio was changed out on the 18th of December.· We've had
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·1· ·daily, weekly calls to manage those issues, as well as

·2· ·formulate plans going forward.· Monitoring -- constant

·3· ·monitoring not only on the radio, but with calls to

·4· ·customers and those people that were affected by that.

·5· · · · ·Q.· ·Are there any alarms or other monitoring

·6· ·devices that are being used on those circuits at this

·7· ·time?

·8· · · · ·A.· ·Test equipment.· So we're able to look at it

·9· ·and see if we had any radio hits, any delays.· We're able

10· ·to see that now to monitor whether or not the service is

11· ·down or just it took temporary hits that may or may cause

12· ·outages.· It may or may cause dropped calls.

13· · · · ·Q.· ·And I'm looking at, I think, what's been

14· ·marked as Sorrel River Ranch Exhibit 2.

15· · · · · · · Are you familiar with this document -- this

16· ·spreadsheet?

17· · · · ·A.· ·I've seen it.· One of the things that I

18· ·looked at -- this is the outages in the Moab exchange.

19· ·This is how we measure things, as far as outages not

20· ·specifically to a particular area.· Now, Castle Valley

21· ·outages could be in here, but this is all the outages at

22· ·the Moab exchange in this time period on here.

23· · · · · · · For instance, the one we talked about just a

24· ·minute ago, that 41-hour outage, did not affect Castle

25· ·Valley.· That was south of Moab.
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·1· · · · ·Q.· ·Roughly, how many customers are served on the

·2· ·radio network that provides service to Sorrel River

·3· ·Ranch?

·4· · · · ·A.· ·Just under 300.

·5· · · · ·Q.· ·And how many customers are served by the Moab

·6· ·central office?

·7· · · · ·A.· ·I don't recall a number at this time.  I

·8· ·mean, I'm not sure.

·9· · · · ·Q.· ·But the number would be greater than --

10· · · · ·A.· ·Oh, much greater than that, yeah.

11· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· One moment, Your Honor.

12· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· I was going to say 25, so

13· ·2,300 access lines, from our document.

14· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· I don't have any further

15· ·questions, Your Honor, and I'll release the witness for

16· ·cross.

17· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Before we move on to

18· ·cross, just to clarify, the 2,300 access lines you just

19· ·referred to are in what area?

20· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Moab exchange itself.· So

21· ·Castle Valley being an area part of that exchange.

22· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· And Castle Valley has

23· ·approximately 300?

24· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Just under 300.

25· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· And one other point of
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·1· ·clarification.· I believe when Mr. Thomson was asking

·2· ·you questions, he referred to what is referred to --

·3· ·what has been marked as -- what he referred to as SRR-2.

·4· ·He was referring to the spreadsheet that the company

·5· ·provided of its recording of outages.· I believe that's

·6· ·SRR-3.

·7· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Is that 3?· Okay.· I stand

·8· ·corrected.

·9· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Mr. Mecham, does that

10· ·comport with your understanding?

11· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Yes.

12· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Then we will move to

13· ·Mr. Mecham for cross-examination.

14· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Okay.· Thank you.

15· · · · · · · · · · · CROSS-EXAMINATION

16· ·BY MR. MECHAM:

17· · · · ·Q.· ·Mr. Giles, how far is it from Bald Mesa to

18· ·Moab?

19· · · · ·A.· ·I believe it's 15 miles driving, and I don't

20· ·know the airline -- I don't know the air -- as the crow

21· ·flies, how far it is.· I believe it's about 15 miles.

22· ·You go out to Pack Creek and then back up on the loop

23· ·road to get to Bald Mesa.

24· · · · ·Q.· ·So it's not like it's across the state or

25· ·anything like that or across the county?· It's 15 miles
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·1· ·away?

·2· · · · ·A.· ·Across the county, yes; across the state, no.

·3· · · · ·Q.· ·Okay.

·4· · · · ·A.· ·I believe there's about a 6,000-foot

·5· ·elevation climb, somewhere, plus or minus on that.

·6· · · · ·Q.· ·And is 44 outages every two years normal?· Is

·7· ·that normal for Frontier?

·8· · · · ·A.· ·I don't -- I'm not sure what -- how to answer

·9· ·that.· I know 44 outages depends on where.· In an

10· ·exchange like Moab -- with Moab itself, that would be

11· ·normal.

12· · · · ·Q.· ·Normal for Frontier?

13· · · · ·A.· ·I serve in a lot of areas.· I mean, there's a

14· ·lot of -- these are every outage over 30 minutes, some of

15· ·Frontier's issues, some external.

16· · · · ·Q.· ·Do you know why Frontier has not sought

17· ·Universal Service Funds from the State?

18· · · · ·A.· ·No, I don't -- I don't have the specific

19· ·information on why.· That's not a part of my

20· ·responsibility.

21· · · · ·Q.· ·Who would?· Is anybody here or on the

22· ·telephone who would know that?

23· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· I believe Mr. Erhart may have

24· ·information regarding that.

25· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· And would he know and
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·1· ·understand why or if Frontier did not qualify for State

·2· ·Universal Service Funds?

·3· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· We still have the witness

·4· ·who is testifying to answer.

·5· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· I don't know if he does or

·6· ·not, so...

·7· · · · ·Q.· ·(BY MR. MECHAM)· Well, let me ask you this,

·8· ·Mr. Giles, and I'll get back to that in a minute.

·9· · · · · · · How long has Frontier or any of its

10· ·predecessors served Castle Valley and Moab in that area?

11· · · · ·A.· ·Fifty years or so.

12· · · · ·Q.· ·So the terrain --

13· · · · ·A.· ·I've been here 40 years, and I started in

14· ·Utah.· We served it then.· That's maybe the best way to

15· ·answer that.

16· · · · ·Q.· ·So it's nothing new to you?

17· · · · ·A.· ·No.

18· · · · ·Q.· ·I mean, you know how to provide service in

19· ·that area?

20· · · · ·A.· ·Correct.

21· · · · ·Q.· ·It's rugged, but there are a lot of rugged

22· ·places in Utah served by independent rural telephone

23· ·companies?

24· · · · ·A.· ·Yes.

25· · · · ·Q.· ·And you do know -- well, let's go to the
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·1· ·Universal Service Fund.

·2· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· I don't know if Mr. Erhart --

·3· ·were you intending to bring him on in direct or how

·4· ·would you -- because I'd like to go to that to try to

·5· ·figure out the age of the network and the condition of

·6· ·the network.

·7· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· We didn't intend to present

·8· ·Mr. Erhart as a witness today.

·9· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Is he on the line?

10· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· He's sitting to my left,

11· ·beyond Mr. Giles.

12· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· If you want to call

13· ·Mr. Erhart, we can address that.· Why don't you wrap

14· ·your examination of Mr. Giles first?

15· · · · ·Q.· ·(BY MR. MECHAM)· Okay.· Mr. Giles, have you

16· ·looked at the document SRR-3?· I guess you did, since you

17· ·were looking at it with Mr. Thomson.· You pointed one out

18· ·in the Moab office.

19· · · · · · · Are you aware of how many of these would have

20· ·affected Castle Valley?

21· · · · ·A.· ·I'm not.

22· · · · ·Q.· ·Okay.· So that one, perhaps, didn't, but

23· ·maybe 35 or 40 might have?

24· · · · ·A.· ·In my tenure -- well, going on 12 years that

25· ·I've been back in Utah, I'm aware of two major fiber cuts

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 41
·1· ·that lasted just under 24 hours, in 12 years, that

·2· ·affected all of Moab that would have affected Castle

·3· ·Valley as well.

·4· · · · ·Q.· ·Okay.

·5· · · · ·A.· ·These were major fiber cuts that would be on

·6· ·here, outside of this four months that we're talking

·7· ·about with Castle Valley.

·8· · · · ·Q.· ·Mr. Giles, before the changeout of the radio

·9· ·first in December of 2018 and then second in March, were

10· ·you aware of other issues with dropped calls and need for

11· ·upgrade of Frontier's facilities in the area?

12· · · · ·A.· ·Dropped calls are something that Frontier and

13· ·any other providers deal with from time to time,

14· ·including the cell companies as well.· We did not have a

15· ·ration of dropped calls until December, because -- and I

16· ·base this on my interaction with customers and, you know,

17· ·trouble tickets that were called in at that time.

18· · · · · · · The dropped call situation and intermittent

19· ·dial tone situation ramped up after that radio was placed

20· ·on the 18th of December.· Prior to that, looking at this

21· ·Binary report, I'm not aware of the outages or dropped

22· ·calls prior to that on a large-scale basis.

23· · · · ·Q.· ·And so why did -- why did you change out that

24· ·radio?· Why did you need to change out that radio in

25· ·December?
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·1· · · · ·A.· ·The radio, that was changed out as part of

·2· ·the Connect America Fund upgrade to -- basically for

·3· ·data, not for voice.

·4· · · · ·Q.· ·So the Connect America Fund is the federal

·5· ·fund?

·6· · · · ·A.· ·Correct.

·7· · · · ·Q.· ·So you qualified for that; otherwise, you

·8· ·wouldn't have gotten the funds, right?

·9· · · · ·A.· ·Correct.

10· · · · ·Q.· ·And what is the process in the company -- if

11· ·you need an upgrade in order to serve your customers

12· ·well, what do you have to do to get the resources here?

13· · · · ·A.· ·Submit a request to -- and it goes to various

14· ·departments, whether it's -- starting in operation and

15· ·engineering and the Capital Funding Finance Group as

16· ·well.· Personally, I'm not involved in that piece of it,

17· ·I just know it as a general process.

18· · · · ·Q.· ·So in response -- and this is in -- in the

19· ·overall response, SRR-2 when asked what other

20· ·expenditures have been made other than for those radios,

21· ·the response was "outside of those listed elsewhere, we

22· ·can" -- "we can identify no expenditures."· So there

23· ·hasn't -- at least in the last three years -- so there

24· ·hasn't been any other expenditure made to upgrade the

25· ·services in the area, other than these radios that were
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·1· ·paid for by CAF funds; is that correct?

·2· · · · ·A.· ·Not -- I -- no, not -- I'm not aware of any.

·3· ·Other than, you know, card changeouts or repair or

·4· ·anything like that, I'm not aware of any capital money,

·5· ·other than the hundred thousand dollars for that

·6· ·changeout of the radio.

·7· · · · ·Q.· ·And that really -- that was federal funding

·8· ·available to all companies that you qualified for, but

·9· ·not capital provided by Frontier; is that correctly

10· ·characterized?

11· · · · ·A.· ·I don't know how that's figured.· There

12· ·again, not really part of my direct responsibility on

13· ·where that funding comes and if it's subsidized or

14· ·totally funded.

15· · · · ·Q.· ·How old was the radio that was replaced?

16· · · · ·A.· ·There again, I don't recall exactly when it

17· ·was replaced, but I would say in -- since I've been here

18· ·in the last -- eight years, maybe, old, when that radio

19· ·was replaced.· Two --

20· · · · ·Q.· ·So the first radio -- sorry, go ahead.

21· · · · ·A.· ·Excuse me.· Really, to add bandwidth, not to

22· ·change the voice side of it, on both occasions.

23· · · · ·Q.· ·So the first changeout was in December and

24· ·apparently that was a disaster.· Why?· What happened?

25· · · · ·A.· ·I'm going to divert that question to somebody
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·1· ·that knows a little bit more about the radio itself.· But

·2· ·a couple of things from my observation, as a general, you

·3· ·know, local manager, is the vendor that Frontier used in

·4· ·-- the radio application for that particular device was

·5· ·inadequate for what we needed.· And we realized that and

·6· ·started procedures -- processes in January -- late

·7· ·January to replace that vendor, which we ended up doing

·8· ·on the 21st of March.

·9· · · · ·Q.· ·And did you have to refund the CAF fund or

10· ·did the vendor have to do it?· I mean, it was either what

11· ·you didn't need or it was faulty, but, in any case, you

12· ·didn't duplicate the funding, did you?

13· · · · ·A.· ·Not to my knowledge, but I'm not -- there

14· ·again, not part of my -- I'm not aware of any refund

15· ·fund, other than just go and replace the vendor and

16· ·faulty equipment, and then what goes on there, I think,

17· ·is still in process.

18· · · · ·Q.· ·So there may yet be a refund to the CAF fund

19· ·for the first radio that didn't work?

20· · · · ·A.· ·I wouldn't know that.

21· · · · ·Q.· ·Who would?

22· · · · ·A.· ·I don't know if any -- I don't know at this

23· ·point.

24· · · · ·Q.· ·And so the new radio that went in in March,

25· ·apparently there still must be issues, because there are
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·1· ·outages and lost calls.· What -- what can Sorrel River

·2· ·Ranch expect from Frontier with that second radio?

·3· · · · ·A.· ·Well, I'll take part of that, and then I'll

·4· ·defer the second part to Carlos when he testifies.· But I

·5· ·will tell you that my complaints have almost ceased from

·6· ·the other customers -- the residential customers in that

·7· ·area since the changeout at the end of March.

·8· · · · · · · As far as dropped calls, as far as outages,

·9· ·there have been a couple of additional radio hits since

10· ·that time, but, overall, I have not had -- other than

11· ·normal, you know, out -- normal customer trouble tickets

12· ·that were not above normal since the 20th of

13· ·March -- 21st of March.

14· · · · ·Q.· ·And when you say "not above normal," what

15· ·does that mean?· How many trouble tickets or issues do

16· ·you have normally?

17· · · · ·A.· ·I don't know if I can answer that, really.

18· ·I'm just saying, at this point in time -- there obviously

19· ·was an issue this winter and, at this point in time, I

20· ·may go to Castle Valley twice a week, at the most, to

21· ·work on an individual's trouble that could be in

22· ·Frontier's network or customer issues or just typically

23· ·-- and I'm answering this generally -- typical service

24· ·issues that you would have anywhere.

25· · · · ·Q.· ·So in response to one of our data requests
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·1· ·you -- or Frontier, anyway, gave us a list of complaints,

·2· ·and I printed a couple of those out.· One of them is from

·3· ·the Castle Valley Fire Department, which I think was

·4· ·created March 18th of 2019.

·5· · · · · · · Is that after the second radio was --

·6· · · · ·A.· ·No, that was before.· The second radio

·7· ·changeout was the 21st of March.

·8· · · · ·Q.· ·Okay.· Mr. Giles, in your testimony I believe

·9· ·you said that there were a couple of radio hits after the

10· ·March 21st installation of the second radio.

11· · · · ·A.· ·Correct.

12· · · · ·Q.· ·What do you mean?

13· · · · ·A.· ·Loss of signal, at that point in time, and

14· ·our monitoring.· I think we talked about those in our

15· ·discovery.· One had happened the day before that that

16· ·would probably create a dropped call situation.· There's

17· ·been a couple other days where we've come in and had

18· ·errors on the signal since that time, but no additional

19· ·trouble tickets per se.

20· · · · · · · And I think Dave mentioned on the discovery

21· ·call that he was aware of that.· I think it happened at

22· ·10:00 at night and 2:00 in the morning, the previous day

23· ·of our discovery, to my recollection.

24· · · · ·Q.· ·And when you have radio issues -- radio hits,

25· ·who dispatches -- where do they come from?
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·1· · · · ·A.· ·Currently -- I mean, normally, they're

·2· ·dispatched from trouble calls, unless it's an outage

·3· ·itself, and then once the alarm comes in, then we'd go.

·4· ·Because we're monitoring this circuit, and have been

·5· ·since December, then we're, I would say, more fully aware

·6· ·of -- or more sensitive about this circuit and this

·7· ·particular service because of the issues we've had.

·8· · · · · · · So first thing that my central office

·9· ·technician does in the morning is check his test meter to

10· ·make sure that the circuit didn't take any hits and that

11· ·we haven't had any issues, that we didn't have

12· ·any -- when I say "hits," any hesitation in the radio or

13· ·any -- I can't think of the word I want to use right now,

14· ·but just to make sure that there may have not caused any

15· ·issues.· Verify that with the folks that are monitoring

16· ·the radio.

17· · · · · · · And then Mitch has taken weekly trips out

18· ·to -- to Sorrel to look at our meter that's out on

19· ·site -- our modem out on site and to pull the data from

20· ·that to make sure it coincides what we've seen from the

21· ·radio site.

22· · · · · · · These are not normal practices that we would

23· ·be able to do for all our customers, but we've tried to

24· ·be more responsive on this piece of it.

25· · · · ·Q.· ·But if you have to repair the radio, is
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·1· ·someone in Moab able to do that, or do they have to come

·2· ·from Salt Lake or some other place?

·3· · · · ·A.· ·They can log in remotely and look at it.· So

·4· ·those experts can log in remotely and look at the radio,

·5· ·and they're monitoring as well.

·6· · · · ·Q.· ·But I mean to repair it, not to -- just to

·7· ·monitor.

·8· · · · ·A.· ·It depends on the outage.· A lot of repair

·9· ·now is software changes and to be able to make

10· ·adjustments on software, not physically.· Physically,

11· ·yes, that may require some outside services to come in,

12· ·absolutely.

13· · · · ·Q.· ·So, remotely, if it's software; if it's

14· ·physical, they come from someplace else?

15· · · · ·A.· ·They may have to, if it's not something that

16· ·my local technicians can fix.

17· · · · ·Q.· ·And that -- if they -- where would they come

18· ·from, Salt Lake?

19· · · · ·A.· ·Various places.· Depends on the location of

20· ·vendors and where our internal support people are.· It

21· ·just depends.

22· · · · ·Q.· ·Mr. Giles, towards the end of last year, did

23· ·you have a lot of discussions with Sorrel River Ranch?

24· · · · ·A.· ·Personally, no, I did not.· My technician

25· ·talked to their front desk.· There was some
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·1· ·correspondence via email, but I did not -- I do not

·2· ·recall having a conversation face-to-face or -- and/or

·3· ·over the phone.· I'm not denying it, I just don't recall

·4· ·it.· I think that's a better way to answer that.

·5· · · · ·Q.· ·And with the December changeout of the radio,

·6· ·was it the Company's view at that time that that was the

·7· ·solution, that it was done, there was nothing more to do?

·8· · · · ·A.· ·Nothing more to do as --

·9· · · · ·Q.· ·As far as repairing the network in order to

10· ·provide the service.

11· · · · ·A.· ·Yeah.· That was our understanding, is that

12· ·would provide the service required for -- to satisfy the

13· ·bandwidth and data requirements.

14· · · · ·Q.· ·But then it didn't work out?

15· · · · ·A.· ·It did not work out.

16· · · · ·Q.· ·In your opinion, what should Frontier have

17· ·done in order to avoid this in the first place?

18· · · · ·A.· ·I'm trying -- obviously, we would have liked

19· ·this to have gone much smoother than it did.· We relied

20· ·on a vendor to provide a radio that was reliable to us

21· ·and that did not work out.· So, you know, I'd start with

22· ·that.

23· · · · · · · Could there have been other things handled

24· ·better?· There always is, communication, things like

25· ·that.· Internally, we tried several things to improve
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·1· ·that service and work with that vendor to improve that

·2· ·radio.· We made several software changes.· We made some

·3· ·physical changes.· We had some difficulty getting up to

·4· ·the location from a weather standpoint.· Probably the

·5· ·worst weather year that that area has had in all that I

·6· ·can recall.

·7· · · · · · · So there was some challenges that could have

·8· ·been handled better or could have had better luck with

·9· ·the weather.· It was a factor in some of the response

10· ·times.· But, overall, we relied on a vendor that we've

11· ·done business with in the past, and they didn't deliver

12· ·for us.

13· · · · ·Q.· ·Did Frontier make the appropriate

14· ·expenditures in order to maintain the system before the

15· ·radio problem emerged?

16· · · · ·A.· ·I really -- I really can't answer that from

17· ·my position.

18· · · · ·Q.· ·Who can?

19· · · · ·A.· ·I don't -- it may be -- Carlos may be able to

20· ·speak to that.· He's a radio expert on that.· He may have

21· ·a little bit more of an idea on that piece of it, so...

22· · · · ·Q.· ·You've testified several times that the area

23· ·is remote, mountainous, subject to the bad weather.· Why

24· ·did you wait to December to change it out?

25· · · · ·A.· ·That was when the project was approved and
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·1· ·the funding came through.· It wasn't my -- that's when it

·2· ·came.· We didn't -- we didn't plan the date for it,

·3· ·that's just when it was put out there.

·4· · · · ·Q.· ·When did you apply for it?

·5· · · · ·A.· ·Apply for?

·6· · · · ·Q.· ·The money to change out the radio, the CAF

·7· ·funds.

·8· · · · ·A.· ·There again, I have no idea when that was

·9· ·done.· That wasn't part of my responsibility.

10· · · · ·Q.· ·I mean, is Frontier anticipating these issues

11· ·to try to ensure that service remains high quality or at

12· ·least adequate?

13· · · · ·A.· ·Yeah, I would say so, as somebody that's

14· ·worked for the company for a long time.· This was

15· ·everything -- every effort is done to try to prevent

16· ·things like this.

17· · · · ·Q.· ·But none of this terrain is a surprise to

18· ·you, right?· I mean, you've been doing this for, you say,

19· ·50 years -- not you, but the company.

20· · · · ·A.· ·Well, the answer -- terrain-wise, getting up

21· ·to Bald Mesa, I've never had an eight-man snowcat stuck

22· ·in the snow up there in my, you know, 40 years of dealing

23· ·with mountaintops.· I've never had that situation.· So,

24· ·you know, it was an unusual challenge.

25· · · · · · · Obviously, December and January wouldn't have
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·1· ·been the ideal times to do that, as far as wanting to go

·2· ·up there, but we've had to go up there in the wintertime

·3· ·before on existing radio issues, so -- you know, from

·4· ·that standpoint.· But I've never seen the kind of snow

·5· ·and weather that we had to deal with this year.· I'm not

·6· ·using that as an excuse, I'm just saying it was a fact

·7· ·this winter, that it was unusually difficult to get up

·8· ·there.

·9· · · · ·Q.· ·But the outage report represented on SRR-3

10· ·shows plenty of outages.· And as you say, maybe they

11· ·don't all apply to Castle Valley, but there are plenty of

12· ·them that occurred well before any of this trouble

13· ·emerged at the end of 2018; isn't that correct?

14· · · · ·A.· ·This document shows everything in Moab, and I

15· ·would say Castle Valley represents a very small part of

16· ·the outages on this report.

17· · · · ·Q.· ·But it's -- it seems to me that 44 outages is

18· ·extraordinary, whether it affects Castle Valley or not.

19· ·Does that not reflect on the kind of equipment and the

20· ·age and condition of the equipment Frontier is using?

21· · · · ·A.· ·These outages are various, from data outages

22· ·to voice outages.· You know, so as far as whether it's

23· ·adequate or not, I don't have a comparison to what other

24· ·companies run in that same time period.· This was all the

25· ·outages, every last one of them, during that time frame,
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·1· ·from small to large outages.

·2· · · · ·Q.· ·Anything over 30 minutes?

·3· · · · ·A.· ·Anything over 30 minutes appears to be on

·4· ·this report.

·5· · · · ·Q.· ·Okay.

·6· · · · ·A.· ·Every one of these outages didn't affect

·7· ·everybody in the Moab exchange, so...

·8· · · · ·Q.· ·All right.· Who -- is it Mr. Erhart who knows

·9· ·something about the Universal Service Fund?

10· · · · ·A.· ·That's my understanding.

11· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Maybe we could swear him.

12· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Let's conclude examination

13· ·of this witness.· Do you have any additional questions

14· ·for this witness, Mr. Mecham?

15· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· No, at this time.

16· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Mr. Moore?

17· · · · · · · MR. MOORE:· Just a couple of questions.

18· · · · · · · · · · · CROSS-EXAMINATION

19· ·BY MR. MOORE:

20· · · · ·Q.· ·Do you know if Frontier maintains a report of

21· ·every time Sorrel Ranch issued a trouble report to you

22· ·concerning the problems with the services?

23· · · · ·A.· ·Yeah.· I think that's documented in one of

24· ·the -- that we haven't entered in yet, but I believe so,

25· ·yes.
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·1· · · · · · · MR. MOORE:· Are you -- can I ask your lawyer

·2· ·if you're planning on entering that in, and then I'll

·3· ·wait for these questions, then.

·4· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Your Honor, I'd be happy to

·5· ·enter this.· It was produced -- let me back up a little

·6· ·bit and, for the record, say that this was a document

·7· ·that was produced as a result of a discovery request

·8· ·from Mr. Mecham, and it's a log of the repair tickets

·9· ·called in by Sorrel River.· They asked for a two-year

10· ·period, we supplied the last decade worth of trouble

11· ·tickets.

12· · · · · · · So it's a single page.· It's a table, looks

13· ·like this.· We'll be happy to enter it into evidence.  I

14· ·can have Mr. Giles validate this on redirect, if we want

15· ·to do that.

16· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· If you're willing to do

17· ·so, and it will be responsive to Mr. Moore's question.

18· ·Do we have copies for everyone?

19· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· I have one copy, Your Honor.

20· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· I have copies.· I have no

21· ·objection to it being entered.

22· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Please distribute them.

23· ·So, Mr. Thomson, would you like me to mark this as the

24· ·company's exhibit?

25· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· We can do that, Your Honor,
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·1· ·sure.· We can mark that Frontier-1.

·2· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· All right.· Let this be

·3· ·marked Frontier-1.· And Mr. Thomson has moved for its

·4· ·admission.· Is there any objection?

·5· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· No.

·6· · · · · · · (Frontier Exhibit No. 1 was

·7· · · · · · · · marked for identification.)

·8· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· It's admitted.

·9· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Thank you, Your Honor.

10· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Before you continue

11· ·Mr. Moore, Mr. Mecham had just expressed a little

12· ·interest in a break.· It's been about an hour and 20

13· ·minutes.· Since we've just received a new exhibit, it

14· ·may benefit the parties to look at it a little bit

15· ·before we continue.

16· · · · · · · Is there any interest in a 10- or 15-minute

17· ·break?

18· · · · · · · MR. MOORE:· That would be fine.

19· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Fine with us.

20· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· All right.· We will be in

21· ·recess until 11:30.

22· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Thank you.

23· · · · · · · (A recess was taken.)

24· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Let's go back on the

25· ·record.
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·1· · · · · · · Mr. Moore, I believe we were with you and

·2· ·your cross-examination of Mr. Giles.

·3· · · · ·Q.· ·(BY MR. MOORE)· Yes.· Mr. Giles, I was

·4· ·speaking about Frontier Exhibit 1, I believe.· That's the

·5· ·Sorrel River Repair Ticket History.

·6· · · · · · · Do you have that before you?

·7· · · · ·A.· ·Okay.· I've got it, yes.

·8· · · · ·Q.· ·Now, this lists every time Sorrel -- every

·9· ·time Sorrel River issued a formal trouble report to you;

10· ·is that correct?

11· · · · ·A.· ·That is correct.

12· · · · ·Q.· ·What are the procedures that Sorrel River

13· ·must go through to issue a trouble report?

14· · · · ·A.· ·They call a central location, 800 number, and

15· ·report their -- whatever issues they have to that.· That

16· ·creates a trouble ticket in our system and is

17· ·subsequently dispatched to whatever group is going to

18· ·handle that issue.· Could be the field where my employees

19· ·are, it could be a long-distance group, various different

20· ·areas.· Not all of these would come out to the field and

21· ·require a field visit.

22· · · · ·Q.· ·Could you look, if it's available to you, for

23· ·Sorrel River Ranch Exhibit No. 1?· I'm referring to about

24· ·the -- your Response to Discovery Requests.

25· · · · ·A.· ·I'm not sure.· Sorrel River 1 is what?
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·1· · · · ·Q.· ·It's your response -- I believe it's your

·2· ·response to Sorrel River's discovery requests.

·3· · · · ·A.· ·Okay.

·4· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· I believe that's SRR-2.

·5· · · · · · · MR. MOORE:· That's SRR-2.· Sorry about that.

·6· · · · ·Q.· ·(BY MR. MOORE)· Will you look at page 4,

·7· ·Request 1-5?

·8· · · · ·A.· ·Okay.· I'm there.

·9· · · · ·Q.· ·And that provides that "Frontier made only

10· ·one dispatched service to Sorrel River Ranch in response

11· ·to a trouble ticket in the past 12 months."

12· · · · ·A.· ·Correct.

13· · · · ·Q.· ·"There were an additional 6 technician visits

14· ·in response to Owner and/or Managing Director emails over

15· ·the past 5 months."

16· · · · ·A.· ·Correct.

17· · · · ·Q.· ·Help me out here.· Does that mean the six

18· ·technicians in the past five months were dispatched

19· ·without a reporting on your repair ticket?

20· · · · ·A.· ·That is correct.· Those were visits made to

21· ·the site in response to either something that we observed

22· ·or an email from SRR.· We made visits out to the site to

23· ·start monitoring their PRI circuit which provides their

24· ·voice.

25· · · · ·Q.· ·But the email didn't generate a formal --
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·1· · · · ·A.· ·No, did not.· This was on our -- this was us

·2· ·taking active -- proactive -- I guess reactive to the

·3· ·email, but proactive stance to go out and visit, check

·4· ·with the front desk to make sure they hadn't had any

·5· ·dropped calls, and to retrieve data from our device out

·6· ·on site there and look at the previous week's report.

·7· · · · ·Q.· ·Is there any specific record that deals with

·8· ·your response to email requests that don't go through the

·9· ·800 number?

10· · · · ·A.· ·No.

11· · · · ·Q.· ·Does Frontier have a program of PRI testing,

12· ·inspection and preventative maintenance?

13· · · · ·A.· ·We have a preventative and maintenance

14· ·program, yes.

15· · · · ·Q.· ·Have you filed a description of this program

16· ·with the Commission?

17· · · · ·A.· ·I do not know that.

18· · · · ·Q.· ·You say that you're not sure why you do not

19· ·qualify for services in the Utah Public

20· ·Telecommunications Service Funds; is that correct?

21· · · · ·A.· ·That's correct.· I don't -- personally am not

22· ·involved in that process at all.

23· · · · ·Q.· ·Do you know if you get any other federal

24· ·assistance, other than the CAF assistance that you

25· ·referred to earlier?
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·1· · · · ·A.· ·I do not know.

·2· · · · ·Q.· ·Did you make a profit last year?

·3· · · · ·A.· ·That, I don't know specifically.

·4· · · · · · · MR. MOORE:· That's all I have.· Thank you.

·5· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· A couple of questions from

·6· ·me, Mr. Giles.

·7· · · · · · · When you were asked about the problems that

·8· ·began in the aftermath of the radio changeout in

·9· ·December of 2018, you alluded to a vendor.· Can you help

10· ·me understand what the actual physical problems were?

11· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Physical problems were the

12· ·reliability of that particular radio that we put in.

13· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Was it a compatibility

14· ·issue with the model or that particular radio was

15· ·somehow dysfunctional?

16· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· I'm going to defer that to the

17· ·expert on that piece of it, okay?· And he'll -- I

18· ·understand he's going to testify, so...

19· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· All right.· And that radio

20· ·was installed to increase bandwidth for internet

21· ·service; is that right?

22· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Correct.

23· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Was that implemented in

24· ·connection with an advertised increase of services to

25· ·customers?
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·1· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· No, not until after.· And we

·2· ·have not advertised any because of the subsequent

·3· ·problems, we've held off on that.

·4· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· When the complainant's

·5· ·witness, Mr. Ciani, was testifying, he alluded to

·6· ·certain billing credits that it has received on its

·7· ·statement from Frontier.

·8· · · · · · · Can you speak to those credits, why they

·9· ·were issued and the amount of them?

10· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· I personally cannot.· You

11· ·know, I wasn't involved in that piece of it.· So that's

12· ·all I know, is credits were issued to all the customers

13· ·out in that area.· I just don't have the specifics on

14· ·it.

15· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· And, in your view, as we

16· ·sit here today, are there technical issues that exist

17· ·that need to be remedied in order for Frontier to

18· ·provide the ranch adequate service?

19· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· We don't want them to have any

20· ·issues.· So if there's any issues that we can control or

21· ·fix or whatever, then that's our goal, so...

22· · · · · · · The complaints and the issues that we were

23· ·having have diminished significantly.· Are there still

24· ·issues, tweaks that have to be done to the system to

25· ·provide any issues?· We've had a couple of what I'd call
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·1· ·radio hits since then.· There again, I'll defer that to

·2· ·someone that's the expert on the radio.· But at this

·3· ·point in time, we'll continue to watch it.

·4· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· I don't want to ask you

·5· ·for a legal conclusion, that wouldn't be fair.· But, in

·6· ·your view, in your experience, having worked for the

·7· ·company for many decades, is this service that the

·8· ·company is providing to Frontier today reasonable and

·9· ·adequate?

10· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· That we're providing to SRR?

11· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· To the Ranch, yes.

12· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· To the Ranch.· At this point,

13· ·I believe it is.· But there again, that's just a general

14· ·opinion.· Obviously, we don't want any outages and we

15· ·react to any that we know about, so...· There's still

16· ·challenges, you know, it's -- and to serve that area in

17· ·particular, there's still challenges and will probably

18· ·continue to be.

19· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Is there any specific

20· ·action plan that the company has, as of today, in order

21· ·to further investigate or address the Ranch's continued

22· ·complaints?

23· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· There's ongoing calls every

24· ·single day to evaluate where we're at, where our clients

25· ·are for the future.· This is not typical.· This is in

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 62
·1· ·response to the issues we've had and to the customers

·2· ·out there that we'll continue, until we're satisfied and

·3· ·they're satisfied that the issues have been resolved.

·4· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you.

·5· · · · · · · Any redirect, Mr. Thomson?

·6· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· No, Your Honor.

·7· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Does any other party have

·8· ·additional questions before we move on?

·9· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Perhaps just one.

10· · · · · · · · · FURTHER CROSS-EXAMINATION

11· ·BY MR. MECHAM:

12· · · · ·Q.· ·Mr. Giles, you talk about those radios going

13· ·in for internet purposes, but don't the telephone calls

14· ·go over the same network -- over the same circuits?

15· · · · ·A.· ·They do, but I don't know specifically.· And,

16· ·there again, you can direct those questions to a radio

17· ·expert to better answer it.· But, initially, the radios

18· ·were replaced to increase the bandwidth out to that area.

19· ·More pressure on the internet than there was on the voice

20· ·part of it as well.

21· · · · ·Q.· ·Is there a more reliable -- well, isn't there

22· ·a more reliable way to provide the service?

23· · · · ·A.· ·I really couldn't answer that.· I mean, I

24· ·don't know what your definition of "reliable" is.

25· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Thank you.
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·1· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Any follow-up?

·2· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· No, Your Honor.

·3· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· All right.· Well,

·4· ·Mr. Mecham had expressed interest in asking questions of

·5· ·Mr. Erhart.· I think it's probably procedurally

·6· ·appropriate to stick with Mr. Thomson for the time being

·7· ·and ask you who your next intended witness is.

·8· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· We're going to call Carlos

·9· ·Cardona, who is an employee for Frontier.

10· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Do you intend to call

11· ·Mr. Erhart?

12· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· I did not, no, Your Honor.

13· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· To the extent the other

14· ·parties have questions for Mr. Erhart, do you have

15· ·objection to his being sworn and answering questions

16· ·today?

17· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· No.· I don't think the parties

18· ·should have expectation that Mr. Erhart is prepared for

19· ·everything they might ask, but I don't have an objection

20· ·to Mr. Erhart being sworn in and testifying to what he

21· ·knows.

22· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Well, we'll stick with

23· ·your preferred order of the witnesses now, then, and

24· ·I'll ask you to call your next witness.

25· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Thank you.
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·1· · · · · · · Mr. Cardona, are you still on the line?

·2· · · · · · · MR. CARDONA:· Yes.· Does everybody hear me?

·3· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Yeah.· Thank you.· Would you

·4· ·state your name --

·5· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Two quick questions.

·6· ·First, I assume there's no objection to the witness

·7· ·telephonically.

·8· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· No, we agreed.

·9· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Then I need to swear you.

10· ·Mr. Cardona, is it?

11· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Yes, sir.

12· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Mr. Cardona, do you swear

13· ·to tell the truth?

14· · · · · · · MR. CARDONA:· Yes, I do.

15· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you.· Go ahead.

16· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Thank you, Your Honor.

17· · · · · · · · · · · ·CARLOS CARDONA,

18· ·called as a witness by and on behalf of Frontier

19· ·Communications, having been first duly sworn, was

20· ·examined and testified as follows:

21· · · · · · · · · · · DIRECT EXAMINATION

22· ·BY MR. THOMSON:

23· · · · ·Q.· ·Carlos, would you state your full name for

24· ·the record, please?

25· · · · ·A.· ·Carlos J. Cardona.
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·1· · · · ·Q.· ·And would you spell your last name, please?

·2· · · · ·A.· ·C-A-R-D-O-N-A.

·3· · · · ·Q.· ·Thank you.· Are you an employee of Frontier

·4· ·Communications?

·5· · · · ·A.· ·Yes.

·6· · · · ·Q.· ·How long have you been employed by Frontier?

·7· · · · ·A.· ·Five-and-a-half years.

·8· · · · ·Q.· ·Mr. Cardona, what is your job title?

·9· · · · ·A.· ·I'm the principal senior wireless architect

10· ·for Frontier Communications.

11· · · · ·Q.· ·And in the capacity as the principal senior

12· ·architect for wireless communications, can you give us a

13· ·general overview of your duties?

14· · · · ·A.· ·Yeah.· We oversee, for companywide,

15· ·nationwide, all the technology that gets deployed.· We

16· ·oversee 450 microwave links that we have deployed and

17· ·over 700 tower sites that we have deployed nationwide.

18· · · · ·Q.· ·So you're familiar with microwave radio

19· ·systems like Sorrel River's and the other customers in

20· ·Castle Valley?

21· · · · ·A.· ·The path -- the path from the microwave

22· ·network that is taken from Moab to Bald Mesa -- Bald

23· ·Mesa, Castle Valley, yes.· I'm not familiar from Castle

24· ·Valley forward.· I don't have any familiarity whatsoever

25· ·of what is happening on the network.
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·1· · · · ·Q.· ·Okay.· Fair enough.· Were you involved with

·2· ·the December 18th replacement of the radio on Bald Mesa?

·3· · · · ·A.· ·Yes, I was.

·4· · · · ·Q.· ·Can you describe for us what the purpose of

·5· ·that replacement was?

·6· · · · ·A.· ·The current radio that was installed, it was

·7· ·what is called a TDM radio.· It's a radio only to deliver

·8· ·analog circuits, voice, and data.· Analog circuits are

·9· ·low speeds in -- for augmenting data for CAF, Connect

10· ·America Fund, purposes.

11· · · · · · · We required these radios, so we implemented

12· ·these radios over the network.· We have the same vendor

13· ·that we deploy.· We've already been utilizing them for

14· ·four years.· We have over 42 links nationwide with them,

15· ·and we did not register any issues in the last four years

16· ·with them.· We implemented the network in order to

17· ·augment the circuit, and that's why the radio was

18· ·replaced.

19· · · · ·Q.· ·This was intended to be an upgrade?

20· · · · ·A.· ·Yes.

21· · · · ·Q.· ·And what was the name of the vendor whose

22· ·radio you used on December 18th?

23· · · · ·A.· ·Cambium Networks.

24· · · · ·Q.· ·Can you spell that for the record, please?

25· · · · ·A.· ·C-A-M-B-I-U-M Networks.
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·1· · · · ·Q.· ·Okay.

·2· · · · ·A.· ·They are -- their headquarters are Rolling

·3· ·Meadows, Illinois.

·4· · · · ·Q.· ·And once that radio came on line, what

·5· ·happened next?

·6· · · · ·A.· ·The radio came on line, everything started,

·7· ·all the processes and the cutovers came on line until

·8· ·issues started affecting the performance on fading, and

·9· ·we started to engage into mitigating those problems.· And

10· ·it's --

11· · · · ·Q.· ·And when you say -- I'm sorry.

12· · · · ·A.· ·And it's -- yes.

13· · · · ·Q.· ·When you say you started to engage the

14· ·vendor, what happened?

15· · · · ·A.· ·The vendor never provided adequate support,

16· ·so we ended up stranded.· We were with a contractor that

17· ·we had on the site and only phone support.· They were not

18· ·sending us new equipment, they were not sending us their

19· ·engineers to the site.· So we were dealing back and forth

20· ·with that situation.

21· · · · · · · Every time we adjust -- make adjustment into

22· ·the network, make adjustment to the radios, they'd work

23· ·for three or four days and then they start causing issues

24· ·again and to a point that I made a decision to switch the

25· ·radio.· And Mother Nature prevented me to change the
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·1· ·radio earlier than I wanted to.

·2· · · · ·Q.· ·When did the radio get replaced?

·3· · · · ·A.· ·The radio got replaced in March.· I think

·4· ·it's the week of March 20th.· That's when with the

·5· ·weather -- you know, the weather was very, very

·6· ·impenetrable, that mountain.· You know, having a snowcat

·7· ·and not being able to bring it up is not safe for the

·8· ·tower climbers.· Bald Mesa mountain is very risky when

·9· ·there is a lot of ice on it.

10· · · · ·Q.· ·And when you replaced the radio in March, did

11· ·you use another Cambium radio?

12· · · · ·A.· ·No.· We eliminated them as a vendor for the

13· ·company.· We used an Aviat radio, A-V-I-A-T.· They are

14· ·out of Austin, Texas.

15· · · · ·Q.· ·And what happened when you replaced the

16· ·radio?

17· · · · ·A.· ·When we replaced the radio, we -- the

18· ·complete -- complete coordination with my technicians and

19· ·performance when testing, the timing calibrations, and

20· ·traffic got more stable and more adequate at that time,

21· ·removing the radio that was not holding the service

22· ·agreement or the quality agreement that it was assigning

23· ·to.

24· · · · ·Q.· ·These are sometimes referred to as service

25· ·level agreements?
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·1· · · · ·A.· ·Yes.· Yeah.· When we -- when we approve

·2· ·equipment internally in Frontier Communications, it goes

·3· ·through our lab process -- our lab testing process.· We

·4· ·put them through all these test processes.

·5· · · · · · · Now, apparently, these new radios that were

·6· ·sent out has a new voice queue.· And we approved that and

·7· ·we determined service level agreements on operation with

·8· ·the manufacturers.· Once those service level agreements

·9· ·are not met, we eliminate the vendor from the network.

10· · · · ·Q.· ·And what is your opinion regarding

11· ·performance of the new radio versus the Cambium radio?

12· · · · ·A.· ·Well, the log says it all.· You know, that

13· ·radio, since it was put on, it -- it had no hiccups.· We

14· ·are now in the process of replacing the second leg,

15· ·another Cambium radio that is mounted that might refer

16· ·some hits here and there, and we're trying to clean those

17· ·too.· So we are replacing with another Aviat radio.· The

18· ·project got approved last night, and looking to replace

19· ·that radio next week.

20· · · · ·Q.· ·And this is on the second leg?

21· · · · ·A.· ·The second leg that will be Bald Mesa to

22· ·Castle Valley.

23· · · · ·Q.· ·Okay.· And what do you expect that second

24· ·radio replacement to do?

25· · · · ·A.· ·Clean the errors, the hits.· And also when
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·1· ·the weather -- the situation on -- over the radio link is

·2· ·that we have one path that is Bald Mesa to Castle Valley

·3· ·that goes to a passive repeater.· A passive repeater is a

·4· ·billboard that does not have any electronics.· Basically,

·5· ·we're bouncing the signal to the mountain to the tower.

·6· ·Every time we get weather, fog, diffraction, refraction,

·7· ·which fades the radio signal, the QAM modulation of the

·8· ·radio decreases.· The QAM modulation is the capacity of

·9· ·the radio to maintain the bandwidth -- projected

10· ·bandwidth for certain receive level, then it effects

11· ·signal.

12· · · · · · · So the hits that Mike is seeing every time we

13· ·get wet fog, every time we get heavy rain or heavy fog,

14· ·this radio tends to fade and is not holding the QAM

15· ·modulation.· It does not drop the traffic completely

16· ·down, but it just holds it enough that it will -- the

17· ·test set that we have right now is connected 24/7

18· ·monitoring has registered those hits.

19· · · · · · · So I just made a decision to replace all the

20· ·radios and make this entire network completely flawless

21· ·at least from the RF side from end to end from Moab to

22· ·Castle Valley.

23· · · · ·Q.· ·And RF is radio frequency?

24· · · · ·A.· ·Yes, sir.

25· · · · ·Q.· ·Mr. Cardona, how much experience do you have
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·1· ·with microwave systems?

·2· · · · ·A.· ·I've been working on microwave radios since

·3· ·1994.

·4· · · · ·Q.· ·And have you worked in other challenging

·5· ·locations?

·6· · · · ·A.· ·Yes.· I spent seven years in the entire

·7· ·continent of Africa.· I spent years in South America,

·8· ·Central America, and the Caribbean dealing with a lot of

·9· ·receptive recovery and a lot of terrain situations as

10· ·well.

11· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Your Honor, we don't have any

12· ·further questions at this time.

13· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· We'll go to Mr. Mecham.

14· · · · · · · REPORTER:· Mr. Cardona, I need you to speak

15· ·up, please.

16· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· That was the court

17· ·reporter asking you to speak more loudly, Mr. Cardon.

18· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Yes.

19· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Thank you.

20· · · · · · · · · · · CROSS-EXAMINATION

21· ·BY MR. MECHAM:

22· · · · ·Q.· ·Mr. Cardona, so now that that radio has been

23· ·switched out, as of March, there are no further problems

24· ·in Castle Valley?

25· · · · ·A.· ·Well, on Castle Valley, Mike testified that
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·1· ·there's been some hits here and there.· That's why I made

·2· ·the decision to replace that second leg already.

·3· · · · ·Q.· ·So all of the customers, including Sorrel

·4· ·River Ranch, can expect the network to be up and running

·5· ·99 point something percent of the time?

·6· · · · ·A.· ·Four nines.· My goal is on the radio

·7· ·network -- solely on the radio network, the goal is four

·8· ·nines reliability.

·9· · · · ·Q.· ·Is what?· I'm sorry, I couldn't --

10· · · · ·A.· ·Four nines, 99.99.

11· · · · ·Q.· ·Were you aware of the problems before

12· ·December 18th that were going on that required the first

13· ·switchout?

14· · · · ·A.· ·No, I was not.· I was involved on the Connect

15· ·America Fund project to run 18 radio projects to be

16· ·addressed, and this was one of them.

17· · · · ·Q.· ·And there was nothing that could have been

18· ·done to prevent what did happen and what seems to

19· ·continue to be happening at Sorrel River Ranch?

20· · · · ·A.· ·After the radio -- I wanted to replace this

21· ·radio in January and the weather was kicking heavy duty.

22· ·So the situation right now on the radio and the -- after

23· ·the new radio was replaced, the network is being very,

24· ·very stable.

25· · · · ·Q.· ·But we act as though the radio was the cure,
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·1· ·and yet there were still outages well before

·2· ·December 18th of 2018.· Weren't there problems in the

·3· ·network before that?

·4· · · · ·A.· ·Before December 18th --

·5· · · · ·Q.· ·Correct.

·6· · · · ·A.· ·-- I was not aware of huge outages at that

·7· ·time.

·8· · · · ·Q.· ·Well, you are aware of the response that

·9· ·Frontier gave, which was marked as SRR-3, that show

10· ·outages, not all of which affected Castle Valley, but

11· ·certainly some did and well before December 18th of 2018.

12· ·In other words --

13· · · · ·A.· ·I'm not -- my duty's as the architect, I'm

14· ·not directing both in operations.

15· · · · ·Q.· ·So you only focus on the microwave radio?

16· · · · ·A.· ·On the microwave part -- part of the house,

17· ·yes.· Nothing on the operations.

18· · · · ·Q.· ·So the troubles before that weren't your

19· ·concern?

20· · · · ·A.· ·I was not aware of -- we were aware of, we

21· ·were working to mitigation, but we were not aware of

22· ·anything regarding that.

23· · · · ·Q.· ·Do you know if Frontier has taken any action

24· ·against the first vendor, Cambium Networks?

25· · · · ·A.· ·We are in process.· I'm not allowed to speak
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·1· ·any further about it, but we are working internally.

·2· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· And that's it for now,

·3· ·Mr. Hammer.

·4· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Mr. Moore?

·5· · · · · · · · · · · CROSS-EXAMINATION

·6· ·BY MR. MOORE:

·7· · · · ·Q.· ·Just for the record, when will this second

·8· ·radio be up and running?· When will the system be fully

·9· ·operational after you set in the second radio link?

10· · · · ·A.· ·Which one, the new one that I'm trying to

11· ·replace now or --

12· · · · ·Q.· ·The one you're trying to replace.

13· · · · ·A.· ·-- the second one that we were --

14· · · · ·Q.· ·I'm sorry.· The one you're trying to replace

15· ·now.

16· · · · ·A.· ·Okay.· Yeah.· First, I have to coordinate the

17· ·maintenance window with Mike Giles.· He's the officer

18· ·that will create the maintenance window.· The goal is to

19· ·do the cutover between Friday and Saturday.· That's the

20· ·goal.· But we're still working on some logistical

21· ·situation, but that's the goal, to do that next week.

22· · · · ·Q.· ·So the -- the repairs on the second radio

23· ·will be done this time next week?

24· · · · ·A.· ·We will be doing early morning hours, 1:00 or

25· ·2:00 a.m. in the morning, yes.
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·1· · · · · · · MR. MOORE:· Thank you.· I have no further

·2· ·questions.

·3· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Just a point of

·4· ·clarification from me, Mr. Cardona.

·5· · · · · · · With respect to this -- what we'll call the

·6· ·second radio that you're working to have installed next

·7· ·week, there is not presently a radio at that location,

·8· ·right.

·9· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Yes.· There is a Cambium radio

10· ·installed right now, which completes the circuit from

11· ·Bald Mesa to Castle Valley.· We are going to replace

12· ·that Cambium radio with another new Aviat radio.

13· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· I'm sorry, I misunderstood

14· ·you.· So this will simply be an upgraded radio?

15· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Yes.· We're going to upgrade

16· ·the radio.· Upgrading this radio will also include more

17· ·reliability and a little bit more QAM modulation to add

18· ·a little bit more bandwidth to the network, adding more

19· ·stability.

20· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· All right.· Thank you.

21· · · · · · · Mr. Thomson, any redirect?

22· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· No, sir.· Thank you.

23· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Do you have something?

24· ·All right.· Thank you, Mr. Cardona.

25· · · · · · · Your next witness, Mr. Thomson.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 76
·1· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· We'll call Mr. Erhart, Your

·2· ·Honor.

·3· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Mr. Erhart, do you swear

·4· ·to tell the truth?

·5· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· I do.

·6· · · · · · · · · · · · ·CARL ERHART,

·7· ·called as a witness by and on behalf of Frontier

·8· ·Communications, having been first duly sworn, was

·9· ·examined and testified as follows:

10· · · · · · · · · · · DIRECT EXAMINATION

11· ·BY MR. THOMSON:

12· · · · ·Q.· ·Mr. Erhart, would you state your name for the

13· ·record, please?

14· · · · ·A.· ·My name is Carl E. Erhart.

15· · · · ·Q.· ·And are you employed by Frontier

16· ·Communications?

17· · · · ·A.· ·Yes, I am.

18· · · · ·Q.· ·In what capacity?

19· · · · ·A.· ·I'm vice president for regulatory and

20· ·governmental affairs.

21· · · · ·Q.· ·And what jurisdictions do you cover in that

22· ·capacity?

23· · · · ·A.· ·I oversee several state jurisdictions

24· ·primarily in the western half of the country, but for

25· ·California.
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·1· · · · ·Q.· ·Including Utah?

·2· · · · ·A.· ·Including Utah.

·3· · · · ·Q.· ·How long have you been with the company, sir?

·4· · · · ·A.· ·Been employed with Frontier for just over

·5· ·three years.

·6· · · · ·Q.· ·Are you familiar with the Connect America

·7· ·Fund for efforts that the company's conducting?

·8· · · · ·A.· ·I would say generally.

·9· · · · ·Q.· ·And can you give us a short overview of what

10· ·the Connect America Fund is designed to do?

11· · · · ·A.· ·Sure.· The Connect America Fund, at a high

12· ·level, basically replaced the prior Universal Service

13· ·high-cost support for voice services in the state, and

14· ·the Connect America Fund is meant primarily to support

15· ·the deployment of broadband services in very high-cost

16· ·areas.

17· · · · · · · And so for companies like Frontier that are

18· ·price cap companies at the federal level, funding was

19· ·made available for companies to accept on a state basis

20· ·for deployment of broadband services that met certain

21· ·speed requirements in certain census blocks that the FCC

22· ·had identified as high cost.

23· · · · ·Q.· ·Do you know if there's a company contribution

24· ·toward these projects?

25· · · · ·A.· ·There could be.· I mean, the FCC model
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·1· ·determined a -- you know, based on their model, an

·2· ·estimate to deploy broadband services and, therefore,

·3· ·made funding available based on that.· And once the

·4· ·company accepts the money, they're committed to deploy

·5· ·service past the predetermined number of households and

·6· ·business locations within those census blocks.

·7· · · · ·Q.· ·And, to your knowledge, were CAF funds used

·8· ·to replace the radio in December of 2018?

·9· · · · ·A.· ·That's my understanding, that it was part of

10· ·the CAF deployment for the census blocks within the Moab

11· ·exchange.

12· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Your Honor, I don't have any

13· ·further questions.

14· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Mr. Mecham?

15· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Thank you.

16· · · · · · · · · · · CROSS-EXAMINATION

17· ·BY MR. MECHAM:

18· · · · ·Q.· ·Mr. Erhart, in what we've marked as SRR-2,

19· ·the general responses to Sorrel River Ranch's data

20· ·requests at 1.12 we asked why Frontier has not tried to

21· ·obtain funds from the state Universal Service Fund in

22· ·order to upgrade the network facilities serving Castle

23· ·Valley and Professor Valley and Sorrel River Ranch, and

24· ·the response was less than detailed.

25· · · · · · · You'll see there that it says, "Eligibility
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·1· ·for State High Cost Universal Fund Support is determined

·2· ·by the PSC, which is now based on an annual DPU analysis

·3· ·and recommendation."

·4· · · · · · · Does that mean that Frontier can't qualify

·5· ·under the criteria?

·6· · · · ·A.· ·My understanding is the PSC determined that

·7· ·Frontier no longer qualified for Universal Service Funds

·8· ·support beginning sometime in 2007 and hasn't qualified

·9· ·since.

10· · · · ·Q.· ·And do you know what was the

11· ·disqualification?

12· · · · ·A.· ·I don't know.· I wasn't employed by Frontier

13· ·in 2007.· I assume it was an analysis done by the DPU.

14· · · · ·Q.· ·But you've been employed for the last three

15· ·years and haven't qualified for any of those years?

16· · · · ·A.· ·That's correct.

17· · · · ·Q.· ·Okay.· I have an exhibit.· I guess we're up

18· ·to 4.· You'll see, Mr. Erhart, this is a memorandum from

19· ·the Division of Public Utilities to the Public Service

20· ·Commission.· It's in Docket 18-041-02, which apparently

21· ·is the analysis that the Division did to determine

22· ·whether or not Frontier qualified for USF funds then,

23· ·which, of course, was only six or seven months ago.

24· · · · · · · And if you look at the second page under

25· ·Discussion No. 3, it says, "Accumulated Depreciation -
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·1· ·Citizens reported," which is Frontier's parent company,

·2· ·as you know -- "Citizens reported more than $117.7 of

·3· ·accumulated depreciation.· Over 95 percent of the

·4· ·company's assets are fully depreciated.· There is very

·5· ·little rate base left as a basis for return on

·6· ·investment."

·7· · · · · · · Doesn't that indicate that Frontier is not

·8· ·investing in the State of Utah?

·9· · · · ·A.· ·No, I wouldn't agree with that.

10· · · · ·Q.· ·Why?

11· · · · ·A.· ·Well, a couple of things.· One, I don't think

12· ·this is uncommon for ILECs in the industry to be in this

13· ·position, and I would say it's analogous to where the

14· ·water companies are.· And I think what's happened with

15· ·telecom, and Frontier, in particular, has been a

16· ·significant decline in a number of access lines that it

17· ·serves.· So we have a large rate base that has been on

18· ·the books for a number of years that's being depreciated

19· ·that was initially deployed to serve a much greater

20· ·number of customers.

21· · · · · · · And over the years, because of the line loss,

22· ·that vast network, if you will, serves fewer customers.

23· ·So if you just look at the investment, you might conclude

24· ·that it hasn't been significant relative to the total

25· ·rate base.· But relative to the number of customers that
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·1· ·remain on the network, I would say the company continues

·2· ·to invest in the network.

·3· · · · ·Q.· ·With 5 percent -- 5 percent investment,

·4· ·essentially?

·5· · · · ·A.· ·Again, the access lines have decreased

·6· ·significantly.· It's not uncommon since 2004 ILECs to

·7· ·have lost 70 to 80 percent of the access lines that they

·8· ·once served.

·9· · · · ·Q.· ·Are you aware of how many other independent

10· ·rural companies don't get Universal Service Funds?

11· · · · ·A.· ·In Utah?

12· · · · ·Q.· ·Yes.

13· · · · ·A.· ·No, I'm not.

14· · · · ·Q.· ·Would you accept, subject to check, that it's

15· ·very few, it might be two?

16· · · · ·A.· ·If that's a representation, I have no reason

17· ·to disagree.· Also, understand, CenturyLink wouldn't

18· ·qualify for it, either.

19· · · · ·Q.· ·CenturyLink wouldn't.· They're the large

20· ·incumbent.· They've never gotten Universal Service Funds

21· ·from the state ever.· But the rural independents,

22· ·including Frontier, and Contel before, have, until 2007,

23· ·both, according to your response as well as the response

24· ·in the data request.

25· · · · ·A.· ·Well, again, I think as the company responded
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·1· ·in the data request, the determination of whether

·2· ·citizens of Utah would qualify for Universal Service

·3· ·Funds could be done on a couple different bases.· For

·4· ·example, I think if you looked at the company's

·5· ·intrastate operations, the company's net operation -- net

·6· ·operating margin is negative.

·7· · · · · · · So many states look at the qualifications of

·8· ·Universal Service Funds on the basis of intrastate

·9· ·operations, and they look at it on the basis of a

10· ·net-operating-margin basis, not on a return-on-rate

11· ·basis.

12· · · · · · · So if you looked at it on that basis, then

13· ·Frontier's operating company could qualify for Universal

14· ·Service funding and it could be significant, as it was --

15· ·as I understand, back in the mid 2000s, the company

16· ·received roughly $1.5 million a year.

17· · · · ·Q.· ·Well, it just seems to me that it looks like

18· ·neglect of the state if 95 --

19· · · · ·A.· ·I've never heard of --

20· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Your Honor, I'm going to

21· ·object to that.· I don't object to leading questions,

22· ·but I don't want argument inserted into the question.

23· ·If Mr. Mecham has a question, he should ask it.

24· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· I'll sustain the

25· ·objection.· I hadn't heard a question yet, but you were
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·1· ·interrupted.· So if you'd like to rephrase and offer a

·2· ·question, you're welcome to.

·3· · · · ·Q.· ·(BY MR. MECHAM)· Do you know how the formula

·4· ·works for the state USF?

·5· · · · ·A.· ·At a high level.

·6· · · · ·Q.· ·So you know that in order to qualify, you

·7· ·have to have undepreciated rate base, you have to have

·8· ·costs that exceed your authorized rate of return to make

·9· ·up that difference, or do you not know that?

10· · · · ·A.· ·I would say in addition to that, the state

11· ·also looks at the non-intrastate jurisdiction.

12· · · · ·Q.· ·That is correct.· I agree with that.· That's

13· ·part of the statute to ensure that you don't get unjustly

14· ·enriched by the interstate side.· Is that your

15· ·understanding?

16· · · · ·A.· ·I assume that's the logic behind it.

17· · · · ·Q.· ·Okay.

18· · · · ·A.· ·But, again, if you were to determine the

19· ·company's cost of service, I'll say for rate case

20· ·purposes, it would be on the basis of intrastate results,

21· ·which, again, based on the company's most recent annual

22· ·report, its net operating margin on an intrastate basis

23· ·is negative.

24· · · · · · · And earlier you seemed to imply that the

25· ·company could qualify for Universal Service Funds support
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·1· ·on some type of project basis.· But, again, my

·2· ·understanding of current rules and the statute is that

·3· ·that is limited to a non-rate of return regulated

·4· ·company, which in Utah would only be CenturyLink.

·5· · · · ·Q.· ·Right.· CenturyLink has never qualified for

·6· ·funds.

·7· · · · ·A.· ·Right, but could, on a project basis.

·8· · · · ·Q.· ·A one-time basis.· That may have happened a

·9· ·time or two, I can't remember.

10· · · · ·A.· ·Right.

11· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Okay.· I think that's it for

12· ·me, Mr. Hammer.

13· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Mr. Moore?

14· · · · · · · MR. MOORE:· Just one quick question.

15· · · · · · · · · · · CROSS-EXAMINATION

16· ·BY MR. MOORE:

17· · · · ·Q.· ·As -- you work with regulatory affairs for

18· ·the state -- state regulatory affairs?

19· · · · ·A.· ·I do, across a number of states.

20· · · · ·Q.· ·Do you know if there's a description of

21· ·Frontier's inspection and maintenance and testing program

22· ·filed with the Public Service Commission?

23· · · · ·A.· ·I am not aware.

24· · · · · · · MR. MOORE:· That's it.

25· · · · ·Q.· ·(BY MR. MOORE)· You're not aware of -- I'm
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·1· ·sorry.· Would you know if one was filed?

·2· · · · ·A.· ·I would not necessarily know.· Frontier has a

·3· ·centralized, I'll say, compliance team that would prepare

·4· ·a report like that, assuming there's one that's required

·5· ·to be prepared.· So I'm not aware of whether there is a

·6· ·report required to be filed or not.

·7· · · · · · · MR. MOORE:· Thank you.· I have no further

·8· ·questions.

·9· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Mr. Hammer, I neglected to move

10· ·for admission of SRR-4.

11· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· We don't object, Your Honor.

12· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· It's admitted.

13· · · · · · · I don't have any questions for Mr. Erhart.

14· · · · · · · Did you intend to call any other witnesses,

15· ·Mr. Thomson?

16· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· No, Your Honor.· We're going

17· ·to rest.

18· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· And, Mr. Moore, you had no

19· ·witnesses?

20· · · · · · · MR. MOORE:· No witnesses.

21· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· If the parties don't mind,

22· ·I have just a couple of questions I'd like to go back

23· ·and ask a couple of witnesses for clarification,

24· ·beginning with Mr. Giles.· I think you're the most

25· ·appropriate party for this question.
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·1· · · · · · · The discussion we just heard about the

·2· ·company's eligibility for Utah USF seems to imply that,

·3· ·perhaps, if additional capital were made available for

·4· ·Utah, that the service in this area could be improved.

·5· · · · · · · Are there particular improvements that

·6· ·you're aware of that could be made if the company were

·7· ·willing to spend the money that would increase the

·8· ·reliability of this service to the Ranch?

·9· · · · · · · MR. GILES:· No, I'm not aware of any.  I

10· ·mean, the second leg that Carlos talked about will

11· ·certainly help this clarification that the radio that

12· ·was replaced initially was Moab to Bald Mesa, and then

13· ·the Bald Mesa to Castle Valley was not replaced in

14· ·March.· That wasn't, at that time, indicated that was

15· ·the issue.· Now we're going to replace that second leg

16· ·that I talked about.· The assumption at this point in

17· ·time is that will provide the reliable service to that

18· ·area.

19· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Mr. Mecham -- and I'll

20· ·allow you to answer this question in the form of simple

21· ·argument from counsel, if you like, or you're welcome to

22· ·offer a witness's testimony.· But the way I read that

23· ·line of questioning was that there's potentially a

24· ·concern that there's money that could be spent to fix

25· ·things or make them better and it's not being spent.
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·1· · · · · · · Do you have any idea on -- what that money

·2· ·might be spent on to do so?

·3· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· We're aware that there is at

·4· ·least -- well, let's put it this way:· I've heard from

·5· ·one other company who would like to serve the territory

·6· ·and do what's necessary in order to serve that area.  I

·7· ·also am aware of another company who is making the

·8· ·investment to serve the area, and they're using

·9· ·different technology than this.

10· · · · · · · I think that there is better technology to

11· ·implement and, in fact, there's precedent to require new

12· ·and different technology by the Supreme Court in a

13· ·Public Service Commission case in 1994, what's called a

14· ·modernization case, to force the upgrade of the network

15· ·to provide the kind of services -- it doesn't matter

16· ·that they're remote, there are remote areas all over the

17· ·state being served so much better than what Frontier is

18· ·doing to the point that it's laughable to say that what

19· ·they're doing has done the job or will do the job.

20· · · · · · · And, in fact, I would argue that -- two

21· ·things.· One, the instance that there is a competitor or

22· ·competitive option, everybody, including and especially

23· ·Sorrel River Ranch, should be relieved from any contract

24· ·they've signed if they can get better service than what

25· ·we're getting now at comparable or better rates.
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·1· · · · · · · And, two, if this can't be resolved in the

·2· ·next week or two -- as you've heard from Mr. Ciani,

·3· ·they're already down $214,000 in their business year to

·4· ·date.· So I, frankly, would move that there be an order

·5· ·to show cause why Frontier should not have their

·6· ·certificate revoked in that area.· That's the kind of

·7· ·service that they're getting and that's how serious we

·8· ·are.

·9· · · · · · · So I've -- Mr. Hammer, I've not held myself

10· ·out as a technology specialist, but I know inadequate

11· ·and terrible service when I see it.· And I know that

12· ·there are other areas of the state served by other

13· ·companies with new and different technologies, fiber,

14· ·for instance, that can serve this area much better than

15· ·what's going on right now.

16· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you.· We'll table

17· ·discussion of your motion and discuss potential remedies

18· ·when we're through with testimony.· Thank you for

19· ·answering my question.

20· · · · · · · I will -- since you offered some significant

21· ·argument on that point, I'll allow Mr. Thomson an

22· ·opportunity to speak to it, if you'd like to at this

23· ·time.· You'll also have an opportunity to offer any

24· ·closing argument you like.

25· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Well, aside from the
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·1· ·jurisdictional issues that Mr. Mecham's argument raises,

·2· ·you know, there's been no evidence placed in the record

·3· ·that there is better technology that's available at a

·4· ·reasonable price to serve the ranch.

·5· · · · · · · Now, his presumption that fiber to the ranch

·6· ·might be a good idea, that might be true, but at what

·7· ·expense?· The company is already not earning, as a

·8· ·matter of fact is negative, as shown by the testimony of

·9· ·Mr. Erhart.· So the available capital to deploy

10· ·something like this -- certainly, we could build a

11· ·better mousetrap if we had an unlimited amount of money.

12· ·But as we've already seen today, there's no state USF

13· ·money available to the company to improve this network.

14· · · · · · · The company's taken advantage of the federal

15· ·funds available to improve this network, and it

16· ·continues, based on the testimony of Mr. Cardona, to

17· ·improve the network.· The insinuation that this is

18· ·horrible, terrible service may be a fair comment with

19· ·regard to the period between December 18th and

20· ·March 21st, when the defective radio was installed and

21· ·then had to be replaced.· Post that, even with the

22· ·software -- which we don't really have a foundation for

23· ·understanding, the software report submitted by

24· ·Mr. Ciani, there is nothing after one incident reported

25· ·in April.
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·1· · · · · · · And we don't know what this "Minutes

·2· ·Downtime" means.· I mean, as we understand it, this

·3· ·software really looks at the ISP's performance, not a

·4· ·network performance.· Those are apples and oranges, so

·5· ·I'm not sure that that tells us much with regard to the

·6· ·service quality that Mr. Mecham maintains is not

·7· ·adequate.

·8· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· I think you've answered my

·9· ·question.· I definitely will give both parties an

10· ·opportunity to present any closing argument they want.

11· ·I want to get back to just the factual issues that I

12· ·want to address.

13· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Certainly, Your Honor.

14· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· But thank you.

15· · · · · · · Mr. Ciani, Mr. Thomson actually anticipated

16· ·a question I was going to ask you with respect to

17· ·Exhibit SRR-1, the report from Binary Canary, if I

18· ·recall the name of that correctly.· The last reported

19· ·incident of the software reflects a date of April 15th.

20· · · · · · · Have there been incidents since April 15th?

21· · · · · · · MR. CIANI:· You know, that I'm aware, I know

22· ·that there was at least two, potentially three,

23· ·instances, after the microwave was -- or the radio was

24· ·installed and there was at least one occurrence -- and I

25· ·sent an email to, I believe, everybody that was in the
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·1· ·chain on these communications leading up to this

·2· ·hearing, letting everybody know that we were down again.

·3· · · · · · · And I believe at least two times Mitch, who

·4· ·may still be on the phone, came to visit the property.

·5· ·And by the time he had shown up to the property, the

·6· ·issue had been remedied.· I cannot confirm exactly what

·7· ·day this report was pulled, so -- and I'm not always

·8· ·physically on the ranch, but what I can tell you is that

·9· ·we've had at least several.· And I think that Frontier

10· ·has confirmed their radio hits after they fixed the

11· ·issue that continues to happen.

12· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you.· And I'm going

13· ·to jump around just a bit.

14· · · · · · · Mr. Cardona, if you're still on the line,

15· ·feel free to answer this.· Mr. Thomson, if you have

16· ·another witness that you think is prepared to answer it,

17· ·that's fine.· I'd just simply like to know --

18· ·Mr. Cardona referenced the second repair of the radio

19· ·was made the week of March 20th.· Do we know the date?

20· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· March 21st, Your Honor.

21· · · · · · · MR. GILES:· 21st.

22· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· The complainant's Exhibit

23· ·SRR-1 shows two relatively significant outages on

24· ·March 21st and 22nd.· Were there problems in the

25· ·immediate aftermath of the installation that were being
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·1· ·worked out, to your knowledge?

·2· · · · · · · MR. GILES:· There was a significant outage

·3· ·the day of changing that radio out, yes.· And I don't

·4· ·know -- there again, I am not familiar with this report

·5· ·at all.· I don't even know what binary report it is.

·6· ·There were -- it might have spilled into the 22nd.· Time

·7· ·frame-wise, Carlos may be able to answer, but it was a

·8· ·significant outage that day, yes.

·9· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Mr. Ciani can shed some light.

10· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· He's welcome to.

11· · · · · · · MR. CIANI:· Yeah.· After the radio was

12· ·changed, we had significant challenges the first couple

13· ·of days immediately following the change.

14· · · · · · · As it was explained to me by Frontier, there

15· ·is a process of -- and Mr. Giles can probably testify to

16· ·this much better than I can, but there is a process of

17· ·balancing out the frequencies.· And that is something

18· ·that was explained to me previous to all this kind of

19· ·catastrophic challenge that we had, was that, you know,

20· ·when there's weather, wind, rain, there's all sorts of

21· ·manual requirements from Frontier's side to keep the

22· ·service not just functioning, but functioning to a level

23· ·that we can actually communicate with our guests and

24· ·other people across the line.

25· · · · · · · Which lends itself to the repeated issues

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 93
·1· ·we've had over the years of not complete service

·2· ·interruptions, but challenges with static and other

·3· ·types of hearing impairments on the line.· And we had

·4· ·those issues immediately following the microwave -- we

·5· ·had at least two outages after the microwave was

·6· ·installed.· And we still, from time to time, have issues

·7· ·with the quality of the reception.

·8· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· All right.· And,

·9· ·Mr. Ciani, sticking with you just for a moment, during

10· ·your testimony earlier you alluded to some billing

11· ·credits that your employer had received from Frontier.

12· · · · · · · Can you provide additional detail as to when

13· ·and the amounts?

14· · · · · · · MR. CIANI:· Yes, I can.· I mean, I have all

15· ·the detail here.

16· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Do you mean posthearing or

17· ·right now?

18· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· If he has them now, that

19· ·would be convenient, but...

20· · · · · · · MR. CIANI:· Yeah.· So I printed out a

21· ·variety of the bills and have brought them, you know, to

22· ·prepare for this hearing.

23· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· If you're not prepared to

24· ·summarize, then that's fine.· I can --

25· · · · · · · MR. CIANI:· What I can tell you -- this is
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·1· ·what I can tell you, is that they told us that -- all of

·2· ·the period that we were down, that our service would be

·3· ·credited.· I asked repeatedly for them to confirm

·4· ·exactly how much that was and how we were going to see

·5· ·that, and I never got any response.

·6· · · · · · · And many of these communications where

·7· ·everybody was included -- you know, we were copying all

·8· ·of this chain of emails that had gone back and forth, I

·9· ·am starting to see credits on the accounts.· It's

10· ·incredibly frustrating for me, because I can't easily

11· ·reconcile what the credits are for.· And they're coming

12· ·on future bills, so we're getting new bills.

13· · · · · · · So, in one case, I have a date of a bill

14· ·here and it says, "New charges due date 5/10."· The

15· ·billing date is 4/22 and I have a previous balance of

16· ·$1,346.· I have other charges and credits of $348.60,

17· ·and it shows I owe $2,400.

18· · · · · · · However, clearly, Frontier owes us, you

19· ·know, several thousand dollars back from this winter,

20· ·and I have yet to be able to understand how they're

21· ·applying the credits and how much these credits are all

22· ·eventually going to total and when we will get to a

23· ·point where all the credits have been applied.· And

24· ·considering that we've already overpaid then paid, I do

25· ·think it would be more appropriate that we immediately
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·1· ·receive whatever refunds back versus wait for future

·2· ·credits to be applied toward future bills.

·3· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Understood.· Mr. Thomson,

·4· ·do you have a witness or would yourself like to speak to

·5· ·the history of the billing credits that have thus far

·6· ·been issued?

·7· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Yes, Your Honor.· As we

·8· ·indicated in our -- I believe it was our status report

·9· ·to you and the Commission, it may take as many as two to

10· ·three billing cycles for these credits to post.

11· · · · · · · The Ranch buys a number of different

12· ·products.· There are billing systems that deal with each

13· ·specific product, and the credits sometimes may take a

14· ·series of months, as I indicated in that answer, to

15· ·post.· So I would expect that they will post next month

16· ·and the month after as well.

17· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you.· I think my

18· ·factual questions have largely been addressed, to the

19· ·extent they could be, I think, today.· It would be nice

20· ·to offer counsel an opportunity to offer a closing

21· ·argument, and Mr. Mecham even suggested making a motion,

22· ·so we'll turn to you, Mr. Mecham.

23· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· Thank you.

24· · · · · · · Service to Sorrel River Ranch has been not

25· ·just inadequate, but terrible.· And it isn't just the
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·1· ·period from December 18th to March 21st.· There have

·2· ·been outages well before that and after that.· It has

·3· ·caused serious harm to Sorrel River Ranch, business

·4· ·harm.· It has made it difficult for their reputation and

·5· ·to appeal to their clientele.

·6· · · · · · · We hear promises of what's going to happen

·7· ·to make it better.· We hear that it's been stabilized.

·8· ·Maybe it's slightly better today, I don't know, than it

·9· ·was during that period.· This is not the first time.· As

10· ·I went back and researched other complaints, you had a

11· ·complaint in Docket 15-04-102 in the same area, Hole in

12· ·the Rock.· There were promises of improved service

13· ·there, which didn't occur, and the Commission required

14· ·certain things to happen to ensure that that customer

15· ·received improved service.

16· · · · · · · We've got to have better service, and we've

17· ·got to have it now.· And if that cannot be done, as I

18· ·said in my statement before, there are providers ready,

19· ·willing, and able to step in.

20· · · · · · · And my -- two motions.· One would be that if

21· ·any alternative ever comes to that area and can provide

22· ·service at a better quality at the same or better rates,

23· ·that Sorrel River Ranch be relieved of their contract

24· ·that began in February of this year and extends for

25· ·24 months.
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·1· · · · · · · And two, if we don't see this 99.9 percent

·2· ·performance within days, that Frontier show cause why

·3· ·their certificate, at least in that area, not be

·4· ·revoked, so that we can get a provider there that will

·5· ·provide the kind of service that is required by the

·6· ·statute of any public utility.

·7· · · · · · · And as I alluded to, there is a Supreme

·8· ·Court case that enables the Commission and gives them

·9· ·vast, broad authority.· It's found at 882 P.2d 141,

10· ·1994, U.S. West Communications vs. Public Service

11· ·Commission.· It's known as the modernization case.

12· · · · · · · U.S. West's network was providing far more

13· ·adequate service than what we're seeing from Frontier,

14· ·and the Commission felt as though the technology was

15· ·behind -- leaving Utah behind and ordered

16· ·them -- ordered U.S. West to improve and put in new

17· ·technologies to ensure that their Utah customers, now

18· ·CenturyLink's customers, had access to the most modern

19· ·services available, and the Supreme Court upheld the

20· ·Public Service Commission.

21· · · · · · · I would say exercise that authority in this

22· ·case to ensure that the people of Castle Valley,

23· ·Professor Valley, and Moab and that entire area get the

24· ·services they deserve.· It is no more remote than so

25· ·many other remote areas of this state receiving much

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 98
·1· ·higher quality service from companies who invest in the

·2· ·state, who qualify for Utah State Universal Service

·3· ·Funds, not just CAF, and they spend some of their own

·4· ·capital in order to ensure that the networks are modern

·5· ·and technologically able.

·6· · · · · · · What we're getting at, Sorrel River Ranch is

·7· ·not adequate.· It is so far below that, including

·8· ·today -- including today.· And that's the reason that

·9· ·this complaint is before the Commission today, and

10· ·that's why we're here.· Thank you.

11· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Mr. Thomson?

12· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Thank you, Your Honor.

13· · · · · · · A couple points.· I'm not sure the

14· ·Commission wants to get involved with dictating

15· ·decisions about technology, generally or specifically.

16· ·I think that even by the testimony heard today, the

17· ·replacement of the radio in March significantly improved

18· ·the service to the Ranch.· Is the service perfect?· No.

19· ·Is service perfect anywhere?· No.· The service, we

20· ·contend, is adequate.· Is it as good as we want?· No.

21· ·And that's why the company, although we've spent a

22· ·hundred thousand dollars to replace the radio, intends

23· ·to spend more money to replace the second radio, in

24· ·response to the customer's complaint.

25· · · · · · · I would point out that this is a -- I'll
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·1· ·call it a nonstandard process that we're involved in

·2· ·today.· Despite the fact that Frontier could have

·3· ·insisted on a much more extended process in this

·4· ·particular docket, i.e., the filing and prefiled

·5· ·testimony; the exchange of discovery between the

·6· ·parties, perhaps more than one round from us to Sorrel

·7· ·River Ranch, is evidence that the Company is trying to

·8· ·work with the customer to improve their service.

·9· · · · · · · The Company did not deny its service was

10· ·poor during the period December 18th through March 21st

11· ·of this year.· That's been admitted, repeatedly.

12· · · · · · · We talked about the challenges that we faced

13· ·on replacing the radio at Bald Mesa.· We would have done

14· ·it earlier, but weather was a problem.· I won't rehearse

15· ·that -- or restate that, but I'll just point to that as

16· ·an issue that ought to be considered by the Commission

17· ·in this particular docket.

18· · · · · · · The Company may be willing to look at issues

19· ·around whether or not a term that the Ranch is signed up

20· ·for could be terminated early without a fee.· However,

21· ·pulling a certificate of public convenience and

22· ·necessity is -- of necessity is a last resort.· Whether

23· ·or not -- I hadn't thought about this earlier, but

24· ·whether or not you could pull a certificate for a

25· ·geographic location that serves less than 300 customers
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·1· ·would probably be absolutely a case of first impression

·2· ·at this Commission.

·3· · · · · · · Whether or not there is a competitor

·4· ·available to serve that area is not known to Frontier.

·5· ·I'm not sure from the testimony that happened today

·6· ·whether this is something that the Ranch could take

·7· ·advantage of today or that they're going to have to wait

·8· ·some period of time for one or two of these unnamed

·9· ·competitors to extend their networks into the valley.

10· · · · · · · I don't know what source of funding those

11· ·competitors are using to do this purported extension.  I

12· ·can't comment on that.· But I can say that I don't think

13· ·the Commission ought to get in the business of dictating

14· ·the technology used by the company to serve the

15· ·customers, assuming the service can be made adequate.

16· · · · · · · We feel the service will be adequate,

17· ·particularly, and it's adequate now and will improve at

18· ·the end of next week or whenever they can get the

19· ·radio -- second radio exchanged to get rid of the vendor

20· ·that didn't perform and replace it with our current

21· ·vendor, who we feel provides much better service.

22· · · · · · · I'll stop there.

23· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you.· Mr. Moore?

24· · · · · · · MR. MOORE:· We have no comment.· Thank you.

25· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Is there anything else
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·1· ·before we adjourn?

·2· · · · · · · MR. MECHAM:· No, Your Honor.· Thank you.

·3· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Not from us, sir.

·4· · · · · · · HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you everyone for

·5· ·your participation.

·6· · · · · · · MR. THOMSON:· Thank you, Judge.

·7· · · · · · · MR. CIANI:· Thank you.

·8· · · · · · · (The hearing was concluded at 12:38 p.m.)
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·1· · · · · · · · · · C E R T I F I C A T E

·2
· · STATE OF UTAH· · · ·)
·3· · · · · · · · · · · )ss.
· · COUNTY OF SALT LAKE )
·4

·5· · · · This is to certify that the foregoing proceedings
· · were taken before me, KAREN CHRISTENSEN, a Registered
·6· Merit Reporter, a Registered Professional Reporter, and
· · Notary Public in and for the State of Utah.
·7
· · · · · That the proceedings were reported by me in
·8· stenotype and thereafter caused by me to be transcribed
· · into typewriting.
·9
· · · · · That a full, true and correct transcription of said
10· proceedings so taken and transcribed to the best of my
· · ability is set forth in the foregoing pages, numbered 4
11· through 101, inclusive.

12· · · · I further certify that I am not of kin or otherwise
· · associated with any of the parties to said cause of
13· action, and that I am not interested in the event
· · thereof.
14
· · · · · Witness my hand and official seal at Taylorsville,
15· Utah, this 4th day of June 2019.
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Date Minutes Downtime
14/4/2017 0
17/4/2017 2
14/6/2017 10
15/6/2017 6
27/6/2017 11
28/6/2017 694
12/7/2017 49
25/7/2017 1
14/9/2017 3
19/9/2017 2
28/9/2017 968
30/9/2017 1


12/10/2017 1
1/11/2017 218


22/12/2017 486
21/1/2018 389
21/2/2018 1
24/2/2018 205


9/3/2018 23
19/3/2018 1
20/3/2018 19
7/10/2018 849
8/10/2018 1093
9/10/2018 1093


10/10/2018 1093
11/10/2018 1093
12/10/2018 1093
13/10/2018 1093
14/10/2018 1093
15/10/2018 976
26/10/2018 1
27/11/2018 1
18/12/2018 358
19/12/2018 123
20/12/2018 12
22/12/2018 17
23/12/2018 1
24/12/2018 10
25/12/2018 4
28/12/2018 1
29/12/2018 11


1/1/2019 3
3/1/2019 2
4/1/2019 3
6/1/2019 11
7/1/2019 1


12/1/2019 1
17/1/2019 513
18/1/2019 4
19/1/2019 1 0s
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3/2/2019 8
4/2/2019 167
5/2/2019 83
6/2/2019 41


10/2/2019 4
11/2/2019 11
12/2/2019 127
13/2/2019 20
14/2/2019 7
15/2/2019 883
16/2/2019 1093
17/2/2019 1093
18/2/2019 1093
19/2/2019 1093
20/2/2019 1093
21/2/2019 137
23/2/2019 1
28/2/2019 39


1/3/2019 9
2/3/2019 19
3/3/2019 8
4/3/2019 33
5/3/2019 5
6/3/2019 21
7/3/2019 38
8/3/2019 54
9/3/2019 17


10/3/2019 8
11/3/2019 3
12/3/2019 18
13/3/2019 4
15/3/2019 9
16/3/2019 2
17/3/2019 2
20/3/2019 173
21/3/2019 135
22/3/2019 244
23/3/2019 17
15/4/2019 280








BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF UTAH


Formal Complaint of SRR Partners, LLC 
d/b/a Sorrel River Ranch Resort & Spa 
against Frontier Communications


Docket No. 19-041-01


Frontier Communications Responses to 
SRR Partners, LLC’s First Set of Data 
Requests________________________


Citizens Telecommunications Company of Utah, doing business in Utah as Frontier 


Communications of Utah (“Frontier”), in the above-captioned docket, submits the following 


objections and responses to SRR Partners, LLC’s (“SRR”) first set of data requests.


GENERAL OBJECTIONS


1. Frontier objects to each and every Data Request, as well as to each definition and 


instruction, to the extent it seeks to impose requirements or obligations on Frontier beyond, in 


addition to, or different from those imposed by federal law, Utah law or agency rules, or the Utah 


Rules of Civil Procedure.


2. Frontier objects to each and every Data Request to the extent it seeks documents 


or information protected from discovery by the attorney-client privilege, the work-product 


doctrine, the community of interest doctrine, a joint defense agreement, or any other applicable 


privilege, immunity, or doctrine. Frontier also objects to each and every Data Request to the 


extent it seeks information for which Frontier owes a duty of confidentiality or non-disclosure to 


a third party in the absence of an appropriate order. Pursuant to this objection, Frontier 


specifically reserves the right to request the return of such documents or information, without 


prejudice to any claim of privilege, in the event any such document or information is 


inadvertently produced. Nothing contained in these responses is intended to be, or in any way 


constitutes, a waiver of any such applicable privilege, immunity, or doctrine.
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3. Frontier objects to each and every Data Request to the extent it is overbroad,


unduly burdensome, and/or not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible 


evidence. In particular, and without limitation, Frontier objects to each and every Data Request 


to the extent it seeks documents or information beyond the relevant subject matter, geographic or 


temporal scope of this proceeding.


4. Frontier objects to each and every Data Request to the extent it seeks documents 


or information beyond Frontier’s knowledge, possession, custody or control.


5. Frontier objects to each and every Data Request to the extent it seeks documents 


or information that, by reason of filing with public agencies or otherwise, are in the public 


domain or are as accessible to the requestor as they are to Frontier.


6. Frontier objects to each and every Data Request to the extent it is vague or 


ambiguous, and to the extent it seeks documents or information not identified with reasonable 


particularity.


7. Frontier objects to each and every Data Request to the extent it seeks documents 


or information not collected or maintained by Frontier in the normal course of business 


including, but not limited to, documents or information that would require Frontier to undertake 


special studies or analysis, or to convert data in an existing format to another.


8. Frontier objects to each and every Data Request to the extent it seeks documents 


or information on services or business activities not subject to the jurisdiction of the instant 


agency, from an entity not subject to the jurisdiction of the agency and/or not related to the 


entities and assets that are the subject of this request. Frontier also objects to any Request for 


Production to the extent it would require the Company to produce personal information protected
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by the Customer Proprietary Network Information (CPNI) rules promulgated by federal law and 


the Federal Communications Commission.


9. Frontier expressly reserves the right (but does not undertake any obligation) to 


supplement, revise, amend, correct, clarify, or otherwise modify its responses at any time. 


Frontier also reserves the right to assert any other applicable objections to these Request for 


Production, and to object to any others relating to the subject matter of its responses.


RESPONSES AND SPECIFIC OBJECTIONS TO DATA REQUESTS


1-1. Please provide a copy of records of all customer trouble reports Frontier has received 
over the two most recent years from customers served by Frontier’s network facilities 
that serve SRR and the community of Castle Valley. Provide the date and time reported, 
any internal codes used to identify problem areas such as cause codes and disposition 
codes, date and time the trouble was cleared, and any other relevant information collected 
on each individual trouble report.


Response: Frontier objects to this data request to the extent that it requests Customer
Proprietary Network Information (CPNI) regarding customers other than 
SRR, and to the extent it is overbroad, unduly burdensome, and/or not 
reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. 
Notwithstanding and without waiving those objections, Frontier states: See 
Exhibit 1.1 attached hereto, which is a copy of trouble reports from SRR for 
the past ten years. See also Exhibits 1.2 below.


1-2. Please provide a copy of the complaints that have been filed against Frontier at the Public 
Service Commission of Utah (PSC) over the two most recent years from customers 
served by Frontier’s network facilities that also serve SRR. This includes complaints 
from customers in Castle Valley and Professor Valley. Please include records of both 
formal and informal complaints.


Response: Frontier objects to this data request to the extent that this information is
publicly available from the UT PSC and is therefore equally available to the 
complainant. Notwithstanding and without waiving that objection, Frontier 
states: See also Exhibits 1.2 and 1.3 attached hereto.


1-3. Please provide a copy of the record of all outages over the two most recent years recorded 
by Frontier’s software on the network facilities that serve SRR, Castle Valley, and 
Professor Valley.


Response: See Exhibit 1.3 attached hereto.


3







1-4. Please indicate if Frontier’s network software records momentary service interruptions 
that cause calls to be dropped but would not be considered a service outage. If the 
response is yes, please provide a record of all momentary service interruptions on 
Frontier’s network facilities serving SRR, Castle Valley, and Professor Valley for the 
most recent two years.


Response: Frontier’s systems do not routinely record momentary (in seconds) service
outages. Frontier’s reporting requirements generally require the Company 
to track service interruptions greater than 30 minutes, and are also 
dependent on the number of customers affected.


1-5. Please provide a copy of the records of all service visits Frontier has made to SRR during 
the two most recent years.


Response: Frontier has made only one dispatched service visit to SRR in response to a
trouble ticket in the past 12 months. There were an additional 6 technician 
visits made in response to Owner and/or Managing Director emails over the 
past 5 months. Frontier has committed to an on-site meeting at SRR on 
Friday, May 10. A copy of the dispatched service visit record is attached as 
Exhibit 1.5.


1-6. Please provide copies of all invoices from Frontier to SRR for service showing all 
charges and credits for the two most recent years.


Response: See Exhibit 1.6 attached hereto.


1-7. During the technical conference held in this docket April 30, 2019, a representative of 
Frontier stated there is no fiber in the network facilities serving SRR and that SRR is 
served by a five-mile twisted copper pair of wires. Please indicate how many repeaters 
are on that copper line and what other measures, if any, Frontier has taken to improve the 
service to SRR over the two most recent years.


Response: Please see the diagram in Frontier’s response (Exhibit 1.11) to data request
1-11 below.


1-8. Please provide the dollar amount Frontier expended to replace the radio December 18, 
2018 serving Castle Valley and Professor Valley. Please provide the dollar amount 
Frontier expended to replace the radio again March 20, 2019.


Response: Project: 5229834
Moab to Bald Mesa Link 
Total Direct $93,275.46 
Total Loaded $97,543.94 
T3 Labor and Material $88,905.86


Project: 5229835
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Bald Mesa to Castle Valley Link 
Total Direct $100,920.06 
Total Loaded $105,555.48 
T3 Labor and Material $88,905.86


1-9. Please indicate the location from which Frontier dispatches a service technician when 
there is trouble with the radio serving Castle Valley and Professor Valley.


Response: Generally, from a Frontier facility in Moab, about a 30-40 minute drive from
Sorrel River Ranch.


1-10. Other than the two radio replacements itemized in Request 1-8, please provide a copy of 
the records of all expenditures Frontier has made over the most recent three years to 
upgrade the network facilities serving SRR.


Response: To date, Frontier has not identified expenditures outside of those listed
elsewhere in these responses. Frontier continues to search its records to 
determine if any equipment in the Moab central office that supports this 
network has been replaced or upgraded, and will produce those records if 
any are located.


1-11. Please provide an illustration of the architecture of the network facilities serving SRR, 
Castle Valley, and Professor Valley showing the radio installed March 20, 2019 and the 
five-mile copper wire to SRR.


Response: See Exhibit 1.11 attached hereto.


1-12. Please explain why Frontier has not tried to obtain funds from the state Universal Service 
Fund to upgrade the network facilities serving SRR, Castle Valley, and Professor Valley. 
If Frontier’s answer is that it does not qualify for state Universal Service Funds, please 
explain in detail why Frontier does not qualify for state Universal Service Funds.


Response: Eligibility for State High Cost Universal Service Fund Support is determined
by the PSC, which is now based on an annual DPU analysis and 
recommendation. Citizens Telecommunications Company of Utah (CTC of 
Utah) has not received any state High Cost USF support since the first 
quarter of 2007.


1-13. Please explain Frontier’s two-year plan to upgrade the network facilities serving SRR, 
Castle Valley, and Professor Valley.


Response: Frontier objects to this data request to the extent that it calls for speculation
regarding Frontier’s future plans. Requests for information on or 
speculation about future plans, forecasts, estimates and the implications and 
ramifications of such plans and forecasts are not reasonably calculated to 
lead to the discovery of relevant and admissible evidence in this proceeding.
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Frontier’s plans routinely evolve in response to a wide variety of business, 
operational, regulatory, technological and other factors and may change 
accordingly. Notwithstanding and without waiving those objections,
Frontier states: See Exhibits 1.13.1,1.13.2, and 1.13.3 attached hereto.


1-14. Please indicate if Frontier is regulated as a price-cap carrier at the Federal 
Communications Commission (FCC). If Frontier is not regulated as a price-cap carrier by 
the FCC, please indicate how they are regulated by the FCC.


Response: CTC of Utah is regulated as a price-cap carrier by the Federal
Communications Commission.


1-15. Please indicate if Frontier is regulated as a rate of return carrier by the PSC. If Frontier is 
not regulated as a rate of return carrier by the PSC, please indicate how they are regulated 
by the PSC.


Response: CTC of Utah is regulated as a rate of return carrier by the PSC.


1-16. Please provide a copy of the rates Frontier is charging its customers for business telephone 
lines and internet in Castle Valley and Professor Valley under tariff or contract.


Response: Frontier’s rates, terms and conditions for business telephone lines are listed
in its tariff. Below is a link to the CTC of Utah tariff.
http://tariffs.citizenscommunications.eom/crtf/tariffs/u/46/UT/local/Local Ta 
riff UT.pdf. The base rate for business local exchange network access 
service is $23.00.


The rates, terms and conditions of Frontier’s business internet services can 
be found on its website, https://business.frontier.com/.


It is Frontier’s understanding that SRR has a copy of the Frontier Service 
Agreement SRR executed in February 2019.


Submitted on behalf of Frontier this 9th day of May, 2019.


George Baker Thomson, Jr. 
Associate General Counsel 
Frontier Communications 


1800 41st Street 
Everett, WA 98203 
425.261.5844 
george. thomson@ftr. com
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levelClass
Outage
Outage
Outage


Outage


Outage


Outage
Outage


Outage


Outage


Outage
Outage


Outage


Outage
Outage
Outage


Outage


Outage
Outage


Outage


Outage


Outage


Outage


Outage


Outage


Outage


Outage


Outage


Outage


Outage


Outage


Outage


Outage


Outage


Outage


Outage


Outage


Outage


Outage


Outage


Outage


Outage


Outage


Outage


Outage


Products and Services
1 HSI/Data 
1 HSI/Data 
1 911/ANI/ALI Failure


3 HSI/Data,Voicemail/TDM,Commercial/Metro Ethernet,Commercial/Wholesale 


1 HSI/Data 


1 HSI/Data 


1 Voice/TDM 


1 HSI/Data 


1 HSI/Data 


1 Voice/TDM 
1 HSI/Data 


1 Voice/TDM 
1 HSI/Data


1 HSI/Data,Voice/TDM 


1 Voice/TDM 
1 HSI/Data 


1 HSI/Data


1 HSI/Data


2 HSI/Data,Voice/TDM,Commercial/Metro Ethernet


3 HSI/Data


1 Voice/TDM 


1 Voice/TDM 


1 Voice/TDM 


1 Voice/TDM 


1 Voice/TDM 


1 Voice/TDM 


1 HSI/Data 


1 Voice/TDM 


1 Voice/TDM 


1 Voice/TDM 


1 Voice/TDM


1 Voice/TDM


2 Voice/TDM


3 911/Reroute With ANI/ALI 


1 Voice/TDM


1 Commercial/Metro Ethernet 


1 HSI/Data


1 Commercial/Metro Ethernet 


1 HSI/Data 


1 HSI/Data 


1 HSI/Data


1 HSI/Data,Commercial/Metro Ethernet


2 HSI/Data


1 Voice/TDM
§DEPOSITION 
I EXHIBIT t
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Network Incident ID
242230PB
247749PB
255911N9


265663PB


268306PB


271654PB


271812AN


271811PB


273228PB


275769AN
275772PB


275787AN


279370PB


283653PB


285975AN
289164PB
313483PB


316668PB


327314PB


337651AUTO


374060AUTO


374173AUTO


376508AUTO


378293AUTO


388224AUTO


390694AUTO


390698AUTO


398517AUTO


398547AUTO


398582AUTO


400718AUTO


401317AN


403661AUTO


403654N9


404281AUTO


404287AUTO


404285AUTO


404349AUTO


404346AUTO


404750AUTO


404933AUTO


417987AUTO


419283AUTO


427931AUTO


NEEDS Equipment Type
CALIX ODC2000/HSI - FIBER 
JUNIPER MXIO/BRAS/ROUTER/DATA


JUNIPER M40E ROUTER/DATA


ADTRAN TA 3000/HSI


ADTRAN TA 5000/ETHT AGGR/DATA


NTI DMS10 RLCM/IDLC


ADTRAN TA 3000/HSI


JUNIPER MXIO/BRAS/ROUTER/DATA


NTI DMS10 OPM640/IDLC
JUNIPER MXIO/BRAS/ROUTER/DATA


NTI DMS10 OPM640/IDLC
ADTRAN TA 3000/HSI


JUNIPER MXIO/BRAS/ROUTER/DATA


NTI DMS10 OPM640/1DLC
ADTRAN TA1248A IP/HSI
CONKLIN FASTMUX/HSI


CALIX ODC2000/HSI


FUJITSU FLASHWAVE 4100 /MUX


JUNIPER MXIO/BRAS/ROUTER/DATA


NTI DMS10 RLCM/IDLC


NTI DMS10 RLCM/IDLC


NTI DMS10 RLCM/IDLC


NTI DMS10 HSO/SWC


NTI DMS10 HSO/SWC


NTI DMS10 HSO/SWC


ACTELIS ML-230/ETHT SWITCH/DATA


NTI DMS10 RLCM/IDLC


NTI DMS10 RLCM/IDLC


NTI DMS10 RLCM/IDLC


NTI DMS10 RLCM/IDLC


NTI DMS10 OPM640/IDLC


SRP/MISC


NTI DMS10 RLCM/IDLC 


ACTELIS ML-230/ETHT SWITCH/DATA 


JUNIPER MXIO/BRAS/ROUTER/DATA 


ACTELIS ML-230/ETHT SWITCH/DATA 


JUNIPER MXIO/BRAS/ROUTER/DATA 


JUNIPER MXIO/BRAS/ROUTER/DATA 


JUNIPER MXIO/BRAS/ROUTER/DATA 


ACTELIS ML-230/ETHT SWITCH/DATA 


JUNIPER MXIO/BRAS/ROUTER/DATA 


NTI DMS10 OPM640/IDLC


CLLI (A Location) Outage Hrs
MOABUTBJH08 3.03
MOABUTXCOPW 4.22
SLKCUTMAHG4 6.83
MOABUTXCOLW 21.12
MOABUTXDH02 1.03
MOABUTXCOFW 6.12
MOABUTXDRLO 3.07
MOABUTXDH02 4.6
MOABUTXCOPW 1.23
MOABUTBIRLO 3.02
MOABUTXCOPW 2.57
MOABUTBHRSO 1.25
MOABUTXDH02 11.03
MOABUTXCOPW 8.97
MOABUTBIRLO 5.35
MOABUTXDH03 5.28
MOABUTBGHOl 22.78
MOABUTBJH08 5.73
M0ABUTXCH13 26.67
MOABUTXCOPW 0.35
MOABUTXDRLO 7.52
MOABUTXDRLO 0.23
MOABUTXDRLO 8.1
MOABUTXCDSO 0.72
MOABUTXCDSO 3.2
MOABUTXCDSO 3.42
MOABUTXDOAW 41.07
MOABUTXDRLO 0.47
MOABUTXDRLO 0.23
MOABUTXDRLO 0.5
MOABUTXDRLO 0.25
MOABUTBJRLO 2.52
MOABUTXCOOW 3.07
MOABUTXCDSO 3.4
MOABUTXDRLO 10.7
MOABUTXDOAW 0.95
MOABUTXCOPW 0.5
MOABUTXDOAW 21.92
MOABUTXCOPW 2
MOABUTXCOPW 0.28
MOABUTXCOPW 1.25
MOABUTXDOAW 5.72
MOABUTXCOPW 0.35
MOABUTBIRLO 0.7
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Cust Count Summary
HSI:168
HSI:120
911:5845


HSI:2500,Voicemail:1000,Commercial:ll
HSI:120


HSI.-44
Voice:292


HSI:124


HSI:106


Voice:189
HSI:141


Voice:194


HSI.122


HSI:112,Voice:299
Voice:185
HSI:30


HSI :8


HSI:272


HSI:955,Voice:741,Commercial:l
HSI :0


Voice:290


Voice:290


Voice:290


Voice:273


Voice:290


Voice:291


HSI :0


Voice:278


Voice:292


Voice:292


Voice:292


Voice:76


Voice:2804


911:3523


Voice:279


CommerciahO


HSI:10


CommerciahO 


HShlO 


HSI :32 


HShlO


HSI:36,Commerdal:l


HSI:766


Voice:153


Primary Outage Code
Pole/Pad/Non 4 Walls Power Failure 
Residential Power Outage 


Hardware Failure 
Outside Plant 


Residential Power Outage 
Pole/Pad/Non 4 Walls Power Failure 


Hardware Failure
Pole/Pad/Non 4 Walls Power Failure 


Residential Power Outage 
Pole/Pad/Non 4 Walls Power Failure 


Residential Power Outage 
Pole/Pad/Non 4 Walls Power Failure 


Pole/Pad/Non 4 Walls Power Failure 
Pole/Pad/Non 4 Walls Power Failure 


Pole/Pad/Non 4 Walls Power Failure 


Hardware Failure 
Outside Plant
Pole/Pad/Non 4 Walls Power Failure


Outside Plant


Change Management


Change Management


Outside Plant


Cleared Prior To Isolation


Cleared Prior To Isolation


Cleared Prior To Isolation


Cleared Prior To Isolation


Hardware Failure


Cleared Prior To Isolation


Cleared Prior To Isolation


Cleared Prior To Isolation


Cleared Prior To Isolation


Pole/Pad/Non 4 Walls Power Failure


Change Management


Change Management


Change Management


Cleared Prior To Isolation


Cleared Prior To Isolation


Hardware Failure


Hardware Failure


Cleared Prior To Isolation


Cleared Prior To Isolation


Hardware Failure


Change Management


Cleared Prior To Isolation







Sub-Outage Code Resolution state Start DatePower Supply/Fuse/Breakers Power Supply/Fuse/Breakers Reset/Replaced UT 29/5/2017
Residential Power Outage Residential Power Restored UT 27/6/2017
Card Trouble Field Reset/Reseat Card UT 10/8/2017
Frontier Fiber Cut Field repaired UT 27/9/2017
Residential Power Outage Residential Power Restored UT 12/10/2017
No Generator Commercial Power Restored UT 31/10/2017
Card Trouble Remote Reset Card UT 1/11/2017
Battery Failure/Exhaustion Commercial Power Restored UT 1/11/2017
Residential Power Outage Residential Power Restored UT 9/11/2017
Battery Failure/Exhaustion Commercial Power Restored UT 28/11/2017
Residential Power Outage Residential Power Restored UT 28/11/2017
Power Supply/Fuse/Breakers Power Supply/Fuse/Breakers Reset/Replaced UT 28/11/2017
No Generator Commercial Power Restored UT 22/12/2017
Power Supply/Fuse/Breakers Power Supply/Fuse/Breakers Reset/Replaced UT 21/1/2018
Battery Failure/Exhaustion Commercial Power Restored UT 6/2/2018
Power Supply/Fuse/Breakers Power Supply/Fuse/Breakers Reset/Replaced UT 24/2/2018
Copper Trouble Field Repaired UT 31/5/2018
Battery Failure/Exhaustion Commercial Power Restored UT 12/6/2018
Frontier Fiber Cut Field repaired UT 17/7/2018
Expected Outage CM Completed UT 20/8/2018
Unapproved & Intentional CM Completed UT 18/12/2018
Copper Trouble Field Repaired UT 19/12/2018
Cleared Prior To Isolation Cleared Prior To Isolation UT 29/12/2018
Cleared Prior To Isolation Cleared Prior To Isolation UT 5/1/2019
Cleared Prior To Isolation Cleared Prior To Isolation UT 6/2/2019
Cleared Prior To Isolation Cleared Prior To Isolation UT 12/2/2019
Card Trouble Field Reset/Reseat Card UT 12/2/2019
Cleared Prior To Isolation Cleared Prior To Isolation UT 5/3/2019
Cleared Prior To Isolation Cleared Prior To Isolation UT 6/3/2019
Cleared Prior To Isolation Cleared Prior To Isolation UT 6/3/2019
Cleared Prior To Isolation Cleared Prior To Isolation UT 11/3/2019
Power Supply/Fuse/Breakers Power Supply/Fuse/Breakers Reset/Replaced UT 13/3/2019
Expected Outage CM Completed UT 20/3/2019
Expected Outage CM Completed UT 20/3/2019
Expected Outage CM Completed UT 21/3/2019
Cleared Prior To Isolation Cleared Prior To Isolation UT 21/3/2019
Cleared Prior To Isolation Cleared Prior To Isolation UT 21/3/2019
Card Trouble Field Reset/Reseat Card UT 21/3/2019
Card Trouble Field Reset/Reseat Card UT 21/3/2019
Cleared Prior To Isolation Cleared Prior To Isolation UT 23/3/2019
Cleared Prior To Isolation Cleared Prior To Isolation UT 23/3/2019
Card Trouble Field Reset/Reseat Card UT 15/4/2019
Expected Outage CM Completed UT 17/4/2019
Cleared Prior To Isolation Cleared Prior To Isolation UT 30/4/2019







Start Time End Date End Time Time Zone exchange Viryanet Ticket #
9:00 29/5/2017 12:02 MT MOAB 40762976


17:02 27/6/2017 21:15 MT MOAB
1:00 10/8/2017 7:50 MT MOAB UT 42483258


18:37 28/9/2017 15:44 MT MOAB
10:58 12/10/2017 12:00 MT MOAB 43936553
9:00 31/10/2017 15:07 MT MOAB 44354313
4:11 1/11/2017 7:15 MT MOAB 44370304
4:31 1/11/2017 9:07 MT MOAB 44370513
8:16 9/11/2017 9:30 MT MOAB
5:06 28/11/2017 8:07 MT MOAB 44913200
5:16 28/11/2017 7:50 MT MOAB
7:01 28/11/2017 8:16 MT MOAB 44914478
2:16 22/12/2017 13:18 MT MOAB 45408383
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Recommendation


To: Utah Public Service Commission
From: Utah Division of Public Utilities 


Chris Parker, Director 
William Duncan, Manager 
Paul Hicken, Technical Consultant 


Date: October 4, 2018


Re: 2019 UUSF Recommendation for Citizens Telecom Company of Utah.


Docket #18-041-02


Preliminary Recommendation
The Public Service Commission of Utah (PSC) is currently not paying any Utah USF assistance 
to Citizens Telecom Company of Utah and based on the company’s 2017 Annual Report the 
company does not qualify for UUSF payments in the 2019 calendar year.


Issue
The Division of Public Utilities (DPU) has reviewed the annual report of Citizens Telecom 
Company of Utah received on April 13, 2018. Pursuant to PSC rule R746-8-401(a) and (b). The 
DPU has determined that no adjustments are necessary to the USF eligibility for Citizens 
Telecom Company of Utah.


Background
PSC rule R746-8-401 requires the DPU to recommend to the PSC adjustments to the monthly 


USF distribution for each provider based on 1) the FCC rate of return set forth in R746-401- 
(3)(a) and the provider’s financial information from its last annual report filed with the
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DPU Recommendation 
Docket No. 18-041-02: Citizens Telecom Company of Utah


October 4, 2018


Commission. This memo details why the DPU recommends no change to the USF distribution 
for Citizens Telecom Company of Utah.


Discussion
In calculating the USF eligibility for Citizens Telecom Company of Utah, the Division utilized 
the following:


1) Depreciation - Citizens utilizes group asset depreciation. PSC rule R746-8-401 is 
currently being revised to establish a method to for periodically revising depreciation 
rates when a company chooses to use group asset depreciation. Changes to this rule will 
impact Citizens depreciation expense.


2) Accumulated Deferred Income Tax - Citizens reported nearly $10 million of 
accumulated deferred income taxes. This is a significant deduction from the company’s 
rate base.


3) Accumulated Depreciation - Citizens reported more than $ 117.7 million of accumulated 
depreciation. Over 95 percent of the company’s assets are fully depreciated. There is very 
little rate base left as a basis for return on investment.


Conclusion
The DPU recommends no change to the Utah USF distribution for Citizens Telecom Company 
of Utah.


Cc: Jessica Matushek, Director of Accounting, Frontier Communications
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 1   May 17, 2019                                 10:00 a.m.

 2                    P R O C E E D I N G S

 3              HEARING OFFICER:  Let's go on the record,

 4   please.  Good morning.  This is the time and place

 5   noticed for a hearing in the formal complaint of SRR

 6   Partners, LLC, dba Sorrel River Ranch Resort & Spa

 7   against Frontier Communications.  This is Commission

 8   Docket No. 19-041-01.  My name is Michael Hammer and I'm

 9   the Commission's designated presiding officer.

10              Let's go ahead and take appearances,

11   beginning with the complainant.

12              MR. MECHAM:  Good morning.  Steve Mecham,

13   representing Sorrel River Ranch.

14              MR. THOMSON:  Good morning, Your Honor.

15   George Thomson representing Frontier Communications.

16              REPORTER:  Is your mic on?

17              MR. THOMSON:  There we go.

18              MR. MECHAM:  I should have noticed as

19   well -- or mentioned as well, I've got Dave Ciani with

20   me, who will be testifying for Sorrel River Ranch.  He's

21   the managing director of the ranch.

22              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Mecham.

23   And, Mr. Thomson, we have his name for the record.

24              Mr. Thomson, would you like to introduce any

25   witnesses.
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 1              MR. THOMSON:  Yes, sir.  We've got Mike

 2   Giles, who is sitting to my left, and on the phone we

 3   have Carlos Cardona.

 4              MR. JOHNSON:  And Mitch Johnson from

 5   Frontier.

 6              HEARING OFFICER:  Is there anyone else on

 7   the line?

 8              MR. JOHNSON:  Mitch Johnson.

 9              HEARING OFFICER:  Yes, I understand.  I

10   heard you, Mr. Johnson.  I was wondering if there were

11   any additional parties.

12              MS. RAD:  Elizabeth Rad for Sorrel River.

13              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Mecham, do you intend

14   to call Ms. Rad?

15              MR. MECHAM:  It's possible.

16              HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  All right.  Are

17   there any preliminary matters before we begin?

18              MR. MOORE:  Excuse me, Mr. Hammer.

19              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Moore.

20              MR. MOORE:  I'm not in my usual place.

21              HEARING OFFICER:  Nice to see you.

22              MR. MOORE:  Robert Moore, AG's office,

23   representing the Office of Consumer Services.  If I may

24   make a brief statement on the record, if there's no

25   objection.
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 1              HEARING OFFICER:  Is there an objection?

 2              MR. THOMSON:  I don't have anything to

 3   object to yet, Your Honor.

 4              MR. MECHAM:  I do not object.

 5              MR. MOORE:  The Office does not generally

 6   participate in this type of complaint hearing; however,

 7   we're anticipating shortly filing a notice for agency

 8   action for a wider investigation of Frontier, and I'd

 9   like to participate in this hearing to ask a few brief

10   questions in that regard.  I will not stray outside the

11   allegations in this -- in the complaints and the

12   pleadings so far filed.

13              HEARING OFFICER:  Any objection to

14   Mr. Moore's participation in the hearing?

15              MR. MECHAM:  Not from us.

16              MR. THOMSON:  No objection.

17              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Thank you.

18   Welcome, Mr. Moore.

19              Are there any other matters before we begin?

20              MR. THOMSON:  No, sir.

21              HEARING OFFICER:  Would the counsel prefer

22   witnesses who are present take the stand or remain

23   seated at counsel's table?  I'll ask you first,

24   Mr. Mecham.

25              MR. MECHAM:  I could go either way.  He's
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 1   with me here.  But if it's more comfortable for you, we

 2   could have him take the witness seat.

 3              HEARING OFFICER:  I have no preference.

 4   Mr. Giles -- or, pardon me.  Mr. Thomson?

 5              MR. THOMSON:  I think Mr. Giles can testify

 6   where he is, unless the reporter prefers him to be on

 7   the stand up there.

 8              HEARING OFFICER:  Ordinarily, it would be a

 9   matter of counsel doing cross-examination, I think,

10   wanting to see the witness on the stand.  So if no one

11   objects, we'll just allow witnesses to stay seated.

12              Mr. Mecham?

13              MR. MECHAM:  I may quickly ask if Mr. Dave

14   Coke is on the line.

15              MR. COKE:  I am here.

16              MR. MECHAM:  Okay.

17              HEARING OFFICER:  And Mr. Coke is with your

18   client?

19              MR. MECHAM:  He is.  He's a technician that

20   does -- he's a contractor that does work on the customer

21   premise equipment, and that may come up in the hearing,

22   so it's possible he could testify, as well, and be

23   sworn.

24              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Mr. Ciani --

25   Mr. Mecham, I expect you intend to call Mr. Ciani as
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 1   your first witness.

 2              MR. MECHAM:  I do.  May I make just a brief

 3   opening statement?

 4              HEARING OFFICER:  Of course.

 5              MR. MECHAM:  Let me just set the stage, and

 6   if Mr. Thomson wants to do likewise, that's fine.

 7              Sorrel River Ranch filed its complaint

 8   because of very troubling service that they'd been

 9   receiving.  And a public utility in the State of Utah is

10   still -- under Title 54-3-1, 54-8b-3.3, and Rule

11   746-340, are under obligation to provide safe, adequate,

12   and continuous service.  The Division of Public

13   Utilities, under 54-4a-6, is to promote safe and

14   reliable service.

15              And the Commission, under 54-4-7 and 8, has

16   broad, vast power to require the utility to provide

17   adequate service.  Of course, "adequate service" is not

18   a defined term in the statute, but our contention is

19   that what we've received at Sorrel River Ranch is so far

20   below adequacy that this had to be filed and the

21   Commission must take action.

22              And I don't know if Mr. Thomson wants to

23   respond to that; otherwise, we're prepared to call

24   Mr. Ciani.

25              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Thomson, do you
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 1   have an opening statement you'd like to make?

 2              MR. THOMSON:  No, Your Honor, we'll go ahead

 3   and proceed.

 4              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Mr. Ciani, do

 5   you swear to tell the truth?

 6              MR. CIANI:  I do.

 7              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.

 8                         DAVID CIANI,

 9   called as a witness by and on behalf of the Sorrel River

10   Ranch Resort & Spa, having been first duly sworn, was

11   examined and testified as follows:

12                      DIRECT EXAMINATION

13   BY MR. MECHAM:

14         Q.   Mr. Ciani, would you identify yourself by

15   giving your name, your business address, and for whom

16   you're testifying in this proceeding?

17         A.   Absolutely.  My name is David Ciani.  I'm the

18   manager-director of Sorrel River Ranch Resort & Spa,

19   which is located at mile 17, Highway 128 in -- outside

20   the town of Moab, Utah.

21         Q.   Thank you.  And just -- sort of as a

22   preliminary matter, before we get into the meat of your

23   testimony, the parties agreed, after a technical

24   conference in this docket, to meet together on May 10th

25   to -- I'm not a hundred percent sure what the -- what the
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 1   intention was, but certainly one of them was to test and

 2   look at the customer premise equipment to see if that was

 3   the problem.

 4              Can you tell us what the outcome of that was,

 5   since the presiding officer wasn't at that technical

 6   conference?

 7         A.   My report back was that there were no

 8   internal deficiencies with our system.

 9         Q.   And Mr. Coke is also on the line, who is the

10   technician, as I stated before, who deals with the

11   customer premise equipment who can answer any questions,

12   if there are any.  So -- but the implication of that is

13   that what the problems are rest on the Frontier network

14   side.

15              Okay.  Mr. Ciani, would you just describe the

16   kind of service that Sorrel River Ranch is receiving and

17   the impact it's having on your business?

18         A.   The service has been tremendously awful, to

19   an extent of bringing us here today, and the impact on

20   the business has been significant.  And I do have some

21   detailed data to share, both from our current year pace

22   report from reservations on the books, as well as a lot

23   of anecdotal information that I'd be happy to share about

24   the experiences and comments we've received from both our

25   staff and our residents of the property who reside on
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 1   property to operate the ranch, as well as our valued

 2   guests.

 3         Q.   Go ahead and just describe what's happening,

 4   the lost calls, the outages, all of that.

 5         A.   Yeah.  Well, I started with the ranch in

 6   April of 2017, and when I first got involved, I was

 7   appalled by the lack of quality and reliability in both

 8   the phone and internet service at the property.

 9              We are a luxury guest ranch.  We have an

10   average daily rate of over $700 per night, and the

11   expectations for service and reliability of technology

12   and operations is crucial and critical to the success.

13   Our reputation is critical.  On-line reviews, and our

14   relationship with high-end agencies, travel agents, and

15   wholesalers is also critical for the success of the

16   business.

17              Upon initially investigating what was going

18   on with the service, I became aware of our infrastructure

19   that brought the phone service to the property.  And I

20   also became aware that we simply had no other

21   alternatives.  We did not have another service provider

22   available to us.  And for the time between April 2017 and

23   November of 2018, I, like the majority of our staff and

24   our guests and other residents and business owners in the

25   area, accepted what I would describe as an inadequate
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 1   level of service.

 2              It was commonplace that we would have calls

 3   dropped or have poor reception.  I'd liken it to what you

 4   would expect to get if you were on a cell phone in a very

 5   remote area.  It wouldn't be uncommon to drop calls or to

 6   not be able to make a call going out.  Oftentimes, you

 7   might be talking to someone and it sounds like you're in

 8   a wind tunnel, that they're far away or there's just

 9   undue static.

10              But, generally speaking, we accepted this

11   level of service as being our only alternative.  And for

12   well over the year that I was with the property, that was

13   just our status quo, our normal as we operated.

14              In -- beginning around November of 2018 is

15   when we had what I would describe for the business as a

16   catastrophic event.  We began to consistently lose the

17   ability to use our phone service.  We would drop calls

18   routinely, and we would go, many times, several hours

19   without any phone service whatsoever.

20              Oftentimes, I was not able to get in touch

21   with the property.  I couldn't get ahold of the general

22   manager.  We would -- were losing guest reservations and

23   creating negative experiences before our potential guests

24   had even booked.

25              In February, we started logging dropped calls
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 1   because it was becoming such a problem.  And I have a

 2   dropped call log that I printed out with me, and this is

 3   a Google sheet that we used internally to log calls.

 4   These are, by no means, all of the dropped calls, but

 5   every one that was manually logged.  Starting on the 8th

 6   of February, I have 141 dropped calls between then and

 7   the end of March, to give you an idea of the magnitude.

 8   And that's only during the time when we actually did have

 9   phone service.

10              The level of impact it had on our business --

11   right now I'm looking at our pace report for the year,

12   and we're $214,000 down from the same time last year in

13   individual transient reservations.  Over the last several

14   years, we've been seeing between a 5 and 20 percent

15   annual increase in those statistics.

16              Beyond the lost revenue, the magnitude of

17   guest experiences has hurt us tremendously.  We've had

18   many guests leave upset.  Again, at our level of service

19   for our business, it's just simply unacceptable to not

20   have phones work.  If you're a guest and you're staying

21   in a guest room and you can't call to the front desk, if

22   you have an emergency and you can't get out, if you can't

23   call your loved ones, there is no exception, there is no

24   excuse, and there is no response that we can provide.

25              That impact further resonates into our staff
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 1   and the people who live on our property.  We have, in

 2   season, over 70 people who live on the ranch, and these

 3   are full-time employees who operate the property.  And

 4   they also suffer from the lack of service, can't call

 5   their friends and family and have to put up with an

 6   incredibly frustrating work environment that hurts the

 7   staff morale and, certainly, you know, leads to a

 8   negative work environment for the staff.

 9         Q.   Mr. Ciani, does your internal network monitor

10   the downtime?

11         A.   Yes, it does.  We have a service called

12   Binary Canary, and it's a monitoring service that is

13   constantly pinging the signal that Frontier is bringing

14   into the property.  And we have a report here that we

15   printed out since 2017.  It monitors all of the

16   interruptions in service.  You've -- I think that the

17   Public Service Commission has been provided with a list

18   of outages from Frontier that were over 30 minutes.

19              MR. MECHAM:  Actually, you haven't yet, but

20   that will become an item we'll discuss.  In discovery,

21   Frontier provided us a number of outages that occurred

22   within the last two years.  And during a light period,

23   we have a document to introduce now that is an internal

24   measurement of the downtime that their own network

25   monitored.
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 1              MR. MECHAM:  And I'm not sure how we're

 2   going to mark these, Mr. Hammer.  How would you --

 3   SRR-1, is that good?

 4              HEARING OFFICER:  That's fine.

 5              MR. MECHAM:  Okay.

 6              HEARING OFFICER:  Do you have copies for

 7   everyone?

 8              MR. MECHAM:  I do.  Yes, I do.

 9              (Exhibit No. SRR-1 was

10                marked for identification.)

11         Q.   (BY MR. MECHAM)  Perhaps you could repeat

12   again exactly what this is showing.

13         A.   Yes.  So this service is monitoring the

14   signal coming in from Frontier, and it is calculating the

15   minutes of downtime every time there's been a service

16   interruption.  And so you can see the date and the

17   minutes of downtime and every incidence of service

18   interruption.

19              So my point being is that in addition to the

20   outages as defined as, you know, 30 minutes or more by

21   Frontier, we've had many, many short-term outages in

22   addition to the numerous dropped calls, which, again, had

23   been commonplace at the property for many years, as well

24   as reception challenges, including static, wind-tunnel

25   effects, and other types of impairments that would
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 1   prohibit communication.

 2         Q.   And so one of the reasons this is significant

 3   is because it's within the same time period as the

 4   document that -- of outages that Frontier gave us, but it

 5   isn't exactly the same because it's showing both

 6   internal -- what's happening to you internally as well as

 7   what's -- and they show what's happening externally; is

 8   that correct?

 9         A.   Correct.

10         Q.   Okay.

11              MR. MECHAM:  And you'll note that it does

12   show how many minutes and gives the date that the system

13   was down based on the Binary Canary product that they

14   use to monitor.

15              You know, for simplicity's sake, we did one

16   short round of discovery, and whether it's in direct or

17   on cross, I'm going to be referring to that a lot.  I'm

18   wondering if, perhaps, I could enter that as Exhibit 2

19   -- SRR-2.

20              HEARING OFFICER:  I don't have any

21   objection.

22              MR. MECHAM:  Okay.

23              HEARING OFFICER:  I hear none from the other

24   parties.

25              MR. THOMSON:  Well, Your Honor, this is the
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 1   first time we've seen this document.

 2              HEARING OFFICER:  Why don't you give

 3   Mr. Thomson an opportunity to take a look at it before

 4   you --

 5              MR. THOMSON:  I mean, I'm not sure.

 6              MR. MECHAM:  Actually, it's not the first

 7   time.  They're the ones that provided it to us.  This is

 8   their response to us with all of the general objections.

 9   It's their document, not mine.

10              MR. THOMSON:  I'm sorry, Your Honor.  I

11   thought they were referring to the Binary Canary report

12   that they placed in front of us for the first time

13   today.

14              MR. MECHAM:  Well, you're right.

15              HEARING OFFICER:  Well, go ahead and

16   distribute the next document and we'll discuss them

17   both.

18              MR. MECHAM:  May I just say, yeah, it's

19   true, we just -- they did no discovery.  We're on a

20   short, expedited time frame of the difficulty that their

21   service is causing the Sorrel River Ranch, so there's

22   likely going to be quite a few things that come up that

23   they haven't yet seen.  Under normal circumstances, we

24   would have done prefiled testimony, but we didn't do

25   that in an effort to try to get this thing fixed on an
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 1   expedited basis.

 2              (Exhibit No. SRR-2 was

 3                marked for identification.)

 4              MR. MECHAM:  And we've marked that as SRR-2,

 5   on the assumption that we would use that during the

 6   proceeding.  And, perhaps, I was going to use this on

 7   cross, but we may as well get it out.

 8              This is -- this is the document that

 9   Frontier gave to us in response to -- I believe it's

10   1.3.  We asked for the number of outages that their

11   system recorded during the most recent two-year period

12   and these -- this shows from May of 2017 to about May of

13   2019.

14              And I will say, Mr. Hammer, that we -- this

15   is a very long document, horizontally, going left to

16   right, and so the way I had to print it out was one page

17   at a time.  So each sequential page would really be to

18   the right of the one before it.  So you will see that

19   there are 44 outages recorded in that period, and then

20   the 44 lines in each subsequent page refer to that first

21   page, and I will mark that as SRR-3.

22              And I will likely just use this mainly on

23   cross, but I wanted it next to the analysis done by the

24   internal system as well, because there is -- they really

25   don't -- they correspond in time, but not necessarily
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 1   per minute.

 2              And you will see in one of the -- in the

 3   response that Frontier's network records outages that

 4   are 30 minutes or greater.  And Sorrel River Ranch is

 5   anything, and that is a minute or even less than that

 6   that cause down or outages and lost calls.  So it -- it

 7   shows the impact of -- a broader impact.  And in fact,

 8   let's talk about --

 9              I would like to move the admission of SRR-1,

10   2, and 3.

11              MR. THOMSON:  We don't have any objection.

12              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  They're

13   admitted, then.

14              Before we move on to additional questions,

15   it would help me if we could lay a little foundation for

16   SRR-1.  It's been admitted into the record, but help me

17   just understand a little better what it is.  Is this a

18   direct printout, for example, from the Binary Canary

19   software or --

20              THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

21              HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  And the date format

22   appears as day, month, year?

23              THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

24              HEARING OFFICER:  So this hasn't been

25   transcribed into a separate spreadsheet?  This is
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 1   printed directly from the software?

 2              THE WITNESS:  No, sir, we printed that

 3   straight from the software -- the report from the

 4   software.

 5              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Go ahead,

 6   Mr. Mecham.

 7              MR. MECHAM:  Thank you.

 8         Q.   (BY MR. MECHAM)  Mr. Ciani, has Sorrel River

 9   Ranch entered into a contract for service with Frontier?

10         A.   Yes, we have.  Most recently -- in July of

11   2014, there was a contract that was signed.  It was a

12   three-year contract.  And upon termination of that

13   contract, we continued, under the clause of that

14   contract, to pay the same tariffs that we had agreed to

15   in 2014.  I contacted Frontier in 2018 and began

16   communications with an account rep who provided us a

17   relatively significant better rate if we were to sign a

18   two-year agreement.

19              During the negotiations, we were having the

20   experiences that we're here today to discuss and,

21   essentially, was told that the only way that we would not

22   continue to be charged what, to me, I believe is an

23   exorbitantly high tariff of nearly over $4,000 a month

24   for both our phone and internet service -- they were

25   willing to lower it to a more reasonable rate that is
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 1   certainly more competitive with any market in the U.S.,

 2   but we were forced to sign another two-year agreement,

 3   with the option of some longer term agreements.

 4              And so we entered into an agreement in the

 5   very beginning of February of 2019, despite having,

 6   essentially, no service at that time.  We have absolutely

 7   no other options, and it's critical to have phone service

 8   for the operation of our business and the health and

 9   safety and well-being of our staff and of our guests.  So

10   we really had no other alternatives.

11         Q.   So let me reiterate -- or have you reiterate.

12   You signed -- even after you had less-than-adequate

13   service, you signed the second contract because you could

14   find no alternative?

15         A.   That's correct.  We were paying $4,000 a

16   month for no service and we were able to lower that by

17   agreeing to another two-year term, because we had no

18   other alternatives.

19         Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  And let me go back to what

20   we marked as SRR-1 and SRR-3, the outages reports,

21   internal and external.

22              Do you know what dates those -- can you tell

23   us what dates those cover, approximately?

24         A.   I'm sorry, what was the question?

25         Q.   When does the report begin recording the
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 1   outages?

 2         A.   I think we started that report in the

 3   beginning of 2017 and ran it through the current 2019

 4   year.

 5         Q.   And as far as you know -- actually, we can

 6   look.  When you look at the date -- dates of the outages

 7   from Frontier, it begins --

 8         A.   It looks like it started in May of 2017 --

 9         Q.   Okay.

10         A.   -- and goes through current time.

11         Q.   So is -- we can anticipate -- we know that

12   Frontier changed out radio equipment in December of 2018

13   and in March of 2019.

14              What was the service like, according to these

15   outages, in 2017?

16         A.   Previously, as I mentioned, the service was

17   not very good.  It was -- it had come to, I think, what

18   the staff and the residents -- was a generally accepted

19   bad service.  It was as I likened it to cell phone

20   service in a remote area.  It was not unusual to drop

21   calls.  It wasn't unusual to have static or otherwise

22   feedback or interruption, wind-tunnel type of effects.

23              And generally speaking, the service, you

24   know, would eventually work, so you may drop a call two

25   or three times and 10 or 15 minutes later, everything
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 1   would seem to be back to normal.  And that was kind of a

 2   generally accepted level of service from the time I

 3   started in April of 2017 all the way up through until

 4   this, you know, catastrophic event where we, you know,

 5   lost -- wholesale lost service and consistently had

 6   problems for a -- more often than not, we would have

 7   either no service or complete interruptions or unusable,

 8   you know, service that worked but was of such bad quality

 9   that we couldn't communicate.

10         Q.   And with the changeout of the radio in March

11   of 2019, has there been any perceived difference -- any

12   improvement?

13         A.   Improvement from the catastrophe of the

14   winter, yes.  We have, since that time, still had more

15   than one documented outage and some reception issues as

16   well.

17              MR. MECHAM:  Mr. Ciani is available for

18   cross-examination.

19              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Thomson?

20              MR. THOMSON:  Thank you, Your Honor.

21                      CROSS-EXAMINATION

22   BY MR. THOMSON:

23         Q.   Good morning, Mr. Ciani.

24              Is there any reliable cell service at Sorrel

25   River Ranch?

0024

 1         A.   I would not call it reliable.  It's possible

 2   to get a signal in certain areas of the ranch at certain

 3   times.

 4         Q.   And you described the ranch as located in a

 5   remote rural area?

 6         A.   It's 17 miles upstream on the Colorado River

 7   from the town of Moab, Utah.

 8         Q.   And it's a fact that you never provided this

 9   Binary Canary report to Frontier before today, correct?

10         A.   I personally did not.

11         Q.   Do you know if anyone at Sorrel River Ranch

12   did?

13         A.   I do not know that.

14         Q.   Let's see.  You've already discussed that you

15   signed a new Frontier service agreement in February of

16   2019, correct?

17         A.   That's correct.

18         Q.   Are you aware that tariff service rates are

19   filed with and approved by this Commission?

20         A.   Well, I would assume that's true, because you

21   just said that, but I did not know exactly how tariffs

22   are set in the State of Utah.

23              MR. THOMSON:  Your Honor, I don't have any

24   further questions.

25              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Moore?
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 1              MR. MOORE:  Just a couple of questions.

 2                      CROSS-EXAMINATION

 3   BY MR. MOORE:

 4         Q.   Just a couple of questions.

 5              What's the earliest that you can recall that

 6   you reported THE problems that you've described to

 7   Frontier?

 8         A.   That's a good question.  I don't know that I

 9   can answer that with a hundred percent certainty of the

10   date.  I would say that I believe that there was reports

11   of challenges in the year of 2017.

12         Q.   And your testimony is these problems have

13   been fairly continuous?

14         A.   Yeah.  As I said, that -- you know, between

15   the time that I started with the ranch in April of 2017

16   and November of 2018, there were -- it was not uncommon

17   to drop calls or have poor reception and, at times,

18   outages, as shown on the document that Frontier provided.

19         Q.   Have you ever received a bill credit from

20   Frontier?

21         A.   We have been receiving some credits, as they

22   communicated, on our recent bills.  We have not fully

23   been credited back all of the expenses that we incurred

24   during the time that they had committed to reducing our

25   invoices.  They've been adding those credits towards
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 1   current invoices as we move forward.

 2         Q.   Have you ever experienced an outage that

 3   lasted over 24 hours?

 4         A.   I can't answer that question for certainty.

 5         Q.   Do you have a copy of SRR-2?

 6         A.   I have reviewed it, yes.

 7         Q.   On the second page there seems to be, about

 8   halfway down, a 41-hour outage.  Is that how you

 9   understand the document?

10         A.   That is what it looks like to me, yes, sir.

11         Q.   I'm going to hand you a document that I got

12   from a footnote -- I'll represent that I got it from

13   footnote 2 on Frontier's Answer to your formal Complaint.

14   It was represented to be the terms and conditions of

15   Frontier's business services.

16              Can I have you -- have you seen a document

17   like that before?

18         A.   You know, I don't know that -- this is a

19   rather significant document.  I can't say I've seen this

20   exact document before, but I have reviewed the agreements

21   that we have engaged with Frontier.

22         Q.   If you haven't seen that exact document

23   before, I just won't ask you the question.

24              MR. MOORE:  I'm finished.  Thank you.

25              HEARING OFFICER:  Let me just ask a couple
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 1   of questions.

 2              With respect to Exhibit SRR-2, my

 3   understanding is that this is a document provided by the

 4   company that records its record of outages.  Correct.

 5              MR. MECHAM:  Correct.

 6              HEARING OFFICER:  And those have to be

 7   outages of at least a duration of --

 8              MR. MECHAM:  Thirty minutes.

 9              HEARING OFFICER:  -- thirty minutes.  So --

10   and this is confusing, because the pages aren't

11   numbered.  And I appreciate, Mr. Mecham, that it's very

12   difficult to print a spreadsheet, but if we flip to the

13   page where we see the end date of the outage, which is,

14   perhaps, five pages -- I think it's the fifth page in

15   the exhibit -- the first line says --first row says

16   "Start Time," "End Date."

17              MR. MECHAM:  We got it.

18              HEARING OFFICER:  So the first outage we see

19   recorded on the company's document is May 29th, 2017.

20   When I turn around and I look at SRR-1, if I'm reading

21   it correctly, I don't see any outage recorded there on

22   that date.

23              THE WITNESS:  You know, Your Honor, I can't

24   say with any definitivity, but what I would say is if

25   there was a loss of power, that may have resulted in
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 1   that monitoring service not recording the data.  But I'm

 2   not -- I don't have enough technical knowledge to tell

 3   you exactly what would happen from looking at those two

 4   pieces of information.

 5              HEARING OFFICER:  So if power at the ranch

 6   were lost, then Binary Canary wouldn't necessarily

 7   capture the outage?

 8              THE WITNESS:  That's possible.

 9              HEARING OFFICER:  That's the only question I

10   have right now.  Mr. Mecham, did you have any recross --

11   or redirect?

12              MR. MECHAM:  I do not.

13              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Would you like

14   to call another witness?

15              MR. THOMSON:  Your Honor, may I have an

16   opportunity to ask a couple of questions, based on the

17   Attorney General's questions?

18              HEARING OFFICER:  Of course.

19              MR. THOMSON:  Thank you.

20                  FURTHER CROSS-EXAMINATION

21   BY MR. THOMSON:

22         Q.   Mr. Ciani, looking at SRR-2, would you agree

23   with me that there were a total of two trouble tickets

24   called in regarding service in 2018 and 2019?

25              MR. MECHAM:  I think that document speaks
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 1   for itself, does it not?

 2         Q.   (BY MR. THOMSON)  So you agree with me?

 3              MR. MECHAM:  Where are you pointing him to?

 4              MR. THOMSON:  Down at the bottom of the

 5   document.

 6              MR. MECHAM:  Which page?

 7              MR. THOMSON:  There's one page on this

 8   document.

 9              HEARING OFFICER:  Which exhibit are you

10   referring to?

11              MR. MECHAM:  SRR-2 is --

12              MR. THOMSON:  Is this SRR-2?

13              MR. MECHAM:  No.  I haven't entered that one

14   yet.

15         Q.   (BY MR. THOMSON)  All right.  Can you look at

16   the document that's labeled Sorrel River Ranch Repair

17   Ticket History that was produced in discovery?

18              MR. MECHAM:  But it's not part of the

19   record.

20              HEARING OFFICER:  I don't have a copy of

21   that document yet.  It hasn't been entered.

22              MR. THOMSON:  Well, then we'll look at this

23   on our direct, then, Your Honor.

24         Q.   (BY MR. THOMSON)  The other question I had:

25   Who is the commercial power supplier at the ranch?
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 1         A.   Rocky Mountain Power.

 2         Q.   And are there outages frequently with Rocky

 3   Mountain Power?

 4         A.   Define "frequently."

 5         Q.   Well, more than once every six months?

 6         A.   I would say that it's likely that there's at

 7   least one outage every six months, but I'm sure you could

 8   find that information out from them.  I don't have the

 9   record of all their power outages in my head.

10              MR. THOMSON:  Sure.  I have no further

11   questions, Your Honor.

12              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.

13              Mr. Mecham, anything else from Mr. Ciani?

14              MR. MECHAM:  Nothing at this time.

15              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Would you like

16   to call another witness?

17              MR. MECHAM:  I don't think we need to at

18   this point.

19              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Then we'll

20   turn to you, Mr. Thomson.

21              MR. THOMSON:  Thank you.  Your Honor, we'll

22   call Mike Giles.

23              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Giles, could you swear

24   to tell the truth?

25              THE WITNESS:  I do.
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 1              Is that better?  There we go.

 2              I do.

 3                        MICHAEL GILES,

 4   called as a witness by and on behalf of Frontier

 5   Communications, having been first duly sworn, was

 6   examined and testified as follows:

 7                      DIRECT EXAMINATION

 8   BY MR. THOMSON:

 9         Q.   Please give us your name.

10         A.   Mike Giles.

11         Q.   And are you employed by Frontier

12   Communications?

13         A.   Yes, I am.

14         Q.   In what capacity, sir?

15         A.   Currently, I serve as local manager for

16   Frontier.

17         Q.   And in that position, can you briefly

18   describe your duties?

19         A.   Currently, I'm an operations supervisor, is

20   technically what I am, and so I'm over the technicians

21   and all the services provided in the State of Utah for

22   Frontier as well as in Arizona.

23         Q.   How long have you been with the company?

24         A.   This is my 40th year.

25         Q.   And have you worked in Utah that entire time?
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 1         A.   No.  I worked in Arizona and California and

 2   -- the largest amount of time in Utah, some 20 years.

 3         Q.   Are you familiar with issues in Castle

 4   Valley?

 5         A.   I am.

 6         Q.   Can you describe Frontier's network leaving

 7   Moab and going into Castle Valley?

 8         A.   Castle Valley and where Sorrel is, in

 9   Professor Valley, is currently served by a radio that

10   goes from Moab up to a mountaintop called Bald Mesa

11   approximately 9,000 feet.  And then that microwave radio

12   shot hits a bluff above Castle Valley and then down into

13   our Castle Valley office, and then SRR is served via

14   copper facility from that office, some five miles out to

15   their location.

16         Q.   And when you say "office," describe what

17   exists on the ground at the end of the microwave radio

18   shots.

19         A.   Our Castle Valley remote office is what we

20   call a central office.  It's basically a wire center in a

21   location where we have equipment to serve not only voice

22   but data from that office.

23         Q.   Does anyone physically work there --

24         A.   No.

25         Q.   -- on a daily basis?
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 1         A.   No.

 2         Q.   So would this be characterized as a remote

 3   terminal?

 4         A.   It's a remote terminal, correct.

 5         Q.   And how is the signal taken from the Moab

 6   central office to Bald Mesa?

 7         A.   Via microwave radio.

 8         Q.   Was there ever any copper cable into Castle

 9   Valley that was used to serve customers there?

10         A.   No.  It's been radio for the entire time.

11         Q.   And when you say "the entire time," how long

12   has that radio been in existence?

13         A.   I'm aware they've had phone service out there

14   for some 50 years.  Could be longer, but I'm aware of at

15   least 50.

16         Q.   Is there any cell service in that valley?

17         A.   Extremely spotty, depending on the -- you

18   know, the provider.

19         Q.   So you've described the terrain generally.

20   Can you tell us a little bit about what exists at Bald

21   Mesa?

22         A.   Bald Mesa is a plateau in the La Sal

23   mountains, and I would describe it as extremely remote.

24   There's a forest road that goes by it, but it's a couple

25   miles to get up to Bald Mesa.  It's a radio site that's
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 1   not -- used only by Frontier, but other entities as well.

 2         Q.   So it's two miles off the forest road?

 3         A.   I believe two miles is the shortest.

 4         Q.   Do you know why Frontier changed the radio

 5   there in December of 2018?

 6         A.   The radio was changed out primarily for

 7   Connect America Fund to increase data out to --

 8   there's -- there was some pressure to increase the

 9   internet usage out there and the data out there.  So as

10   -- part of that radio changeout was to increase the

11   bandwidth to provide to the customers in Castle Valley,

12   Castleton and Professor Valley.

13         Q.   And Connect America Fund is something managed

14   by the FCC, correct?

15         A.   That is correct.

16         Q.   Do you recall how much it cost to replace

17   that radio?

18         A.   I do not have the exact figures in there.

19   Somewhere in the neighborhood of a hundred thousand.

20         Q.   Mr. Giles, after the formal complaint was

21   filed, what has Frontier's response been, at least

22   internally to manage the service?

23         A.   A couple of things that go -- number one,

24   daily calls, because we were aware of the issue after the

25   radio was changed out on the 18th of December.  We've had
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 1   daily, weekly calls to manage those issues, as well as

 2   formulate plans going forward.  Monitoring -- constant

 3   monitoring not only on the radio, but with calls to

 4   customers and those people that were affected by that.

 5         Q.   Are there any alarms or other monitoring

 6   devices that are being used on those circuits at this

 7   time?

 8         A.   Test equipment.  So we're able to look at it

 9   and see if we had any radio hits, any delays.  We're able

10   to see that now to monitor whether or not the service is

11   down or just it took temporary hits that may or may cause

12   outages.  It may or may cause dropped calls.

13         Q.   And I'm looking at, I think, what's been

14   marked as Sorrel River Ranch Exhibit 2.

15              Are you familiar with this document -- this

16   spreadsheet?

17         A.   I've seen it.  One of the things that I

18   looked at -- this is the outages in the Moab exchange.

19   This is how we measure things, as far as outages not

20   specifically to a particular area.  Now, Castle Valley

21   outages could be in here, but this is all the outages at

22   the Moab exchange in this time period on here.

23              For instance, the one we talked about just a

24   minute ago, that 41-hour outage, did not affect Castle

25   Valley.  That was south of Moab.
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 1         Q.   Roughly, how many customers are served on the

 2   radio network that provides service to Sorrel River

 3   Ranch?

 4         A.   Just under 300.

 5         Q.   And how many customers are served by the Moab

 6   central office?

 7         A.   I don't recall a number at this time.  I

 8   mean, I'm not sure.

 9         Q.   But the number would be greater than --

10         A.   Oh, much greater than that, yeah.

11              MR. THOMSON:  One moment, Your Honor.

12              THE WITNESS:  I was going to say 25, so

13   2,300 access lines, from our document.

14              MR. THOMSON:  I don't have any further

15   questions, Your Honor, and I'll release the witness for

16   cross.

17              HEARING OFFICER:  Before we move on to

18   cross, just to clarify, the 2,300 access lines you just

19   referred to are in what area?

20              THE WITNESS:  Moab exchange itself.  So

21   Castle Valley being an area part of that exchange.

22              HEARING OFFICER:  And Castle Valley has

23   approximately 300?

24              THE WITNESS:  Just under 300.

25              HEARING OFFICER:  And one other point of
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 1   clarification.  I believe when Mr. Thomson was asking

 2   you questions, he referred to what is referred to --

 3   what has been marked as -- what he referred to as SRR-2.

 4   He was referring to the spreadsheet that the company

 5   provided of its recording of outages.  I believe that's

 6   SRR-3.

 7              MR. THOMSON:  Is that 3?  Okay.  I stand

 8   corrected.

 9              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Mecham, does that

10   comport with your understanding?

11              MR. MECHAM:  Yes.

12              HEARING OFFICER:  Then we will move to

13   Mr. Mecham for cross-examination.

14              MR. MECHAM:  Okay.  Thank you.

15                      CROSS-EXAMINATION

16   BY MR. MECHAM:

17         Q.   Mr. Giles, how far is it from Bald Mesa to

18   Moab?

19         A.   I believe it's 15 miles driving, and I don't

20   know the airline -- I don't know the air -- as the crow

21   flies, how far it is.  I believe it's about 15 miles.

22   You go out to Pack Creek and then back up on the loop

23   road to get to Bald Mesa.

24         Q.   So it's not like it's across the state or

25   anything like that or across the county?  It's 15 miles
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 1   away?

 2         A.   Across the county, yes; across the state, no.

 3         Q.   Okay.

 4         A.   I believe there's about a 6,000-foot

 5   elevation climb, somewhere, plus or minus on that.

 6         Q.   And is 44 outages every two years normal?  Is

 7   that normal for Frontier?

 8         A.   I don't -- I'm not sure what -- how to answer

 9   that.  I know 44 outages depends on where.  In an

10   exchange like Moab -- with Moab itself, that would be

11   normal.

12         Q.   Normal for Frontier?

13         A.   I serve in a lot of areas.  I mean, there's a

14   lot of -- these are every outage over 30 minutes, some of

15   Frontier's issues, some external.

16         Q.   Do you know why Frontier has not sought

17   Universal Service Funds from the State?

18         A.   No, I don't -- I don't have the specific

19   information on why.  That's not a part of my

20   responsibility.

21         Q.   Who would?  Is anybody here or on the

22   telephone who would know that?

23              MR. THOMSON:  I believe Mr. Erhart may have

24   information regarding that.

25              MR. MECHAM:  And would he know and
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 1   understand why or if Frontier did not qualify for State

 2   Universal Service Funds?

 3              HEARING OFFICER:  We still have the witness

 4   who is testifying to answer.

 5              THE WITNESS:  I don't know if he does or

 6   not, so...

 7         Q.   (BY MR. MECHAM)  Well, let me ask you this,

 8   Mr. Giles, and I'll get back to that in a minute.

 9              How long has Frontier or any of its

10   predecessors served Castle Valley and Moab in that area?

11         A.   Fifty years or so.

12         Q.   So the terrain --

13         A.   I've been here 40 years, and I started in

14   Utah.  We served it then.  That's maybe the best way to

15   answer that.

16         Q.   So it's nothing new to you?

17         A.   No.

18         Q.   I mean, you know how to provide service in

19   that area?

20         A.   Correct.

21         Q.   It's rugged, but there are a lot of rugged

22   places in Utah served by independent rural telephone

23   companies?

24         A.   Yes.

25         Q.   And you do know -- well, let's go to the
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 1   Universal Service Fund.

 2              MR. MECHAM:  I don't know if Mr. Erhart --

 3   were you intending to bring him on in direct or how

 4   would you -- because I'd like to go to that to try to

 5   figure out the age of the network and the condition of

 6   the network.

 7              MR. THOMSON:  We didn't intend to present

 8   Mr. Erhart as a witness today.

 9              MR. MECHAM:  Is he on the line?

10              MR. THOMSON:  He's sitting to my left,

11   beyond Mr. Giles.

12              HEARING OFFICER:  If you want to call

13   Mr. Erhart, we can address that.  Why don't you wrap

14   your examination of Mr. Giles first?

15         Q.   (BY MR. MECHAM)  Okay.  Mr. Giles, have you

16   looked at the document SRR-3?  I guess you did, since you

17   were looking at it with Mr. Thomson.  You pointed one out

18   in the Moab office.

19              Are you aware of how many of these would have

20   affected Castle Valley?

21         A.   I'm not.

22         Q.   Okay.  So that one, perhaps, didn't, but

23   maybe 35 or 40 might have?

24         A.   In my tenure -- well, going on 12 years that

25   I've been back in Utah, I'm aware of two major fiber cuts
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 1   that lasted just under 24 hours, in 12 years, that

 2   affected all of Moab that would have affected Castle

 3   Valley as well.

 4         Q.   Okay.

 5         A.   These were major fiber cuts that would be on

 6   here, outside of this four months that we're talking

 7   about with Castle Valley.

 8         Q.   Mr. Giles, before the changeout of the radio

 9   first in December of 2018 and then second in March, were

10   you aware of other issues with dropped calls and need for

11   upgrade of Frontier's facilities in the area?

12         A.   Dropped calls are something that Frontier and

13   any other providers deal with from time to time,

14   including the cell companies as well.  We did not have a

15   ration of dropped calls until December, because -- and I

16   base this on my interaction with customers and, you know,

17   trouble tickets that were called in at that time.

18              The dropped call situation and intermittent

19   dial tone situation ramped up after that radio was placed

20   on the 18th of December.  Prior to that, looking at this

21   Binary report, I'm not aware of the outages or dropped

22   calls prior to that on a large-scale basis.

23         Q.   And so why did -- why did you change out that

24   radio?  Why did you need to change out that radio in

25   December?
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 1         A.   The radio, that was changed out as part of

 2   the Connect America Fund upgrade to -- basically for

 3   data, not for voice.

 4         Q.   So the Connect America Fund is the federal

 5   fund?

 6         A.   Correct.

 7         Q.   So you qualified for that; otherwise, you

 8   wouldn't have gotten the funds, right?

 9         A.   Correct.

10         Q.   And what is the process in the company -- if

11   you need an upgrade in order to serve your customers

12   well, what do you have to do to get the resources here?

13         A.   Submit a request to -- and it goes to various

14   departments, whether it's -- starting in operation and

15   engineering and the Capital Funding Finance Group as

16   well.  Personally, I'm not involved in that piece of it,

17   I just know it as a general process.

18         Q.   So in response -- and this is in -- in the

19   overall response, SRR-2 when asked what other

20   expenditures have been made other than for those radios,

21   the response was "outside of those listed elsewhere, we

22   can" -- "we can identify no expenditures."  So there

23   hasn't -- at least in the last three years -- so there

24   hasn't been any other expenditure made to upgrade the

25   services in the area, other than these radios that were
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 1   paid for by CAF funds; is that correct?

 2         A.   Not -- I -- no, not -- I'm not aware of any.

 3   Other than, you know, card changeouts or repair or

 4   anything like that, I'm not aware of any capital money,

 5   other than the hundred thousand dollars for that

 6   changeout of the radio.

 7         Q.   And that really -- that was federal funding

 8   available to all companies that you qualified for, but

 9   not capital provided by Frontier; is that correctly

10   characterized?

11         A.   I don't know how that's figured.  There

12   again, not really part of my direct responsibility on

13   where that funding comes and if it's subsidized or

14   totally funded.

15         Q.   How old was the radio that was replaced?

16         A.   There again, I don't recall exactly when it

17   was replaced, but I would say in -- since I've been here

18   in the last -- eight years, maybe, old, when that radio

19   was replaced.  Two --

20         Q.   So the first radio -- sorry, go ahead.

21         A.   Excuse me.  Really, to add bandwidth, not to

22   change the voice side of it, on both occasions.

23         Q.   So the first changeout was in December and

24   apparently that was a disaster.  Why?  What happened?

25         A.   I'm going to divert that question to somebody
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 1   that knows a little bit more about the radio itself.  But

 2   a couple of things from my observation, as a general, you

 3   know, local manager, is the vendor that Frontier used in

 4   -- the radio application for that particular device was

 5   inadequate for what we needed.  And we realized that and

 6   started procedures -- processes in January -- late

 7   January to replace that vendor, which we ended up doing

 8   on the 21st of March.

 9         Q.   And did you have to refund the CAF fund or

10   did the vendor have to do it?  I mean, it was either what

11   you didn't need or it was faulty, but, in any case, you

12   didn't duplicate the funding, did you?

13         A.   Not to my knowledge, but I'm not -- there

14   again, not part of my -- I'm not aware of any refund

15   fund, other than just go and replace the vendor and

16   faulty equipment, and then what goes on there, I think,

17   is still in process.

18         Q.   So there may yet be a refund to the CAF fund

19   for the first radio that didn't work?

20         A.   I wouldn't know that.

21         Q.   Who would?

22         A.   I don't know if any -- I don't know at this

23   point.

24         Q.   And so the new radio that went in in March,

25   apparently there still must be issues, because there are
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 1   outages and lost calls.  What -- what can Sorrel River

 2   Ranch expect from Frontier with that second radio?

 3         A.   Well, I'll take part of that, and then I'll

 4   defer the second part to Carlos when he testifies.  But I

 5   will tell you that my complaints have almost ceased from

 6   the other customers -- the residential customers in that

 7   area since the changeout at the end of March.

 8              As far as dropped calls, as far as outages,

 9   there have been a couple of additional radio hits since

10   that time, but, overall, I have not had -- other than

11   normal, you know, out -- normal customer trouble tickets

12   that were not above normal since the 20th of

13   March -- 21st of March.

14         Q.   And when you say "not above normal," what

15   does that mean?  How many trouble tickets or issues do

16   you have normally?

17         A.   I don't know if I can answer that, really.

18   I'm just saying, at this point in time -- there obviously

19   was an issue this winter and, at this point in time, I

20   may go to Castle Valley twice a week, at the most, to

21   work on an individual's trouble that could be in

22   Frontier's network or customer issues or just typically

23   -- and I'm answering this generally -- typical service

24   issues that you would have anywhere.

25         Q.   So in response to one of our data requests
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 1   you -- or Frontier, anyway, gave us a list of complaints,

 2   and I printed a couple of those out.  One of them is from

 3   the Castle Valley Fire Department, which I think was

 4   created March 18th of 2019.

 5              Is that after the second radio was --

 6         A.   No, that was before.  The second radio

 7   changeout was the 21st of March.

 8         Q.   Okay.  Mr. Giles, in your testimony I believe

 9   you said that there were a couple of radio hits after the

10   March 21st installation of the second radio.

11         A.   Correct.

12         Q.   What do you mean?

13         A.   Loss of signal, at that point in time, and

14   our monitoring.  I think we talked about those in our

15   discovery.  One had happened the day before that that

16   would probably create a dropped call situation.  There's

17   been a couple other days where we've come in and had

18   errors on the signal since that time, but no additional

19   trouble tickets per se.

20              And I think Dave mentioned on the discovery

21   call that he was aware of that.  I think it happened at

22   10:00 at night and 2:00 in the morning, the previous day

23   of our discovery, to my recollection.

24         Q.   And when you have radio issues -- radio hits,

25   who dispatches -- where do they come from?
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 1         A.   Currently -- I mean, normally, they're

 2   dispatched from trouble calls, unless it's an outage

 3   itself, and then once the alarm comes in, then we'd go.

 4   Because we're monitoring this circuit, and have been

 5   since December, then we're, I would say, more fully aware

 6   of -- or more sensitive about this circuit and this

 7   particular service because of the issues we've had.

 8              So first thing that my central office

 9   technician does in the morning is check his test meter to

10   make sure that the circuit didn't take any hits and that

11   we haven't had any issues, that we didn't have

12   any -- when I say "hits," any hesitation in the radio or

13   any -- I can't think of the word I want to use right now,

14   but just to make sure that there may have not caused any

15   issues.  Verify that with the folks that are monitoring

16   the radio.

17              And then Mitch has taken weekly trips out

18   to -- to Sorrel to look at our meter that's out on

19   site -- our modem out on site and to pull the data from

20   that to make sure it coincides what we've seen from the

21   radio site.

22              These are not normal practices that we would

23   be able to do for all our customers, but we've tried to

24   be more responsive on this piece of it.

25         Q.   But if you have to repair the radio, is
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 1   someone in Moab able to do that, or do they have to come

 2   from Salt Lake or some other place?

 3         A.   They can log in remotely and look at it.  So

 4   those experts can log in remotely and look at the radio,

 5   and they're monitoring as well.

 6         Q.   But I mean to repair it, not to -- just to

 7   monitor.

 8         A.   It depends on the outage.  A lot of repair

 9   now is software changes and to be able to make

10   adjustments on software, not physically.  Physically,

11   yes, that may require some outside services to come in,

12   absolutely.

13         Q.   So, remotely, if it's software; if it's

14   physical, they come from someplace else?

15         A.   They may have to, if it's not something that

16   my local technicians can fix.

17         Q.   And that -- if they -- where would they come

18   from, Salt Lake?

19         A.   Various places.  Depends on the location of

20   vendors and where our internal support people are.  It

21   just depends.

22         Q.   Mr. Giles, towards the end of last year, did

23   you have a lot of discussions with Sorrel River Ranch?

24         A.   Personally, no, I did not.  My technician

25   talked to their front desk.  There was some
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 1   correspondence via email, but I did not -- I do not

 2   recall having a conversation face-to-face or -- and/or

 3   over the phone.  I'm not denying it, I just don't recall

 4   it.  I think that's a better way to answer that.

 5         Q.   And with the December changeout of the radio,

 6   was it the Company's view at that time that that was the

 7   solution, that it was done, there was nothing more to do?

 8         A.   Nothing more to do as --

 9         Q.   As far as repairing the network in order to

10   provide the service.

11         A.   Yeah.  That was our understanding, is that

12   would provide the service required for -- to satisfy the

13   bandwidth and data requirements.

14         Q.   But then it didn't work out?

15         A.   It did not work out.

16         Q.   In your opinion, what should Frontier have

17   done in order to avoid this in the first place?

18         A.   I'm trying -- obviously, we would have liked

19   this to have gone much smoother than it did.  We relied

20   on a vendor to provide a radio that was reliable to us

21   and that did not work out.  So, you know, I'd start with

22   that.

23              Could there have been other things handled

24   better?  There always is, communication, things like

25   that.  Internally, we tried several things to improve
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 1   that service and work with that vendor to improve that

 2   radio.  We made several software changes.  We made some

 3   physical changes.  We had some difficulty getting up to

 4   the location from a weather standpoint.  Probably the

 5   worst weather year that that area has had in all that I

 6   can recall.

 7              So there was some challenges that could have

 8   been handled better or could have had better luck with

 9   the weather.  It was a factor in some of the response

10   times.  But, overall, we relied on a vendor that we've

11   done business with in the past, and they didn't deliver

12   for us.

13         Q.   Did Frontier make the appropriate

14   expenditures in order to maintain the system before the

15   radio problem emerged?

16         A.   I really -- I really can't answer that from

17   my position.

18         Q.   Who can?

19         A.   I don't -- it may be -- Carlos may be able to

20   speak to that.  He's a radio expert on that.  He may have

21   a little bit more of an idea on that piece of it, so...

22         Q.   You've testified several times that the area

23   is remote, mountainous, subject to the bad weather.  Why

24   did you wait to December to change it out?

25         A.   That was when the project was approved and
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 1   the funding came through.  It wasn't my -- that's when it

 2   came.  We didn't -- we didn't plan the date for it,

 3   that's just when it was put out there.

 4         Q.   When did you apply for it?

 5         A.   Apply for?

 6         Q.   The money to change out the radio, the CAF

 7   funds.

 8         A.   There again, I have no idea when that was

 9   done.  That wasn't part of my responsibility.

10         Q.   I mean, is Frontier anticipating these issues

11   to try to ensure that service remains high quality or at

12   least adequate?

13         A.   Yeah, I would say so, as somebody that's

14   worked for the company for a long time.  This was

15   everything -- every effort is done to try to prevent

16   things like this.

17         Q.   But none of this terrain is a surprise to

18   you, right?  I mean, you've been doing this for, you say,

19   50 years -- not you, but the company.

20         A.   Well, the answer -- terrain-wise, getting up

21   to Bald Mesa, I've never had an eight-man snowcat stuck

22   in the snow up there in my, you know, 40 years of dealing

23   with mountaintops.  I've never had that situation.  So,

24   you know, it was an unusual challenge.

25              Obviously, December and January wouldn't have
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 1   been the ideal times to do that, as far as wanting to go

 2   up there, but we've had to go up there in the wintertime

 3   before on existing radio issues, so -- you know, from

 4   that standpoint.  But I've never seen the kind of snow

 5   and weather that we had to deal with this year.  I'm not

 6   using that as an excuse, I'm just saying it was a fact

 7   this winter, that it was unusually difficult to get up

 8   there.

 9         Q.   But the outage report represented on SRR-3

10   shows plenty of outages.  And as you say, maybe they

11   don't all apply to Castle Valley, but there are plenty of

12   them that occurred well before any of this trouble

13   emerged at the end of 2018; isn't that correct?

14         A.   This document shows everything in Moab, and I

15   would say Castle Valley represents a very small part of

16   the outages on this report.

17         Q.   But it's -- it seems to me that 44 outages is

18   extraordinary, whether it affects Castle Valley or not.

19   Does that not reflect on the kind of equipment and the

20   age and condition of the equipment Frontier is using?

21         A.   These outages are various, from data outages

22   to voice outages.  You know, so as far as whether it's

23   adequate or not, I don't have a comparison to what other

24   companies run in that same time period.  This was all the

25   outages, every last one of them, during that time frame,
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 1   from small to large outages.

 2         Q.   Anything over 30 minutes?

 3         A.   Anything over 30 minutes appears to be on

 4   this report.

 5         Q.   Okay.

 6         A.   Every one of these outages didn't affect

 7   everybody in the Moab exchange, so...

 8         Q.   All right.  Who -- is it Mr. Erhart who knows

 9   something about the Universal Service Fund?

10         A.   That's my understanding.

11              MR. MECHAM:  Maybe we could swear him.

12              HEARING OFFICER:  Let's conclude examination

13   of this witness.  Do you have any additional questions

14   for this witness, Mr. Mecham?

15              MR. MECHAM:  No, at this time.

16              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Moore?

17              MR. MOORE:  Just a couple of questions.

18                      CROSS-EXAMINATION

19   BY MR. MOORE:

20         Q.   Do you know if Frontier maintains a report of

21   every time Sorrel Ranch issued a trouble report to you

22   concerning the problems with the services?

23         A.   Yeah.  I think that's documented in one of

24   the -- that we haven't entered in yet, but I believe so,

25   yes.
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 1              MR. MOORE:  Are you -- can I ask your lawyer

 2   if you're planning on entering that in, and then I'll

 3   wait for these questions, then.

 4              MR. THOMSON:  Your Honor, I'd be happy to

 5   enter this.  It was produced -- let me back up a little

 6   bit and, for the record, say that this was a document

 7   that was produced as a result of a discovery request

 8   from Mr. Mecham, and it's a log of the repair tickets

 9   called in by Sorrel River.  They asked for a two-year

10   period, we supplied the last decade worth of trouble

11   tickets.

12              So it's a single page.  It's a table, looks

13   like this.  We'll be happy to enter it into evidence.  I

14   can have Mr. Giles validate this on redirect, if we want

15   to do that.

16              HEARING OFFICER:  If you're willing to do

17   so, and it will be responsive to Mr. Moore's question.

18   Do we have copies for everyone?

19              MR. THOMSON:  I have one copy, Your Honor.

20              MR. MECHAM:  I have copies.  I have no

21   objection to it being entered.

22              HEARING OFFICER:  Please distribute them.

23   So, Mr. Thomson, would you like me to mark this as the

24   company's exhibit?

25              MR. THOMSON:  We can do that, Your Honor,
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 1   sure.  We can mark that Frontier-1.

 2              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Let this be

 3   marked Frontier-1.  And Mr. Thomson has moved for its

 4   admission.  Is there any objection?

 5              MR. MECHAM:  No.

 6              (Frontier Exhibit No. 1 was

 7                marked for identification.)

 8              HEARING OFFICER:  It's admitted.

 9              MR. THOMSON:  Thank you, Your Honor.

10              HEARING OFFICER:  Before you continue

11   Mr. Moore, Mr. Mecham had just expressed a little

12   interest in a break.  It's been about an hour and 20

13   minutes.  Since we've just received a new exhibit, it

14   may benefit the parties to look at it a little bit

15   before we continue.

16              Is there any interest in a 10- or 15-minute

17   break?

18              MR. MOORE:  That would be fine.

19              MR. THOMSON:  Fine with us.

20              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  We will be in

21   recess until 11:30.

22              MR. THOMSON:  Thank you.

23              (A recess was taken.)

24              HEARING OFFICER:  Let's go back on the

25   record.
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 1              Mr. Moore, I believe we were with you and

 2   your cross-examination of Mr. Giles.

 3         Q.   (BY MR. MOORE)  Yes.  Mr. Giles, I was

 4   speaking about Frontier Exhibit 1, I believe.  That's the

 5   Sorrel River Repair Ticket History.

 6              Do you have that before you?

 7         A.   Okay.  I've got it, yes.

 8         Q.   Now, this lists every time Sorrel -- every

 9   time Sorrel River issued a formal trouble report to you;

10   is that correct?

11         A.   That is correct.

12         Q.   What are the procedures that Sorrel River

13   must go through to issue a trouble report?

14         A.   They call a central location, 800 number, and

15   report their -- whatever issues they have to that.  That

16   creates a trouble ticket in our system and is

17   subsequently dispatched to whatever group is going to

18   handle that issue.  Could be the field where my employees

19   are, it could be a long-distance group, various different

20   areas.  Not all of these would come out to the field and

21   require a field visit.

22         Q.   Could you look, if it's available to you, for

23   Sorrel River Ranch Exhibit No. 1?  I'm referring to about

24   the -- your Response to Discovery Requests.

25         A.   I'm not sure.  Sorrel River 1 is what?
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 1         Q.   It's your response -- I believe it's your

 2   response to Sorrel River's discovery requests.

 3         A.   Okay.

 4              HEARING OFFICER:  I believe that's SRR-2.

 5              MR. MOORE:  That's SRR-2.  Sorry about that.

 6         Q.   (BY MR. MOORE)  Will you look at page 4,

 7   Request 1-5?

 8         A.   Okay.  I'm there.

 9         Q.   And that provides that "Frontier made only

10   one dispatched service to Sorrel River Ranch in response

11   to a trouble ticket in the past 12 months."

12         A.   Correct.

13         Q.   "There were an additional 6 technician visits

14   in response to Owner and/or Managing Director emails over

15   the past 5 months."

16         A.   Correct.

17         Q.   Help me out here.  Does that mean the six

18   technicians in the past five months were dispatched

19   without a reporting on your repair ticket?

20         A.   That is correct.  Those were visits made to

21   the site in response to either something that we observed

22   or an email from SRR.  We made visits out to the site to

23   start monitoring their PRI circuit which provides their

24   voice.

25         Q.   But the email didn't generate a formal --
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 1         A.   No, did not.  This was on our -- this was us

 2   taking active -- proactive -- I guess reactive to the

 3   email, but proactive stance to go out and visit, check

 4   with the front desk to make sure they hadn't had any

 5   dropped calls, and to retrieve data from our device out

 6   on site there and look at the previous week's report.

 7         Q.   Is there any specific record that deals with

 8   your response to email requests that don't go through the

 9   800 number?

10         A.   No.

11         Q.   Does Frontier have a program of PRI testing,

12   inspection and preventative maintenance?

13         A.   We have a preventative and maintenance

14   program, yes.

15         Q.   Have you filed a description of this program

16   with the Commission?

17         A.   I do not know that.

18         Q.   You say that you're not sure why you do not

19   qualify for services in the Utah Public

20   Telecommunications Service Funds; is that correct?

21         A.   That's correct.  I don't -- personally am not

22   involved in that process at all.

23         Q.   Do you know if you get any other federal

24   assistance, other than the CAF assistance that you

25   referred to earlier?
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 1         A.   I do not know.

 2         Q.   Did you make a profit last year?

 3         A.   That, I don't know specifically.

 4              MR. MOORE:  That's all I have.  Thank you.

 5              HEARING OFFICER:  A couple of questions from

 6   me, Mr. Giles.

 7              When you were asked about the problems that

 8   began in the aftermath of the radio changeout in

 9   December of 2018, you alluded to a vendor.  Can you help

10   me understand what the actual physical problems were?

11              THE WITNESS:  Physical problems were the

12   reliability of that particular radio that we put in.

13              HEARING OFFICER:  Was it a compatibility

14   issue with the model or that particular radio was

15   somehow dysfunctional?

16              THE WITNESS:  I'm going to defer that to the

17   expert on that piece of it, okay?  And he'll -- I

18   understand he's going to testify, so...

19              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  And that radio

20   was installed to increase bandwidth for internet

21   service; is that right?

22              THE WITNESS:  Correct.

23              HEARING OFFICER:  Was that implemented in

24   connection with an advertised increase of services to

25   customers?
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 1              THE WITNESS:  No, not until after.  And we

 2   have not advertised any because of the subsequent

 3   problems, we've held off on that.

 4              HEARING OFFICER:  When the complainant's

 5   witness, Mr. Ciani, was testifying, he alluded to

 6   certain billing credits that it has received on its

 7   statement from Frontier.

 8              Can you speak to those credits, why they

 9   were issued and the amount of them?

10              THE WITNESS:  I personally cannot.  You

11   know, I wasn't involved in that piece of it.  So that's

12   all I know, is credits were issued to all the customers

13   out in that area.  I just don't have the specifics on

14   it.

15              HEARING OFFICER:  And, in your view, as we

16   sit here today, are there technical issues that exist

17   that need to be remedied in order for Frontier to

18   provide the ranch adequate service?

19              THE WITNESS:  We don't want them to have any

20   issues.  So if there's any issues that we can control or

21   fix or whatever, then that's our goal, so...

22              The complaints and the issues that we were

23   having have diminished significantly.  Are there still

24   issues, tweaks that have to be done to the system to

25   provide any issues?  We've had a couple of what I'd call
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 1   radio hits since then.  There again, I'll defer that to

 2   someone that's the expert on the radio.  But at this

 3   point in time, we'll continue to watch it.

 4              HEARING OFFICER:  I don't want to ask you

 5   for a legal conclusion, that wouldn't be fair.  But, in

 6   your view, in your experience, having worked for the

 7   company for many decades, is this service that the

 8   company is providing to Frontier today reasonable and

 9   adequate?

10              THE WITNESS:  That we're providing to SRR?

11              HEARING OFFICER:  To the Ranch, yes.

12              THE WITNESS:  To the Ranch.  At this point,

13   I believe it is.  But there again, that's just a general

14   opinion.  Obviously, we don't want any outages and we

15   react to any that we know about, so...  There's still

16   challenges, you know, it's -- and to serve that area in

17   particular, there's still challenges and will probably

18   continue to be.

19              HEARING OFFICER:  Is there any specific

20   action plan that the company has, as of today, in order

21   to further investigate or address the Ranch's continued

22   complaints?

23              THE WITNESS:  There's ongoing calls every

24   single day to evaluate where we're at, where our clients

25   are for the future.  This is not typical.  This is in

0062

 1   response to the issues we've had and to the customers

 2   out there that we'll continue, until we're satisfied and

 3   they're satisfied that the issues have been resolved.

 4              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.

 5              Any redirect, Mr. Thomson?

 6              MR. THOMSON:  No, Your Honor.

 7              HEARING OFFICER:  Does any other party have

 8   additional questions before we move on?

 9              MR. MECHAM:  Perhaps just one.

10                  FURTHER CROSS-EXAMINATION

11   BY MR. MECHAM:

12         Q.   Mr. Giles, you talk about those radios going

13   in for internet purposes, but don't the telephone calls

14   go over the same network -- over the same circuits?

15         A.   They do, but I don't know specifically.  And,

16   there again, you can direct those questions to a radio

17   expert to better answer it.  But, initially, the radios

18   were replaced to increase the bandwidth out to that area.

19   More pressure on the internet than there was on the voice

20   part of it as well.

21         Q.   Is there a more reliable -- well, isn't there

22   a more reliable way to provide the service?

23         A.   I really couldn't answer that.  I mean, I

24   don't know what your definition of "reliable" is.

25              MR. MECHAM:  Thank you.
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 1              HEARING OFFICER:  Any follow-up?

 2              MR. THOMSON:  No, Your Honor.

 3              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Well,

 4   Mr. Mecham had expressed interest in asking questions of

 5   Mr. Erhart.  I think it's probably procedurally

 6   appropriate to stick with Mr. Thomson for the time being

 7   and ask you who your next intended witness is.

 8              MR. THOMSON:  We're going to call Carlos

 9   Cardona, who is an employee for Frontier.

10              HEARING OFFICER:  Do you intend to call

11   Mr. Erhart?

12              MR. THOMSON:  I did not, no, Your Honor.

13              HEARING OFFICER:  To the extent the other

14   parties have questions for Mr. Erhart, do you have

15   objection to his being sworn and answering questions

16   today?

17              MR. THOMSON:  No.  I don't think the parties

18   should have expectation that Mr. Erhart is prepared for

19   everything they might ask, but I don't have an objection

20   to Mr. Erhart being sworn in and testifying to what he

21   knows.

22              HEARING OFFICER:  Well, we'll stick with

23   your preferred order of the witnesses now, then, and

24   I'll ask you to call your next witness.

25              MR. THOMSON:  Thank you.
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 1              Mr. Cardona, are you still on the line?

 2              MR. CARDONA:  Yes.  Does everybody hear me?

 3              MR. THOMSON:  Yeah.  Thank you.  Would you

 4   state your name --

 5              HEARING OFFICER:  Two quick questions.

 6   First, I assume there's no objection to the witness

 7   telephonically.

 8              MR. MECHAM:  No, we agreed.

 9              HEARING OFFICER:  Then I need to swear you.

10   Mr. Cardona, is it?

11              MR. THOMSON:  Yes, sir.

12              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Cardona, do you swear

13   to tell the truth?

14              MR. CARDONA:  Yes, I do.

15              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Go ahead.

16              MR. THOMSON:  Thank you, Your Honor.

17                       CARLOS CARDONA,

18   called as a witness by and on behalf of Frontier

19   Communications, having been first duly sworn, was

20   examined and testified as follows:

21                      DIRECT EXAMINATION

22   BY MR. THOMSON:

23         Q.   Carlos, would you state your full name for

24   the record, please?

25         A.   Carlos J. Cardona.
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 1         Q.   And would you spell your last name, please?

 2         A.   C-A-R-D-O-N-A.

 3         Q.   Thank you.  Are you an employee of Frontier

 4   Communications?

 5         A.   Yes.

 6         Q.   How long have you been employed by Frontier?

 7         A.   Five-and-a-half years.

 8         Q.   Mr. Cardona, what is your job title?

 9         A.   I'm the principal senior wireless architect

10   for Frontier Communications.

11         Q.   And in the capacity as the principal senior

12   architect for wireless communications, can you give us a

13   general overview of your duties?

14         A.   Yeah.  We oversee, for companywide,

15   nationwide, all the technology that gets deployed.  We

16   oversee 450 microwave links that we have deployed and

17   over 700 tower sites that we have deployed nationwide.

18         Q.   So you're familiar with microwave radio

19   systems like Sorrel River's and the other customers in

20   Castle Valley?

21         A.   The path -- the path from the microwave

22   network that is taken from Moab to Bald Mesa -- Bald

23   Mesa, Castle Valley, yes.  I'm not familiar from Castle

24   Valley forward.  I don't have any familiarity whatsoever

25   of what is happening on the network.
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 1         Q.   Okay.  Fair enough.  Were you involved with

 2   the December 18th replacement of the radio on Bald Mesa?

 3         A.   Yes, I was.

 4         Q.   Can you describe for us what the purpose of

 5   that replacement was?

 6         A.   The current radio that was installed, it was

 7   what is called a TDM radio.  It's a radio only to deliver

 8   analog circuits, voice, and data.  Analog circuits are

 9   low speeds in -- for augmenting data for CAF, Connect

10   America Fund, purposes.

11              We required these radios, so we implemented

12   these radios over the network.  We have the same vendor

13   that we deploy.  We've already been utilizing them for

14   four years.  We have over 42 links nationwide with them,

15   and we did not register any issues in the last four years

16   with them.  We implemented the network in order to

17   augment the circuit, and that's why the radio was

18   replaced.

19         Q.   This was intended to be an upgrade?

20         A.   Yes.

21         Q.   And what was the name of the vendor whose

22   radio you used on December 18th?

23         A.   Cambium Networks.

24         Q.   Can you spell that for the record, please?

25         A.   C-A-M-B-I-U-M Networks.

0067

 1         Q.   Okay.

 2         A.   They are -- their headquarters are Rolling

 3   Meadows, Illinois.

 4         Q.   And once that radio came on line, what

 5   happened next?

 6         A.   The radio came on line, everything started,

 7   all the processes and the cutovers came on line until

 8   issues started affecting the performance on fading, and

 9   we started to engage into mitigating those problems.  And

10   it's --

11         Q.   And when you say -- I'm sorry.

12         A.   And it's -- yes.

13         Q.   When you say you started to engage the

14   vendor, what happened?

15         A.   The vendor never provided adequate support,

16   so we ended up stranded.  We were with a contractor that

17   we had on the site and only phone support.  They were not

18   sending us new equipment, they were not sending us their

19   engineers to the site.  So we were dealing back and forth

20   with that situation.

21              Every time we adjust -- make adjustment into

22   the network, make adjustment to the radios, they'd work

23   for three or four days and then they start causing issues

24   again and to a point that I made a decision to switch the

25   radio.  And Mother Nature prevented me to change the
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 1   radio earlier than I wanted to.

 2         Q.   When did the radio get replaced?

 3         A.   The radio got replaced in March.  I think

 4   it's the week of March 20th.  That's when with the

 5   weather -- you know, the weather was very, very

 6   impenetrable, that mountain.  You know, having a snowcat

 7   and not being able to bring it up is not safe for the

 8   tower climbers.  Bald Mesa mountain is very risky when

 9   there is a lot of ice on it.

10         Q.   And when you replaced the radio in March, did

11   you use another Cambium radio?

12         A.   No.  We eliminated them as a vendor for the

13   company.  We used an Aviat radio, A-V-I-A-T.  They are

14   out of Austin, Texas.

15         Q.   And what happened when you replaced the

16   radio?

17         A.   When we replaced the radio, we -- the

18   complete -- complete coordination with my technicians and

19   performance when testing, the timing calibrations, and

20   traffic got more stable and more adequate at that time,

21   removing the radio that was not holding the service

22   agreement or the quality agreement that it was assigning

23   to.

24         Q.   These are sometimes referred to as service

25   level agreements?
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 1         A.   Yes.  Yeah.  When we -- when we approve

 2   equipment internally in Frontier Communications, it goes

 3   through our lab process -- our lab testing process.  We

 4   put them through all these test processes.

 5              Now, apparently, these new radios that were

 6   sent out has a new voice queue.  And we approved that and

 7   we determined service level agreements on operation with

 8   the manufacturers.  Once those service level agreements

 9   are not met, we eliminate the vendor from the network.

10         Q.   And what is your opinion regarding

11   performance of the new radio versus the Cambium radio?

12         A.   Well, the log says it all.  You know, that

13   radio, since it was put on, it -- it had no hiccups.  We

14   are now in the process of replacing the second leg,

15   another Cambium radio that is mounted that might refer

16   some hits here and there, and we're trying to clean those

17   too.  So we are replacing with another Aviat radio.  The

18   project got approved last night, and looking to replace

19   that radio next week.

20         Q.   And this is on the second leg?

21         A.   The second leg that will be Bald Mesa to

22   Castle Valley.

23         Q.   Okay.  And what do you expect that second

24   radio replacement to do?

25         A.   Clean the errors, the hits.  And also when
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 1   the weather -- the situation on -- over the radio link is

 2   that we have one path that is Bald Mesa to Castle Valley

 3   that goes to a passive repeater.  A passive repeater is a

 4   billboard that does not have any electronics.  Basically,

 5   we're bouncing the signal to the mountain to the tower.

 6   Every time we get weather, fog, diffraction, refraction,

 7   which fades the radio signal, the QAM modulation of the

 8   radio decreases.  The QAM modulation is the capacity of

 9   the radio to maintain the bandwidth -- projected

10   bandwidth for certain receive level, then it effects

11   signal.

12              So the hits that Mike is seeing every time we

13   get wet fog, every time we get heavy rain or heavy fog,

14   this radio tends to fade and is not holding the QAM

15   modulation.  It does not drop the traffic completely

16   down, but it just holds it enough that it will -- the

17   test set that we have right now is connected 24/7

18   monitoring has registered those hits.

19              So I just made a decision to replace all the

20   radios and make this entire network completely flawless

21   at least from the RF side from end to end from Moab to

22   Castle Valley.

23         Q.   And RF is radio frequency?

24         A.   Yes, sir.

25         Q.   Mr. Cardona, how much experience do you have
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 1   with microwave systems?

 2         A.   I've been working on microwave radios since

 3   1994.

 4         Q.   And have you worked in other challenging

 5   locations?

 6         A.   Yes.  I spent seven years in the entire

 7   continent of Africa.  I spent years in South America,

 8   Central America, and the Caribbean dealing with a lot of

 9   receptive recovery and a lot of terrain situations as

10   well.

11              MR. THOMSON:  Your Honor, we don't have any

12   further questions at this time.

13              HEARING OFFICER:  We'll go to Mr. Mecham.

14              REPORTER:  Mr. Cardona, I need you to speak

15   up, please.

16              HEARING OFFICER:  That was the court

17   reporter asking you to speak more loudly, Mr. Cardon.

18              THE WITNESS:  Yes.

19              MR. MECHAM:  Thank you.

20                      CROSS-EXAMINATION

21   BY MR. MECHAM:

22         Q.   Mr. Cardona, so now that that radio has been

23   switched out, as of March, there are no further problems

24   in Castle Valley?

25         A.   Well, on Castle Valley, Mike testified that
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 1   there's been some hits here and there.  That's why I made

 2   the decision to replace that second leg already.

 3         Q.   So all of the customers, including Sorrel

 4   River Ranch, can expect the network to be up and running

 5   99 point something percent of the time?

 6         A.   Four nines.  My goal is on the radio

 7   network -- solely on the radio network, the goal is four

 8   nines reliability.

 9         Q.   Is what?  I'm sorry, I couldn't --

10         A.   Four nines, 99.99.

11         Q.   Were you aware of the problems before

12   December 18th that were going on that required the first

13   switchout?

14         A.   No, I was not.  I was involved on the Connect

15   America Fund project to run 18 radio projects to be

16   addressed, and this was one of them.

17         Q.   And there was nothing that could have been

18   done to prevent what did happen and what seems to

19   continue to be happening at Sorrel River Ranch?

20         A.   After the radio -- I wanted to replace this

21   radio in January and the weather was kicking heavy duty.

22   So the situation right now on the radio and the -- after

23   the new radio was replaced, the network is being very,

24   very stable.

25         Q.   But we act as though the radio was the cure,
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 1   and yet there were still outages well before

 2   December 18th of 2018.  Weren't there problems in the

 3   network before that?

 4         A.   Before December 18th --

 5         Q.   Correct.

 6         A.   -- I was not aware of huge outages at that

 7   time.

 8         Q.   Well, you are aware of the response that

 9   Frontier gave, which was marked as SRR-3, that show

10   outages, not all of which affected Castle Valley, but

11   certainly some did and well before December 18th of 2018.

12   In other words --

13         A.   I'm not -- my duty's as the architect, I'm

14   not directing both in operations.

15         Q.   So you only focus on the microwave radio?

16         A.   On the microwave part -- part of the house,

17   yes.  Nothing on the operations.

18         Q.   So the troubles before that weren't your

19   concern?

20         A.   I was not aware of -- we were aware of, we

21   were working to mitigation, but we were not aware of

22   anything regarding that.

23         Q.   Do you know if Frontier has taken any action

24   against the first vendor, Cambium Networks?

25         A.   We are in process.  I'm not allowed to speak
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 1   any further about it, but we are working internally.

 2              MR. MECHAM:  And that's it for now,

 3   Mr. Hammer.

 4              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Moore?

 5                      CROSS-EXAMINATION

 6   BY MR. MOORE:

 7         Q.   Just for the record, when will this second

 8   radio be up and running?  When will the system be fully

 9   operational after you set in the second radio link?

10         A.   Which one, the new one that I'm trying to

11   replace now or --

12         Q.   The one you're trying to replace.

13         A.   -- the second one that we were --

14         Q.   I'm sorry.  The one you're trying to replace

15   now.

16         A.   Okay.  Yeah.  First, I have to coordinate the

17   maintenance window with Mike Giles.  He's the officer

18   that will create the maintenance window.  The goal is to

19   do the cutover between Friday and Saturday.  That's the

20   goal.  But we're still working on some logistical

21   situation, but that's the goal, to do that next week.

22         Q.   So the -- the repairs on the second radio

23   will be done this time next week?

24         A.   We will be doing early morning hours, 1:00 or

25   2:00 a.m. in the morning, yes.
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 1              MR. MOORE:  Thank you.  I have no further

 2   questions.

 3              HEARING OFFICER:  Just a point of

 4   clarification from me, Mr. Cardona.

 5              With respect to this -- what we'll call the

 6   second radio that you're working to have installed next

 7   week, there is not presently a radio at that location,

 8   right.

 9              THE WITNESS:  Yes.  There is a Cambium radio

10   installed right now, which completes the circuit from

11   Bald Mesa to Castle Valley.  We are going to replace

12   that Cambium radio with another new Aviat radio.

13              HEARING OFFICER:  I'm sorry, I misunderstood

14   you.  So this will simply be an upgraded radio?

15              THE WITNESS:  Yes.  We're going to upgrade

16   the radio.  Upgrading this radio will also include more

17   reliability and a little bit more QAM modulation to add

18   a little bit more bandwidth to the network, adding more

19   stability.

20              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Thank you.

21              Mr. Thomson, any redirect?

22              MR. THOMSON:  No, sir.  Thank you.

23              HEARING OFFICER:  Do you have something?

24   All right.  Thank you, Mr. Cardona.

25              Your next witness, Mr. Thomson.
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 1              MR. THOMSON:  We'll call Mr. Erhart, Your

 2   Honor.

 3              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Erhart, do you swear

 4   to tell the truth?

 5              THE WITNESS:  I do.

 6                         CARL ERHART,

 7   called as a witness by and on behalf of Frontier

 8   Communications, having been first duly sworn, was

 9   examined and testified as follows:

10                      DIRECT EXAMINATION

11   BY MR. THOMSON:

12         Q.   Mr. Erhart, would you state your name for the

13   record, please?

14         A.   My name is Carl E. Erhart.

15         Q.   And are you employed by Frontier

16   Communications?

17         A.   Yes, I am.

18         Q.   In what capacity?

19         A.   I'm vice president for regulatory and

20   governmental affairs.

21         Q.   And what jurisdictions do you cover in that

22   capacity?

23         A.   I oversee several state jurisdictions

24   primarily in the western half of the country, but for

25   California.
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 1         Q.   Including Utah?

 2         A.   Including Utah.

 3         Q.   How long have you been with the company, sir?

 4         A.   Been employed with Frontier for just over

 5   three years.

 6         Q.   Are you familiar with the Connect America

 7   Fund for efforts that the company's conducting?

 8         A.   I would say generally.

 9         Q.   And can you give us a short overview of what

10   the Connect America Fund is designed to do?

11         A.   Sure.  The Connect America Fund, at a high

12   level, basically replaced the prior Universal Service

13   high-cost support for voice services in the state, and

14   the Connect America Fund is meant primarily to support

15   the deployment of broadband services in very high-cost

16   areas.

17              And so for companies like Frontier that are

18   price cap companies at the federal level, funding was

19   made available for companies to accept on a state basis

20   for deployment of broadband services that met certain

21   speed requirements in certain census blocks that the FCC

22   had identified as high cost.

23         Q.   Do you know if there's a company contribution

24   toward these projects?

25         A.   There could be.  I mean, the FCC model
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 1   determined a -- you know, based on their model, an

 2   estimate to deploy broadband services and, therefore,

 3   made funding available based on that.  And once the

 4   company accepts the money, they're committed to deploy

 5   service past the predetermined number of households and

 6   business locations within those census blocks.

 7         Q.   And, to your knowledge, were CAF funds used

 8   to replace the radio in December of 2018?

 9         A.   That's my understanding, that it was part of

10   the CAF deployment for the census blocks within the Moab

11   exchange.

12              MR. THOMSON:  Your Honor, I don't have any

13   further questions.

14              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Mecham?

15              MR. MECHAM:  Thank you.

16                      CROSS-EXAMINATION

17   BY MR. MECHAM:

18         Q.   Mr. Erhart, in what we've marked as SRR-2,

19   the general responses to Sorrel River Ranch's data

20   requests at 1.12 we asked why Frontier has not tried to

21   obtain funds from the state Universal Service Fund in

22   order to upgrade the network facilities serving Castle

23   Valley and Professor Valley and Sorrel River Ranch, and

24   the response was less than detailed.

25              You'll see there that it says, "Eligibility
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 1   for State High Cost Universal Fund Support is determined

 2   by the PSC, which is now based on an annual DPU analysis

 3   and recommendation."

 4              Does that mean that Frontier can't qualify

 5   under the criteria?

 6         A.   My understanding is the PSC determined that

 7   Frontier no longer qualified for Universal Service Funds

 8   support beginning sometime in 2007 and hasn't qualified

 9   since.

10         Q.   And do you know what was the

11   disqualification?

12         A.   I don't know.  I wasn't employed by Frontier

13   in 2007.  I assume it was an analysis done by the DPU.

14         Q.   But you've been employed for the last three

15   years and haven't qualified for any of those years?

16         A.   That's correct.

17         Q.   Okay.  I have an exhibit.  I guess we're up

18   to 4.  You'll see, Mr. Erhart, this is a memorandum from

19   the Division of Public Utilities to the Public Service

20   Commission.  It's in Docket 18-041-02, which apparently

21   is the analysis that the Division did to determine

22   whether or not Frontier qualified for USF funds then,

23   which, of course, was only six or seven months ago.

24              And if you look at the second page under

25   Discussion No. 3, it says, "Accumulated Depreciation -
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 1   Citizens reported," which is Frontier's parent company,

 2   as you know -- "Citizens reported more than $117.7 of

 3   accumulated depreciation.  Over 95 percent of the

 4   company's assets are fully depreciated.  There is very

 5   little rate base left as a basis for return on

 6   investment."

 7              Doesn't that indicate that Frontier is not

 8   investing in the State of Utah?

 9         A.   No, I wouldn't agree with that.

10         Q.   Why?

11         A.   Well, a couple of things.  One, I don't think

12   this is uncommon for ILECs in the industry to be in this

13   position, and I would say it's analogous to where the

14   water companies are.  And I think what's happened with

15   telecom, and Frontier, in particular, has been a

16   significant decline in a number of access lines that it

17   serves.  So we have a large rate base that has been on

18   the books for a number of years that's being depreciated

19   that was initially deployed to serve a much greater

20   number of customers.

21              And over the years, because of the line loss,

22   that vast network, if you will, serves fewer customers.

23   So if you just look at the investment, you might conclude

24   that it hasn't been significant relative to the total

25   rate base.  But relative to the number of customers that
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 1   remain on the network, I would say the company continues

 2   to invest in the network.

 3         Q.   With 5 percent -- 5 percent investment,

 4   essentially?

 5         A.   Again, the access lines have decreased

 6   significantly.  It's not uncommon since 2004 ILECs to

 7   have lost 70 to 80 percent of the access lines that they

 8   once served.

 9         Q.   Are you aware of how many other independent

10   rural companies don't get Universal Service Funds?

11         A.   In Utah?

12         Q.   Yes.

13         A.   No, I'm not.

14         Q.   Would you accept, subject to check, that it's

15   very few, it might be two?

16         A.   If that's a representation, I have no reason

17   to disagree.  Also, understand, CenturyLink wouldn't

18   qualify for it, either.

19         Q.   CenturyLink wouldn't.  They're the large

20   incumbent.  They've never gotten Universal Service Funds

21   from the state ever.  But the rural independents,

22   including Frontier, and Contel before, have, until 2007,

23   both, according to your response as well as the response

24   in the data request.

25         A.   Well, again, I think as the company responded
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 1   in the data request, the determination of whether

 2   citizens of Utah would qualify for Universal Service

 3   Funds could be done on a couple different bases.  For

 4   example, I think if you looked at the company's

 5   intrastate operations, the company's net operation -- net

 6   operating margin is negative.

 7              So many states look at the qualifications of

 8   Universal Service Funds on the basis of intrastate

 9   operations, and they look at it on the basis of a

10   net-operating-margin basis, not on a return-on-rate

11   basis.

12              So if you looked at it on that basis, then

13   Frontier's operating company could qualify for Universal

14   Service funding and it could be significant, as it was --

15   as I understand, back in the mid 2000s, the company

16   received roughly $1.5 million a year.

17         Q.   Well, it just seems to me that it looks like

18   neglect of the state if 95 --

19         A.   I've never heard of --

20              MR. THOMSON:  Your Honor, I'm going to

21   object to that.  I don't object to leading questions,

22   but I don't want argument inserted into the question.

23   If Mr. Mecham has a question, he should ask it.

24              HEARING OFFICER:  I'll sustain the

25   objection.  I hadn't heard a question yet, but you were
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 1   interrupted.  So if you'd like to rephrase and offer a

 2   question, you're welcome to.

 3         Q.   (BY MR. MECHAM)  Do you know how the formula

 4   works for the state USF?

 5         A.   At a high level.

 6         Q.   So you know that in order to qualify, you

 7   have to have undepreciated rate base, you have to have

 8   costs that exceed your authorized rate of return to make

 9   up that difference, or do you not know that?

10         A.   I would say in addition to that, the state

11   also looks at the non-intrastate jurisdiction.

12         Q.   That is correct.  I agree with that.  That's

13   part of the statute to ensure that you don't get unjustly

14   enriched by the interstate side.  Is that your

15   understanding?

16         A.   I assume that's the logic behind it.

17         Q.   Okay.

18         A.   But, again, if you were to determine the

19   company's cost of service, I'll say for rate case

20   purposes, it would be on the basis of intrastate results,

21   which, again, based on the company's most recent annual

22   report, its net operating margin on an intrastate basis

23   is negative.

24              And earlier you seemed to imply that the

25   company could qualify for Universal Service Funds support
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 1   on some type of project basis.  But, again, my

 2   understanding of current rules and the statute is that

 3   that is limited to a non-rate of return regulated

 4   company, which in Utah would only be CenturyLink.

 5         Q.   Right.  CenturyLink has never qualified for

 6   funds.

 7         A.   Right, but could, on a project basis.

 8         Q.   A one-time basis.  That may have happened a

 9   time or two, I can't remember.

10         A.   Right.

11              MR. MECHAM:  Okay.  I think that's it for

12   me, Mr. Hammer.

13              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Moore?

14              MR. MOORE:  Just one quick question.

15                      CROSS-EXAMINATION

16   BY MR. MOORE:

17         Q.   As -- you work with regulatory affairs for

18   the state -- state regulatory affairs?

19         A.   I do, across a number of states.

20         Q.   Do you know if there's a description of

21   Frontier's inspection and maintenance and testing program

22   filed with the Public Service Commission?

23         A.   I am not aware.

24              MR. MOORE:  That's it.

25         Q.   (BY MR. MOORE)  You're not aware of -- I'm
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 1   sorry.  Would you know if one was filed?

 2         A.   I would not necessarily know.  Frontier has a

 3   centralized, I'll say, compliance team that would prepare

 4   a report like that, assuming there's one that's required

 5   to be prepared.  So I'm not aware of whether there is a

 6   report required to be filed or not.

 7              MR. MOORE:  Thank you.  I have no further

 8   questions.

 9              MR. MECHAM:  Mr. Hammer, I neglected to move

10   for admission of SRR-4.

11              MR. THOMSON:  We don't object, Your Honor.

12              HEARING OFFICER:  It's admitted.

13              I don't have any questions for Mr. Erhart.

14              Did you intend to call any other witnesses,

15   Mr. Thomson?

16              MR. THOMSON:  No, Your Honor.  We're going

17   to rest.

18              HEARING OFFICER:  And, Mr. Moore, you had no

19   witnesses?

20              MR. MOORE:  No witnesses.

21              HEARING OFFICER:  If the parties don't mind,

22   I have just a couple of questions I'd like to go back

23   and ask a couple of witnesses for clarification,

24   beginning with Mr. Giles.  I think you're the most

25   appropriate party for this question.
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 1              The discussion we just heard about the

 2   company's eligibility for Utah USF seems to imply that,

 3   perhaps, if additional capital were made available for

 4   Utah, that the service in this area could be improved.

 5              Are there particular improvements that

 6   you're aware of that could be made if the company were

 7   willing to spend the money that would increase the

 8   reliability of this service to the Ranch?

 9              MR. GILES:  No, I'm not aware of any.  I

10   mean, the second leg that Carlos talked about will

11   certainly help this clarification that the radio that

12   was replaced initially was Moab to Bald Mesa, and then

13   the Bald Mesa to Castle Valley was not replaced in

14   March.  That wasn't, at that time, indicated that was

15   the issue.  Now we're going to replace that second leg

16   that I talked about.  The assumption at this point in

17   time is that will provide the reliable service to that

18   area.

19              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Mecham -- and I'll

20   allow you to answer this question in the form of simple

21   argument from counsel, if you like, or you're welcome to

22   offer a witness's testimony.  But the way I read that

23   line of questioning was that there's potentially a

24   concern that there's money that could be spent to fix

25   things or make them better and it's not being spent.
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 1              Do you have any idea on -- what that money

 2   might be spent on to do so?

 3              MR. MECHAM:  We're aware that there is at

 4   least -- well, let's put it this way:  I've heard from

 5   one other company who would like to serve the territory

 6   and do what's necessary in order to serve that area.  I

 7   also am aware of another company who is making the

 8   investment to serve the area, and they're using

 9   different technology than this.

10              I think that there is better technology to

11   implement and, in fact, there's precedent to require new

12   and different technology by the Supreme Court in a

13   Public Service Commission case in 1994, what's called a

14   modernization case, to force the upgrade of the network

15   to provide the kind of services -- it doesn't matter

16   that they're remote, there are remote areas all over the

17   state being served so much better than what Frontier is

18   doing to the point that it's laughable to say that what

19   they're doing has done the job or will do the job.

20              And, in fact, I would argue that -- two

21   things.  One, the instance that there is a competitor or

22   competitive option, everybody, including and especially

23   Sorrel River Ranch, should be relieved from any contract

24   they've signed if they can get better service than what

25   we're getting now at comparable or better rates.
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 1              And, two, if this can't be resolved in the

 2   next week or two -- as you've heard from Mr. Ciani,

 3   they're already down $214,000 in their business year to

 4   date.  So I, frankly, would move that there be an order

 5   to show cause why Frontier should not have their

 6   certificate revoked in that area.  That's the kind of

 7   service that they're getting and that's how serious we

 8   are.

 9              So I've -- Mr. Hammer, I've not held myself

10   out as a technology specialist, but I know inadequate

11   and terrible service when I see it.  And I know that

12   there are other areas of the state served by other

13   companies with new and different technologies, fiber,

14   for instance, that can serve this area much better than

15   what's going on right now.

16              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  We'll table

17   discussion of your motion and discuss potential remedies

18   when we're through with testimony.  Thank you for

19   answering my question.

20              I will -- since you offered some significant

21   argument on that point, I'll allow Mr. Thomson an

22   opportunity to speak to it, if you'd like to at this

23   time.  You'll also have an opportunity to offer any

24   closing argument you like.

25              MR. THOMSON:  Well, aside from the
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 1   jurisdictional issues that Mr. Mecham's argument raises,

 2   you know, there's been no evidence placed in the record

 3   that there is better technology that's available at a

 4   reasonable price to serve the ranch.

 5              Now, his presumption that fiber to the ranch

 6   might be a good idea, that might be true, but at what

 7   expense?  The company is already not earning, as a

 8   matter of fact is negative, as shown by the testimony of

 9   Mr. Erhart.  So the available capital to deploy

10   something like this -- certainly, we could build a

11   better mousetrap if we had an unlimited amount of money.

12   But as we've already seen today, there's no state USF

13   money available to the company to improve this network.

14              The company's taken advantage of the federal

15   funds available to improve this network, and it

16   continues, based on the testimony of Mr. Cardona, to

17   improve the network.  The insinuation that this is

18   horrible, terrible service may be a fair comment with

19   regard to the period between December 18th and

20   March 21st, when the defective radio was installed and

21   then had to be replaced.  Post that, even with the

22   software -- which we don't really have a foundation for

23   understanding, the software report submitted by

24   Mr. Ciani, there is nothing after one incident reported

25   in April.
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 1              And we don't know what this "Minutes

 2   Downtime" means.  I mean, as we understand it, this

 3   software really looks at the ISP's performance, not a

 4   network performance.  Those are apples and oranges, so

 5   I'm not sure that that tells us much with regard to the

 6   service quality that Mr. Mecham maintains is not

 7   adequate.

 8              HEARING OFFICER:  I think you've answered my

 9   question.  I definitely will give both parties an

10   opportunity to present any closing argument they want.

11   I want to get back to just the factual issues that I

12   want to address.

13              MR. THOMSON:  Certainly, Your Honor.

14              HEARING OFFICER:  But thank you.

15              Mr. Ciani, Mr. Thomson actually anticipated

16   a question I was going to ask you with respect to

17   Exhibit SRR-1, the report from Binary Canary, if I

18   recall the name of that correctly.  The last reported

19   incident of the software reflects a date of April 15th.

20              Have there been incidents since April 15th?

21              MR. CIANI:  You know, that I'm aware, I know

22   that there was at least two, potentially three,

23   instances, after the microwave was -- or the radio was

24   installed and there was at least one occurrence -- and I

25   sent an email to, I believe, everybody that was in the
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 1   chain on these communications leading up to this

 2   hearing, letting everybody know that we were down again.

 3              And I believe at least two times Mitch, who

 4   may still be on the phone, came to visit the property.

 5   And by the time he had shown up to the property, the

 6   issue had been remedied.  I cannot confirm exactly what

 7   day this report was pulled, so -- and I'm not always

 8   physically on the ranch, but what I can tell you is that

 9   we've had at least several.  And I think that Frontier

10   has confirmed their radio hits after they fixed the

11   issue that continues to happen.

12              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  And I'm going

13   to jump around just a bit.

14              Mr. Cardona, if you're still on the line,

15   feel free to answer this.  Mr. Thomson, if you have

16   another witness that you think is prepared to answer it,

17   that's fine.  I'd just simply like to know --

18   Mr. Cardona referenced the second repair of the radio

19   was made the week of March 20th.  Do we know the date?

20              MR. THOMSON:  March 21st, Your Honor.

21              MR. GILES:  21st.

22              HEARING OFFICER:  The complainant's Exhibit

23   SRR-1 shows two relatively significant outages on

24   March 21st and 22nd.  Were there problems in the

25   immediate aftermath of the installation that were being
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 1   worked out, to your knowledge?

 2              MR. GILES:  There was a significant outage

 3   the day of changing that radio out, yes.  And I don't

 4   know -- there again, I am not familiar with this report

 5   at all.  I don't even know what binary report it is.

 6   There were -- it might have spilled into the 22nd.  Time

 7   frame-wise, Carlos may be able to answer, but it was a

 8   significant outage that day, yes.

 9              MR. MECHAM:  Mr. Ciani can shed some light.

10              HEARING OFFICER:  He's welcome to.

11              MR. CIANI:  Yeah.  After the radio was

12   changed, we had significant challenges the first couple

13   of days immediately following the change.

14              As it was explained to me by Frontier, there

15   is a process of -- and Mr. Giles can probably testify to

16   this much better than I can, but there is a process of

17   balancing out the frequencies.  And that is something

18   that was explained to me previous to all this kind of

19   catastrophic challenge that we had, was that, you know,

20   when there's weather, wind, rain, there's all sorts of

21   manual requirements from Frontier's side to keep the

22   service not just functioning, but functioning to a level

23   that we can actually communicate with our guests and

24   other people across the line.

25              Which lends itself to the repeated issues
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 1   we've had over the years of not complete service

 2   interruptions, but challenges with static and other

 3   types of hearing impairments on the line.  And we had

 4   those issues immediately following the microwave -- we

 5   had at least two outages after the microwave was

 6   installed.  And we still, from time to time, have issues

 7   with the quality of the reception.

 8              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  And,

 9   Mr. Ciani, sticking with you just for a moment, during

10   your testimony earlier you alluded to some billing

11   credits that your employer had received from Frontier.

12              Can you provide additional detail as to when

13   and the amounts?

14              MR. CIANI:  Yes, I can.  I mean, I have all

15   the detail here.

16              MR. MECHAM:  Do you mean posthearing or

17   right now?

18              HEARING OFFICER:  If he has them now, that

19   would be convenient, but...

20              MR. CIANI:  Yeah.  So I printed out a

21   variety of the bills and have brought them, you know, to

22   prepare for this hearing.

23              HEARING OFFICER:  If you're not prepared to

24   summarize, then that's fine.  I can --

25              MR. CIANI:  What I can tell you -- this is
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 1   what I can tell you, is that they told us that -- all of

 2   the period that we were down, that our service would be

 3   credited.  I asked repeatedly for them to confirm

 4   exactly how much that was and how we were going to see

 5   that, and I never got any response.

 6              And many of these communications where

 7   everybody was included -- you know, we were copying all

 8   of this chain of emails that had gone back and forth, I

 9   am starting to see credits on the accounts.  It's

10   incredibly frustrating for me, because I can't easily

11   reconcile what the credits are for.  And they're coming

12   on future bills, so we're getting new bills.

13              So, in one case, I have a date of a bill

14   here and it says, "New charges due date 5/10."  The

15   billing date is 4/22 and I have a previous balance of

16   $1,346.  I have other charges and credits of $348.60,

17   and it shows I owe $2,400.

18              However, clearly, Frontier owes us, you

19   know, several thousand dollars back from this winter,

20   and I have yet to be able to understand how they're

21   applying the credits and how much these credits are all

22   eventually going to total and when we will get to a

23   point where all the credits have been applied.  And

24   considering that we've already overpaid then paid, I do

25   think it would be more appropriate that we immediately
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 1   receive whatever refunds back versus wait for future

 2   credits to be applied toward future bills.

 3              HEARING OFFICER:  Understood.  Mr. Thomson,

 4   do you have a witness or would yourself like to speak to

 5   the history of the billing credits that have thus far

 6   been issued?

 7              MR. THOMSON:  Yes, Your Honor.  As we

 8   indicated in our -- I believe it was our status report

 9   to you and the Commission, it may take as many as two to

10   three billing cycles for these credits to post.

11              The Ranch buys a number of different

12   products.  There are billing systems that deal with each

13   specific product, and the credits sometimes may take a

14   series of months, as I indicated in that answer, to

15   post.  So I would expect that they will post next month

16   and the month after as well.

17              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  I think my

18   factual questions have largely been addressed, to the

19   extent they could be, I think, today.  It would be nice

20   to offer counsel an opportunity to offer a closing

21   argument, and Mr. Mecham even suggested making a motion,

22   so we'll turn to you, Mr. Mecham.

23              MR. MECHAM:  Thank you.

24              Service to Sorrel River Ranch has been not

25   just inadequate, but terrible.  And it isn't just the
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 1   period from December 18th to March 21st.  There have

 2   been outages well before that and after that.  It has

 3   caused serious harm to Sorrel River Ranch, business

 4   harm.  It has made it difficult for their reputation and

 5   to appeal to their clientele.

 6              We hear promises of what's going to happen

 7   to make it better.  We hear that it's been stabilized.

 8   Maybe it's slightly better today, I don't know, than it

 9   was during that period.  This is not the first time.  As

10   I went back and researched other complaints, you had a

11   complaint in Docket 15-04-102 in the same area, Hole in

12   the Rock.  There were promises of improved service

13   there, which didn't occur, and the Commission required

14   certain things to happen to ensure that that customer

15   received improved service.

16              We've got to have better service, and we've

17   got to have it now.  And if that cannot be done, as I

18   said in my statement before, there are providers ready,

19   willing, and able to step in.

20              And my -- two motions.  One would be that if

21   any alternative ever comes to that area and can provide

22   service at a better quality at the same or better rates,

23   that Sorrel River Ranch be relieved of their contract

24   that began in February of this year and extends for

25   24 months.

0097

 1              And two, if we don't see this 99.9 percent

 2   performance within days, that Frontier show cause why

 3   their certificate, at least in that area, not be

 4   revoked, so that we can get a provider there that will

 5   provide the kind of service that is required by the

 6   statute of any public utility.

 7              And as I alluded to, there is a Supreme

 8   Court case that enables the Commission and gives them

 9   vast, broad authority.  It's found at 882 P.2d 141,

10   1994, U.S. West Communications vs. Public Service

11   Commission.  It's known as the modernization case.

12              U.S. West's network was providing far more

13   adequate service than what we're seeing from Frontier,

14   and the Commission felt as though the technology was

15   behind -- leaving Utah behind and ordered

16   them -- ordered U.S. West to improve and put in new

17   technologies to ensure that their Utah customers, now

18   CenturyLink's customers, had access to the most modern

19   services available, and the Supreme Court upheld the

20   Public Service Commission.

21              I would say exercise that authority in this

22   case to ensure that the people of Castle Valley,

23   Professor Valley, and Moab and that entire area get the

24   services they deserve.  It is no more remote than so

25   many other remote areas of this state receiving much
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 1   higher quality service from companies who invest in the

 2   state, who qualify for Utah State Universal Service

 3   Funds, not just CAF, and they spend some of their own

 4   capital in order to ensure that the networks are modern

 5   and technologically able.

 6              What we're getting at, Sorrel River Ranch is

 7   not adequate.  It is so far below that, including

 8   today -- including today.  And that's the reason that

 9   this complaint is before the Commission today, and

10   that's why we're here.  Thank you.

11              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Thomson?

12              MR. THOMSON:  Thank you, Your Honor.

13              A couple points.  I'm not sure the

14   Commission wants to get involved with dictating

15   decisions about technology, generally or specifically.

16   I think that even by the testimony heard today, the

17   replacement of the radio in March significantly improved

18   the service to the Ranch.  Is the service perfect?  No.

19   Is service perfect anywhere?  No.  The service, we

20   contend, is adequate.  Is it as good as we want?  No.

21   And that's why the company, although we've spent a

22   hundred thousand dollars to replace the radio, intends

23   to spend more money to replace the second radio, in

24   response to the customer's complaint.

25              I would point out that this is a -- I'll
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 1   call it a nonstandard process that we're involved in

 2   today.  Despite the fact that Frontier could have

 3   insisted on a much more extended process in this

 4   particular docket, i.e., the filing and prefiled

 5   testimony; the exchange of discovery between the

 6   parties, perhaps more than one round from us to Sorrel

 7   River Ranch, is evidence that the Company is trying to

 8   work with the customer to improve their service.

 9              The Company did not deny its service was

10   poor during the period December 18th through March 21st

11   of this year.  That's been admitted, repeatedly.

12              We talked about the challenges that we faced

13   on replacing the radio at Bald Mesa.  We would have done

14   it earlier, but weather was a problem.  I won't rehearse

15   that -- or restate that, but I'll just point to that as

16   an issue that ought to be considered by the Commission

17   in this particular docket.

18              The Company may be willing to look at issues

19   around whether or not a term that the Ranch is signed up

20   for could be terminated early without a fee.  However,

21   pulling a certificate of public convenience and

22   necessity is -- of necessity is a last resort.  Whether

23   or not -- I hadn't thought about this earlier, but

24   whether or not you could pull a certificate for a

25   geographic location that serves less than 300 customers
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 1   would probably be absolutely a case of first impression

 2   at this Commission.

 3              Whether or not there is a competitor

 4   available to serve that area is not known to Frontier.

 5   I'm not sure from the testimony that happened today

 6   whether this is something that the Ranch could take

 7   advantage of today or that they're going to have to wait

 8   some period of time for one or two of these unnamed

 9   competitors to extend their networks into the valley.

10              I don't know what source of funding those

11   competitors are using to do this purported extension.  I

12   can't comment on that.  But I can say that I don't think

13   the Commission ought to get in the business of dictating

14   the technology used by the company to serve the

15   customers, assuming the service can be made adequate.

16              We feel the service will be adequate,

17   particularly, and it's adequate now and will improve at

18   the end of next week or whenever they can get the

19   radio -- second radio exchanged to get rid of the vendor

20   that didn't perform and replace it with our current

21   vendor, who we feel provides much better service.

22              I'll stop there.

23              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Mr. Moore?

24              MR. MOORE:  We have no comment.  Thank you.

25              HEARING OFFICER:  Is there anything else
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 1   before we adjourn?

 2              MR. MECHAM:  No, Your Honor.  Thank you.

 3              MR. THOMSON:  Not from us, sir.

 4              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you everyone for

 5   your participation.

 6              MR. THOMSON:  Thank you, Judge.

 7              MR. CIANI:  Thank you.

 8              (The hearing was concluded at 12:38 p.m.)
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 4

 5        This is to certify that the foregoing proceedings
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		275						LN		10		20		false		       20   the business has been significant.  And I do have some				false

		276						LN		10		21		false		       21   detailed data to share, both from our current year pace				false

		277						LN		10		22		false		       22   report from reservations on the books, as well as a lot				false

		278						LN		10		23		false		       23   of anecdotal information that I'd be happy to share about				false

		279						LN		10		24		false		       24   the experiences and comments we've received from both our				false

		280						LN		10		25		false		       25   staff and our residents of the property who reside on				false

		281						PG		11		0		false		page 11				false

		282						LN		11		1		false		        1   property to operate the ranch, as well as our valued				false

		283						LN		11		2		false		        2   guests.				false

		284						LN		11		3		false		        3         Q.   Go ahead and just describe what's happening,				false

		285						LN		11		4		false		        4   the lost calls, the outages, all of that.				false

		286						LN		11		5		false		        5         A.   Yeah.  Well, I started with the ranch in				false

		287						LN		11		6		false		        6   April of 2017, and when I first got involved, I was				false

		288						LN		11		7		false		        7   appalled by the lack of quality and reliability in both				false

		289						LN		11		8		false		        8   the phone and internet service at the property.				false

		290						LN		11		9		false		        9              We are a luxury guest ranch.  We have an				false

		291						LN		11		10		false		       10   average daily rate of over $700 per night, and the				false

		292						LN		11		11		false		       11   expectations for service and reliability of technology				false

		293						LN		11		12		false		       12   and operations is crucial and critical to the success.				false

		294						LN		11		13		false		       13   Our reputation is critical.  On-line reviews, and our				false

		295						LN		11		14		false		       14   relationship with high-end agencies, travel agents, and				false

		296						LN		11		15		false		       15   wholesalers is also critical for the success of the				false

		297						LN		11		16		false		       16   business.				false

		298						LN		11		17		false		       17              Upon initially investigating what was going				false

		299						LN		11		18		false		       18   on with the service, I became aware of our infrastructure				false

		300						LN		11		19		false		       19   that brought the phone service to the property.  And I				false

		301						LN		11		20		false		       20   also became aware that we simply had no other				false

		302						LN		11		21		false		       21   alternatives.  We did not have another service provider				false

		303						LN		11		22		false		       22   available to us.  And for the time between April 2017 and				false

		304						LN		11		23		false		       23   November of 2018, I, like the majority of our staff and				false

		305						LN		11		24		false		       24   our guests and other residents and business owners in the				false

		306						LN		11		25		false		       25   area, accepted what I would describe as an inadequate				false

		307						PG		12		0		false		page 12				false

		308						LN		12		1		false		        1   level of service.				false

		309						LN		12		2		false		        2              It was commonplace that we would have calls				false

		310						LN		12		3		false		        3   dropped or have poor reception.  I'd liken it to what you				false

		311						LN		12		4		false		        4   would expect to get if you were on a cell phone in a very				false

		312						LN		12		5		false		        5   remote area.  It wouldn't be uncommon to drop calls or to				false

		313						LN		12		6		false		        6   not be able to make a call going out.  Oftentimes, you				false

		314						LN		12		7		false		        7   might be talking to someone and it sounds like you're in				false

		315						LN		12		8		false		        8   a wind tunnel, that they're far away or there's just				false

		316						LN		12		9		false		        9   undue static.				false

		317						LN		12		10		false		       10              But, generally speaking, we accepted this				false

		318						LN		12		11		false		       11   level of service as being our only alternative.  And for				false

		319						LN		12		12		false		       12   well over the year that I was with the property, that was				false

		320						LN		12		13		false		       13   just our status quo, our normal as we operated.				false

		321						LN		12		14		false		       14              In -- beginning around November of 2018 is				false

		322						LN		12		15		false		       15   when we had what I would describe for the business as a				false

		323						LN		12		16		false		       16   catastrophic event.  We began to consistently lose the				false

		324						LN		12		17		false		       17   ability to use our phone service.  We would drop calls				false

		325						LN		12		18		false		       18   routinely, and we would go, many times, several hours				false

		326						LN		12		19		false		       19   without any phone service whatsoever.				false

		327						LN		12		20		false		       20              Oftentimes, I was not able to get in touch				false

		328						LN		12		21		false		       21   with the property.  I couldn't get ahold of the general				false

		329						LN		12		22		false		       22   manager.  We would -- were losing guest reservations and				false

		330						LN		12		23		false		       23   creating negative experiences before our potential guests				false

		331						LN		12		24		false		       24   had even booked.				false

		332						LN		12		25		false		       25              In February, we started logging dropped calls				false

		333						PG		13		0		false		page 13				false

		334						LN		13		1		false		        1   because it was becoming such a problem.  And I have a				false

		335						LN		13		2		false		        2   dropped call log that I printed out with me, and this is				false

		336						LN		13		3		false		        3   a Google sheet that we used internally to log calls.				false

		337						LN		13		4		false		        4   These are, by no means, all of the dropped calls, but				false

		338						LN		13		5		false		        5   every one that was manually logged.  Starting on the 8th				false

		339						LN		13		6		false		        6   of February, I have 141 dropped calls between then and				false

		340						LN		13		7		false		        7   the end of March, to give you an idea of the magnitude.				false

		341						LN		13		8		false		        8   And that's only during the time when we actually did have				false

		342						LN		13		9		false		        9   phone service.				false

		343						LN		13		10		false		       10              The level of impact it had on our business --				false

		344						LN		13		11		false		       11   right now I'm looking at our pace report for the year,				false

		345						LN		13		12		false		       12   and we're $214,000 down from the same time last year in				false

		346						LN		13		13		false		       13   individual transient reservations.  Over the last several				false

		347						LN		13		14		false		       14   years, we've been seeing between a 5 and 20 percent				false

		348						LN		13		15		false		       15   annual increase in those statistics.				false

		349						LN		13		16		false		       16              Beyond the lost revenue, the magnitude of				false

		350						LN		13		17		false		       17   guest experiences has hurt us tremendously.  We've had				false

		351						LN		13		18		false		       18   many guests leave upset.  Again, at our level of service				false

		352						LN		13		19		false		       19   for our business, it's just simply unacceptable to not				false

		353						LN		13		20		false		       20   have phones work.  If you're a guest and you're staying				false

		354						LN		13		21		false		       21   in a guest room and you can't call to the front desk, if				false

		355						LN		13		22		false		       22   you have an emergency and you can't get out, if you can't				false

		356						LN		13		23		false		       23   call your loved ones, there is no exception, there is no				false

		357						LN		13		24		false		       24   excuse, and there is no response that we can provide.				false

		358						LN		13		25		false		       25              That impact further resonates into our staff				false

		359						PG		14		0		false		page 14				false

		360						LN		14		1		false		        1   and the people who live on our property.  We have, in				false

		361						LN		14		2		false		        2   season, over 70 people who live on the ranch, and these				false

		362						LN		14		3		false		        3   are full-time employees who operate the property.  And				false

		363						LN		14		4		false		        4   they also suffer from the lack of service, can't call				false

		364						LN		14		5		false		        5   their friends and family and have to put up with an				false

		365						LN		14		6		false		        6   incredibly frustrating work environment that hurts the				false

		366						LN		14		7		false		        7   staff morale and, certainly, you know, leads to a				false

		367						LN		14		8		false		        8   negative work environment for the staff.				false

		368						LN		14		9		false		        9         Q.   Mr. Ciani, does your internal network monitor				false

		369						LN		14		10		false		       10   the downtime?				false

		370						LN		14		11		false		       11         A.   Yes, it does.  We have a service called				false

		371						LN		14		12		false		       12   Binary Canary, and it's a monitoring service that is				false

		372						LN		14		13		false		       13   constantly pinging the signal that Frontier is bringing				false

		373						LN		14		14		false		       14   into the property.  And we have a report here that we				false

		374						LN		14		15		false		       15   printed out since 2017.  It monitors all of the				false

		375						LN		14		16		false		       16   interruptions in service.  You've -- I think that the				false

		376						LN		14		17		false		       17   Public Service Commission has been provided with a list				false

		377						LN		14		18		false		       18   of outages from Frontier that were over 30 minutes.				false

		378						LN		14		19		false		       19              MR. MECHAM:  Actually, you haven't yet, but				false

		379						LN		14		20		false		       20   that will become an item we'll discuss.  In discovery,				false

		380						LN		14		21		false		       21   Frontier provided us a number of outages that occurred				false

		381						LN		14		22		false		       22   within the last two years.  And during a light period,				false

		382						LN		14		23		false		       23   we have a document to introduce now that is an internal				false

		383						LN		14		24		false		       24   measurement of the downtime that their own network				false

		384						LN		14		25		false		       25   monitored.				false

		385						PG		15		0		false		page 15				false

		386						LN		15		1		false		        1              MR. MECHAM:  And I'm not sure how we're				false

		387						LN		15		2		false		        2   going to mark these, Mr. Hammer.  How would you --				false

		388						LN		15		3		false		        3   SRR-1, is that good?				false

		389						LN		15		4		false		        4              HEARING OFFICER:  That's fine.				false

		390						LN		15		5		false		        5              MR. MECHAM:  Okay.				false

		391						LN		15		6		false		        6              HEARING OFFICER:  Do you have copies for				false

		392						LN		15		7		false		        7   everyone?				false

		393						LN		15		8		false		        8              MR. MECHAM:  I do.  Yes, I do.				false

		394						LN		15		9		false		        9              (Exhibit No. SRR-1 was				false

		395						LN		15		10		false		       10                marked for identification.)				false

		396						LN		15		11		false		       11         Q.   (BY MR. MECHAM)  Perhaps you could repeat				false

		397						LN		15		12		false		       12   again exactly what this is showing.				false

		398						LN		15		13		false		       13         A.   Yes.  So this service is monitoring the				false

		399						LN		15		14		false		       14   signal coming in from Frontier, and it is calculating the				false

		400						LN		15		15		false		       15   minutes of downtime every time there's been a service				false

		401						LN		15		16		false		       16   interruption.  And so you can see the date and the				false

		402						LN		15		17		false		       17   minutes of downtime and every incidence of service				false

		403						LN		15		18		false		       18   interruption.				false

		404						LN		15		19		false		       19              So my point being is that in addition to the				false

		405						LN		15		20		false		       20   outages as defined as, you know, 30 minutes or more by				false

		406						LN		15		21		false		       21   Frontier, we've had many, many short-term outages in				false

		407						LN		15		22		false		       22   addition to the numerous dropped calls, which, again, had				false

		408						LN		15		23		false		       23   been commonplace at the property for many years, as well				false

		409						LN		15		24		false		       24   as reception challenges, including static, wind-tunnel				false

		410						LN		15		25		false		       25   effects, and other types of impairments that would				false

		411						PG		16		0		false		page 16				false

		412						LN		16		1		false		        1   prohibit communication.				false

		413						LN		16		2		false		        2         Q.   And so one of the reasons this is significant				false

		414						LN		16		3		false		        3   is because it's within the same time period as the				false

		415						LN		16		4		false		        4   document that -- of outages that Frontier gave us, but it				false

		416						LN		16		5		false		        5   isn't exactly the same because it's showing both				false

		417						LN		16		6		false		        6   internal -- what's happening to you internally as well as				false

		418						LN		16		7		false		        7   what's -- and they show what's happening externally; is				false

		419						LN		16		8		false		        8   that correct?				false

		420						LN		16		9		false		        9         A.   Correct.				false

		421						LN		16		10		false		       10         Q.   Okay.				false

		422						LN		16		11		false		       11              MR. MECHAM:  And you'll note that it does				false

		423						LN		16		12		false		       12   show how many minutes and gives the date that the system				false

		424						LN		16		13		false		       13   was down based on the Binary Canary product that they				false

		425						LN		16		14		false		       14   use to monitor.				false

		426						LN		16		15		false		       15              You know, for simplicity's sake, we did one				false

		427						LN		16		16		false		       16   short round of discovery, and whether it's in direct or				false

		428						LN		16		17		false		       17   on cross, I'm going to be referring to that a lot.  I'm				false

		429						LN		16		18		false		       18   wondering if, perhaps, I could enter that as Exhibit 2				false

		430						LN		16		19		false		       19   -- SRR-2.				false

		431						LN		16		20		false		       20              HEARING OFFICER:  I don't have any				false

		432						LN		16		21		false		       21   objection.				false

		433						LN		16		22		false		       22              MR. MECHAM:  Okay.				false

		434						LN		16		23		false		       23              HEARING OFFICER:  I hear none from the other				false

		435						LN		16		24		false		       24   parties.				false

		436						LN		16		25		false		       25              MR. THOMSON:  Well, Your Honor, this is the				false

		437						PG		17		0		false		page 17				false

		438						LN		17		1		false		        1   first time we've seen this document.				false

		439						LN		17		2		false		        2              HEARING OFFICER:  Why don't you give				false

		440						LN		17		3		false		        3   Mr. Thomson an opportunity to take a look at it before				false

		441						LN		17		4		false		        4   you --				false

		442						LN		17		5		false		        5              MR. THOMSON:  I mean, I'm not sure.				false

		443						LN		17		6		false		        6              MR. MECHAM:  Actually, it's not the first				false

		444						LN		17		7		false		        7   time.  They're the ones that provided it to us.  This is				false

		445						LN		17		8		false		        8   their response to us with all of the general objections.				false

		446						LN		17		9		false		        9   It's their document, not mine.				false

		447						LN		17		10		false		       10              MR. THOMSON:  I'm sorry, Your Honor.  I				false

		448						LN		17		11		false		       11   thought they were referring to the Binary Canary report				false

		449						LN		17		12		false		       12   that they placed in front of us for the first time				false

		450						LN		17		13		false		       13   today.				false

		451						LN		17		14		false		       14              MR. MECHAM:  Well, you're right.				false

		452						LN		17		15		false		       15              HEARING OFFICER:  Well, go ahead and				false

		453						LN		17		16		false		       16   distribute the next document and we'll discuss them				false

		454						LN		17		17		false		       17   both.				false

		455						LN		17		18		false		       18              MR. MECHAM:  May I just say, yeah, it's				false

		456						LN		17		19		false		       19   true, we just -- they did no discovery.  We're on a				false

		457						LN		17		20		false		       20   short, expedited time frame of the difficulty that their				false

		458						LN		17		21		false		       21   service is causing the Sorrel River Ranch, so there's				false

		459						LN		17		22		false		       22   likely going to be quite a few things that come up that				false

		460						LN		17		23		false		       23   they haven't yet seen.  Under normal circumstances, we				false

		461						LN		17		24		false		       24   would have done prefiled testimony, but we didn't do				false

		462						LN		17		25		false		       25   that in an effort to try to get this thing fixed on an				false

		463						PG		18		0		false		page 18				false

		464						LN		18		1		false		        1   expedited basis.				false

		465						LN		18		2		false		        2              (Exhibit No. SRR-2 was				false

		466						LN		18		3		false		        3                marked for identification.)				false

		467						LN		18		4		false		        4              MR. MECHAM:  And we've marked that as SRR-2,				false

		468						LN		18		5		false		        5   on the assumption that we would use that during the				false

		469						LN		18		6		false		        6   proceeding.  And, perhaps, I was going to use this on				false

		470						LN		18		7		false		        7   cross, but we may as well get it out.				false

		471						LN		18		8		false		        8              This is -- this is the document that				false

		472						LN		18		9		false		        9   Frontier gave to us in response to -- I believe it's				false

		473						LN		18		10		false		       10   1.3.  We asked for the number of outages that their				false

		474						LN		18		11		false		       11   system recorded during the most recent two-year period				false

		475						LN		18		12		false		       12   and these -- this shows from May of 2017 to about May of				false

		476						LN		18		13		false		       13   2019.				false

		477						LN		18		14		false		       14              And I will say, Mr. Hammer, that we -- this				false

		478						LN		18		15		false		       15   is a very long document, horizontally, going left to				false

		479						LN		18		16		false		       16   right, and so the way I had to print it out was one page				false

		480						LN		18		17		false		       17   at a time.  So each sequential page would really be to				false

		481						LN		18		18		false		       18   the right of the one before it.  So you will see that				false

		482						LN		18		19		false		       19   there are 44 outages recorded in that period, and then				false

		483						LN		18		20		false		       20   the 44 lines in each subsequent page refer to that first				false

		484						LN		18		21		false		       21   page, and I will mark that as SRR-3.				false

		485						LN		18		22		false		       22              And I will likely just use this mainly on				false

		486						LN		18		23		false		       23   cross, but I wanted it next to the analysis done by the				false

		487						LN		18		24		false		       24   internal system as well, because there is -- they really				false

		488						LN		18		25		false		       25   don't -- they correspond in time, but not necessarily				false

		489						PG		19		0		false		page 19				false

		490						LN		19		1		false		        1   per minute.				false

		491						LN		19		2		false		        2              And you will see in one of the -- in the				false

		492						LN		19		3		false		        3   response that Frontier's network records outages that				false

		493						LN		19		4		false		        4   are 30 minutes or greater.  And Sorrel River Ranch is				false

		494						LN		19		5		false		        5   anything, and that is a minute or even less than that				false

		495						LN		19		6		false		        6   that cause down or outages and lost calls.  So it -- it				false

		496						LN		19		7		false		        7   shows the impact of -- a broader impact.  And in fact,				false

		497						LN		19		8		false		        8   let's talk about --				false

		498						LN		19		9		false		        9              I would like to move the admission of SRR-1,				false

		499						LN		19		10		false		       10   2, and 3.				false

		500						LN		19		11		false		       11              MR. THOMSON:  We don't have any objection.				false

		501						LN		19		12		false		       12              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  They're				false

		502						LN		19		13		false		       13   admitted, then.				false

		503						LN		19		14		false		       14              Before we move on to additional questions,				false

		504						LN		19		15		false		       15   it would help me if we could lay a little foundation for				false

		505						LN		19		16		false		       16   SRR-1.  It's been admitted into the record, but help me				false

		506						LN		19		17		false		       17   just understand a little better what it is.  Is this a				false

		507						LN		19		18		false		       18   direct printout, for example, from the Binary Canary				false

		508						LN		19		19		false		       19   software or --				false

		509						LN		19		20		false		       20              THE WITNESS:  That's correct.				false

		510						LN		19		21		false		       21              HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  And the date format				false

		511						LN		19		22		false		       22   appears as day, month, year?				false

		512						LN		19		23		false		       23              THE WITNESS:  That's correct.				false

		513						LN		19		24		false		       24              HEARING OFFICER:  So this hasn't been				false

		514						LN		19		25		false		       25   transcribed into a separate spreadsheet?  This is				false

		515						PG		20		0		false		page 20				false

		516						LN		20		1		false		        1   printed directly from the software?				false

		517						LN		20		2		false		        2              THE WITNESS:  No, sir, we printed that				false

		518						LN		20		3		false		        3   straight from the software -- the report from the				false

		519						LN		20		4		false		        4   software.				false

		520						LN		20		5		false		        5              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Go ahead,				false

		521						LN		20		6		false		        6   Mr. Mecham.				false

		522						LN		20		7		false		        7              MR. MECHAM:  Thank you.				false

		523						LN		20		8		false		        8         Q.   (BY MR. MECHAM)  Mr. Ciani, has Sorrel River				false

		524						LN		20		9		false		        9   Ranch entered into a contract for service with Frontier?				false

		525						LN		20		10		false		       10         A.   Yes, we have.  Most recently -- in July of				false

		526						LN		20		11		false		       11   2014, there was a contract that was signed.  It was a				false

		527						LN		20		12		false		       12   three-year contract.  And upon termination of that				false

		528						LN		20		13		false		       13   contract, we continued, under the clause of that				false

		529						LN		20		14		false		       14   contract, to pay the same tariffs that we had agreed to				false

		530						LN		20		15		false		       15   in 2014.  I contacted Frontier in 2018 and began				false

		531						LN		20		16		false		       16   communications with an account rep who provided us a				false

		532						LN		20		17		false		       17   relatively significant better rate if we were to sign a				false

		533						LN		20		18		false		       18   two-year agreement.				false

		534						LN		20		19		false		       19              During the negotiations, we were having the				false

		535						LN		20		20		false		       20   experiences that we're here today to discuss and,				false

		536						LN		20		21		false		       21   essentially, was told that the only way that we would not				false

		537						LN		20		22		false		       22   continue to be charged what, to me, I believe is an				false

		538						LN		20		23		false		       23   exorbitantly high tariff of nearly over $4,000 a month				false

		539						LN		20		24		false		       24   for both our phone and internet service -- they were				false

		540						LN		20		25		false		       25   willing to lower it to a more reasonable rate that is				false

		541						PG		21		0		false		page 21				false

		542						LN		21		1		false		        1   certainly more competitive with any market in the U.S.,				false

		543						LN		21		2		false		        2   but we were forced to sign another two-year agreement,				false

		544						LN		21		3		false		        3   with the option of some longer term agreements.				false

		545						LN		21		4		false		        4              And so we entered into an agreement in the				false

		546						LN		21		5		false		        5   very beginning of February of 2019, despite having,				false

		547						LN		21		6		false		        6   essentially, no service at that time.  We have absolutely				false

		548						LN		21		7		false		        7   no other options, and it's critical to have phone service				false

		549						LN		21		8		false		        8   for the operation of our business and the health and				false

		550						LN		21		9		false		        9   safety and well-being of our staff and of our guests.  So				false

		551						LN		21		10		false		       10   we really had no other alternatives.				false

		552						LN		21		11		false		       11         Q.   So let me reiterate -- or have you reiterate.				false

		553						LN		21		12		false		       12   You signed -- even after you had less-than-adequate				false

		554						LN		21		13		false		       13   service, you signed the second contract because you could				false

		555						LN		21		14		false		       14   find no alternative?				false

		556						LN		21		15		false		       15         A.   That's correct.  We were paying $4,000 a				false

		557						LN		21		16		false		       16   month for no service and we were able to lower that by				false

		558						LN		21		17		false		       17   agreeing to another two-year term, because we had no				false

		559						LN		21		18		false		       18   other alternatives.				false

		560						LN		21		19		false		       19         Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  And let me go back to what				false

		561						LN		21		20		false		       20   we marked as SRR-1 and SRR-3, the outages reports,				false

		562						LN		21		21		false		       21   internal and external.				false

		563						LN		21		22		false		       22              Do you know what dates those -- can you tell				false

		564						LN		21		23		false		       23   us what dates those cover, approximately?				false

		565						LN		21		24		false		       24         A.   I'm sorry, what was the question?				false

		566						LN		21		25		false		       25         Q.   When does the report begin recording the				false

		567						PG		22		0		false		page 22				false

		568						LN		22		1		false		        1   outages?				false

		569						LN		22		2		false		        2         A.   I think we started that report in the				false

		570						LN		22		3		false		        3   beginning of 2017 and ran it through the current 2019				false

		571						LN		22		4		false		        4   year.				false

		572						LN		22		5		false		        5         Q.   And as far as you know -- actually, we can				false

		573						LN		22		6		false		        6   look.  When you look at the date -- dates of the outages				false

		574						LN		22		7		false		        7   from Frontier, it begins --				false

		575						LN		22		8		false		        8         A.   It looks like it started in May of 2017 --				false

		576						LN		22		9		false		        9         Q.   Okay.				false

		577						LN		22		10		false		       10         A.   -- and goes through current time.				false

		578						LN		22		11		false		       11         Q.   So is -- we can anticipate -- we know that				false

		579						LN		22		12		false		       12   Frontier changed out radio equipment in December of 2018				false

		580						LN		22		13		false		       13   and in March of 2019.				false

		581						LN		22		14		false		       14              What was the service like, according to these				false

		582						LN		22		15		false		       15   outages, in 2017?				false

		583						LN		22		16		false		       16         A.   Previously, as I mentioned, the service was				false

		584						LN		22		17		false		       17   not very good.  It was -- it had come to, I think, what				false

		585						LN		22		18		false		       18   the staff and the residents -- was a generally accepted				false

		586						LN		22		19		false		       19   bad service.  It was as I likened it to cell phone				false

		587						LN		22		20		false		       20   service in a remote area.  It was not unusual to drop				false

		588						LN		22		21		false		       21   calls.  It wasn't unusual to have static or otherwise				false

		589						LN		22		22		false		       22   feedback or interruption, wind-tunnel type of effects.				false

		590						LN		22		23		false		       23              And generally speaking, the service, you				false

		591						LN		22		24		false		       24   know, would eventually work, so you may drop a call two				false

		592						LN		22		25		false		       25   or three times and 10 or 15 minutes later, everything				false

		593						PG		23		0		false		page 23				false

		594						LN		23		1		false		        1   would seem to be back to normal.  And that was kind of a				false

		595						LN		23		2		false		        2   generally accepted level of service from the time I				false

		596						LN		23		3		false		        3   started in April of 2017 all the way up through until				false

		597						LN		23		4		false		        4   this, you know, catastrophic event where we, you know,				false

		598						LN		23		5		false		        5   lost -- wholesale lost service and consistently had				false

		599						LN		23		6		false		        6   problems for a -- more often than not, we would have				false

		600						LN		23		7		false		        7   either no service or complete interruptions or unusable,				false

		601						LN		23		8		false		        8   you know, service that worked but was of such bad quality				false

		602						LN		23		9		false		        9   that we couldn't communicate.				false

		603						LN		23		10		false		       10         Q.   And with the changeout of the radio in March				false

		604						LN		23		11		false		       11   of 2019, has there been any perceived difference -- any				false

		605						LN		23		12		false		       12   improvement?				false

		606						LN		23		13		false		       13         A.   Improvement from the catastrophe of the				false

		607						LN		23		14		false		       14   winter, yes.  We have, since that time, still had more				false

		608						LN		23		15		false		       15   than one documented outage and some reception issues as				false

		609						LN		23		16		false		       16   well.				false

		610						LN		23		17		false		       17              MR. MECHAM:  Mr. Ciani is available for				false

		611						LN		23		18		false		       18   cross-examination.				false

		612						LN		23		19		false		       19              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Thomson?				false

		613						LN		23		20		false		       20              MR. THOMSON:  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		614						LN		23		21		false		       21                      CROSS-EXAMINATION				false

		615						LN		23		22		false		       22   BY MR. THOMSON:				false

		616						LN		23		23		false		       23         Q.   Good morning, Mr. Ciani.				false

		617						LN		23		24		false		       24              Is there any reliable cell service at Sorrel				false

		618						LN		23		25		false		       25   River Ranch?				false

		619						PG		24		0		false		page 24				false

		620						LN		24		1		false		        1         A.   I would not call it reliable.  It's possible				false

		621						LN		24		2		false		        2   to get a signal in certain areas of the ranch at certain				false

		622						LN		24		3		false		        3   times.				false

		623						LN		24		4		false		        4         Q.   And you described the ranch as located in a				false

		624						LN		24		5		false		        5   remote rural area?				false

		625						LN		24		6		false		        6         A.   It's 17 miles upstream on the Colorado River				false

		626						LN		24		7		false		        7   from the town of Moab, Utah.				false

		627						LN		24		8		false		        8         Q.   And it's a fact that you never provided this				false

		628						LN		24		9		false		        9   Binary Canary report to Frontier before today, correct?				false

		629						LN		24		10		false		       10         A.   I personally did not.				false

		630						LN		24		11		false		       11         Q.   Do you know if anyone at Sorrel River Ranch				false

		631						LN		24		12		false		       12   did?				false

		632						LN		24		13		false		       13         A.   I do not know that.				false

		633						LN		24		14		false		       14         Q.   Let's see.  You've already discussed that you				false

		634						LN		24		15		false		       15   signed a new Frontier service agreement in February of				false

		635						LN		24		16		false		       16   2019, correct?				false

		636						LN		24		17		false		       17         A.   That's correct.				false

		637						LN		24		18		false		       18         Q.   Are you aware that tariff service rates are				false

		638						LN		24		19		false		       19   filed with and approved by this Commission?				false

		639						LN		24		20		false		       20         A.   Well, I would assume that's true, because you				false

		640						LN		24		21		false		       21   just said that, but I did not know exactly how tariffs				false

		641						LN		24		22		false		       22   are set in the State of Utah.				false

		642						LN		24		23		false		       23              MR. THOMSON:  Your Honor, I don't have any				false

		643						LN		24		24		false		       24   further questions.				false

		644						LN		24		25		false		       25              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Moore?				false

		645						PG		25		0		false		page 25				false

		646						LN		25		1		false		        1              MR. MOORE:  Just a couple of questions.				false

		647						LN		25		2		false		        2                      CROSS-EXAMINATION				false

		648						LN		25		3		false		        3   BY MR. MOORE:				false

		649						LN		25		4		false		        4         Q.   Just a couple of questions.				false

		650						LN		25		5		false		        5              What's the earliest that you can recall that				false

		651						LN		25		6		false		        6   you reported THE problems that you've described to				false

		652						LN		25		7		false		        7   Frontier?				false

		653						LN		25		8		false		        8         A.   That's a good question.  I don't know that I				false

		654						LN		25		9		false		        9   can answer that with a hundred percent certainty of the				false

		655						LN		25		10		false		       10   date.  I would say that I believe that there was reports				false

		656						LN		25		11		false		       11   of challenges in the year of 2017.				false

		657						LN		25		12		false		       12         Q.   And your testimony is these problems have				false

		658						LN		25		13		false		       13   been fairly continuous?				false

		659						LN		25		14		false		       14         A.   Yeah.  As I said, that -- you know, between				false

		660						LN		25		15		false		       15   the time that I started with the ranch in April of 2017				false

		661						LN		25		16		false		       16   and November of 2018, there were -- it was not uncommon				false

		662						LN		25		17		false		       17   to drop calls or have poor reception and, at times,				false

		663						LN		25		18		false		       18   outages, as shown on the document that Frontier provided.				false

		664						LN		25		19		false		       19         Q.   Have you ever received a bill credit from				false

		665						LN		25		20		false		       20   Frontier?				false

		666						LN		25		21		false		       21         A.   We have been receiving some credits, as they				false

		667						LN		25		22		false		       22   communicated, on our recent bills.  We have not fully				false

		668						LN		25		23		false		       23   been credited back all of the expenses that we incurred				false

		669						LN		25		24		false		       24   during the time that they had committed to reducing our				false

		670						LN		25		25		false		       25   invoices.  They've been adding those credits towards				false

		671						PG		26		0		false		page 26				false

		672						LN		26		1		false		        1   current invoices as we move forward.				false

		673						LN		26		2		false		        2         Q.   Have you ever experienced an outage that				false

		674						LN		26		3		false		        3   lasted over 24 hours?				false

		675						LN		26		4		false		        4         A.   I can't answer that question for certainty.				false

		676						LN		26		5		false		        5         Q.   Do you have a copy of SRR-2?				false

		677						LN		26		6		false		        6         A.   I have reviewed it, yes.				false

		678						LN		26		7		false		        7         Q.   On the second page there seems to be, about				false

		679						LN		26		8		false		        8   halfway down, a 41-hour outage.  Is that how you				false

		680						LN		26		9		false		        9   understand the document?				false

		681						LN		26		10		false		       10         A.   That is what it looks like to me, yes, sir.				false

		682						LN		26		11		false		       11         Q.   I'm going to hand you a document that I got				false

		683						LN		26		12		false		       12   from a footnote -- I'll represent that I got it from				false

		684						LN		26		13		false		       13   footnote 2 on Frontier's Answer to your formal Complaint.				false

		685						LN		26		14		false		       14   It was represented to be the terms and conditions of				false

		686						LN		26		15		false		       15   Frontier's business services.				false

		687						LN		26		16		false		       16              Can I have you -- have you seen a document				false

		688						LN		26		17		false		       17   like that before?				false

		689						LN		26		18		false		       18         A.   You know, I don't know that -- this is a				false

		690						LN		26		19		false		       19   rather significant document.  I can't say I've seen this				false

		691						LN		26		20		false		       20   exact document before, but I have reviewed the agreements				false

		692						LN		26		21		false		       21   that we have engaged with Frontier.				false

		693						LN		26		22		false		       22         Q.   If you haven't seen that exact document				false

		694						LN		26		23		false		       23   before, I just won't ask you the question.				false

		695						LN		26		24		false		       24              MR. MOORE:  I'm finished.  Thank you.				false

		696						LN		26		25		false		       25              HEARING OFFICER:  Let me just ask a couple				false

		697						PG		27		0		false		page 27				false

		698						LN		27		1		false		        1   of questions.				false

		699						LN		27		2		false		        2              With respect to Exhibit SRR-2, my				false

		700						LN		27		3		false		        3   understanding is that this is a document provided by the				false

		701						LN		27		4		false		        4   company that records its record of outages.  Correct.				false

		702						LN		27		5		false		        5              MR. MECHAM:  Correct.				false

		703						LN		27		6		false		        6              HEARING OFFICER:  And those have to be				false

		704						LN		27		7		false		        7   outages of at least a duration of --				false

		705						LN		27		8		false		        8              MR. MECHAM:  Thirty minutes.				false

		706						LN		27		9		false		        9              HEARING OFFICER:  -- thirty minutes.  So --				false

		707						LN		27		10		false		       10   and this is confusing, because the pages aren't				false

		708						LN		27		11		false		       11   numbered.  And I appreciate, Mr. Mecham, that it's very				false

		709						LN		27		12		false		       12   difficult to print a spreadsheet, but if we flip to the				false

		710						LN		27		13		false		       13   page where we see the end date of the outage, which is,				false

		711						LN		27		14		false		       14   perhaps, five pages -- I think it's the fifth page in				false

		712						LN		27		15		false		       15   the exhibit -- the first line says --first row says				false

		713						LN		27		16		false		       16   "Start Time," "End Date."				false

		714						LN		27		17		false		       17              MR. MECHAM:  We got it.				false

		715						LN		27		18		false		       18              HEARING OFFICER:  So the first outage we see				false

		716						LN		27		19		false		       19   recorded on the company's document is May 29th, 2017.				false

		717						LN		27		20		false		       20   When I turn around and I look at SRR-1, if I'm reading				false

		718						LN		27		21		false		       21   it correctly, I don't see any outage recorded there on				false

		719						LN		27		22		false		       22   that date.				false

		720						LN		27		23		false		       23              THE WITNESS:  You know, Your Honor, I can't				false

		721						LN		27		24		false		       24   say with any definitivity, but what I would say is if				false

		722						LN		27		25		false		       25   there was a loss of power, that may have resulted in				false

		723						PG		28		0		false		page 28				false

		724						LN		28		1		false		        1   that monitoring service not recording the data.  But I'm				false

		725						LN		28		2		false		        2   not -- I don't have enough technical knowledge to tell				false

		726						LN		28		3		false		        3   you exactly what would happen from looking at those two				false

		727						LN		28		4		false		        4   pieces of information.				false

		728						LN		28		5		false		        5              HEARING OFFICER:  So if power at the ranch				false

		729						LN		28		6		false		        6   were lost, then Binary Canary wouldn't necessarily				false

		730						LN		28		7		false		        7   capture the outage?				false

		731						LN		28		8		false		        8              THE WITNESS:  That's possible.				false

		732						LN		28		9		false		        9              HEARING OFFICER:  That's the only question I				false

		733						LN		28		10		false		       10   have right now.  Mr. Mecham, did you have any recross --				false

		734						LN		28		11		false		       11   or redirect?				false

		735						LN		28		12		false		       12              MR. MECHAM:  I do not.				false

		736						LN		28		13		false		       13              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Would you like				false

		737						LN		28		14		false		       14   to call another witness?				false

		738						LN		28		15		false		       15              MR. THOMSON:  Your Honor, may I have an				false

		739						LN		28		16		false		       16   opportunity to ask a couple of questions, based on the				false

		740						LN		28		17		false		       17   Attorney General's questions?				false

		741						LN		28		18		false		       18              HEARING OFFICER:  Of course.				false

		742						LN		28		19		false		       19              MR. THOMSON:  Thank you.				false

		743						LN		28		20		false		       20                  FURTHER CROSS-EXAMINATION				false

		744						LN		28		21		false		       21   BY MR. THOMSON:				false

		745						LN		28		22		false		       22         Q.   Mr. Ciani, looking at SRR-2, would you agree				false

		746						LN		28		23		false		       23   with me that there were a total of two trouble tickets				false

		747						LN		28		24		false		       24   called in regarding service in 2018 and 2019?				false

		748						LN		28		25		false		       25              MR. MECHAM:  I think that document speaks				false

		749						PG		29		0		false		page 29				false

		750						LN		29		1		false		        1   for itself, does it not?				false

		751						LN		29		2		false		        2         Q.   (BY MR. THOMSON)  So you agree with me?				false

		752						LN		29		3		false		        3              MR. MECHAM:  Where are you pointing him to?				false

		753						LN		29		4		false		        4              MR. THOMSON:  Down at the bottom of the				false

		754						LN		29		5		false		        5   document.				false

		755						LN		29		6		false		        6              MR. MECHAM:  Which page?				false

		756						LN		29		7		false		        7              MR. THOMSON:  There's one page on this				false

		757						LN		29		8		false		        8   document.				false

		758						LN		29		9		false		        9              HEARING OFFICER:  Which exhibit are you				false

		759						LN		29		10		false		       10   referring to?				false

		760						LN		29		11		false		       11              MR. MECHAM:  SRR-2 is --				false

		761						LN		29		12		false		       12              MR. THOMSON:  Is this SRR-2?				false

		762						LN		29		13		false		       13              MR. MECHAM:  No.  I haven't entered that one				false

		763						LN		29		14		false		       14   yet.				false

		764						LN		29		15		false		       15         Q.   (BY MR. THOMSON)  All right.  Can you look at				false

		765						LN		29		16		false		       16   the document that's labeled Sorrel River Ranch Repair				false

		766						LN		29		17		false		       17   Ticket History that was produced in discovery?				false

		767						LN		29		18		false		       18              MR. MECHAM:  But it's not part of the				false

		768						LN		29		19		false		       19   record.				false

		769						LN		29		20		false		       20              HEARING OFFICER:  I don't have a copy of				false

		770						LN		29		21		false		       21   that document yet.  It hasn't been entered.				false

		771						LN		29		22		false		       22              MR. THOMSON:  Well, then we'll look at this				false

		772						LN		29		23		false		       23   on our direct, then, Your Honor.				false

		773						LN		29		24		false		       24         Q.   (BY MR. THOMSON)  The other question I had:				false

		774						LN		29		25		false		       25   Who is the commercial power supplier at the ranch?				false

		775						PG		30		0		false		page 30				false

		776						LN		30		1		false		        1         A.   Rocky Mountain Power.				false

		777						LN		30		2		false		        2         Q.   And are there outages frequently with Rocky				false

		778						LN		30		3		false		        3   Mountain Power?				false

		779						LN		30		4		false		        4         A.   Define "frequently."				false

		780						LN		30		5		false		        5         Q.   Well, more than once every six months?				false

		781						LN		30		6		false		        6         A.   I would say that it's likely that there's at				false

		782						LN		30		7		false		        7   least one outage every six months, but I'm sure you could				false

		783						LN		30		8		false		        8   find that information out from them.  I don't have the				false

		784						LN		30		9		false		        9   record of all their power outages in my head.				false

		785						LN		30		10		false		       10              MR. THOMSON:  Sure.  I have no further				false

		786						LN		30		11		false		       11   questions, Your Honor.				false

		787						LN		30		12		false		       12              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.				false

		788						LN		30		13		false		       13              Mr. Mecham, anything else from Mr. Ciani?				false

		789						LN		30		14		false		       14              MR. MECHAM:  Nothing at this time.				false

		790						LN		30		15		false		       15              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Would you like				false

		791						LN		30		16		false		       16   to call another witness?				false

		792						LN		30		17		false		       17              MR. MECHAM:  I don't think we need to at				false

		793						LN		30		18		false		       18   this point.				false

		794						LN		30		19		false		       19              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Then we'll				false

		795						LN		30		20		false		       20   turn to you, Mr. Thomson.				false

		796						LN		30		21		false		       21              MR. THOMSON:  Thank you.  Your Honor, we'll				false

		797						LN		30		22		false		       22   call Mike Giles.				false

		798						LN		30		23		false		       23              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Giles, could you swear				false

		799						LN		30		24		false		       24   to tell the truth?				false

		800						LN		30		25		false		       25              THE WITNESS:  I do.				false

		801						PG		31		0		false		page 31				false

		802						LN		31		1		false		        1              Is that better?  There we go.				false

		803						LN		31		2		false		        2              I do.				false

		804						LN		31		3		false		        3                        MICHAEL GILES,				false

		805						LN		31		4		false		        4   called as a witness by and on behalf of Frontier				false

		806						LN		31		5		false		        5   Communications, having been first duly sworn, was				false

		807						LN		31		6		false		        6   examined and testified as follows:				false

		808						LN		31		7		false		        7                      DIRECT EXAMINATION				false

		809						LN		31		8		false		        8   BY MR. THOMSON:				false

		810						LN		31		9		false		        9         Q.   Please give us your name.				false

		811						LN		31		10		false		       10         A.   Mike Giles.				false

		812						LN		31		11		false		       11         Q.   And are you employed by Frontier				false

		813						LN		31		12		false		       12   Communications?				false

		814						LN		31		13		false		       13         A.   Yes, I am.				false

		815						LN		31		14		false		       14         Q.   In what capacity, sir?				false

		816						LN		31		15		false		       15         A.   Currently, I serve as local manager for				false

		817						LN		31		16		false		       16   Frontier.				false

		818						LN		31		17		false		       17         Q.   And in that position, can you briefly				false

		819						LN		31		18		false		       18   describe your duties?				false

		820						LN		31		19		false		       19         A.   Currently, I'm an operations supervisor, is				false

		821						LN		31		20		false		       20   technically what I am, and so I'm over the technicians				false

		822						LN		31		21		false		       21   and all the services provided in the State of Utah for				false

		823						LN		31		22		false		       22   Frontier as well as in Arizona.				false

		824						LN		31		23		false		       23         Q.   How long have you been with the company?				false

		825						LN		31		24		false		       24         A.   This is my 40th year.				false

		826						LN		31		25		false		       25         Q.   And have you worked in Utah that entire time?				false

		827						PG		32		0		false		page 32				false

		828						LN		32		1		false		        1         A.   No.  I worked in Arizona and California and				false

		829						LN		32		2		false		        2   -- the largest amount of time in Utah, some 20 years.				false

		830						LN		32		3		false		        3         Q.   Are you familiar with issues in Castle				false

		831						LN		32		4		false		        4   Valley?				false

		832						LN		32		5		false		        5         A.   I am.				false

		833						LN		32		6		false		        6         Q.   Can you describe Frontier's network leaving				false

		834						LN		32		7		false		        7   Moab and going into Castle Valley?				false

		835						LN		32		8		false		        8         A.   Castle Valley and where Sorrel is, in				false

		836						LN		32		9		false		        9   Professor Valley, is currently served by a radio that				false

		837						LN		32		10		false		       10   goes from Moab up to a mountaintop called Bald Mesa				false

		838						LN		32		11		false		       11   approximately 9,000 feet.  And then that microwave radio				false

		839						LN		32		12		false		       12   shot hits a bluff above Castle Valley and then down into				false

		840						LN		32		13		false		       13   our Castle Valley office, and then SRR is served via				false

		841						LN		32		14		false		       14   copper facility from that office, some five miles out to				false

		842						LN		32		15		false		       15   their location.				false

		843						LN		32		16		false		       16         Q.   And when you say "office," describe what				false

		844						LN		32		17		false		       17   exists on the ground at the end of the microwave radio				false

		845						LN		32		18		false		       18   shots.				false

		846						LN		32		19		false		       19         A.   Our Castle Valley remote office is what we				false

		847						LN		32		20		false		       20   call a central office.  It's basically a wire center in a				false

		848						LN		32		21		false		       21   location where we have equipment to serve not only voice				false

		849						LN		32		22		false		       22   but data from that office.				false

		850						LN		32		23		false		       23         Q.   Does anyone physically work there --				false

		851						LN		32		24		false		       24         A.   No.				false

		852						LN		32		25		false		       25         Q.   -- on a daily basis?				false

		853						PG		33		0		false		page 33				false

		854						LN		33		1		false		        1         A.   No.				false

		855						LN		33		2		false		        2         Q.   So would this be characterized as a remote				false

		856						LN		33		3		false		        3   terminal?				false

		857						LN		33		4		false		        4         A.   It's a remote terminal, correct.				false

		858						LN		33		5		false		        5         Q.   And how is the signal taken from the Moab				false

		859						LN		33		6		false		        6   central office to Bald Mesa?				false

		860						LN		33		7		false		        7         A.   Via microwave radio.				false

		861						LN		33		8		false		        8         Q.   Was there ever any copper cable into Castle				false

		862						LN		33		9		false		        9   Valley that was used to serve customers there?				false

		863						LN		33		10		false		       10         A.   No.  It's been radio for the entire time.				false

		864						LN		33		11		false		       11         Q.   And when you say "the entire time," how long				false

		865						LN		33		12		false		       12   has that radio been in existence?				false

		866						LN		33		13		false		       13         A.   I'm aware they've had phone service out there				false

		867						LN		33		14		false		       14   for some 50 years.  Could be longer, but I'm aware of at				false

		868						LN		33		15		false		       15   least 50.				false

		869						LN		33		16		false		       16         Q.   Is there any cell service in that valley?				false

		870						LN		33		17		false		       17         A.   Extremely spotty, depending on the -- you				false

		871						LN		33		18		false		       18   know, the provider.				false

		872						LN		33		19		false		       19         Q.   So you've described the terrain generally.				false

		873						LN		33		20		false		       20   Can you tell us a little bit about what exists at Bald				false

		874						LN		33		21		false		       21   Mesa?				false

		875						LN		33		22		false		       22         A.   Bald Mesa is a plateau in the La Sal				false

		876						LN		33		23		false		       23   mountains, and I would describe it as extremely remote.				false

		877						LN		33		24		false		       24   There's a forest road that goes by it, but it's a couple				false

		878						LN		33		25		false		       25   miles to get up to Bald Mesa.  It's a radio site that's				false

		879						PG		34		0		false		page 34				false

		880						LN		34		1		false		        1   not -- used only by Frontier, but other entities as well.				false

		881						LN		34		2		false		        2         Q.   So it's two miles off the forest road?				false

		882						LN		34		3		false		        3         A.   I believe two miles is the shortest.				false

		883						LN		34		4		false		        4         Q.   Do you know why Frontier changed the radio				false

		884						LN		34		5		false		        5   there in December of 2018?				false

		885						LN		34		6		false		        6         A.   The radio was changed out primarily for				false

		886						LN		34		7		false		        7   Connect America Fund to increase data out to --				false

		887						LN		34		8		false		        8   there's -- there was some pressure to increase the				false

		888						LN		34		9		false		        9   internet usage out there and the data out there.  So as				false

		889						LN		34		10		false		       10   -- part of that radio changeout was to increase the				false

		890						LN		34		11		false		       11   bandwidth to provide to the customers in Castle Valley,				false

		891						LN		34		12		false		       12   Castleton and Professor Valley.				false

		892						LN		34		13		false		       13         Q.   And Connect America Fund is something managed				false

		893						LN		34		14		false		       14   by the FCC, correct?				false

		894						LN		34		15		false		       15         A.   That is correct.				false

		895						LN		34		16		false		       16         Q.   Do you recall how much it cost to replace				false

		896						LN		34		17		false		       17   that radio?				false

		897						LN		34		18		false		       18         A.   I do not have the exact figures in there.				false

		898						LN		34		19		false		       19   Somewhere in the neighborhood of a hundred thousand.				false

		899						LN		34		20		false		       20         Q.   Mr. Giles, after the formal complaint was				false

		900						LN		34		21		false		       21   filed, what has Frontier's response been, at least				false

		901						LN		34		22		false		       22   internally to manage the service?				false

		902						LN		34		23		false		       23         A.   A couple of things that go -- number one,				false

		903						LN		34		24		false		       24   daily calls, because we were aware of the issue after the				false

		904						LN		34		25		false		       25   radio was changed out on the 18th of December.  We've had				false

		905						PG		35		0		false		page 35				false

		906						LN		35		1		false		        1   daily, weekly calls to manage those issues, as well as				false

		907						LN		35		2		false		        2   formulate plans going forward.  Monitoring -- constant				false

		908						LN		35		3		false		        3   monitoring not only on the radio, but with calls to				false

		909						LN		35		4		false		        4   customers and those people that were affected by that.				false

		910						LN		35		5		false		        5         Q.   Are there any alarms or other monitoring				false

		911						LN		35		6		false		        6   devices that are being used on those circuits at this				false

		912						LN		35		7		false		        7   time?				false

		913						LN		35		8		false		        8         A.   Test equipment.  So we're able to look at it				false

		914						LN		35		9		false		        9   and see if we had any radio hits, any delays.  We're able				false

		915						LN		35		10		false		       10   to see that now to monitor whether or not the service is				false

		916						LN		35		11		false		       11   down or just it took temporary hits that may or may cause				false

		917						LN		35		12		false		       12   outages.  It may or may cause dropped calls.				false

		918						LN		35		13		false		       13         Q.   And I'm looking at, I think, what's been				false

		919						LN		35		14		false		       14   marked as Sorrel River Ranch Exhibit 2.				false

		920						LN		35		15		false		       15              Are you familiar with this document -- this				false

		921						LN		35		16		false		       16   spreadsheet?				false

		922						LN		35		17		false		       17         A.   I've seen it.  One of the things that I				false

		923						LN		35		18		false		       18   looked at -- this is the outages in the Moab exchange.				false

		924						LN		35		19		false		       19   This is how we measure things, as far as outages not				false

		925						LN		35		20		false		       20   specifically to a particular area.  Now, Castle Valley				false

		926						LN		35		21		false		       21   outages could be in here, but this is all the outages at				false

		927						LN		35		22		false		       22   the Moab exchange in this time period on here.				false

		928						LN		35		23		false		       23              For instance, the one we talked about just a				false

		929						LN		35		24		false		       24   minute ago, that 41-hour outage, did not affect Castle				false

		930						LN		35		25		false		       25   Valley.  That was south of Moab.				false

		931						PG		36		0		false		page 36				false

		932						LN		36		1		false		        1         Q.   Roughly, how many customers are served on the				false

		933						LN		36		2		false		        2   radio network that provides service to Sorrel River				false

		934						LN		36		3		false		        3   Ranch?				false

		935						LN		36		4		false		        4         A.   Just under 300.				false

		936						LN		36		5		false		        5         Q.   And how many customers are served by the Moab				false

		937						LN		36		6		false		        6   central office?				false

		938						LN		36		7		false		        7         A.   I don't recall a number at this time.  I				false

		939						LN		36		8		false		        8   mean, I'm not sure.				false

		940						LN		36		9		false		        9         Q.   But the number would be greater than --				false

		941						LN		36		10		false		       10         A.   Oh, much greater than that, yeah.				false

		942						LN		36		11		false		       11              MR. THOMSON:  One moment, Your Honor.				false

		943						LN		36		12		false		       12              THE WITNESS:  I was going to say 25, so				false

		944						LN		36		13		false		       13   2,300 access lines, from our document.				false

		945						LN		36		14		false		       14              MR. THOMSON:  I don't have any further				false

		946						LN		36		15		false		       15   questions, Your Honor, and I'll release the witness for				false

		947						LN		36		16		false		       16   cross.				false

		948						LN		36		17		false		       17              HEARING OFFICER:  Before we move on to				false

		949						LN		36		18		false		       18   cross, just to clarify, the 2,300 access lines you just				false

		950						LN		36		19		false		       19   referred to are in what area?				false

		951						LN		36		20		false		       20              THE WITNESS:  Moab exchange itself.  So				false

		952						LN		36		21		false		       21   Castle Valley being an area part of that exchange.				false

		953						LN		36		22		false		       22              HEARING OFFICER:  And Castle Valley has				false

		954						LN		36		23		false		       23   approximately 300?				false

		955						LN		36		24		false		       24              THE WITNESS:  Just under 300.				false

		956						LN		36		25		false		       25              HEARING OFFICER:  And one other point of				false

		957						PG		37		0		false		page 37				false

		958						LN		37		1		false		        1   clarification.  I believe when Mr. Thomson was asking				false

		959						LN		37		2		false		        2   you questions, he referred to what is referred to --				false

		960						LN		37		3		false		        3   what has been marked as -- what he referred to as SRR-2.				false

		961						LN		37		4		false		        4   He was referring to the spreadsheet that the company				false

		962						LN		37		5		false		        5   provided of its recording of outages.  I believe that's				false

		963						LN		37		6		false		        6   SRR-3.				false

		964						LN		37		7		false		        7              MR. THOMSON:  Is that 3?  Okay.  I stand				false

		965						LN		37		8		false		        8   corrected.				false

		966						LN		37		9		false		        9              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Mecham, does that				false

		967						LN		37		10		false		       10   comport with your understanding?				false

		968						LN		37		11		false		       11              MR. MECHAM:  Yes.				false

		969						LN		37		12		false		       12              HEARING OFFICER:  Then we will move to				false

		970						LN		37		13		false		       13   Mr. Mecham for cross-examination.				false

		971						LN		37		14		false		       14              MR. MECHAM:  Okay.  Thank you.				false

		972						LN		37		15		false		       15                      CROSS-EXAMINATION				false

		973						LN		37		16		false		       16   BY MR. MECHAM:				false

		974						LN		37		17		false		       17         Q.   Mr. Giles, how far is it from Bald Mesa to				false

		975						LN		37		18		false		       18   Moab?				false

		976						LN		37		19		false		       19         A.   I believe it's 15 miles driving, and I don't				false

		977						LN		37		20		false		       20   know the airline -- I don't know the air -- as the crow				false

		978						LN		37		21		false		       21   flies, how far it is.  I believe it's about 15 miles.				false

		979						LN		37		22		false		       22   You go out to Pack Creek and then back up on the loop				false

		980						LN		37		23		false		       23   road to get to Bald Mesa.				false

		981						LN		37		24		false		       24         Q.   So it's not like it's across the state or				false

		982						LN		37		25		false		       25   anything like that or across the county?  It's 15 miles				false

		983						PG		38		0		false		page 38				false

		984						LN		38		1		false		        1   away?				false

		985						LN		38		2		false		        2         A.   Across the county, yes; across the state, no.				false

		986						LN		38		3		false		        3         Q.   Okay.				false

		987						LN		38		4		false		        4         A.   I believe there's about a 6,000-foot				false

		988						LN		38		5		false		        5   elevation climb, somewhere, plus or minus on that.				false

		989						LN		38		6		false		        6         Q.   And is 44 outages every two years normal?  Is				false

		990						LN		38		7		false		        7   that normal for Frontier?				false

		991						LN		38		8		false		        8         A.   I don't -- I'm not sure what -- how to answer				false

		992						LN		38		9		false		        9   that.  I know 44 outages depends on where.  In an				false

		993						LN		38		10		false		       10   exchange like Moab -- with Moab itself, that would be				false

		994						LN		38		11		false		       11   normal.				false

		995						LN		38		12		false		       12         Q.   Normal for Frontier?				false

		996						LN		38		13		false		       13         A.   I serve in a lot of areas.  I mean, there's a				false

		997						LN		38		14		false		       14   lot of -- these are every outage over 30 minutes, some of				false

		998						LN		38		15		false		       15   Frontier's issues, some external.				false

		999						LN		38		16		false		       16         Q.   Do you know why Frontier has not sought				false

		1000						LN		38		17		false		       17   Universal Service Funds from the State?				false

		1001						LN		38		18		false		       18         A.   No, I don't -- I don't have the specific				false

		1002						LN		38		19		false		       19   information on why.  That's not a part of my				false

		1003						LN		38		20		false		       20   responsibility.				false

		1004						LN		38		21		false		       21         Q.   Who would?  Is anybody here or on the				false

		1005						LN		38		22		false		       22   telephone who would know that?				false

		1006						LN		38		23		false		       23              MR. THOMSON:  I believe Mr. Erhart may have				false

		1007						LN		38		24		false		       24   information regarding that.				false

		1008						LN		38		25		false		       25              MR. MECHAM:  And would he know and				false

		1009						PG		39		0		false		page 39				false

		1010						LN		39		1		false		        1   understand why or if Frontier did not qualify for State				false

		1011						LN		39		2		false		        2   Universal Service Funds?				false

		1012						LN		39		3		false		        3              HEARING OFFICER:  We still have the witness				false

		1013						LN		39		4		false		        4   who is testifying to answer.				false

		1014						LN		39		5		false		        5              THE WITNESS:  I don't know if he does or				false

		1015						LN		39		6		false		        6   not, so...				false

		1016						LN		39		7		false		        7         Q.   (BY MR. MECHAM)  Well, let me ask you this,				false

		1017						LN		39		8		false		        8   Mr. Giles, and I'll get back to that in a minute.				false

		1018						LN		39		9		false		        9              How long has Frontier or any of its				false

		1019						LN		39		10		false		       10   predecessors served Castle Valley and Moab in that area?				false

		1020						LN		39		11		false		       11         A.   Fifty years or so.				false

		1021						LN		39		12		false		       12         Q.   So the terrain --				false

		1022						LN		39		13		false		       13         A.   I've been here 40 years, and I started in				false

		1023						LN		39		14		false		       14   Utah.  We served it then.  That's maybe the best way to				false

		1024						LN		39		15		false		       15   answer that.				false

		1025						LN		39		16		false		       16         Q.   So it's nothing new to you?				false

		1026						LN		39		17		false		       17         A.   No.				false

		1027						LN		39		18		false		       18         Q.   I mean, you know how to provide service in				false

		1028						LN		39		19		false		       19   that area?				false

		1029						LN		39		20		false		       20         A.   Correct.				false

		1030						LN		39		21		false		       21         Q.   It's rugged, but there are a lot of rugged				false

		1031						LN		39		22		false		       22   places in Utah served by independent rural telephone				false

		1032						LN		39		23		false		       23   companies?				false

		1033						LN		39		24		false		       24         A.   Yes.				false

		1034						LN		39		25		false		       25         Q.   And you do know -- well, let's go to the				false
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		1036						LN		40		1		false		        1   Universal Service Fund.				false

		1037						LN		40		2		false		        2              MR. MECHAM:  I don't know if Mr. Erhart --				false

		1038						LN		40		3		false		        3   were you intending to bring him on in direct or how				false

		1039						LN		40		4		false		        4   would you -- because I'd like to go to that to try to				false

		1040						LN		40		5		false		        5   figure out the age of the network and the condition of				false

		1041						LN		40		6		false		        6   the network.				false

		1042						LN		40		7		false		        7              MR. THOMSON:  We didn't intend to present				false

		1043						LN		40		8		false		        8   Mr. Erhart as a witness today.				false

		1044						LN		40		9		false		        9              MR. MECHAM:  Is he on the line?				false

		1045						LN		40		10		false		       10              MR. THOMSON:  He's sitting to my left,				false

		1046						LN		40		11		false		       11   beyond Mr. Giles.				false

		1047						LN		40		12		false		       12              HEARING OFFICER:  If you want to call				false

		1048						LN		40		13		false		       13   Mr. Erhart, we can address that.  Why don't you wrap				false

		1049						LN		40		14		false		       14   your examination of Mr. Giles first?				false

		1050						LN		40		15		false		       15         Q.   (BY MR. MECHAM)  Okay.  Mr. Giles, have you				false

		1051						LN		40		16		false		       16   looked at the document SRR-3?  I guess you did, since you				false

		1052						LN		40		17		false		       17   were looking at it with Mr. Thomson.  You pointed one out				false

		1053						LN		40		18		false		       18   in the Moab office.				false

		1054						LN		40		19		false		       19              Are you aware of how many of these would have				false

		1055						LN		40		20		false		       20   affected Castle Valley?				false

		1056						LN		40		21		false		       21         A.   I'm not.				false

		1057						LN		40		22		false		       22         Q.   Okay.  So that one, perhaps, didn't, but				false

		1058						LN		40		23		false		       23   maybe 35 or 40 might have?				false

		1059						LN		40		24		false		       24         A.   In my tenure -- well, going on 12 years that				false

		1060						LN		40		25		false		       25   I've been back in Utah, I'm aware of two major fiber cuts				false
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		1062						LN		41		1		false		        1   that lasted just under 24 hours, in 12 years, that				false

		1063						LN		41		2		false		        2   affected all of Moab that would have affected Castle				false

		1064						LN		41		3		false		        3   Valley as well.				false

		1065						LN		41		4		false		        4         Q.   Okay.				false

		1066						LN		41		5		false		        5         A.   These were major fiber cuts that would be on				false

		1067						LN		41		6		false		        6   here, outside of this four months that we're talking				false

		1068						LN		41		7		false		        7   about with Castle Valley.				false

		1069						LN		41		8		false		        8         Q.   Mr. Giles, before the changeout of the radio				false

		1070						LN		41		9		false		        9   first in December of 2018 and then second in March, were				false

		1071						LN		41		10		false		       10   you aware of other issues with dropped calls and need for				false

		1072						LN		41		11		false		       11   upgrade of Frontier's facilities in the area?				false

		1073						LN		41		12		false		       12         A.   Dropped calls are something that Frontier and				false

		1074						LN		41		13		false		       13   any other providers deal with from time to time,				false

		1075						LN		41		14		false		       14   including the cell companies as well.  We did not have a				false

		1076						LN		41		15		false		       15   ration of dropped calls until December, because -- and I				false

		1077						LN		41		16		false		       16   base this on my interaction with customers and, you know,				false

		1078						LN		41		17		false		       17   trouble tickets that were called in at that time.				false

		1079						LN		41		18		false		       18              The dropped call situation and intermittent				false

		1080						LN		41		19		false		       19   dial tone situation ramped up after that radio was placed				false

		1081						LN		41		20		false		       20   on the 18th of December.  Prior to that, looking at this				false

		1082						LN		41		21		false		       21   Binary report, I'm not aware of the outages or dropped				false

		1083						LN		41		22		false		       22   calls prior to that on a large-scale basis.				false

		1084						LN		41		23		false		       23         Q.   And so why did -- why did you change out that				false

		1085						LN		41		24		false		       24   radio?  Why did you need to change out that radio in				false

		1086						LN		41		25		false		       25   December?				false
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		1088						LN		42		1		false		        1         A.   The radio, that was changed out as part of				false

		1089						LN		42		2		false		        2   the Connect America Fund upgrade to -- basically for				false

		1090						LN		42		3		false		        3   data, not for voice.				false

		1091						LN		42		4		false		        4         Q.   So the Connect America Fund is the federal				false

		1092						LN		42		5		false		        5   fund?				false

		1093						LN		42		6		false		        6         A.   Correct.				false

		1094						LN		42		7		false		        7         Q.   So you qualified for that; otherwise, you				false

		1095						LN		42		8		false		        8   wouldn't have gotten the funds, right?				false

		1096						LN		42		9		false		        9         A.   Correct.				false

		1097						LN		42		10		false		       10         Q.   And what is the process in the company -- if				false

		1098						LN		42		11		false		       11   you need an upgrade in order to serve your customers				false

		1099						LN		42		12		false		       12   well, what do you have to do to get the resources here?				false

		1100						LN		42		13		false		       13         A.   Submit a request to -- and it goes to various				false

		1101						LN		42		14		false		       14   departments, whether it's -- starting in operation and				false

		1102						LN		42		15		false		       15   engineering and the Capital Funding Finance Group as				false

		1103						LN		42		16		false		       16   well.  Personally, I'm not involved in that piece of it,				false

		1104						LN		42		17		false		       17   I just know it as a general process.				false

		1105						LN		42		18		false		       18         Q.   So in response -- and this is in -- in the				false

		1106						LN		42		19		false		       19   overall response, SRR-2 when asked what other				false

		1107						LN		42		20		false		       20   expenditures have been made other than for those radios,				false

		1108						LN		42		21		false		       21   the response was "outside of those listed elsewhere, we				false

		1109						LN		42		22		false		       22   can" -- "we can identify no expenditures."  So there				false

		1110						LN		42		23		false		       23   hasn't -- at least in the last three years -- so there				false

		1111						LN		42		24		false		       24   hasn't been any other expenditure made to upgrade the				false

		1112						LN		42		25		false		       25   services in the area, other than these radios that were				false
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		1114						LN		43		1		false		        1   paid for by CAF funds; is that correct?				false

		1115						LN		43		2		false		        2         A.   Not -- I -- no, not -- I'm not aware of any.				false

		1116						LN		43		3		false		        3   Other than, you know, card changeouts or repair or				false

		1117						LN		43		4		false		        4   anything like that, I'm not aware of any capital money,				false

		1118						LN		43		5		false		        5   other than the hundred thousand dollars for that				false

		1119						LN		43		6		false		        6   changeout of the radio.				false

		1120						LN		43		7		false		        7         Q.   And that really -- that was federal funding				false

		1121						LN		43		8		false		        8   available to all companies that you qualified for, but				false

		1122						LN		43		9		false		        9   not capital provided by Frontier; is that correctly				false

		1123						LN		43		10		false		       10   characterized?				false

		1124						LN		43		11		false		       11         A.   I don't know how that's figured.  There				false

		1125						LN		43		12		false		       12   again, not really part of my direct responsibility on				false

		1126						LN		43		13		false		       13   where that funding comes and if it's subsidized or				false

		1127						LN		43		14		false		       14   totally funded.				false

		1128						LN		43		15		false		       15         Q.   How old was the radio that was replaced?				false

		1129						LN		43		16		false		       16         A.   There again, I don't recall exactly when it				false

		1130						LN		43		17		false		       17   was replaced, but I would say in -- since I've been here				false

		1131						LN		43		18		false		       18   in the last -- eight years, maybe, old, when that radio				false

		1132						LN		43		19		false		       19   was replaced.  Two --				false

		1133						LN		43		20		false		       20         Q.   So the first radio -- sorry, go ahead.				false

		1134						LN		43		21		false		       21         A.   Excuse me.  Really, to add bandwidth, not to				false

		1135						LN		43		22		false		       22   change the voice side of it, on both occasions.				false

		1136						LN		43		23		false		       23         Q.   So the first changeout was in December and				false

		1137						LN		43		24		false		       24   apparently that was a disaster.  Why?  What happened?				false

		1138						LN		43		25		false		       25         A.   I'm going to divert that question to somebody				false
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		1140						LN		44		1		false		        1   that knows a little bit more about the radio itself.  But				false

		1141						LN		44		2		false		        2   a couple of things from my observation, as a general, you				false

		1142						LN		44		3		false		        3   know, local manager, is the vendor that Frontier used in				false

		1143						LN		44		4		false		        4   -- the radio application for that particular device was				false

		1144						LN		44		5		false		        5   inadequate for what we needed.  And we realized that and				false

		1145						LN		44		6		false		        6   started procedures -- processes in January -- late				false

		1146						LN		44		7		false		        7   January to replace that vendor, which we ended up doing				false

		1147						LN		44		8		false		        8   on the 21st of March.				false

		1148						LN		44		9		false		        9         Q.   And did you have to refund the CAF fund or				false

		1149						LN		44		10		false		       10   did the vendor have to do it?  I mean, it was either what				false

		1150						LN		44		11		false		       11   you didn't need or it was faulty, but, in any case, you				false

		1151						LN		44		12		false		       12   didn't duplicate the funding, did you?				false

		1152						LN		44		13		false		       13         A.   Not to my knowledge, but I'm not -- there				false

		1153						LN		44		14		false		       14   again, not part of my -- I'm not aware of any refund				false

		1154						LN		44		15		false		       15   fund, other than just go and replace the vendor and				false

		1155						LN		44		16		false		       16   faulty equipment, and then what goes on there, I think,				false

		1156						LN		44		17		false		       17   is still in process.				false

		1157						LN		44		18		false		       18         Q.   So there may yet be a refund to the CAF fund				false

		1158						LN		44		19		false		       19   for the first radio that didn't work?				false

		1159						LN		44		20		false		       20         A.   I wouldn't know that.				false

		1160						LN		44		21		false		       21         Q.   Who would?				false

		1161						LN		44		22		false		       22         A.   I don't know if any -- I don't know at this				false

		1162						LN		44		23		false		       23   point.				false

		1163						LN		44		24		false		       24         Q.   And so the new radio that went in in March,				false

		1164						LN		44		25		false		       25   apparently there still must be issues, because there are				false
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		1166						LN		45		1		false		        1   outages and lost calls.  What -- what can Sorrel River				false

		1167						LN		45		2		false		        2   Ranch expect from Frontier with that second radio?				false

		1168						LN		45		3		false		        3         A.   Well, I'll take part of that, and then I'll				false

		1169						LN		45		4		false		        4   defer the second part to Carlos when he testifies.  But I				false

		1170						LN		45		5		false		        5   will tell you that my complaints have almost ceased from				false

		1171						LN		45		6		false		        6   the other customers -- the residential customers in that				false

		1172						LN		45		7		false		        7   area since the changeout at the end of March.				false

		1173						LN		45		8		false		        8              As far as dropped calls, as far as outages,				false

		1174						LN		45		9		false		        9   there have been a couple of additional radio hits since				false

		1175						LN		45		10		false		       10   that time, but, overall, I have not had -- other than				false

		1176						LN		45		11		false		       11   normal, you know, out -- normal customer trouble tickets				false

		1177						LN		45		12		false		       12   that were not above normal since the 20th of				false

		1178						LN		45		13		false		       13   March -- 21st of March.				false

		1179						LN		45		14		false		       14         Q.   And when you say "not above normal," what				false

		1180						LN		45		15		false		       15   does that mean?  How many trouble tickets or issues do				false

		1181						LN		45		16		false		       16   you have normally?				false

		1182						LN		45		17		false		       17         A.   I don't know if I can answer that, really.				false

		1183						LN		45		18		false		       18   I'm just saying, at this point in time -- there obviously				false

		1184						LN		45		19		false		       19   was an issue this winter and, at this point in time, I				false

		1185						LN		45		20		false		       20   may go to Castle Valley twice a week, at the most, to				false

		1186						LN		45		21		false		       21   work on an individual's trouble that could be in				false

		1187						LN		45		22		false		       22   Frontier's network or customer issues or just typically				false

		1188						LN		45		23		false		       23   -- and I'm answering this generally -- typical service				false

		1189						LN		45		24		false		       24   issues that you would have anywhere.				false
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		1192						LN		46		1		false		        1   you -- or Frontier, anyway, gave us a list of complaints,				false

		1193						LN		46		2		false		        2   and I printed a couple of those out.  One of them is from				false

		1194						LN		46		3		false		        3   the Castle Valley Fire Department, which I think was				false

		1195						LN		46		4		false		        4   created March 18th of 2019.				false

		1196						LN		46		5		false		        5              Is that after the second radio was --				false

		1197						LN		46		6		false		        6         A.   No, that was before.  The second radio				false

		1198						LN		46		7		false		        7   changeout was the 21st of March.				false

		1199						LN		46		8		false		        8         Q.   Okay.  Mr. Giles, in your testimony I believe				false

		1200						LN		46		9		false		        9   you said that there were a couple of radio hits after the				false
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		1203						LN		46		12		false		       12         Q.   What do you mean?				false

		1204						LN		46		13		false		       13         A.   Loss of signal, at that point in time, and				false

		1205						LN		46		14		false		       14   our monitoring.  I think we talked about those in our				false

		1206						LN		46		15		false		       15   discovery.  One had happened the day before that that				false

		1207						LN		46		16		false		       16   would probably create a dropped call situation.  There's				false

		1208						LN		46		17		false		       17   been a couple other days where we've come in and had				false

		1209						LN		46		18		false		       18   errors on the signal since that time, but no additional				false

		1210						LN		46		19		false		       19   trouble tickets per se.				false

		1211						LN		46		20		false		       20              And I think Dave mentioned on the discovery				false

		1212						LN		46		21		false		       21   call that he was aware of that.  I think it happened at				false

		1213						LN		46		22		false		       22   10:00 at night and 2:00 in the morning, the previous day				false
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		1219						LN		47		2		false		        2   dispatched from trouble calls, unless it's an outage				false

		1220						LN		47		3		false		        3   itself, and then once the alarm comes in, then we'd go.				false

		1221						LN		47		4		false		        4   Because we're monitoring this circuit, and have been				false

		1222						LN		47		5		false		        5   since December, then we're, I would say, more fully aware				false
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		1224						LN		47		7		false		        7   particular service because of the issues we've had.				false

		1225						LN		47		8		false		        8              So first thing that my central office				false

		1226						LN		47		9		false		        9   technician does in the morning is check his test meter to				false
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		1228						LN		47		11		false		       11   we haven't had any issues, that we didn't have				false

		1229						LN		47		12		false		       12   any -- when I say "hits," any hesitation in the radio or				false

		1230						LN		47		13		false		       13   any -- I can't think of the word I want to use right now,				false

		1231						LN		47		14		false		       14   but just to make sure that there may have not caused any				false

		1232						LN		47		15		false		       15   issues.  Verify that with the folks that are monitoring				false

		1233						LN		47		16		false		       16   the radio.				false
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		1244						LN		48		1		false		        1   someone in Moab able to do that, or do they have to come				false
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		1249						LN		48		6		false		        6         Q.   But I mean to repair it, not to -- just to				false

		1250						LN		48		7		false		        7   monitor.				false

		1251						LN		48		8		false		        8         A.   It depends on the outage.  A lot of repair				false

		1252						LN		48		9		false		        9   now is software changes and to be able to make				false

		1253						LN		48		10		false		       10   adjustments on software, not physically.  Physically,				false

		1254						LN		48		11		false		       11   yes, that may require some outside services to come in,				false

		1255						LN		48		12		false		       12   absolutely.				false

		1256						LN		48		13		false		       13         Q.   So, remotely, if it's software; if it's				false

		1257						LN		48		14		false		       14   physical, they come from someplace else?				false

		1258						LN		48		15		false		       15         A.   They may have to, if it's not something that				false

		1259						LN		48		16		false		       16   my local technicians can fix.				false

		1260						LN		48		17		false		       17         Q.   And that -- if they -- where would they come				false

		1261						LN		48		18		false		       18   from, Salt Lake?				false

		1262						LN		48		19		false		       19         A.   Various places.  Depends on the location of				false

		1263						LN		48		20		false		       20   vendors and where our internal support people are.  It				false

		1264						LN		48		21		false		       21   just depends.				false

		1265						LN		48		22		false		       22         Q.   Mr. Giles, towards the end of last year, did				false

		1266						LN		48		23		false		       23   you have a lot of discussions with Sorrel River Ranch?				false

		1267						LN		48		24		false		       24         A.   Personally, no, I did not.  My technician				false

		1268						LN		48		25		false		       25   talked to their front desk.  There was some				false

		1269						PG		49		0		false		page 49				false

		1270						LN		49		1		false		        1   correspondence via email, but I did not -- I do not				false

		1271						LN		49		2		false		        2   recall having a conversation face-to-face or -- and/or				false

		1272						LN		49		3		false		        3   over the phone.  I'm not denying it, I just don't recall				false

		1273						LN		49		4		false		        4   it.  I think that's a better way to answer that.				false

		1274						LN		49		5		false		        5         Q.   And with the December changeout of the radio,				false

		1275						LN		49		6		false		        6   was it the Company's view at that time that that was the				false

		1276						LN		49		7		false		        7   solution, that it was done, there was nothing more to do?				false

		1277						LN		49		8		false		        8         A.   Nothing more to do as --				false

		1278						LN		49		9		false		        9         Q.   As far as repairing the network in order to				false

		1279						LN		49		10		false		       10   provide the service.				false

		1280						LN		49		11		false		       11         A.   Yeah.  That was our understanding, is that				false

		1281						LN		49		12		false		       12   would provide the service required for -- to satisfy the				false

		1282						LN		49		13		false		       13   bandwidth and data requirements.				false

		1283						LN		49		14		false		       14         Q.   But then it didn't work out?				false

		1284						LN		49		15		false		       15         A.   It did not work out.				false

		1285						LN		49		16		false		       16         Q.   In your opinion, what should Frontier have				false

		1286						LN		49		17		false		       17   done in order to avoid this in the first place?				false

		1287						LN		49		18		false		       18         A.   I'm trying -- obviously, we would have liked				false

		1288						LN		49		19		false		       19   this to have gone much smoother than it did.  We relied				false

		1289						LN		49		20		false		       20   on a vendor to provide a radio that was reliable to us				false

		1290						LN		49		21		false		       21   and that did not work out.  So, you know, I'd start with				false

		1291						LN		49		22		false		       22   that.				false

		1292						LN		49		23		false		       23              Could there have been other things handled				false

		1293						LN		49		24		false		       24   better?  There always is, communication, things like				false

		1294						LN		49		25		false		       25   that.  Internally, we tried several things to improve				false

		1295						PG		50		0		false		page 50				false

		1296						LN		50		1		false		        1   that service and work with that vendor to improve that				false

		1297						LN		50		2		false		        2   radio.  We made several software changes.  We made some				false

		1298						LN		50		3		false		        3   physical changes.  We had some difficulty getting up to				false

		1299						LN		50		4		false		        4   the location from a weather standpoint.  Probably the				false

		1300						LN		50		5		false		        5   worst weather year that that area has had in all that I				false

		1301						LN		50		6		false		        6   can recall.				false

		1302						LN		50		7		false		        7              So there was some challenges that could have				false

		1303						LN		50		8		false		        8   been handled better or could have had better luck with				false

		1304						LN		50		9		false		        9   the weather.  It was a factor in some of the response				false

		1305						LN		50		10		false		       10   times.  But, overall, we relied on a vendor that we've				false

		1306						LN		50		11		false		       11   done business with in the past, and they didn't deliver				false

		1307						LN		50		12		false		       12   for us.				false

		1308						LN		50		13		false		       13         Q.   Did Frontier make the appropriate				false

		1309						LN		50		14		false		       14   expenditures in order to maintain the system before the				false

		1310						LN		50		15		false		       15   radio problem emerged?				false

		1311						LN		50		16		false		       16         A.   I really -- I really can't answer that from				false

		1312						LN		50		17		false		       17   my position.				false

		1313						LN		50		18		false		       18         Q.   Who can?				false

		1314						LN		50		19		false		       19         A.   I don't -- it may be -- Carlos may be able to				false

		1315						LN		50		20		false		       20   speak to that.  He's a radio expert on that.  He may have				false

		1316						LN		50		21		false		       21   a little bit more of an idea on that piece of it, so...				false

		1317						LN		50		22		false		       22         Q.   You've testified several times that the area				false

		1318						LN		50		23		false		       23   is remote, mountainous, subject to the bad weather.  Why				false

		1319						LN		50		24		false		       24   did you wait to December to change it out?				false

		1320						LN		50		25		false		       25         A.   That was when the project was approved and				false

		1321						PG		51		0		false		page 51				false

		1322						LN		51		1		false		        1   the funding came through.  It wasn't my -- that's when it				false

		1323						LN		51		2		false		        2   came.  We didn't -- we didn't plan the date for it,				false

		1324						LN		51		3		false		        3   that's just when it was put out there.				false

		1325						LN		51		4		false		        4         Q.   When did you apply for it?				false

		1326						LN		51		5		false		        5         A.   Apply for?				false

		1327						LN		51		6		false		        6         Q.   The money to change out the radio, the CAF				false

		1328						LN		51		7		false		        7   funds.				false

		1329						LN		51		8		false		        8         A.   There again, I have no idea when that was				false

		1330						LN		51		9		false		        9   done.  That wasn't part of my responsibility.				false

		1331						LN		51		10		false		       10         Q.   I mean, is Frontier anticipating these issues				false

		1332						LN		51		11		false		       11   to try to ensure that service remains high quality or at				false

		1333						LN		51		12		false		       12   least adequate?				false

		1334						LN		51		13		false		       13         A.   Yeah, I would say so, as somebody that's				false

		1335						LN		51		14		false		       14   worked for the company for a long time.  This was				false

		1336						LN		51		15		false		       15   everything -- every effort is done to try to prevent				false

		1337						LN		51		16		false		       16   things like this.				false

		1338						LN		51		17		false		       17         Q.   But none of this terrain is a surprise to				false

		1339						LN		51		18		false		       18   you, right?  I mean, you've been doing this for, you say,				false

		1340						LN		51		19		false		       19   50 years -- not you, but the company.				false

		1341						LN		51		20		false		       20         A.   Well, the answer -- terrain-wise, getting up				false

		1342						LN		51		21		false		       21   to Bald Mesa, I've never had an eight-man snowcat stuck				false

		1343						LN		51		22		false		       22   in the snow up there in my, you know, 40 years of dealing				false

		1344						LN		51		23		false		       23   with mountaintops.  I've never had that situation.  So,				false

		1345						LN		51		24		false		       24   you know, it was an unusual challenge.				false

		1346						LN		51		25		false		       25              Obviously, December and January wouldn't have				false

		1347						PG		52		0		false		page 52				false

		1348						LN		52		1		false		        1   been the ideal times to do that, as far as wanting to go				false

		1349						LN		52		2		false		        2   up there, but we've had to go up there in the wintertime				false

		1350						LN		52		3		false		        3   before on existing radio issues, so -- you know, from				false

		1351						LN		52		4		false		        4   that standpoint.  But I've never seen the kind of snow				false

		1352						LN		52		5		false		        5   and weather that we had to deal with this year.  I'm not				false

		1353						LN		52		6		false		        6   using that as an excuse, I'm just saying it was a fact				false

		1354						LN		52		7		false		        7   this winter, that it was unusually difficult to get up				false

		1355						LN		52		8		false		        8   there.				false

		1356						LN		52		9		false		        9         Q.   But the outage report represented on SRR-3				false

		1357						LN		52		10		false		       10   shows plenty of outages.  And as you say, maybe they				false

		1358						LN		52		11		false		       11   don't all apply to Castle Valley, but there are plenty of				false

		1359						LN		52		12		false		       12   them that occurred well before any of this trouble				false

		1360						LN		52		13		false		       13   emerged at the end of 2018; isn't that correct?				false

		1361						LN		52		14		false		       14         A.   This document shows everything in Moab, and I				false

		1362						LN		52		15		false		       15   would say Castle Valley represents a very small part of				false

		1363						LN		52		16		false		       16   the outages on this report.				false

		1364						LN		52		17		false		       17         Q.   But it's -- it seems to me that 44 outages is				false

		1365						LN		52		18		false		       18   extraordinary, whether it affects Castle Valley or not.				false

		1366						LN		52		19		false		       19   Does that not reflect on the kind of equipment and the				false

		1367						LN		52		20		false		       20   age and condition of the equipment Frontier is using?				false

		1368						LN		52		21		false		       21         A.   These outages are various, from data outages				false

		1369						LN		52		22		false		       22   to voice outages.  You know, so as far as whether it's				false

		1370						LN		52		23		false		       23   adequate or not, I don't have a comparison to what other				false

		1371						LN		52		24		false		       24   companies run in that same time period.  This was all the				false

		1372						LN		52		25		false		       25   outages, every last one of them, during that time frame,				false

		1373						PG		53		0		false		page 53				false

		1374						LN		53		1		false		        1   from small to large outages.				false

		1375						LN		53		2		false		        2         Q.   Anything over 30 minutes?				false

		1376						LN		53		3		false		        3         A.   Anything over 30 minutes appears to be on				false

		1377						LN		53		4		false		        4   this report.				false

		1378						LN		53		5		false		        5         Q.   Okay.				false

		1379						LN		53		6		false		        6         A.   Every one of these outages didn't affect				false

		1380						LN		53		7		false		        7   everybody in the Moab exchange, so...				false

		1381						LN		53		8		false		        8         Q.   All right.  Who -- is it Mr. Erhart who knows				false

		1382						LN		53		9		false		        9   something about the Universal Service Fund?				false

		1383						LN		53		10		false		       10         A.   That's my understanding.				false

		1384						LN		53		11		false		       11              MR. MECHAM:  Maybe we could swear him.				false

		1385						LN		53		12		false		       12              HEARING OFFICER:  Let's conclude examination				false

		1386						LN		53		13		false		       13   of this witness.  Do you have any additional questions				false

		1387						LN		53		14		false		       14   for this witness, Mr. Mecham?				false

		1388						LN		53		15		false		       15              MR. MECHAM:  No, at this time.				false

		1389						LN		53		16		false		       16              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Moore?				false

		1390						LN		53		17		false		       17              MR. MOORE:  Just a couple of questions.				false

		1391						LN		53		18		false		       18                      CROSS-EXAMINATION				false

		1392						LN		53		19		false		       19   BY MR. MOORE:				false

		1393						LN		53		20		false		       20         Q.   Do you know if Frontier maintains a report of				false

		1394						LN		53		21		false		       21   every time Sorrel Ranch issued a trouble report to you				false

		1395						LN		53		22		false		       22   concerning the problems with the services?				false

		1396						LN		53		23		false		       23         A.   Yeah.  I think that's documented in one of				false

		1397						LN		53		24		false		       24   the -- that we haven't entered in yet, but I believe so,				false

		1398						LN		53		25		false		       25   yes.				false

		1399						PG		54		0		false		page 54				false

		1400						LN		54		1		false		        1              MR. MOORE:  Are you -- can I ask your lawyer				false

		1401						LN		54		2		false		        2   if you're planning on entering that in, and then I'll				false

		1402						LN		54		3		false		        3   wait for these questions, then.				false

		1403						LN		54		4		false		        4              MR. THOMSON:  Your Honor, I'd be happy to				false

		1404						LN		54		5		false		        5   enter this.  It was produced -- let me back up a little				false

		1405						LN		54		6		false		        6   bit and, for the record, say that this was a document				false

		1406						LN		54		7		false		        7   that was produced as a result of a discovery request				false

		1407						LN		54		8		false		        8   from Mr. Mecham, and it's a log of the repair tickets				false

		1408						LN		54		9		false		        9   called in by Sorrel River.  They asked for a two-year				false

		1409						LN		54		10		false		       10   period, we supplied the last decade worth of trouble				false

		1410						LN		54		11		false		       11   tickets.				false

		1411						LN		54		12		false		       12              So it's a single page.  It's a table, looks				false

		1412						LN		54		13		false		       13   like this.  We'll be happy to enter it into evidence.  I				false

		1413						LN		54		14		false		       14   can have Mr. Giles validate this on redirect, if we want				false

		1414						LN		54		15		false		       15   to do that.				false

		1415						LN		54		16		false		       16              HEARING OFFICER:  If you're willing to do				false

		1416						LN		54		17		false		       17   so, and it will be responsive to Mr. Moore's question.				false

		1417						LN		54		18		false		       18   Do we have copies for everyone?				false

		1418						LN		54		19		false		       19              MR. THOMSON:  I have one copy, Your Honor.				false

		1419						LN		54		20		false		       20              MR. MECHAM:  I have copies.  I have no				false

		1420						LN		54		21		false		       21   objection to it being entered.				false

		1421						LN		54		22		false		       22              HEARING OFFICER:  Please distribute them.				false

		1422						LN		54		23		false		       23   So, Mr. Thomson, would you like me to mark this as the				false

		1423						LN		54		24		false		       24   company's exhibit?				false

		1424						LN		54		25		false		       25              MR. THOMSON:  We can do that, Your Honor,				false

		1425						PG		55		0		false		page 55				false

		1426						LN		55		1		false		        1   sure.  We can mark that Frontier-1.				false

		1427						LN		55		2		false		        2              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Let this be				false

		1428						LN		55		3		false		        3   marked Frontier-1.  And Mr. Thomson has moved for its				false

		1429						LN		55		4		false		        4   admission.  Is there any objection?				false

		1430						LN		55		5		false		        5              MR. MECHAM:  No.				false

		1431						LN		55		6		false		        6              (Frontier Exhibit No. 1 was				false

		1432						LN		55		7		false		        7                marked for identification.)				false

		1433						LN		55		8		false		        8              HEARING OFFICER:  It's admitted.				false

		1434						LN		55		9		false		        9              MR. THOMSON:  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		1435						LN		55		10		false		       10              HEARING OFFICER:  Before you continue				false

		1436						LN		55		11		false		       11   Mr. Moore, Mr. Mecham had just expressed a little				false

		1437						LN		55		12		false		       12   interest in a break.  It's been about an hour and 20				false

		1438						LN		55		13		false		       13   minutes.  Since we've just received a new exhibit, it				false

		1439						LN		55		14		false		       14   may benefit the parties to look at it a little bit				false

		1440						LN		55		15		false		       15   before we continue.				false

		1441						LN		55		16		false		       16              Is there any interest in a 10- or 15-minute				false

		1442						LN		55		17		false		       17   break?				false

		1443						LN		55		18		false		       18              MR. MOORE:  That would be fine.				false

		1444						LN		55		19		false		       19              MR. THOMSON:  Fine with us.				false

		1445						LN		55		20		false		       20              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  We will be in				false

		1446						LN		55		21		false		       21   recess until 11:30.				false

		1447						LN		55		22		false		       22              MR. THOMSON:  Thank you.				false

		1448						LN		55		23		false		       23              (A recess was taken.)				false

		1449						LN		55		24		false		       24              HEARING OFFICER:  Let's go back on the				false

		1450						LN		55		25		false		       25   record.				false

		1451						PG		56		0		false		page 56				false

		1452						LN		56		1		false		        1              Mr. Moore, I believe we were with you and				false

		1453						LN		56		2		false		        2   your cross-examination of Mr. Giles.				false

		1454						LN		56		3		false		        3         Q.   (BY MR. MOORE)  Yes.  Mr. Giles, I was				false

		1455						LN		56		4		false		        4   speaking about Frontier Exhibit 1, I believe.  That's the				false

		1456						LN		56		5		false		        5   Sorrel River Repair Ticket History.				false

		1457						LN		56		6		false		        6              Do you have that before you?				false

		1458						LN		56		7		false		        7         A.   Okay.  I've got it, yes.				false

		1459						LN		56		8		false		        8         Q.   Now, this lists every time Sorrel -- every				false

		1460						LN		56		9		false		        9   time Sorrel River issued a formal trouble report to you;				false

		1461						LN		56		10		false		       10   is that correct?				false

		1462						LN		56		11		false		       11         A.   That is correct.				false

		1463						LN		56		12		false		       12         Q.   What are the procedures that Sorrel River				false

		1464						LN		56		13		false		       13   must go through to issue a trouble report?				false

		1465						LN		56		14		false		       14         A.   They call a central location, 800 number, and				false

		1466						LN		56		15		false		       15   report their -- whatever issues they have to that.  That				false

		1467						LN		56		16		false		       16   creates a trouble ticket in our system and is				false

		1468						LN		56		17		false		       17   subsequently dispatched to whatever group is going to				false

		1469						LN		56		18		false		       18   handle that issue.  Could be the field where my employees				false

		1470						LN		56		19		false		       19   are, it could be a long-distance group, various different				false

		1471						LN		56		20		false		       20   areas.  Not all of these would come out to the field and				false

		1472						LN		56		21		false		       21   require a field visit.				false

		1473						LN		56		22		false		       22         Q.   Could you look, if it's available to you, for				false

		1474						LN		56		23		false		       23   Sorrel River Ranch Exhibit No. 1?  I'm referring to about				false

		1475						LN		56		24		false		       24   the -- your Response to Discovery Requests.				false

		1476						LN		56		25		false		       25         A.   I'm not sure.  Sorrel River 1 is what?				false

		1477						PG		57		0		false		page 57				false

		1478						LN		57		1		false		        1         Q.   It's your response -- I believe it's your				false

		1479						LN		57		2		false		        2   response to Sorrel River's discovery requests.				false

		1480						LN		57		3		false		        3         A.   Okay.				false

		1481						LN		57		4		false		        4              HEARING OFFICER:  I believe that's SRR-2.				false

		1482						LN		57		5		false		        5              MR. MOORE:  That's SRR-2.  Sorry about that.				false

		1483						LN		57		6		false		        6         Q.   (BY MR. MOORE)  Will you look at page 4,				false

		1484						LN		57		7		false		        7   Request 1-5?				false

		1485						LN		57		8		false		        8         A.   Okay.  I'm there.				false

		1486						LN		57		9		false		        9         Q.   And that provides that "Frontier made only				false

		1487						LN		57		10		false		       10   one dispatched service to Sorrel River Ranch in response				false

		1488						LN		57		11		false		       11   to a trouble ticket in the past 12 months."				false

		1489						LN		57		12		false		       12         A.   Correct.				false

		1490						LN		57		13		false		       13         Q.   "There were an additional 6 technician visits				false

		1491						LN		57		14		false		       14   in response to Owner and/or Managing Director emails over				false

		1492						LN		57		15		false		       15   the past 5 months."				false

		1493						LN		57		16		false		       16         A.   Correct.				false

		1494						LN		57		17		false		       17         Q.   Help me out here.  Does that mean the six				false

		1495						LN		57		18		false		       18   technicians in the past five months were dispatched				false

		1496						LN		57		19		false		       19   without a reporting on your repair ticket?				false

		1497						LN		57		20		false		       20         A.   That is correct.  Those were visits made to				false

		1498						LN		57		21		false		       21   the site in response to either something that we observed				false

		1499						LN		57		22		false		       22   or an email from SRR.  We made visits out to the site to				false

		1500						LN		57		23		false		       23   start monitoring their PRI circuit which provides their				false

		1501						LN		57		24		false		       24   voice.				false

		1502						LN		57		25		false		       25         Q.   But the email didn't generate a formal --				false

		1503						PG		58		0		false		page 58				false

		1504						LN		58		1		false		        1         A.   No, did not.  This was on our -- this was us				false

		1505						LN		58		2		false		        2   taking active -- proactive -- I guess reactive to the				false

		1506						LN		58		3		false		        3   email, but proactive stance to go out and visit, check				false

		1507						LN		58		4		false		        4   with the front desk to make sure they hadn't had any				false

		1508						LN		58		5		false		        5   dropped calls, and to retrieve data from our device out				false

		1509						LN		58		6		false		        6   on site there and look at the previous week's report.				false

		1510						LN		58		7		false		        7         Q.   Is there any specific record that deals with				false

		1511						LN		58		8		false		        8   your response to email requests that don't go through the				false

		1512						LN		58		9		false		        9   800 number?				false

		1513						LN		58		10		false		       10         A.   No.				false

		1514						LN		58		11		false		       11         Q.   Does Frontier have a program of PRI testing,				false

		1515						LN		58		12		false		       12   inspection and preventative maintenance?				false

		1516						LN		58		13		false		       13         A.   We have a preventative and maintenance				false

		1517						LN		58		14		false		       14   program, yes.				false

		1518						LN		58		15		false		       15         Q.   Have you filed a description of this program				false

		1519						LN		58		16		false		       16   with the Commission?				false

		1520						LN		58		17		false		       17         A.   I do not know that.				false

		1521						LN		58		18		false		       18         Q.   You say that you're not sure why you do not				false

		1522						LN		58		19		false		       19   qualify for services in the Utah Public				false

		1523						LN		58		20		false		       20   Telecommunications Service Funds; is that correct?				false

		1524						LN		58		21		false		       21         A.   That's correct.  I don't -- personally am not				false

		1525						LN		58		22		false		       22   involved in that process at all.				false

		1526						LN		58		23		false		       23         Q.   Do you know if you get any other federal				false

		1527						LN		58		24		false		       24   assistance, other than the CAF assistance that you				false

		1528						LN		58		25		false		       25   referred to earlier?				false

		1529						PG		59		0		false		page 59				false

		1530						LN		59		1		false		        1         A.   I do not know.				false

		1531						LN		59		2		false		        2         Q.   Did you make a profit last year?				false

		1532						LN		59		3		false		        3         A.   That, I don't know specifically.				false

		1533						LN		59		4		false		        4              MR. MOORE:  That's all I have.  Thank you.				false

		1534						LN		59		5		false		        5              HEARING OFFICER:  A couple of questions from				false

		1535						LN		59		6		false		        6   me, Mr. Giles.				false

		1536						LN		59		7		false		        7              When you were asked about the problems that				false

		1537						LN		59		8		false		        8   began in the aftermath of the radio changeout in				false

		1538						LN		59		9		false		        9   December of 2018, you alluded to a vendor.  Can you help				false

		1539						LN		59		10		false		       10   me understand what the actual physical problems were?				false

		1540						LN		59		11		false		       11              THE WITNESS:  Physical problems were the				false

		1541						LN		59		12		false		       12   reliability of that particular radio that we put in.				false

		1542						LN		59		13		false		       13              HEARING OFFICER:  Was it a compatibility				false

		1543						LN		59		14		false		       14   issue with the model or that particular radio was				false

		1544						LN		59		15		false		       15   somehow dysfunctional?				false

		1545						LN		59		16		false		       16              THE WITNESS:  I'm going to defer that to the				false

		1546						LN		59		17		false		       17   expert on that piece of it, okay?  And he'll -- I				false

		1547						LN		59		18		false		       18   understand he's going to testify, so...				false

		1548						LN		59		19		false		       19              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  And that radio				false

		1549						LN		59		20		false		       20   was installed to increase bandwidth for internet				false

		1550						LN		59		21		false		       21   service; is that right?				false

		1551						LN		59		22		false		       22              THE WITNESS:  Correct.				false

		1552						LN		59		23		false		       23              HEARING OFFICER:  Was that implemented in				false

		1553						LN		59		24		false		       24   connection with an advertised increase of services to				false

		1554						LN		59		25		false		       25   customers?				false

		1555						PG		60		0		false		page 60				false

		1556						LN		60		1		false		        1              THE WITNESS:  No, not until after.  And we				false

		1557						LN		60		2		false		        2   have not advertised any because of the subsequent				false

		1558						LN		60		3		false		        3   problems, we've held off on that.				false

		1559						LN		60		4		false		        4              HEARING OFFICER:  When the complainant's				false

		1560						LN		60		5		false		        5   witness, Mr. Ciani, was testifying, he alluded to				false

		1561						LN		60		6		false		        6   certain billing credits that it has received on its				false

		1562						LN		60		7		false		        7   statement from Frontier.				false

		1563						LN		60		8		false		        8              Can you speak to those credits, why they				false

		1564						LN		60		9		false		        9   were issued and the amount of them?				false

		1565						LN		60		10		false		       10              THE WITNESS:  I personally cannot.  You				false

		1566						LN		60		11		false		       11   know, I wasn't involved in that piece of it.  So that's				false

		1567						LN		60		12		false		       12   all I know, is credits were issued to all the customers				false

		1568						LN		60		13		false		       13   out in that area.  I just don't have the specifics on				false

		1569						LN		60		14		false		       14   it.				false

		1570						LN		60		15		false		       15              HEARING OFFICER:  And, in your view, as we				false

		1571						LN		60		16		false		       16   sit here today, are there technical issues that exist				false

		1572						LN		60		17		false		       17   that need to be remedied in order for Frontier to				false

		1573						LN		60		18		false		       18   provide the ranch adequate service?				false

		1574						LN		60		19		false		       19              THE WITNESS:  We don't want them to have any				false

		1575						LN		60		20		false		       20   issues.  So if there's any issues that we can control or				false

		1576						LN		60		21		false		       21   fix or whatever, then that's our goal, so...				false

		1577						LN		60		22		false		       22              The complaints and the issues that we were				false

		1578						LN		60		23		false		       23   having have diminished significantly.  Are there still				false

		1579						LN		60		24		false		       24   issues, tweaks that have to be done to the system to				false

		1580						LN		60		25		false		       25   provide any issues?  We've had a couple of what I'd call				false

		1581						PG		61		0		false		page 61				false

		1582						LN		61		1		false		        1   radio hits since then.  There again, I'll defer that to				false

		1583						LN		61		2		false		        2   someone that's the expert on the radio.  But at this				false

		1584						LN		61		3		false		        3   point in time, we'll continue to watch it.				false

		1585						LN		61		4		false		        4              HEARING OFFICER:  I don't want to ask you				false

		1586						LN		61		5		false		        5   for a legal conclusion, that wouldn't be fair.  But, in				false

		1587						LN		61		6		false		        6   your view, in your experience, having worked for the				false

		1588						LN		61		7		false		        7   company for many decades, is this service that the				false

		1589						LN		61		8		false		        8   company is providing to Frontier today reasonable and				false

		1590						LN		61		9		false		        9   adequate?				false

		1591						LN		61		10		false		       10              THE WITNESS:  That we're providing to SRR?				false

		1592						LN		61		11		false		       11              HEARING OFFICER:  To the Ranch, yes.				false

		1593						LN		61		12		false		       12              THE WITNESS:  To the Ranch.  At this point,				false

		1594						LN		61		13		false		       13   I believe it is.  But there again, that's just a general				false

		1595						LN		61		14		false		       14   opinion.  Obviously, we don't want any outages and we				false

		1596						LN		61		15		false		       15   react to any that we know about, so...  There's still				false

		1597						LN		61		16		false		       16   challenges, you know, it's -- and to serve that area in				false

		1598						LN		61		17		false		       17   particular, there's still challenges and will probably				false

		1599						LN		61		18		false		       18   continue to be.				false

		1600						LN		61		19		false		       19              HEARING OFFICER:  Is there any specific				false

		1601						LN		61		20		false		       20   action plan that the company has, as of today, in order				false

		1602						LN		61		21		false		       21   to further investigate or address the Ranch's continued				false

		1603						LN		61		22		false		       22   complaints?				false

		1604						LN		61		23		false		       23              THE WITNESS:  There's ongoing calls every				false

		1605						LN		61		24		false		       24   single day to evaluate where we're at, where our clients				false

		1606						LN		61		25		false		       25   are for the future.  This is not typical.  This is in				false

		1607						PG		62		0		false		page 62				false

		1608						LN		62		1		false		        1   response to the issues we've had and to the customers				false

		1609						LN		62		2		false		        2   out there that we'll continue, until we're satisfied and				false

		1610						LN		62		3		false		        3   they're satisfied that the issues have been resolved.				false

		1611						LN		62		4		false		        4              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.				false

		1612						LN		62		5		false		        5              Any redirect, Mr. Thomson?				false

		1613						LN		62		6		false		        6              MR. THOMSON:  No, Your Honor.				false

		1614						LN		62		7		false		        7              HEARING OFFICER:  Does any other party have				false

		1615						LN		62		8		false		        8   additional questions before we move on?				false

		1616						LN		62		9		false		        9              MR. MECHAM:  Perhaps just one.				false

		1617						LN		62		10		false		       10                  FURTHER CROSS-EXAMINATION				false

		1618						LN		62		11		false		       11   BY MR. MECHAM:				false

		1619						LN		62		12		false		       12         Q.   Mr. Giles, you talk about those radios going				false

		1620						LN		62		13		false		       13   in for internet purposes, but don't the telephone calls				false

		1621						LN		62		14		false		       14   go over the same network -- over the same circuits?				false

		1622						LN		62		15		false		       15         A.   They do, but I don't know specifically.  And,				false

		1623						LN		62		16		false		       16   there again, you can direct those questions to a radio				false

		1624						LN		62		17		false		       17   expert to better answer it.  But, initially, the radios				false

		1625						LN		62		18		false		       18   were replaced to increase the bandwidth out to that area.				false

		1626						LN		62		19		false		       19   More pressure on the internet than there was on the voice				false

		1627						LN		62		20		false		       20   part of it as well.				false

		1628						LN		62		21		false		       21         Q.   Is there a more reliable -- well, isn't there				false

		1629						LN		62		22		false		       22   a more reliable way to provide the service?				false

		1630						LN		62		23		false		       23         A.   I really couldn't answer that.  I mean, I				false

		1631						LN		62		24		false		       24   don't know what your definition of "reliable" is.				false

		1632						LN		62		25		false		       25              MR. MECHAM:  Thank you.				false

		1633						PG		63		0		false		page 63				false

		1634						LN		63		1		false		        1              HEARING OFFICER:  Any follow-up?				false

		1635						LN		63		2		false		        2              MR. THOMSON:  No, Your Honor.				false

		1636						LN		63		3		false		        3              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Well,				false

		1637						LN		63		4		false		        4   Mr. Mecham had expressed interest in asking questions of				false

		1638						LN		63		5		false		        5   Mr. Erhart.  I think it's probably procedurally				false

		1639						LN		63		6		false		        6   appropriate to stick with Mr. Thomson for the time being				false

		1640						LN		63		7		false		        7   and ask you who your next intended witness is.				false

		1641						LN		63		8		false		        8              MR. THOMSON:  We're going to call Carlos				false

		1642						LN		63		9		false		        9   Cardona, who is an employee for Frontier.				false

		1643						LN		63		10		false		       10              HEARING OFFICER:  Do you intend to call				false

		1644						LN		63		11		false		       11   Mr. Erhart?				false

		1645						LN		63		12		false		       12              MR. THOMSON:  I did not, no, Your Honor.				false

		1646						LN		63		13		false		       13              HEARING OFFICER:  To the extent the other				false

		1647						LN		63		14		false		       14   parties have questions for Mr. Erhart, do you have				false

		1648						LN		63		15		false		       15   objection to his being sworn and answering questions				false

		1649						LN		63		16		false		       16   today?				false

		1650						LN		63		17		false		       17              MR. THOMSON:  No.  I don't think the parties				false

		1651						LN		63		18		false		       18   should have expectation that Mr. Erhart is prepared for				false

		1652						LN		63		19		false		       19   everything they might ask, but I don't have an objection				false

		1653						LN		63		20		false		       20   to Mr. Erhart being sworn in and testifying to what he				false

		1654						LN		63		21		false		       21   knows.				false

		1655						LN		63		22		false		       22              HEARING OFFICER:  Well, we'll stick with				false

		1656						LN		63		23		false		       23   your preferred order of the witnesses now, then, and				false

		1657						LN		63		24		false		       24   I'll ask you to call your next witness.				false

		1658						LN		63		25		false		       25              MR. THOMSON:  Thank you.				false

		1659						PG		64		0		false		page 64				false

		1660						LN		64		1		false		        1              Mr. Cardona, are you still on the line?				false

		1661						LN		64		2		false		        2              MR. CARDONA:  Yes.  Does everybody hear me?				false

		1662						LN		64		3		false		        3              MR. THOMSON:  Yeah.  Thank you.  Would you				false

		1663						LN		64		4		false		        4   state your name --				false

		1664						LN		64		5		false		        5              HEARING OFFICER:  Two quick questions.				false

		1665						LN		64		6		false		        6   First, I assume there's no objection to the witness				false

		1666						LN		64		7		false		        7   telephonically.				false

		1667						LN		64		8		false		        8              MR. MECHAM:  No, we agreed.				false

		1668						LN		64		9		false		        9              HEARING OFFICER:  Then I need to swear you.				false

		1669						LN		64		10		false		       10   Mr. Cardona, is it?				false

		1670						LN		64		11		false		       11              MR. THOMSON:  Yes, sir.				false

		1671						LN		64		12		false		       12              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Cardona, do you swear				false

		1672						LN		64		13		false		       13   to tell the truth?				false

		1673						LN		64		14		false		       14              MR. CARDONA:  Yes, I do.				false

		1674						LN		64		15		false		       15              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Go ahead.				false

		1675						LN		64		16		false		       16              MR. THOMSON:  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		1676						LN		64		17		false		       17                       CARLOS CARDONA,				false

		1677						LN		64		18		false		       18   called as a witness by and on behalf of Frontier				false

		1678						LN		64		19		false		       19   Communications, having been first duly sworn, was				false

		1679						LN		64		20		false		       20   examined and testified as follows:				false

		1680						LN		64		21		false		       21                      DIRECT EXAMINATION				false

		1681						LN		64		22		false		       22   BY MR. THOMSON:				false

		1682						LN		64		23		false		       23         Q.   Carlos, would you state your full name for				false

		1683						LN		64		24		false		       24   the record, please?				false

		1684						LN		64		25		false		       25         A.   Carlos J. Cardona.				false

		1685						PG		65		0		false		page 65				false

		1686						LN		65		1		false		        1         Q.   And would you spell your last name, please?				false

		1687						LN		65		2		false		        2         A.   C-A-R-D-O-N-A.				false

		1688						LN		65		3		false		        3         Q.   Thank you.  Are you an employee of Frontier				false

		1689						LN		65		4		false		        4   Communications?				false

		1690						LN		65		5		false		        5         A.   Yes.				false

		1691						LN		65		6		false		        6         Q.   How long have you been employed by Frontier?				false

		1692						LN		65		7		false		        7         A.   Five-and-a-half years.				false

		1693						LN		65		8		false		        8         Q.   Mr. Cardona, what is your job title?				false

		1694						LN		65		9		false		        9         A.   I'm the principal senior wireless architect				false

		1695						LN		65		10		false		       10   for Frontier Communications.				false

		1696						LN		65		11		false		       11         Q.   And in the capacity as the principal senior				false

		1697						LN		65		12		false		       12   architect for wireless communications, can you give us a				false

		1698						LN		65		13		false		       13   general overview of your duties?				false

		1699						LN		65		14		false		       14         A.   Yeah.  We oversee, for companywide,				false

		1700						LN		65		15		false		       15   nationwide, all the technology that gets deployed.  We				false

		1701						LN		65		16		false		       16   oversee 450 microwave links that we have deployed and				false

		1702						LN		65		17		false		       17   over 700 tower sites that we have deployed nationwide.				false

		1703						LN		65		18		false		       18         Q.   So you're familiar with microwave radio				false

		1704						LN		65		19		false		       19   systems like Sorrel River's and the other customers in				false

		1705						LN		65		20		false		       20   Castle Valley?				false

		1706						LN		65		21		false		       21         A.   The path -- the path from the microwave				false

		1707						LN		65		22		false		       22   network that is taken from Moab to Bald Mesa -- Bald				false

		1708						LN		65		23		false		       23   Mesa, Castle Valley, yes.  I'm not familiar from Castle				false

		1709						LN		65		24		false		       24   Valley forward.  I don't have any familiarity whatsoever				false

		1710						LN		65		25		false		       25   of what is happening on the network.				false

		1711						PG		66		0		false		page 66				false

		1712						LN		66		1		false		        1         Q.   Okay.  Fair enough.  Were you involved with				false

		1713						LN		66		2		false		        2   the December 18th replacement of the radio on Bald Mesa?				false

		1714						LN		66		3		false		        3         A.   Yes, I was.				false

		1715						LN		66		4		false		        4         Q.   Can you describe for us what the purpose of				false

		1716						LN		66		5		false		        5   that replacement was?				false

		1717						LN		66		6		false		        6         A.   The current radio that was installed, it was				false

		1718						LN		66		7		false		        7   what is called a TDM radio.  It's a radio only to deliver				false

		1719						LN		66		8		false		        8   analog circuits, voice, and data.  Analog circuits are				false

		1720						LN		66		9		false		        9   low speeds in -- for augmenting data for CAF, Connect				false

		1721						LN		66		10		false		       10   America Fund, purposes.				false

		1722						LN		66		11		false		       11              We required these radios, so we implemented				false

		1723						LN		66		12		false		       12   these radios over the network.  We have the same vendor				false

		1724						LN		66		13		false		       13   that we deploy.  We've already been utilizing them for				false

		1725						LN		66		14		false		       14   four years.  We have over 42 links nationwide with them,				false

		1726						LN		66		15		false		       15   and we did not register any issues in the last four years				false

		1727						LN		66		16		false		       16   with them.  We implemented the network in order to				false

		1728						LN		66		17		false		       17   augment the circuit, and that's why the radio was				false

		1729						LN		66		18		false		       18   replaced.				false

		1730						LN		66		19		false		       19         Q.   This was intended to be an upgrade?				false

		1731						LN		66		20		false		       20         A.   Yes.				false

		1732						LN		66		21		false		       21         Q.   And what was the name of the vendor whose				false

		1733						LN		66		22		false		       22   radio you used on December 18th?				false

		1734						LN		66		23		false		       23         A.   Cambium Networks.				false

		1735						LN		66		24		false		       24         Q.   Can you spell that for the record, please?				false

		1736						LN		66		25		false		       25         A.   C-A-M-B-I-U-M Networks.				false

		1737						PG		67		0		false		page 67				false

		1738						LN		67		1		false		        1         Q.   Okay.				false

		1739						LN		67		2		false		        2         A.   They are -- their headquarters are Rolling				false

		1740						LN		67		3		false		        3   Meadows, Illinois.				false

		1741						LN		67		4		false		        4         Q.   And once that radio came on line, what				false

		1742						LN		67		5		false		        5   happened next?				false

		1743						LN		67		6		false		        6         A.   The radio came on line, everything started,				false

		1744						LN		67		7		false		        7   all the processes and the cutovers came on line until				false

		1745						LN		67		8		false		        8   issues started affecting the performance on fading, and				false

		1746						LN		67		9		false		        9   we started to engage into mitigating those problems.  And				false

		1747						LN		67		10		false		       10   it's --				false

		1748						LN		67		11		false		       11         Q.   And when you say -- I'm sorry.				false

		1749						LN		67		12		false		       12         A.   And it's -- yes.				false

		1750						LN		67		13		false		       13         Q.   When you say you started to engage the				false

		1751						LN		67		14		false		       14   vendor, what happened?				false

		1752						LN		67		15		false		       15         A.   The vendor never provided adequate support,				false

		1753						LN		67		16		false		       16   so we ended up stranded.  We were with a contractor that				false

		1754						LN		67		17		false		       17   we had on the site and only phone support.  They were not				false

		1755						LN		67		18		false		       18   sending us new equipment, they were not sending us their				false

		1756						LN		67		19		false		       19   engineers to the site.  So we were dealing back and forth				false

		1757						LN		67		20		false		       20   with that situation.				false

		1758						LN		67		21		false		       21              Every time we adjust -- make adjustment into				false

		1759						LN		67		22		false		       22   the network, make adjustment to the radios, they'd work				false

		1760						LN		67		23		false		       23   for three or four days and then they start causing issues				false

		1761						LN		67		24		false		       24   again and to a point that I made a decision to switch the				false

		1762						LN		67		25		false		       25   radio.  And Mother Nature prevented me to change the				false

		1763						PG		68		0		false		page 68				false

		1764						LN		68		1		false		        1   radio earlier than I wanted to.				false

		1765						LN		68		2		false		        2         Q.   When did the radio get replaced?				false

		1766						LN		68		3		false		        3         A.   The radio got replaced in March.  I think				false

		1767						LN		68		4		false		        4   it's the week of March 20th.  That's when with the				false

		1768						LN		68		5		false		        5   weather -- you know, the weather was very, very				false

		1769						LN		68		6		false		        6   impenetrable, that mountain.  You know, having a snowcat				false

		1770						LN		68		7		false		        7   and not being able to bring it up is not safe for the				false

		1771						LN		68		8		false		        8   tower climbers.  Bald Mesa mountain is very risky when				false

		1772						LN		68		9		false		        9   there is a lot of ice on it.				false

		1773						LN		68		10		false		       10         Q.   And when you replaced the radio in March, did				false

		1774						LN		68		11		false		       11   you use another Cambium radio?				false

		1775						LN		68		12		false		       12         A.   No.  We eliminated them as a vendor for the				false

		1776						LN		68		13		false		       13   company.  We used an Aviat radio, A-V-I-A-T.  They are				false

		1777						LN		68		14		false		       14   out of Austin, Texas.				false

		1778						LN		68		15		false		       15         Q.   And what happened when you replaced the				false

		1779						LN		68		16		false		       16   radio?				false

		1780						LN		68		17		false		       17         A.   When we replaced the radio, we -- the				false

		1781						LN		68		18		false		       18   complete -- complete coordination with my technicians and				false

		1782						LN		68		19		false		       19   performance when testing, the timing calibrations, and				false

		1783						LN		68		20		false		       20   traffic got more stable and more adequate at that time,				false

		1784						LN		68		21		false		       21   removing the radio that was not holding the service				false

		1785						LN		68		22		false		       22   agreement or the quality agreement that it was assigning				false

		1786						LN		68		23		false		       23   to.				false

		1787						LN		68		24		false		       24         Q.   These are sometimes referred to as service				false

		1788						LN		68		25		false		       25   level agreements?				false

		1789						PG		69		0		false		page 69				false

		1790						LN		69		1		false		        1         A.   Yes.  Yeah.  When we -- when we approve				false

		1791						LN		69		2		false		        2   equipment internally in Frontier Communications, it goes				false

		1792						LN		69		3		false		        3   through our lab process -- our lab testing process.  We				false

		1793						LN		69		4		false		        4   put them through all these test processes.				false

		1794						LN		69		5		false		        5              Now, apparently, these new radios that were				false

		1795						LN		69		6		false		        6   sent out has a new voice queue.  And we approved that and				false

		1796						LN		69		7		false		        7   we determined service level agreements on operation with				false

		1797						LN		69		8		false		        8   the manufacturers.  Once those service level agreements				false

		1798						LN		69		9		false		        9   are not met, we eliminate the vendor from the network.				false

		1799						LN		69		10		false		       10         Q.   And what is your opinion regarding				false

		1800						LN		69		11		false		       11   performance of the new radio versus the Cambium radio?				false

		1801						LN		69		12		false		       12         A.   Well, the log says it all.  You know, that				false

		1802						LN		69		13		false		       13   radio, since it was put on, it -- it had no hiccups.  We				false

		1803						LN		69		14		false		       14   are now in the process of replacing the second leg,				false

		1804						LN		69		15		false		       15   another Cambium radio that is mounted that might refer				false

		1805						LN		69		16		false		       16   some hits here and there, and we're trying to clean those				false

		1806						LN		69		17		false		       17   too.  So we are replacing with another Aviat radio.  The				false

		1807						LN		69		18		false		       18   project got approved last night, and looking to replace				false

		1808						LN		69		19		false		       19   that radio next week.				false

		1809						LN		69		20		false		       20         Q.   And this is on the second leg?				false

		1810						LN		69		21		false		       21         A.   The second leg that will be Bald Mesa to				false

		1811						LN		69		22		false		       22   Castle Valley.				false

		1812						LN		69		23		false		       23         Q.   Okay.  And what do you expect that second				false

		1813						LN		69		24		false		       24   radio replacement to do?				false

		1814						LN		69		25		false		       25         A.   Clean the errors, the hits.  And also when				false

		1815						PG		70		0		false		page 70				false

		1816						LN		70		1		false		        1   the weather -- the situation on -- over the radio link is				false

		1817						LN		70		2		false		        2   that we have one path that is Bald Mesa to Castle Valley				false

		1818						LN		70		3		false		        3   that goes to a passive repeater.  A passive repeater is a				false

		1819						LN		70		4		false		        4   billboard that does not have any electronics.  Basically,				false

		1820						LN		70		5		false		        5   we're bouncing the signal to the mountain to the tower.				false

		1821						LN		70		6		false		        6   Every time we get weather, fog, diffraction, refraction,				false

		1822						LN		70		7		false		        7   which fades the radio signal, the QAM modulation of the				false

		1823						LN		70		8		false		        8   radio decreases.  The QAM modulation is the capacity of				false

		1824						LN		70		9		false		        9   the radio to maintain the bandwidth -- projected				false

		1825						LN		70		10		false		       10   bandwidth for certain receive level, then it effects				false

		1826						LN		70		11		false		       11   signal.				false

		1827						LN		70		12		false		       12              So the hits that Mike is seeing every time we				false

		1828						LN		70		13		false		       13   get wet fog, every time we get heavy rain or heavy fog,				false

		1829						LN		70		14		false		       14   this radio tends to fade and is not holding the QAM				false

		1830						LN		70		15		false		       15   modulation.  It does not drop the traffic completely				false

		1831						LN		70		16		false		       16   down, but it just holds it enough that it will -- the				false

		1832						LN		70		17		false		       17   test set that we have right now is connected 24/7				false

		1833						LN		70		18		false		       18   monitoring has registered those hits.				false

		1834						LN		70		19		false		       19              So I just made a decision to replace all the				false

		1835						LN		70		20		false		       20   radios and make this entire network completely flawless				false

		1836						LN		70		21		false		       21   at least from the RF side from end to end from Moab to				false

		1837						LN		70		22		false		       22   Castle Valley.				false

		1838						LN		70		23		false		       23         Q.   And RF is radio frequency?				false

		1839						LN		70		24		false		       24         A.   Yes, sir.				false

		1840						LN		70		25		false		       25         Q.   Mr. Cardona, how much experience do you have				false

		1841						PG		71		0		false		page 71				false

		1842						LN		71		1		false		        1   with microwave systems?				false

		1843						LN		71		2		false		        2         A.   I've been working on microwave radios since				false

		1844						LN		71		3		false		        3   1994.				false

		1845						LN		71		4		false		        4         Q.   And have you worked in other challenging				false

		1846						LN		71		5		false		        5   locations?				false

		1847						LN		71		6		false		        6         A.   Yes.  I spent seven years in the entire				false

		1848						LN		71		7		false		        7   continent of Africa.  I spent years in South America,				false

		1849						LN		71		8		false		        8   Central America, and the Caribbean dealing with a lot of				false

		1850						LN		71		9		false		        9   receptive recovery and a lot of terrain situations as				false

		1851						LN		71		10		false		       10   well.				false

		1852						LN		71		11		false		       11              MR. THOMSON:  Your Honor, we don't have any				false

		1853						LN		71		12		false		       12   further questions at this time.				false

		1854						LN		71		13		false		       13              HEARING OFFICER:  We'll go to Mr. Mecham.				false

		1855						LN		71		14		false		       14              REPORTER:  Mr. Cardona, I need you to speak				false

		1856						LN		71		15		false		       15   up, please.				false

		1857						LN		71		16		false		       16              HEARING OFFICER:  That was the court				false

		1858						LN		71		17		false		       17   reporter asking you to speak more loudly, Mr. Cardon.				false

		1859						LN		71		18		false		       18              THE WITNESS:  Yes.				false

		1860						LN		71		19		false		       19              MR. MECHAM:  Thank you.				false

		1861						LN		71		20		false		       20                      CROSS-EXAMINATION				false

		1862						LN		71		21		false		       21   BY MR. MECHAM:				false

		1863						LN		71		22		false		       22         Q.   Mr. Cardona, so now that that radio has been				false

		1864						LN		71		23		false		       23   switched out, as of March, there are no further problems				false

		1865						LN		71		24		false		       24   in Castle Valley?				false

		1866						LN		71		25		false		       25         A.   Well, on Castle Valley, Mike testified that				false

		1867						PG		72		0		false		page 72				false

		1868						LN		72		1		false		        1   there's been some hits here and there.  That's why I made				false

		1869						LN		72		2		false		        2   the decision to replace that second leg already.				false

		1870						LN		72		3		false		        3         Q.   So all of the customers, including Sorrel				false

		1871						LN		72		4		false		        4   River Ranch, can expect the network to be up and running				false

		1872						LN		72		5		false		        5   99 point something percent of the time?				false

		1873						LN		72		6		false		        6         A.   Four nines.  My goal is on the radio				false

		1874						LN		72		7		false		        7   network -- solely on the radio network, the goal is four				false

		1875						LN		72		8		false		        8   nines reliability.				false

		1876						LN		72		9		false		        9         Q.   Is what?  I'm sorry, I couldn't --				false

		1877						LN		72		10		false		       10         A.   Four nines, 99.99.				false

		1878						LN		72		11		false		       11         Q.   Were you aware of the problems before				false

		1879						LN		72		12		false		       12   December 18th that were going on that required the first				false

		1880						LN		72		13		false		       13   switchout?				false

		1881						LN		72		14		false		       14         A.   No, I was not.  I was involved on the Connect				false

		1882						LN		72		15		false		       15   America Fund project to run 18 radio projects to be				false

		1883						LN		72		16		false		       16   addressed, and this was one of them.				false

		1884						LN		72		17		false		       17         Q.   And there was nothing that could have been				false

		1885						LN		72		18		false		       18   done to prevent what did happen and what seems to				false

		1886						LN		72		19		false		       19   continue to be happening at Sorrel River Ranch?				false

		1887						LN		72		20		false		       20         A.   After the radio -- I wanted to replace this				false

		1888						LN		72		21		false		       21   radio in January and the weather was kicking heavy duty.				false

		1889						LN		72		22		false		       22   So the situation right now on the radio and the -- after				false

		1890						LN		72		23		false		       23   the new radio was replaced, the network is being very,				false

		1891						LN		72		24		false		       24   very stable.				false

		1892						LN		72		25		false		       25         Q.   But we act as though the radio was the cure,				false

		1893						PG		73		0		false		page 73				false

		1894						LN		73		1		false		        1   and yet there were still outages well before				false

		1895						LN		73		2		false		        2   December 18th of 2018.  Weren't there problems in the				false

		1896						LN		73		3		false		        3   network before that?				false

		1897						LN		73		4		false		        4         A.   Before December 18th --				false

		1898						LN		73		5		false		        5         Q.   Correct.				false

		1899						LN		73		6		false		        6         A.   -- I was not aware of huge outages at that				false

		1900						LN		73		7		false		        7   time.				false

		1901						LN		73		8		false		        8         Q.   Well, you are aware of the response that				false

		1902						LN		73		9		false		        9   Frontier gave, which was marked as SRR-3, that show				false

		1903						LN		73		10		false		       10   outages, not all of which affected Castle Valley, but				false

		1904						LN		73		11		false		       11   certainly some did and well before December 18th of 2018.				false

		1905						LN		73		12		false		       12   In other words --				false

		1906						LN		73		13		false		       13         A.   I'm not -- my duty's as the architect, I'm				false

		1907						LN		73		14		false		       14   not directing both in operations.				false

		1908						LN		73		15		false		       15         Q.   So you only focus on the microwave radio?				false

		1909						LN		73		16		false		       16         A.   On the microwave part -- part of the house,				false

		1910						LN		73		17		false		       17   yes.  Nothing on the operations.				false

		1911						LN		73		18		false		       18         Q.   So the troubles before that weren't your				false

		1912						LN		73		19		false		       19   concern?				false

		1913						LN		73		20		false		       20         A.   I was not aware of -- we were aware of, we				false

		1914						LN		73		21		false		       21   were working to mitigation, but we were not aware of				false

		1915						LN		73		22		false		       22   anything regarding that.				false

		1916						LN		73		23		false		       23         Q.   Do you know if Frontier has taken any action				false

		1917						LN		73		24		false		       24   against the first vendor, Cambium Networks?				false

		1918						LN		73		25		false		       25         A.   We are in process.  I'm not allowed to speak				false

		1919						PG		74		0		false		page 74				false

		1920						LN		74		1		false		        1   any further about it, but we are working internally.				false

		1921						LN		74		2		false		        2              MR. MECHAM:  And that's it for now,				false

		1922						LN		74		3		false		        3   Mr. Hammer.				false

		1923						LN		74		4		false		        4              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Moore?				false

		1924						LN		74		5		false		        5                      CROSS-EXAMINATION				false

		1925						LN		74		6		false		        6   BY MR. MOORE:				false

		1926						LN		74		7		false		        7         Q.   Just for the record, when will this second				false

		1927						LN		74		8		false		        8   radio be up and running?  When will the system be fully				false

		1928						LN		74		9		false		        9   operational after you set in the second radio link?				false

		1929						LN		74		10		false		       10         A.   Which one, the new one that I'm trying to				false

		1930						LN		74		11		false		       11   replace now or --				false

		1931						LN		74		12		false		       12         Q.   The one you're trying to replace.				false

		1932						LN		74		13		false		       13         A.   -- the second one that we were --				false

		1933						LN		74		14		false		       14         Q.   I'm sorry.  The one you're trying to replace				false

		1934						LN		74		15		false		       15   now.				false

		1935						LN		74		16		false		       16         A.   Okay.  Yeah.  First, I have to coordinate the				false

		1936						LN		74		17		false		       17   maintenance window with Mike Giles.  He's the officer				false

		1937						LN		74		18		false		       18   that will create the maintenance window.  The goal is to				false

		1938						LN		74		19		false		       19   do the cutover between Friday and Saturday.  That's the				false

		1939						LN		74		20		false		       20   goal.  But we're still working on some logistical				false

		1940						LN		74		21		false		       21   situation, but that's the goal, to do that next week.				false

		1941						LN		74		22		false		       22         Q.   So the -- the repairs on the second radio				false

		1942						LN		74		23		false		       23   will be done this time next week?				false

		1943						LN		74		24		false		       24         A.   We will be doing early morning hours, 1:00 or				false

		1944						LN		74		25		false		       25   2:00 a.m. in the morning, yes.				false

		1945						PG		75		0		false		page 75				false

		1946						LN		75		1		false		        1              MR. MOORE:  Thank you.  I have no further				false

		1947						LN		75		2		false		        2   questions.				false

		1948						LN		75		3		false		        3              HEARING OFFICER:  Just a point of				false

		1949						LN		75		4		false		        4   clarification from me, Mr. Cardona.				false

		1950						LN		75		5		false		        5              With respect to this -- what we'll call the				false

		1951						LN		75		6		false		        6   second radio that you're working to have installed next				false

		1952						LN		75		7		false		        7   week, there is not presently a radio at that location,				false

		1953						LN		75		8		false		        8   right.				false

		1954						LN		75		9		false		        9              THE WITNESS:  Yes.  There is a Cambium radio				false

		1955						LN		75		10		false		       10   installed right now, which completes the circuit from				false

		1956						LN		75		11		false		       11   Bald Mesa to Castle Valley.  We are going to replace				false

		1957						LN		75		12		false		       12   that Cambium radio with another new Aviat radio.				false

		1958						LN		75		13		false		       13              HEARING OFFICER:  I'm sorry, I misunderstood				false

		1959						LN		75		14		false		       14   you.  So this will simply be an upgraded radio?				false

		1960						LN		75		15		false		       15              THE WITNESS:  Yes.  We're going to upgrade				false

		1961						LN		75		16		false		       16   the radio.  Upgrading this radio will also include more				false

		1962						LN		75		17		false		       17   reliability and a little bit more QAM modulation to add				false

		1963						LN		75		18		false		       18   a little bit more bandwidth to the network, adding more				false

		1964						LN		75		19		false		       19   stability.				false

		1965						LN		75		20		false		       20              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Thank you.				false

		1966						LN		75		21		false		       21              Mr. Thomson, any redirect?				false

		1967						LN		75		22		false		       22              MR. THOMSON:  No, sir.  Thank you.				false

		1968						LN		75		23		false		       23              HEARING OFFICER:  Do you have something?				false

		1969						LN		75		24		false		       24   All right.  Thank you, Mr. Cardona.				false

		1970						LN		75		25		false		       25              Your next witness, Mr. Thomson.				false

		1971						PG		76		0		false		page 76				false

		1972						LN		76		1		false		        1              MR. THOMSON:  We'll call Mr. Erhart, Your				false

		1973						LN		76		2		false		        2   Honor.				false

		1974						LN		76		3		false		        3              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Erhart, do you swear				false

		1975						LN		76		4		false		        4   to tell the truth?				false

		1976						LN		76		5		false		        5              THE WITNESS:  I do.				false

		1977						LN		76		6		false		        6                         CARL ERHART,				false

		1978						LN		76		7		false		        7   called as a witness by and on behalf of Frontier				false

		1979						LN		76		8		false		        8   Communications, having been first duly sworn, was				false

		1980						LN		76		9		false		        9   examined and testified as follows:				false

		1981						LN		76		10		false		       10                      DIRECT EXAMINATION				false

		1982						LN		76		11		false		       11   BY MR. THOMSON:				false

		1983						LN		76		12		false		       12         Q.   Mr. Erhart, would you state your name for the				false

		1984						LN		76		13		false		       13   record, please?				false

		1985						LN		76		14		false		       14         A.   My name is Carl E. Erhart.				false

		1986						LN		76		15		false		       15         Q.   And are you employed by Frontier				false

		1987						LN		76		16		false		       16   Communications?				false

		1988						LN		76		17		false		       17         A.   Yes, I am.				false

		1989						LN		76		18		false		       18         Q.   In what capacity?				false

		1990						LN		76		19		false		       19         A.   I'm vice president for regulatory and				false

		1991						LN		76		20		false		       20   governmental affairs.				false

		1992						LN		76		21		false		       21         Q.   And what jurisdictions do you cover in that				false

		1993						LN		76		22		false		       22   capacity?				false

		1994						LN		76		23		false		       23         A.   I oversee several state jurisdictions				false

		1995						LN		76		24		false		       24   primarily in the western half of the country, but for				false

		1996						LN		76		25		false		       25   California.				false

		1997						PG		77		0		false		page 77				false

		1998						LN		77		1		false		        1         Q.   Including Utah?				false

		1999						LN		77		2		false		        2         A.   Including Utah.				false

		2000						LN		77		3		false		        3         Q.   How long have you been with the company, sir?				false

		2001						LN		77		4		false		        4         A.   Been employed with Frontier for just over				false

		2002						LN		77		5		false		        5   three years.				false

		2003						LN		77		6		false		        6         Q.   Are you familiar with the Connect America				false

		2004						LN		77		7		false		        7   Fund for efforts that the company's conducting?				false

		2005						LN		77		8		false		        8         A.   I would say generally.				false

		2006						LN		77		9		false		        9         Q.   And can you give us a short overview of what				false

		2007						LN		77		10		false		       10   the Connect America Fund is designed to do?				false

		2008						LN		77		11		false		       11         A.   Sure.  The Connect America Fund, at a high				false

		2009						LN		77		12		false		       12   level, basically replaced the prior Universal Service				false

		2010						LN		77		13		false		       13   high-cost support for voice services in the state, and				false

		2011						LN		77		14		false		       14   the Connect America Fund is meant primarily to support				false

		2012						LN		77		15		false		       15   the deployment of broadband services in very high-cost				false

		2013						LN		77		16		false		       16   areas.				false

		2014						LN		77		17		false		       17              And so for companies like Frontier that are				false

		2015						LN		77		18		false		       18   price cap companies at the federal level, funding was				false

		2016						LN		77		19		false		       19   made available for companies to accept on a state basis				false

		2017						LN		77		20		false		       20   for deployment of broadband services that met certain				false

		2018						LN		77		21		false		       21   speed requirements in certain census blocks that the FCC				false

		2019						LN		77		22		false		       22   had identified as high cost.				false

		2020						LN		77		23		false		       23         Q.   Do you know if there's a company contribution				false

		2021						LN		77		24		false		       24   toward these projects?				false

		2022						LN		77		25		false		       25         A.   There could be.  I mean, the FCC model				false

		2023						PG		78		0		false		page 78				false

		2024						LN		78		1		false		        1   determined a -- you know, based on their model, an				false

		2025						LN		78		2		false		        2   estimate to deploy broadband services and, therefore,				false

		2026						LN		78		3		false		        3   made funding available based on that.  And once the				false

		2027						LN		78		4		false		        4   company accepts the money, they're committed to deploy				false

		2028						LN		78		5		false		        5   service past the predetermined number of households and				false

		2029						LN		78		6		false		        6   business locations within those census blocks.				false

		2030						LN		78		7		false		        7         Q.   And, to your knowledge, were CAF funds used				false

		2031						LN		78		8		false		        8   to replace the radio in December of 2018?				false

		2032						LN		78		9		false		        9         A.   That's my understanding, that it was part of				false

		2033						LN		78		10		false		       10   the CAF deployment for the census blocks within the Moab				false

		2034						LN		78		11		false		       11   exchange.				false

		2035						LN		78		12		false		       12              MR. THOMSON:  Your Honor, I don't have any				false

		2036						LN		78		13		false		       13   further questions.				false

		2037						LN		78		14		false		       14              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Mecham?				false

		2038						LN		78		15		false		       15              MR. MECHAM:  Thank you.				false

		2039						LN		78		16		false		       16                      CROSS-EXAMINATION				false

		2040						LN		78		17		false		       17   BY MR. MECHAM:				false

		2041						LN		78		18		false		       18         Q.   Mr. Erhart, in what we've marked as SRR-2,				false

		2042						LN		78		19		false		       19   the general responses to Sorrel River Ranch's data				false

		2043						LN		78		20		false		       20   requests at 1.12 we asked why Frontier has not tried to				false

		2044						LN		78		21		false		       21   obtain funds from the state Universal Service Fund in				false

		2045						LN		78		22		false		       22   order to upgrade the network facilities serving Castle				false

		2046						LN		78		23		false		       23   Valley and Professor Valley and Sorrel River Ranch, and				false

		2047						LN		78		24		false		       24   the response was less than detailed.				false

		2048						LN		78		25		false		       25              You'll see there that it says, "Eligibility				false

		2049						PG		79		0		false		page 79				false

		2050						LN		79		1		false		        1   for State High Cost Universal Fund Support is determined				false

		2051						LN		79		2		false		        2   by the PSC, which is now based on an annual DPU analysis				false

		2052						LN		79		3		false		        3   and recommendation."				false

		2053						LN		79		4		false		        4              Does that mean that Frontier can't qualify				false

		2054						LN		79		5		false		        5   under the criteria?				false

		2055						LN		79		6		false		        6         A.   My understanding is the PSC determined that				false

		2056						LN		79		7		false		        7   Frontier no longer qualified for Universal Service Funds				false

		2057						LN		79		8		false		        8   support beginning sometime in 2007 and hasn't qualified				false

		2058						LN		79		9		false		        9   since.				false

		2059						LN		79		10		false		       10         Q.   And do you know what was the				false

		2060						LN		79		11		false		       11   disqualification?				false

		2061						LN		79		12		false		       12         A.   I don't know.  I wasn't employed by Frontier				false

		2062						LN		79		13		false		       13   in 2007.  I assume it was an analysis done by the DPU.				false

		2063						LN		79		14		false		       14         Q.   But you've been employed for the last three				false

		2064						LN		79		15		false		       15   years and haven't qualified for any of those years?				false

		2065						LN		79		16		false		       16         A.   That's correct.				false

		2066						LN		79		17		false		       17         Q.   Okay.  I have an exhibit.  I guess we're up				false

		2067						LN		79		18		false		       18   to 4.  You'll see, Mr. Erhart, this is a memorandum from				false

		2068						LN		79		19		false		       19   the Division of Public Utilities to the Public Service				false

		2069						LN		79		20		false		       20   Commission.  It's in Docket 18-041-02, which apparently				false

		2070						LN		79		21		false		       21   is the analysis that the Division did to determine				false

		2071						LN		79		22		false		       22   whether or not Frontier qualified for USF funds then,				false

		2072						LN		79		23		false		       23   which, of course, was only six or seven months ago.				false

		2073						LN		79		24		false		       24              And if you look at the second page under				false

		2074						LN		79		25		false		       25   Discussion No. 3, it says, "Accumulated Depreciation -				false

		2075						PG		80		0		false		page 80				false

		2076						LN		80		1		false		        1   Citizens reported," which is Frontier's parent company,				false

		2077						LN		80		2		false		        2   as you know -- "Citizens reported more than $117.7 of				false

		2078						LN		80		3		false		        3   accumulated depreciation.  Over 95 percent of the				false

		2079						LN		80		4		false		        4   company's assets are fully depreciated.  There is very				false

		2080						LN		80		5		false		        5   little rate base left as a basis for return on				false

		2081						LN		80		6		false		        6   investment."				false

		2082						LN		80		7		false		        7              Doesn't that indicate that Frontier is not				false

		2083						LN		80		8		false		        8   investing in the State of Utah?				false

		2084						LN		80		9		false		        9         A.   No, I wouldn't agree with that.				false

		2085						LN		80		10		false		       10         Q.   Why?				false

		2086						LN		80		11		false		       11         A.   Well, a couple of things.  One, I don't think				false

		2087						LN		80		12		false		       12   this is uncommon for ILECs in the industry to be in this				false

		2088						LN		80		13		false		       13   position, and I would say it's analogous to where the				false

		2089						LN		80		14		false		       14   water companies are.  And I think what's happened with				false

		2090						LN		80		15		false		       15   telecom, and Frontier, in particular, has been a				false

		2091						LN		80		16		false		       16   significant decline in a number of access lines that it				false

		2092						LN		80		17		false		       17   serves.  So we have a large rate base that has been on				false

		2093						LN		80		18		false		       18   the books for a number of years that's being depreciated				false

		2094						LN		80		19		false		       19   that was initially deployed to serve a much greater				false

		2095						LN		80		20		false		       20   number of customers.				false

		2096						LN		80		21		false		       21              And over the years, because of the line loss,				false

		2097						LN		80		22		false		       22   that vast network, if you will, serves fewer customers.				false

		2098						LN		80		23		false		       23   So if you just look at the investment, you might conclude				false

		2099						LN		80		24		false		       24   that it hasn't been significant relative to the total				false

		2100						LN		80		25		false		       25   rate base.  But relative to the number of customers that				false

		2101						PG		81		0		false		page 81				false

		2102						LN		81		1		false		        1   remain on the network, I would say the company continues				false

		2103						LN		81		2		false		        2   to invest in the network.				false

		2104						LN		81		3		false		        3         Q.   With 5 percent -- 5 percent investment,				false

		2105						LN		81		4		false		        4   essentially?				false

		2106						LN		81		5		false		        5         A.   Again, the access lines have decreased				false

		2107						LN		81		6		false		        6   significantly.  It's not uncommon since 2004 ILECs to				false

		2108						LN		81		7		false		        7   have lost 70 to 80 percent of the access lines that they				false

		2109						LN		81		8		false		        8   once served.				false

		2110						LN		81		9		false		        9         Q.   Are you aware of how many other independent				false

		2111						LN		81		10		false		       10   rural companies don't get Universal Service Funds?				false

		2112						LN		81		11		false		       11         A.   In Utah?				false

		2113						LN		81		12		false		       12         Q.   Yes.				false

		2114						LN		81		13		false		       13         A.   No, I'm not.				false

		2115						LN		81		14		false		       14         Q.   Would you accept, subject to check, that it's				false

		2116						LN		81		15		false		       15   very few, it might be two?				false

		2117						LN		81		16		false		       16         A.   If that's a representation, I have no reason				false

		2118						LN		81		17		false		       17   to disagree.  Also, understand, CenturyLink wouldn't				false

		2119						LN		81		18		false		       18   qualify for it, either.				false

		2120						LN		81		19		false		       19         Q.   CenturyLink wouldn't.  They're the large				false

		2121						LN		81		20		false		       20   incumbent.  They've never gotten Universal Service Funds				false

		2122						LN		81		21		false		       21   from the state ever.  But the rural independents,				false

		2123						LN		81		22		false		       22   including Frontier, and Contel before, have, until 2007,				false

		2124						LN		81		23		false		       23   both, according to your response as well as the response				false

		2125						LN		81		24		false		       24   in the data request.				false

		2126						LN		81		25		false		       25         A.   Well, again, I think as the company responded				false

		2127						PG		82		0		false		page 82				false

		2128						LN		82		1		false		        1   in the data request, the determination of whether				false

		2129						LN		82		2		false		        2   citizens of Utah would qualify for Universal Service				false

		2130						LN		82		3		false		        3   Funds could be done on a couple different bases.  For				false

		2131						LN		82		4		false		        4   example, I think if you looked at the company's				false

		2132						LN		82		5		false		        5   intrastate operations, the company's net operation -- net				false

		2133						LN		82		6		false		        6   operating margin is negative.				false

		2134						LN		82		7		false		        7              So many states look at the qualifications of				false

		2135						LN		82		8		false		        8   Universal Service Funds on the basis of intrastate				false

		2136						LN		82		9		false		        9   operations, and they look at it on the basis of a				false

		2137						LN		82		10		false		       10   net-operating-margin basis, not on a return-on-rate				false

		2138						LN		82		11		false		       11   basis.				false

		2139						LN		82		12		false		       12              So if you looked at it on that basis, then				false

		2140						LN		82		13		false		       13   Frontier's operating company could qualify for Universal				false

		2141						LN		82		14		false		       14   Service funding and it could be significant, as it was --				false

		2142						LN		82		15		false		       15   as I understand, back in the mid 2000s, the company				false

		2143						LN		82		16		false		       16   received roughly $1.5 million a year.				false

		2144						LN		82		17		false		       17         Q.   Well, it just seems to me that it looks like				false

		2145						LN		82		18		false		       18   neglect of the state if 95 --				false

		2146						LN		82		19		false		       19         A.   I've never heard of --				false

		2147						LN		82		20		false		       20              MR. THOMSON:  Your Honor, I'm going to				false

		2148						LN		82		21		false		       21   object to that.  I don't object to leading questions,				false

		2149						LN		82		22		false		       22   but I don't want argument inserted into the question.				false

		2150						LN		82		23		false		       23   If Mr. Mecham has a question, he should ask it.				false

		2151						LN		82		24		false		       24              HEARING OFFICER:  I'll sustain the				false

		2152						LN		82		25		false		       25   objection.  I hadn't heard a question yet, but you were				false

		2153						PG		83		0		false		page 83				false

		2154						LN		83		1		false		        1   interrupted.  So if you'd like to rephrase and offer a				false

		2155						LN		83		2		false		        2   question, you're welcome to.				false

		2156						LN		83		3		false		        3         Q.   (BY MR. MECHAM)  Do you know how the formula				false

		2157						LN		83		4		false		        4   works for the state USF?				false

		2158						LN		83		5		false		        5         A.   At a high level.				false

		2159						LN		83		6		false		        6         Q.   So you know that in order to qualify, you				false

		2160						LN		83		7		false		        7   have to have undepreciated rate base, you have to have				false

		2161						LN		83		8		false		        8   costs that exceed your authorized rate of return to make				false

		2162						LN		83		9		false		        9   up that difference, or do you not know that?				false

		2163						LN		83		10		false		       10         A.   I would say in addition to that, the state				false

		2164						LN		83		11		false		       11   also looks at the non-intrastate jurisdiction.				false

		2165						LN		83		12		false		       12         Q.   That is correct.  I agree with that.  That's				false

		2166						LN		83		13		false		       13   part of the statute to ensure that you don't get unjustly				false

		2167						LN		83		14		false		       14   enriched by the interstate side.  Is that your				false

		2168						LN		83		15		false		       15   understanding?				false

		2169						LN		83		16		false		       16         A.   I assume that's the logic behind it.				false

		2170						LN		83		17		false		       17         Q.   Okay.				false

		2171						LN		83		18		false		       18         A.   But, again, if you were to determine the				false

		2172						LN		83		19		false		       19   company's cost of service, I'll say for rate case				false

		2173						LN		83		20		false		       20   purposes, it would be on the basis of intrastate results,				false

		2174						LN		83		21		false		       21   which, again, based on the company's most recent annual				false

		2175						LN		83		22		false		       22   report, its net operating margin on an intrastate basis				false

		2176						LN		83		23		false		       23   is negative.				false

		2177						LN		83		24		false		       24              And earlier you seemed to imply that the				false

		2178						LN		83		25		false		       25   company could qualify for Universal Service Funds support				false

		2179						PG		84		0		false		page 84				false

		2180						LN		84		1		false		        1   on some type of project basis.  But, again, my				false

		2181						LN		84		2		false		        2   understanding of current rules and the statute is that				false

		2182						LN		84		3		false		        3   that is limited to a non-rate of return regulated				false

		2183						LN		84		4		false		        4   company, which in Utah would only be CenturyLink.				false

		2184						LN		84		5		false		        5         Q.   Right.  CenturyLink has never qualified for				false

		2185						LN		84		6		false		        6   funds.				false

		2186						LN		84		7		false		        7         A.   Right, but could, on a project basis.				false

		2187						LN		84		8		false		        8         Q.   A one-time basis.  That may have happened a				false

		2188						LN		84		9		false		        9   time or two, I can't remember.				false

		2189						LN		84		10		false		       10         A.   Right.				false

		2190						LN		84		11		false		       11              MR. MECHAM:  Okay.  I think that's it for				false

		2191						LN		84		12		false		       12   me, Mr. Hammer.				false

		2192						LN		84		13		false		       13              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Moore?				false

		2193						LN		84		14		false		       14              MR. MOORE:  Just one quick question.				false

		2194						LN		84		15		false		       15                      CROSS-EXAMINATION				false

		2195						LN		84		16		false		       16   BY MR. MOORE:				false

		2196						LN		84		17		false		       17         Q.   As -- you work with regulatory affairs for				false

		2197						LN		84		18		false		       18   the state -- state regulatory affairs?				false

		2198						LN		84		19		false		       19         A.   I do, across a number of states.				false

		2199						LN		84		20		false		       20         Q.   Do you know if there's a description of				false

		2200						LN		84		21		false		       21   Frontier's inspection and maintenance and testing program				false

		2201						LN		84		22		false		       22   filed with the Public Service Commission?				false

		2202						LN		84		23		false		       23         A.   I am not aware.				false

		2203						LN		84		24		false		       24              MR. MOORE:  That's it.				false

		2204						LN		84		25		false		       25         Q.   (BY MR. MOORE)  You're not aware of -- I'm				false

		2205						PG		85		0		false		page 85				false

		2206						LN		85		1		false		        1   sorry.  Would you know if one was filed?				false

		2207						LN		85		2		false		        2         A.   I would not necessarily know.  Frontier has a				false

		2208						LN		85		3		false		        3   centralized, I'll say, compliance team that would prepare				false

		2209						LN		85		4		false		        4   a report like that, assuming there's one that's required				false

		2210						LN		85		5		false		        5   to be prepared.  So I'm not aware of whether there is a				false

		2211						LN		85		6		false		        6   report required to be filed or not.				false

		2212						LN		85		7		false		        7              MR. MOORE:  Thank you.  I have no further				false

		2213						LN		85		8		false		        8   questions.				false

		2214						LN		85		9		false		        9              MR. MECHAM:  Mr. Hammer, I neglected to move				false

		2215						LN		85		10		false		       10   for admission of SRR-4.				false

		2216						LN		85		11		false		       11              MR. THOMSON:  We don't object, Your Honor.				false

		2217						LN		85		12		false		       12              HEARING OFFICER:  It's admitted.				false

		2218						LN		85		13		false		       13              I don't have any questions for Mr. Erhart.				false

		2219						LN		85		14		false		       14              Did you intend to call any other witnesses,				false

		2220						LN		85		15		false		       15   Mr. Thomson?				false

		2221						LN		85		16		false		       16              MR. THOMSON:  No, Your Honor.  We're going				false

		2222						LN		85		17		false		       17   to rest.				false

		2223						LN		85		18		false		       18              HEARING OFFICER:  And, Mr. Moore, you had no				false

		2224						LN		85		19		false		       19   witnesses?				false

		2225						LN		85		20		false		       20              MR. MOORE:  No witnesses.				false

		2226						LN		85		21		false		       21              HEARING OFFICER:  If the parties don't mind,				false

		2227						LN		85		22		false		       22   I have just a couple of questions I'd like to go back				false

		2228						LN		85		23		false		       23   and ask a couple of witnesses for clarification,				false

		2229						LN		85		24		false		       24   beginning with Mr. Giles.  I think you're the most				false

		2230						LN		85		25		false		       25   appropriate party for this question.				false

		2231						PG		86		0		false		page 86				false

		2232						LN		86		1		false		        1              The discussion we just heard about the				false

		2233						LN		86		2		false		        2   company's eligibility for Utah USF seems to imply that,				false

		2234						LN		86		3		false		        3   perhaps, if additional capital were made available for				false

		2235						LN		86		4		false		        4   Utah, that the service in this area could be improved.				false

		2236						LN		86		5		false		        5              Are there particular improvements that				false

		2237						LN		86		6		false		        6   you're aware of that could be made if the company were				false

		2238						LN		86		7		false		        7   willing to spend the money that would increase the				false

		2239						LN		86		8		false		        8   reliability of this service to the Ranch?				false

		2240						LN		86		9		false		        9              MR. GILES:  No, I'm not aware of any.  I				false

		2241						LN		86		10		false		       10   mean, the second leg that Carlos talked about will				false

		2242						LN		86		11		false		       11   certainly help this clarification that the radio that				false

		2243						LN		86		12		false		       12   was replaced initially was Moab to Bald Mesa, and then				false

		2244						LN		86		13		false		       13   the Bald Mesa to Castle Valley was not replaced in				false

		2245						LN		86		14		false		       14   March.  That wasn't, at that time, indicated that was				false

		2246						LN		86		15		false		       15   the issue.  Now we're going to replace that second leg				false

		2247						LN		86		16		false		       16   that I talked about.  The assumption at this point in				false

		2248						LN		86		17		false		       17   time is that will provide the reliable service to that				false

		2249						LN		86		18		false		       18   area.				false

		2250						LN		86		19		false		       19              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Mecham -- and I'll				false

		2251						LN		86		20		false		       20   allow you to answer this question in the form of simple				false

		2252						LN		86		21		false		       21   argument from counsel, if you like, or you're welcome to				false

		2253						LN		86		22		false		       22   offer a witness's testimony.  But the way I read that				false

		2254						LN		86		23		false		       23   line of questioning was that there's potentially a				false

		2255						LN		86		24		false		       24   concern that there's money that could be spent to fix				false

		2256						LN		86		25		false		       25   things or make them better and it's not being spent.				false

		2257						PG		87		0		false		page 87				false

		2258						LN		87		1		false		        1              Do you have any idea on -- what that money				false

		2259						LN		87		2		false		        2   might be spent on to do so?				false

		2260						LN		87		3		false		        3              MR. MECHAM:  We're aware that there is at				false

		2261						LN		87		4		false		        4   least -- well, let's put it this way:  I've heard from				false

		2262						LN		87		5		false		        5   one other company who would like to serve the territory				false

		2263						LN		87		6		false		        6   and do what's necessary in order to serve that area.  I				false

		2264						LN		87		7		false		        7   also am aware of another company who is making the				false

		2265						LN		87		8		false		        8   investment to serve the area, and they're using				false

		2266						LN		87		9		false		        9   different technology than this.				false

		2267						LN		87		10		false		       10              I think that there is better technology to				false

		2268						LN		87		11		false		       11   implement and, in fact, there's precedent to require new				false

		2269						LN		87		12		false		       12   and different technology by the Supreme Court in a				false

		2270						LN		87		13		false		       13   Public Service Commission case in 1994, what's called a				false

		2271						LN		87		14		false		       14   modernization case, to force the upgrade of the network				false

		2272						LN		87		15		false		       15   to provide the kind of services -- it doesn't matter				false

		2273						LN		87		16		false		       16   that they're remote, there are remote areas all over the				false

		2274						LN		87		17		false		       17   state being served so much better than what Frontier is				false

		2275						LN		87		18		false		       18   doing to the point that it's laughable to say that what				false

		2276						LN		87		19		false		       19   they're doing has done the job or will do the job.				false

		2277						LN		87		20		false		       20              And, in fact, I would argue that -- two				false

		2278						LN		87		21		false		       21   things.  One, the instance that there is a competitor or				false

		2279						LN		87		22		false		       22   competitive option, everybody, including and especially				false

		2280						LN		87		23		false		       23   Sorrel River Ranch, should be relieved from any contract				false

		2281						LN		87		24		false		       24   they've signed if they can get better service than what				false

		2282						LN		87		25		false		       25   we're getting now at comparable or better rates.				false

		2283						PG		88		0		false		page 88				false

		2284						LN		88		1		false		        1              And, two, if this can't be resolved in the				false

		2285						LN		88		2		false		        2   next week or two -- as you've heard from Mr. Ciani,				false

		2286						LN		88		3		false		        3   they're already down $214,000 in their business year to				false

		2287						LN		88		4		false		        4   date.  So I, frankly, would move that there be an order				false

		2288						LN		88		5		false		        5   to show cause why Frontier should not have their				false

		2289						LN		88		6		false		        6   certificate revoked in that area.  That's the kind of				false

		2290						LN		88		7		false		        7   service that they're getting and that's how serious we				false

		2291						LN		88		8		false		        8   are.				false

		2292						LN		88		9		false		        9              So I've -- Mr. Hammer, I've not held myself				false

		2293						LN		88		10		false		       10   out as a technology specialist, but I know inadequate				false

		2294						LN		88		11		false		       11   and terrible service when I see it.  And I know that				false

		2295						LN		88		12		false		       12   there are other areas of the state served by other				false

		2296						LN		88		13		false		       13   companies with new and different technologies, fiber,				false

		2297						LN		88		14		false		       14   for instance, that can serve this area much better than				false

		2298						LN		88		15		false		       15   what's going on right now.				false

		2299						LN		88		16		false		       16              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  We'll table				false

		2300						LN		88		17		false		       17   discussion of your motion and discuss potential remedies				false

		2301						LN		88		18		false		       18   when we're through with testimony.  Thank you for				false

		2302						LN		88		19		false		       19   answering my question.				false

		2303						LN		88		20		false		       20              I will -- since you offered some significant				false

		2304						LN		88		21		false		       21   argument on that point, I'll allow Mr. Thomson an				false

		2305						LN		88		22		false		       22   opportunity to speak to it, if you'd like to at this				false

		2306						LN		88		23		false		       23   time.  You'll also have an opportunity to offer any				false

		2307						LN		88		24		false		       24   closing argument you like.				false

		2308						LN		88		25		false		       25              MR. THOMSON:  Well, aside from the				false

		2309						PG		89		0		false		page 89				false

		2310						LN		89		1		false		        1   jurisdictional issues that Mr. Mecham's argument raises,				false

		2311						LN		89		2		false		        2   you know, there's been no evidence placed in the record				false

		2312						LN		89		3		false		        3   that there is better technology that's available at a				false

		2313						LN		89		4		false		        4   reasonable price to serve the ranch.				false

		2314						LN		89		5		false		        5              Now, his presumption that fiber to the ranch				false

		2315						LN		89		6		false		        6   might be a good idea, that might be true, but at what				false

		2316						LN		89		7		false		        7   expense?  The company is already not earning, as a				false

		2317						LN		89		8		false		        8   matter of fact is negative, as shown by the testimony of				false

		2318						LN		89		9		false		        9   Mr. Erhart.  So the available capital to deploy				false

		2319						LN		89		10		false		       10   something like this -- certainly, we could build a				false

		2320						LN		89		11		false		       11   better mousetrap if we had an unlimited amount of money.				false

		2321						LN		89		12		false		       12   But as we've already seen today, there's no state USF				false

		2322						LN		89		13		false		       13   money available to the company to improve this network.				false

		2323						LN		89		14		false		       14              The company's taken advantage of the federal				false

		2324						LN		89		15		false		       15   funds available to improve this network, and it				false

		2325						LN		89		16		false		       16   continues, based on the testimony of Mr. Cardona, to				false

		2326						LN		89		17		false		       17   improve the network.  The insinuation that this is				false

		2327						LN		89		18		false		       18   horrible, terrible service may be a fair comment with				false

		2328						LN		89		19		false		       19   regard to the period between December 18th and				false

		2329						LN		89		20		false		       20   March 21st, when the defective radio was installed and				false

		2330						LN		89		21		false		       21   then had to be replaced.  Post that, even with the				false

		2331						LN		89		22		false		       22   software -- which we don't really have a foundation for				false

		2332						LN		89		23		false		       23   understanding, the software report submitted by				false

		2333						LN		89		24		false		       24   Mr. Ciani, there is nothing after one incident reported				false

		2334						LN		89		25		false		       25   in April.				false

		2335						PG		90		0		false		page 90				false

		2336						LN		90		1		false		        1              And we don't know what this "Minutes				false

		2337						LN		90		2		false		        2   Downtime" means.  I mean, as we understand it, this				false

		2338						LN		90		3		false		        3   software really looks at the ISP's performance, not a				false

		2339						LN		90		4		false		        4   network performance.  Those are apples and oranges, so				false

		2340						LN		90		5		false		        5   I'm not sure that that tells us much with regard to the				false

		2341						LN		90		6		false		        6   service quality that Mr. Mecham maintains is not				false

		2342						LN		90		7		false		        7   adequate.				false

		2343						LN		90		8		false		        8              HEARING OFFICER:  I think you've answered my				false

		2344						LN		90		9		false		        9   question.  I definitely will give both parties an				false

		2345						LN		90		10		false		       10   opportunity to present any closing argument they want.				false

		2346						LN		90		11		false		       11   I want to get back to just the factual issues that I				false

		2347						LN		90		12		false		       12   want to address.				false

		2348						LN		90		13		false		       13              MR. THOMSON:  Certainly, Your Honor.				false

		2349						LN		90		14		false		       14              HEARING OFFICER:  But thank you.				false

		2350						LN		90		15		false		       15              Mr. Ciani, Mr. Thomson actually anticipated				false

		2351						LN		90		16		false		       16   a question I was going to ask you with respect to				false

		2352						LN		90		17		false		       17   Exhibit SRR-1, the report from Binary Canary, if I				false

		2353						LN		90		18		false		       18   recall the name of that correctly.  The last reported				false

		2354						LN		90		19		false		       19   incident of the software reflects a date of April 15th.				false

		2355						LN		90		20		false		       20              Have there been incidents since April 15th?				false

		2356						LN		90		21		false		       21              MR. CIANI:  You know, that I'm aware, I know				false

		2357						LN		90		22		false		       22   that there was at least two, potentially three,				false

		2358						LN		90		23		false		       23   instances, after the microwave was -- or the radio was				false

		2359						LN		90		24		false		       24   installed and there was at least one occurrence -- and I				false

		2360						LN		90		25		false		       25   sent an email to, I believe, everybody that was in the				false

		2361						PG		91		0		false		page 91				false

		2362						LN		91		1		false		        1   chain on these communications leading up to this				false

		2363						LN		91		2		false		        2   hearing, letting everybody know that we were down again.				false

		2364						LN		91		3		false		        3              And I believe at least two times Mitch, who				false

		2365						LN		91		4		false		        4   may still be on the phone, came to visit the property.				false

		2366						LN		91		5		false		        5   And by the time he had shown up to the property, the				false

		2367						LN		91		6		false		        6   issue had been remedied.  I cannot confirm exactly what				false

		2368						LN		91		7		false		        7   day this report was pulled, so -- and I'm not always				false

		2369						LN		91		8		false		        8   physically on the ranch, but what I can tell you is that				false

		2370						LN		91		9		false		        9   we've had at least several.  And I think that Frontier				false

		2371						LN		91		10		false		       10   has confirmed their radio hits after they fixed the				false

		2372						LN		91		11		false		       11   issue that continues to happen.				false

		2373						LN		91		12		false		       12              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  And I'm going				false

		2374						LN		91		13		false		       13   to jump around just a bit.				false

		2375						LN		91		14		false		       14              Mr. Cardona, if you're still on the line,				false

		2376						LN		91		15		false		       15   feel free to answer this.  Mr. Thomson, if you have				false

		2377						LN		91		16		false		       16   another witness that you think is prepared to answer it,				false

		2378						LN		91		17		false		       17   that's fine.  I'd just simply like to know --				false

		2379						LN		91		18		false		       18   Mr. Cardona referenced the second repair of the radio				false

		2380						LN		91		19		false		       19   was made the week of March 20th.  Do we know the date?				false

		2381						LN		91		20		false		       20              MR. THOMSON:  March 21st, Your Honor.				false

		2382						LN		91		21		false		       21              MR. GILES:  21st.				false

		2383						LN		91		22		false		       22              HEARING OFFICER:  The complainant's Exhibit				false

		2384						LN		91		23		false		       23   SRR-1 shows two relatively significant outages on				false

		2385						LN		91		24		false		       24   March 21st and 22nd.  Were there problems in the				false

		2386						LN		91		25		false		       25   immediate aftermath of the installation that were being				false

		2387						PG		92		0		false		page 92				false

		2388						LN		92		1		false		        1   worked out, to your knowledge?				false

		2389						LN		92		2		false		        2              MR. GILES:  There was a significant outage				false

		2390						LN		92		3		false		        3   the day of changing that radio out, yes.  And I don't				false

		2391						LN		92		4		false		        4   know -- there again, I am not familiar with this report				false

		2392						LN		92		5		false		        5   at all.  I don't even know what binary report it is.				false

		2393						LN		92		6		false		        6   There were -- it might have spilled into the 22nd.  Time				false

		2394						LN		92		7		false		        7   frame-wise, Carlos may be able to answer, but it was a				false

		2395						LN		92		8		false		        8   significant outage that day, yes.				false

		2396						LN		92		9		false		        9              MR. MECHAM:  Mr. Ciani can shed some light.				false

		2397						LN		92		10		false		       10              HEARING OFFICER:  He's welcome to.				false

		2398						LN		92		11		false		       11              MR. CIANI:  Yeah.  After the radio was				false

		2399						LN		92		12		false		       12   changed, we had significant challenges the first couple				false

		2400						LN		92		13		false		       13   of days immediately following the change.				false

		2401						LN		92		14		false		       14              As it was explained to me by Frontier, there				false

		2402						LN		92		15		false		       15   is a process of -- and Mr. Giles can probably testify to				false

		2403						LN		92		16		false		       16   this much better than I can, but there is a process of				false

		2404						LN		92		17		false		       17   balancing out the frequencies.  And that is something				false

		2405						LN		92		18		false		       18   that was explained to me previous to all this kind of				false

		2406						LN		92		19		false		       19   catastrophic challenge that we had, was that, you know,				false

		2407						LN		92		20		false		       20   when there's weather, wind, rain, there's all sorts of				false

		2408						LN		92		21		false		       21   manual requirements from Frontier's side to keep the				false

		2409						LN		92		22		false		       22   service not just functioning, but functioning to a level				false

		2410						LN		92		23		false		       23   that we can actually communicate with our guests and				false

		2411						LN		92		24		false		       24   other people across the line.				false

		2412						LN		92		25		false		       25              Which lends itself to the repeated issues				false

		2413						PG		93		0		false		page 93				false

		2414						LN		93		1		false		        1   we've had over the years of not complete service				false

		2415						LN		93		2		false		        2   interruptions, but challenges with static and other				false

		2416						LN		93		3		false		        3   types of hearing impairments on the line.  And we had				false

		2417						LN		93		4		false		        4   those issues immediately following the microwave -- we				false

		2418						LN		93		5		false		        5   had at least two outages after the microwave was				false

		2419						LN		93		6		false		        6   installed.  And we still, from time to time, have issues				false

		2420						LN		93		7		false		        7   with the quality of the reception.				false

		2421						LN		93		8		false		        8              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  And,				false

		2422						LN		93		9		false		        9   Mr. Ciani, sticking with you just for a moment, during				false

		2423						LN		93		10		false		       10   your testimony earlier you alluded to some billing				false

		2424						LN		93		11		false		       11   credits that your employer had received from Frontier.				false

		2425						LN		93		12		false		       12              Can you provide additional detail as to when				false

		2426						LN		93		13		false		       13   and the amounts?				false

		2427						LN		93		14		false		       14              MR. CIANI:  Yes, I can.  I mean, I have all				false

		2428						LN		93		15		false		       15   the detail here.				false

		2429						LN		93		16		false		       16              MR. MECHAM:  Do you mean posthearing or				false

		2430						LN		93		17		false		       17   right now?				false

		2431						LN		93		18		false		       18              HEARING OFFICER:  If he has them now, that				false

		2432						LN		93		19		false		       19   would be convenient, but...				false

		2433						LN		93		20		false		       20              MR. CIANI:  Yeah.  So I printed out a				false

		2434						LN		93		21		false		       21   variety of the bills and have brought them, you know, to				false

		2435						LN		93		22		false		       22   prepare for this hearing.				false

		2436						LN		93		23		false		       23              HEARING OFFICER:  If you're not prepared to				false

		2437						LN		93		24		false		       24   summarize, then that's fine.  I can --				false

		2438						LN		93		25		false		       25              MR. CIANI:  What I can tell you -- this is				false

		2439						PG		94		0		false		page 94				false

		2440						LN		94		1		false		        1   what I can tell you, is that they told us that -- all of				false

		2441						LN		94		2		false		        2   the period that we were down, that our service would be				false

		2442						LN		94		3		false		        3   credited.  I asked repeatedly for them to confirm				false

		2443						LN		94		4		false		        4   exactly how much that was and how we were going to see				false

		2444						LN		94		5		false		        5   that, and I never got any response.				false

		2445						LN		94		6		false		        6              And many of these communications where				false
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        1   May 17, 2019                                 10:00 a.m.



        2                    P R O C E E D I N G S



        3              HEARING OFFICER:  Let's go on the record,



        4   please.  Good morning.  This is the time and place



        5   noticed for a hearing in the formal complaint of SRR



        6   Partners, LLC, dba Sorrel River Ranch Resort & Spa



        7   against Frontier Communications.  This is Commission



        8   Docket No. 19-041-01.  My name is Michael Hammer and I'm



        9   the Commission's designated presiding officer.



       10              Let's go ahead and take appearances,



       11   beginning with the complainant.



       12              MR. MECHAM:  Good morning.  Steve Mecham,



       13   representing Sorrel River Ranch.



       14              MR. THOMSON:  Good morning, Your Honor.



       15   George Thomson representing Frontier Communications.



       16              REPORTER:  Is your mic on?



       17              MR. THOMSON:  There we go.



       18              MR. MECHAM:  I should have noticed as



       19   well -- or mentioned as well, I've got Dave Ciani with



       20   me, who will be testifying for Sorrel River Ranch.  He's



       21   the managing director of the ranch.



       22              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Mr. Mecham.



       23   And, Mr. Thomson, we have his name for the record.



       24              Mr. Thomson, would you like to introduce any



       25   witnesses.
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        1              MR. THOMSON:  Yes, sir.  We've got Mike



        2   Giles, who is sitting to my left, and on the phone we



        3   have Carlos Cardona.



        4              MR. JOHNSON:  And Mitch Johnson from



        5   Frontier.



        6              HEARING OFFICER:  Is there anyone else on



        7   the line?



        8              MR. JOHNSON:  Mitch Johnson.



        9              HEARING OFFICER:  Yes, I understand.  I



       10   heard you, Mr. Johnson.  I was wondering if there were



       11   any additional parties.



       12              MS. RAD:  Elizabeth Rad for Sorrel River.



       13              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Mecham, do you intend



       14   to call Ms. Rad?



       15              MR. MECHAM:  It's possible.



       16              HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  All right.  Are



       17   there any preliminary matters before we begin?



       18              MR. MOORE:  Excuse me, Mr. Hammer.



       19              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Moore.



       20              MR. MOORE:  I'm not in my usual place.



       21              HEARING OFFICER:  Nice to see you.



       22              MR. MOORE:  Robert Moore, AG's office,



       23   representing the Office of Consumer Services.  If I may



       24   make a brief statement on the record, if there's no



       25   objection.
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        1              HEARING OFFICER:  Is there an objection?



        2              MR. THOMSON:  I don't have anything to



        3   object to yet, Your Honor.



        4              MR. MECHAM:  I do not object.



        5              MR. MOORE:  The Office does not generally



        6   participate in this type of complaint hearing; however,



        7   we're anticipating shortly filing a notice for agency



        8   action for a wider investigation of Frontier, and I'd



        9   like to participate in this hearing to ask a few brief



       10   questions in that regard.  I will not stray outside the



       11   allegations in this -- in the complaints and the



       12   pleadings so far filed.



       13              HEARING OFFICER:  Any objection to



       14   Mr. Moore's participation in the hearing?



       15              MR. MECHAM:  Not from us.



       16              MR. THOMSON:  No objection.



       17              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Thank you.



       18   Welcome, Mr. Moore.



       19              Are there any other matters before we begin?



       20              MR. THOMSON:  No, sir.



       21              HEARING OFFICER:  Would the counsel prefer



       22   witnesses who are present take the stand or remain



       23   seated at counsel's table?  I'll ask you first,



       24   Mr. Mecham.



       25              MR. MECHAM:  I could go either way.  He's
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        1   with me here.  But if it's more comfortable for you, we



        2   could have him take the witness seat.



        3              HEARING OFFICER:  I have no preference.



        4   Mr. Giles -- or, pardon me.  Mr. Thomson?



        5              MR. THOMSON:  I think Mr. Giles can testify



        6   where he is, unless the reporter prefers him to be on



        7   the stand up there.



        8              HEARING OFFICER:  Ordinarily, it would be a



        9   matter of counsel doing cross-examination, I think,



       10   wanting to see the witness on the stand.  So if no one



       11   objects, we'll just allow witnesses to stay seated.



       12              Mr. Mecham?



       13              MR. MECHAM:  I may quickly ask if Mr. Dave



       14   Coke is on the line.



       15              MR. COKE:  I am here.



       16              MR. MECHAM:  Okay.



       17              HEARING OFFICER:  And Mr. Coke is with your



       18   client?



       19              MR. MECHAM:  He is.  He's a technician that



       20   does -- he's a contractor that does work on the customer



       21   premise equipment, and that may come up in the hearing,



       22   so it's possible he could testify, as well, and be



       23   sworn.



       24              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Mr. Ciani --



       25   Mr. Mecham, I expect you intend to call Mr. Ciani as
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        1   your first witness.



        2              MR. MECHAM:  I do.  May I make just a brief



        3   opening statement?



        4              HEARING OFFICER:  Of course.



        5              MR. MECHAM:  Let me just set the stage, and



        6   if Mr. Thomson wants to do likewise, that's fine.



        7              Sorrel River Ranch filed its complaint



        8   because of very troubling service that they'd been



        9   receiving.  And a public utility in the State of Utah is



       10   still -- under Title 54-3-1, 54-8b-3.3, and Rule



       11   746-340, are under obligation to provide safe, adequate,



       12   and continuous service.  The Division of Public



       13   Utilities, under 54-4a-6, is to promote safe and



       14   reliable service.



       15              And the Commission, under 54-4-7 and 8, has



       16   broad, vast power to require the utility to provide



       17   adequate service.  Of course, "adequate service" is not



       18   a defined term in the statute, but our contention is



       19   that what we've received at Sorrel River Ranch is so far



       20   below adequacy that this had to be filed and the



       21   Commission must take action.



       22              And I don't know if Mr. Thomson wants to



       23   respond to that; otherwise, we're prepared to call



       24   Mr. Ciani.



       25              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Thomson, do you
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        1   have an opening statement you'd like to make?



        2              MR. THOMSON:  No, Your Honor, we'll go ahead



        3   and proceed.



        4              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Mr. Ciani, do



        5   you swear to tell the truth?



        6              MR. CIANI:  I do.



        7              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.



        8                         DAVID CIANI,



        9   called as a witness by and on behalf of the Sorrel River



       10   Ranch Resort & Spa, having been first duly sworn, was



       11   examined and testified as follows:



       12                      DIRECT EXAMINATION



       13   BY MR. MECHAM:



       14         Q.   Mr. Ciani, would you identify yourself by



       15   giving your name, your business address, and for whom



       16   you're testifying in this proceeding?



       17         A.   Absolutely.  My name is David Ciani.  I'm the



       18   manager-director of Sorrel River Ranch Resort & Spa,



       19   which is located at mile 17, Highway 128 in -- outside



       20   the town of Moab, Utah.



       21         Q.   Thank you.  And just -- sort of as a



       22   preliminary matter, before we get into the meat of your



       23   testimony, the parties agreed, after a technical



       24   conference in this docket, to meet together on May 10th



       25   to -- I'm not a hundred percent sure what the -- what the
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        1   intention was, but certainly one of them was to test and



        2   look at the customer premise equipment to see if that was



        3   the problem.



        4              Can you tell us what the outcome of that was,



        5   since the presiding officer wasn't at that technical



        6   conference?



        7         A.   My report back was that there were no



        8   internal deficiencies with our system.



        9         Q.   And Mr. Coke is also on the line, who is the



       10   technician, as I stated before, who deals with the



       11   customer premise equipment who can answer any questions,



       12   if there are any.  So -- but the implication of that is



       13   that what the problems are rest on the Frontier network



       14   side.



       15              Okay.  Mr. Ciani, would you just describe the



       16   kind of service that Sorrel River Ranch is receiving and



       17   the impact it's having on your business?



       18         A.   The service has been tremendously awful, to



       19   an extent of bringing us here today, and the impact on



       20   the business has been significant.  And I do have some



       21   detailed data to share, both from our current year pace



       22   report from reservations on the books, as well as a lot



       23   of anecdotal information that I'd be happy to share about



       24   the experiences and comments we've received from both our



       25   staff and our residents of the property who reside on
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        1   property to operate the ranch, as well as our valued



        2   guests.



        3         Q.   Go ahead and just describe what's happening,



        4   the lost calls, the outages, all of that.



        5         A.   Yeah.  Well, I started with the ranch in



        6   April of 2017, and when I first got involved, I was



        7   appalled by the lack of quality and reliability in both



        8   the phone and internet service at the property.



        9              We are a luxury guest ranch.  We have an



       10   average daily rate of over $700 per night, and the



       11   expectations for service and reliability of technology



       12   and operations is crucial and critical to the success.



       13   Our reputation is critical.  On-line reviews, and our



       14   relationship with high-end agencies, travel agents, and



       15   wholesalers is also critical for the success of the



       16   business.



       17              Upon initially investigating what was going



       18   on with the service, I became aware of our infrastructure



       19   that brought the phone service to the property.  And I



       20   also became aware that we simply had no other



       21   alternatives.  We did not have another service provider



       22   available to us.  And for the time between April 2017 and



       23   November of 2018, I, like the majority of our staff and



       24   our guests and other residents and business owners in the



       25   area, accepted what I would describe as an inadequate
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        1   level of service.



        2              It was commonplace that we would have calls



        3   dropped or have poor reception.  I'd liken it to what you



        4   would expect to get if you were on a cell phone in a very



        5   remote area.  It wouldn't be uncommon to drop calls or to



        6   not be able to make a call going out.  Oftentimes, you



        7   might be talking to someone and it sounds like you're in



        8   a wind tunnel, that they're far away or there's just



        9   undue static.



       10              But, generally speaking, we accepted this



       11   level of service as being our only alternative.  And for



       12   well over the year that I was with the property, that was



       13   just our status quo, our normal as we operated.



       14              In -- beginning around November of 2018 is



       15   when we had what I would describe for the business as a



       16   catastrophic event.  We began to consistently lose the



       17   ability to use our phone service.  We would drop calls



       18   routinely, and we would go, many times, several hours



       19   without any phone service whatsoever.



       20              Oftentimes, I was not able to get in touch



       21   with the property.  I couldn't get ahold of the general



       22   manager.  We would -- were losing guest reservations and



       23   creating negative experiences before our potential guests



       24   had even booked.



       25              In February, we started logging dropped calls
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        1   because it was becoming such a problem.  And I have a



        2   dropped call log that I printed out with me, and this is



        3   a Google sheet that we used internally to log calls.



        4   These are, by no means, all of the dropped calls, but



        5   every one that was manually logged.  Starting on the 8th



        6   of February, I have 141 dropped calls between then and



        7   the end of March, to give you an idea of the magnitude.



        8   And that's only during the time when we actually did have



        9   phone service.



       10              The level of impact it had on our business --



       11   right now I'm looking at our pace report for the year,



       12   and we're $214,000 down from the same time last year in



       13   individual transient reservations.  Over the last several



       14   years, we've been seeing between a 5 and 20 percent



       15   annual increase in those statistics.



       16              Beyond the lost revenue, the magnitude of



       17   guest experiences has hurt us tremendously.  We've had



       18   many guests leave upset.  Again, at our level of service



       19   for our business, it's just simply unacceptable to not



       20   have phones work.  If you're a guest and you're staying



       21   in a guest room and you can't call to the front desk, if



       22   you have an emergency and you can't get out, if you can't



       23   call your loved ones, there is no exception, there is no



       24   excuse, and there is no response that we can provide.



       25              That impact further resonates into our staff
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        1   and the people who live on our property.  We have, in



        2   season, over 70 people who live on the ranch, and these



        3   are full-time employees who operate the property.  And



        4   they also suffer from the lack of service, can't call



        5   their friends and family and have to put up with an



        6   incredibly frustrating work environment that hurts the



        7   staff morale and, certainly, you know, leads to a



        8   negative work environment for the staff.



        9         Q.   Mr. Ciani, does your internal network monitor



       10   the downtime?



       11         A.   Yes, it does.  We have a service called



       12   Binary Canary, and it's a monitoring service that is



       13   constantly pinging the signal that Frontier is bringing



       14   into the property.  And we have a report here that we



       15   printed out since 2017.  It monitors all of the



       16   interruptions in service.  You've -- I think that the



       17   Public Service Commission has been provided with a list



       18   of outages from Frontier that were over 30 minutes.



       19              MR. MECHAM:  Actually, you haven't yet, but



       20   that will become an item we'll discuss.  In discovery,



       21   Frontier provided us a number of outages that occurred



       22   within the last two years.  And during a light period,



       23   we have a document to introduce now that is an internal



       24   measurement of the downtime that their own network



       25   monitored.
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        1              MR. MECHAM:  And I'm not sure how we're



        2   going to mark these, Mr. Hammer.  How would you --



        3   SRR-1, is that good?



        4              HEARING OFFICER:  That's fine.



        5              MR. MECHAM:  Okay.



        6              HEARING OFFICER:  Do you have copies for



        7   everyone?



        8              MR. MECHAM:  I do.  Yes, I do.



        9              (Exhibit No. SRR-1 was



       10                marked for identification.)



       11         Q.   (BY MR. MECHAM)  Perhaps you could repeat



       12   again exactly what this is showing.



       13         A.   Yes.  So this service is monitoring the



       14   signal coming in from Frontier, and it is calculating the



       15   minutes of downtime every time there's been a service



       16   interruption.  And so you can see the date and the



       17   minutes of downtime and every incidence of service



       18   interruption.



       19              So my point being is that in addition to the



       20   outages as defined as, you know, 30 minutes or more by



       21   Frontier, we've had many, many short-term outages in



       22   addition to the numerous dropped calls, which, again, had



       23   been commonplace at the property for many years, as well



       24   as reception challenges, including static, wind-tunnel



       25   effects, and other types of impairments that would
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        1   prohibit communication.



        2         Q.   And so one of the reasons this is significant



        3   is because it's within the same time period as the



        4   document that -- of outages that Frontier gave us, but it



        5   isn't exactly the same because it's showing both



        6   internal -- what's happening to you internally as well as



        7   what's -- and they show what's happening externally; is



        8   that correct?



        9         A.   Correct.



       10         Q.   Okay.



       11              MR. MECHAM:  And you'll note that it does



       12   show how many minutes and gives the date that the system



       13   was down based on the Binary Canary product that they



       14   use to monitor.



       15              You know, for simplicity's sake, we did one



       16   short round of discovery, and whether it's in direct or



       17   on cross, I'm going to be referring to that a lot.  I'm



       18   wondering if, perhaps, I could enter that as Exhibit 2



       19   -- SRR-2.



       20              HEARING OFFICER:  I don't have any



       21   objection.



       22              MR. MECHAM:  Okay.



       23              HEARING OFFICER:  I hear none from the other



       24   parties.



       25              MR. THOMSON:  Well, Your Honor, this is the
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        1   first time we've seen this document.



        2              HEARING OFFICER:  Why don't you give



        3   Mr. Thomson an opportunity to take a look at it before



        4   you --



        5              MR. THOMSON:  I mean, I'm not sure.



        6              MR. MECHAM:  Actually, it's not the first



        7   time.  They're the ones that provided it to us.  This is



        8   their response to us with all of the general objections.



        9   It's their document, not mine.



       10              MR. THOMSON:  I'm sorry, Your Honor.  I



       11   thought they were referring to the Binary Canary report



       12   that they placed in front of us for the first time



       13   today.



       14              MR. MECHAM:  Well, you're right.



       15              HEARING OFFICER:  Well, go ahead and



       16   distribute the next document and we'll discuss them



       17   both.



       18              MR. MECHAM:  May I just say, yeah, it's



       19   true, we just -- they did no discovery.  We're on a



       20   short, expedited time frame of the difficulty that their



       21   service is causing the Sorrel River Ranch, so there's



       22   likely going to be quite a few things that come up that



       23   they haven't yet seen.  Under normal circumstances, we



       24   would have done prefiled testimony, but we didn't do



       25   that in an effort to try to get this thing fixed on an
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        1   expedited basis.



        2              (Exhibit No. SRR-2 was



        3                marked for identification.)



        4              MR. MECHAM:  And we've marked that as SRR-2,



        5   on the assumption that we would use that during the



        6   proceeding.  And, perhaps, I was going to use this on



        7   cross, but we may as well get it out.



        8              This is -- this is the document that



        9   Frontier gave to us in response to -- I believe it's



       10   1.3.  We asked for the number of outages that their



       11   system recorded during the most recent two-year period



       12   and these -- this shows from May of 2017 to about May of



       13   2019.



       14              And I will say, Mr. Hammer, that we -- this



       15   is a very long document, horizontally, going left to



       16   right, and so the way I had to print it out was one page



       17   at a time.  So each sequential page would really be to



       18   the right of the one before it.  So you will see that



       19   there are 44 outages recorded in that period, and then



       20   the 44 lines in each subsequent page refer to that first



       21   page, and I will mark that as SRR-3.



       22              And I will likely just use this mainly on



       23   cross, but I wanted it next to the analysis done by the



       24   internal system as well, because there is -- they really



       25   don't -- they correspond in time, but not necessarily
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        1   per minute.



        2              And you will see in one of the -- in the



        3   response that Frontier's network records outages that



        4   are 30 minutes or greater.  And Sorrel River Ranch is



        5   anything, and that is a minute or even less than that



        6   that cause down or outages and lost calls.  So it -- it



        7   shows the impact of -- a broader impact.  And in fact,



        8   let's talk about --



        9              I would like to move the admission of SRR-1,



       10   2, and 3.



       11              MR. THOMSON:  We don't have any objection.



       12              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  They're



       13   admitted, then.



       14              Before we move on to additional questions,



       15   it would help me if we could lay a little foundation for



       16   SRR-1.  It's been admitted into the record, but help me



       17   just understand a little better what it is.  Is this a



       18   direct printout, for example, from the Binary Canary



       19   software or --



       20              THE WITNESS:  That's correct.



       21              HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  And the date format



       22   appears as day, month, year?



       23              THE WITNESS:  That's correct.



       24              HEARING OFFICER:  So this hasn't been



       25   transcribed into a separate spreadsheet?  This is
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        1   printed directly from the software?



        2              THE WITNESS:  No, sir, we printed that



        3   straight from the software -- the report from the



        4   software.



        5              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Go ahead,



        6   Mr. Mecham.



        7              MR. MECHAM:  Thank you.



        8         Q.   (BY MR. MECHAM)  Mr. Ciani, has Sorrel River



        9   Ranch entered into a contract for service with Frontier?



       10         A.   Yes, we have.  Most recently -- in July of



       11   2014, there was a contract that was signed.  It was a



       12   three-year contract.  And upon termination of that



       13   contract, we continued, under the clause of that



       14   contract, to pay the same tariffs that we had agreed to



       15   in 2014.  I contacted Frontier in 2018 and began



       16   communications with an account rep who provided us a



       17   relatively significant better rate if we were to sign a



       18   two-year agreement.



       19              During the negotiations, we were having the



       20   experiences that we're here today to discuss and,



       21   essentially, was told that the only way that we would not



       22   continue to be charged what, to me, I believe is an



       23   exorbitantly high tariff of nearly over $4,000 a month



       24   for both our phone and internet service -- they were



       25   willing to lower it to a more reasonable rate that is
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        1   certainly more competitive with any market in the U.S.,



        2   but we were forced to sign another two-year agreement,



        3   with the option of some longer term agreements.



        4              And so we entered into an agreement in the



        5   very beginning of February of 2019, despite having,



        6   essentially, no service at that time.  We have absolutely



        7   no other options, and it's critical to have phone service



        8   for the operation of our business and the health and



        9   safety and well-being of our staff and of our guests.  So



       10   we really had no other alternatives.



       11         Q.   So let me reiterate -- or have you reiterate.



       12   You signed -- even after you had less-than-adequate



       13   service, you signed the second contract because you could



       14   find no alternative?



       15         A.   That's correct.  We were paying $4,000 a



       16   month for no service and we were able to lower that by



       17   agreeing to another two-year term, because we had no



       18   other alternatives.



       19         Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  And let me go back to what



       20   we marked as SRR-1 and SRR-3, the outages reports,



       21   internal and external.



       22              Do you know what dates those -- can you tell



       23   us what dates those cover, approximately?



       24         A.   I'm sorry, what was the question?



       25         Q.   When does the report begin recording the
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        1   outages?



        2         A.   I think we started that report in the



        3   beginning of 2017 and ran it through the current 2019



        4   year.



        5         Q.   And as far as you know -- actually, we can



        6   look.  When you look at the date -- dates of the outages



        7   from Frontier, it begins --



        8         A.   It looks like it started in May of 2017 --



        9         Q.   Okay.



       10         A.   -- and goes through current time.



       11         Q.   So is -- we can anticipate -- we know that



       12   Frontier changed out radio equipment in December of 2018



       13   and in March of 2019.



       14              What was the service like, according to these



       15   outages, in 2017?



       16         A.   Previously, as I mentioned, the service was



       17   not very good.  It was -- it had come to, I think, what



       18   the staff and the residents -- was a generally accepted



       19   bad service.  It was as I likened it to cell phone



       20   service in a remote area.  It was not unusual to drop



       21   calls.  It wasn't unusual to have static or otherwise



       22   feedback or interruption, wind-tunnel type of effects.



       23              And generally speaking, the service, you



       24   know, would eventually work, so you may drop a call two



       25   or three times and 10 or 15 minutes later, everything
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        1   would seem to be back to normal.  And that was kind of a



        2   generally accepted level of service from the time I



        3   started in April of 2017 all the way up through until



        4   this, you know, catastrophic event where we, you know,



        5   lost -- wholesale lost service and consistently had



        6   problems for a -- more often than not, we would have



        7   either no service or complete interruptions or unusable,



        8   you know, service that worked but was of such bad quality



        9   that we couldn't communicate.



       10         Q.   And with the changeout of the radio in March



       11   of 2019, has there been any perceived difference -- any



       12   improvement?



       13         A.   Improvement from the catastrophe of the



       14   winter, yes.  We have, since that time, still had more



       15   than one documented outage and some reception issues as



       16   well.



       17              MR. MECHAM:  Mr. Ciani is available for



       18   cross-examination.



       19              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Thomson?



       20              MR. THOMSON:  Thank you, Your Honor.



       21                      CROSS-EXAMINATION



       22   BY MR. THOMSON:



       23         Q.   Good morning, Mr. Ciani.



       24              Is there any reliable cell service at Sorrel



       25   River Ranch?
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        1         A.   I would not call it reliable.  It's possible



        2   to get a signal in certain areas of the ranch at certain



        3   times.



        4         Q.   And you described the ranch as located in a



        5   remote rural area?



        6         A.   It's 17 miles upstream on the Colorado River



        7   from the town of Moab, Utah.



        8         Q.   And it's a fact that you never provided this



        9   Binary Canary report to Frontier before today, correct?



       10         A.   I personally did not.



       11         Q.   Do you know if anyone at Sorrel River Ranch



       12   did?



       13         A.   I do not know that.



       14         Q.   Let's see.  You've already discussed that you



       15   signed a new Frontier service agreement in February of



       16   2019, correct?



       17         A.   That's correct.



       18         Q.   Are you aware that tariff service rates are



       19   filed with and approved by this Commission?



       20         A.   Well, I would assume that's true, because you



       21   just said that, but I did not know exactly how tariffs



       22   are set in the State of Utah.



       23              MR. THOMSON:  Your Honor, I don't have any



       24   further questions.



       25              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Moore?
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        1              MR. MOORE:  Just a couple of questions.



        2                      CROSS-EXAMINATION



        3   BY MR. MOORE:



        4         Q.   Just a couple of questions.



        5              What's the earliest that you can recall that



        6   you reported THE problems that you've described to



        7   Frontier?



        8         A.   That's a good question.  I don't know that I



        9   can answer that with a hundred percent certainty of the



       10   date.  I would say that I believe that there was reports



       11   of challenges in the year of 2017.



       12         Q.   And your testimony is these problems have



       13   been fairly continuous?



       14         A.   Yeah.  As I said, that -- you know, between



       15   the time that I started with the ranch in April of 2017



       16   and November of 2018, there were -- it was not uncommon



       17   to drop calls or have poor reception and, at times,



       18   outages, as shown on the document that Frontier provided.



       19         Q.   Have you ever received a bill credit from



       20   Frontier?



       21         A.   We have been receiving some credits, as they



       22   communicated, on our recent bills.  We have not fully



       23   been credited back all of the expenses that we incurred



       24   during the time that they had committed to reducing our



       25   invoices.  They've been adding those credits towards
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        1   current invoices as we move forward.



        2         Q.   Have you ever experienced an outage that



        3   lasted over 24 hours?



        4         A.   I can't answer that question for certainty.



        5         Q.   Do you have a copy of SRR-2?



        6         A.   I have reviewed it, yes.



        7         Q.   On the second page there seems to be, about



        8   halfway down, a 41-hour outage.  Is that how you



        9   understand the document?



       10         A.   That is what it looks like to me, yes, sir.



       11         Q.   I'm going to hand you a document that I got



       12   from a footnote -- I'll represent that I got it from



       13   footnote 2 on Frontier's Answer to your formal Complaint.



       14   It was represented to be the terms and conditions of



       15   Frontier's business services.



       16              Can I have you -- have you seen a document



       17   like that before?



       18         A.   You know, I don't know that -- this is a



       19   rather significant document.  I can't say I've seen this



       20   exact document before, but I have reviewed the agreements



       21   that we have engaged with Frontier.



       22         Q.   If you haven't seen that exact document



       23   before, I just won't ask you the question.



       24              MR. MOORE:  I'm finished.  Thank you.



       25              HEARING OFFICER:  Let me just ask a couple
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        1   of questions.



        2              With respect to Exhibit SRR-2, my



        3   understanding is that this is a document provided by the



        4   company that records its record of outages.  Correct.



        5              MR. MECHAM:  Correct.



        6              HEARING OFFICER:  And those have to be



        7   outages of at least a duration of --



        8              MR. MECHAM:  Thirty minutes.



        9              HEARING OFFICER:  -- thirty minutes.  So --



       10   and this is confusing, because the pages aren't



       11   numbered.  And I appreciate, Mr. Mecham, that it's very



       12   difficult to print a spreadsheet, but if we flip to the



       13   page where we see the end date of the outage, which is,



       14   perhaps, five pages -- I think it's the fifth page in



       15   the exhibit -- the first line says --first row says



       16   "Start Time," "End Date."



       17              MR. MECHAM:  We got it.



       18              HEARING OFFICER:  So the first outage we see



       19   recorded on the company's document is May 29th, 2017.



       20   When I turn around and I look at SRR-1, if I'm reading



       21   it correctly, I don't see any outage recorded there on



       22   that date.



       23              THE WITNESS:  You know, Your Honor, I can't



       24   say with any definitivity, but what I would say is if



       25   there was a loss of power, that may have resulted in
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        1   that monitoring service not recording the data.  But I'm



        2   not -- I don't have enough technical knowledge to tell



        3   you exactly what would happen from looking at those two



        4   pieces of information.



        5              HEARING OFFICER:  So if power at the ranch



        6   were lost, then Binary Canary wouldn't necessarily



        7   capture the outage?



        8              THE WITNESS:  That's possible.



        9              HEARING OFFICER:  That's the only question I



       10   have right now.  Mr. Mecham, did you have any recross --



       11   or redirect?



       12              MR. MECHAM:  I do not.



       13              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Would you like



       14   to call another witness?



       15              MR. THOMSON:  Your Honor, may I have an



       16   opportunity to ask a couple of questions, based on the



       17   Attorney General's questions?



       18              HEARING OFFICER:  Of course.



       19              MR. THOMSON:  Thank you.



       20                  FURTHER CROSS-EXAMINATION



       21   BY MR. THOMSON:



       22         Q.   Mr. Ciani, looking at SRR-2, would you agree



       23   with me that there were a total of two trouble tickets



       24   called in regarding service in 2018 and 2019?



       25              MR. MECHAM:  I think that document speaks
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        1   for itself, does it not?



        2         Q.   (BY MR. THOMSON)  So you agree with me?



        3              MR. MECHAM:  Where are you pointing him to?



        4              MR. THOMSON:  Down at the bottom of the



        5   document.



        6              MR. MECHAM:  Which page?



        7              MR. THOMSON:  There's one page on this



        8   document.



        9              HEARING OFFICER:  Which exhibit are you



       10   referring to?



       11              MR. MECHAM:  SRR-2 is --



       12              MR. THOMSON:  Is this SRR-2?



       13              MR. MECHAM:  No.  I haven't entered that one



       14   yet.



       15         Q.   (BY MR. THOMSON)  All right.  Can you look at



       16   the document that's labeled Sorrel River Ranch Repair



       17   Ticket History that was produced in discovery?



       18              MR. MECHAM:  But it's not part of the



       19   record.



       20              HEARING OFFICER:  I don't have a copy of



       21   that document yet.  It hasn't been entered.



       22              MR. THOMSON:  Well, then we'll look at this



       23   on our direct, then, Your Honor.



       24         Q.   (BY MR. THOMSON)  The other question I had:



       25   Who is the commercial power supplier at the ranch?
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        1         A.   Rocky Mountain Power.



        2         Q.   And are there outages frequently with Rocky



        3   Mountain Power?



        4         A.   Define "frequently."



        5         Q.   Well, more than once every six months?



        6         A.   I would say that it's likely that there's at



        7   least one outage every six months, but I'm sure you could



        8   find that information out from them.  I don't have the



        9   record of all their power outages in my head.



       10              MR. THOMSON:  Sure.  I have no further



       11   questions, Your Honor.



       12              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.



       13              Mr. Mecham, anything else from Mr. Ciani?



       14              MR. MECHAM:  Nothing at this time.



       15              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Would you like



       16   to call another witness?



       17              MR. MECHAM:  I don't think we need to at



       18   this point.



       19              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Then we'll



       20   turn to you, Mr. Thomson.



       21              MR. THOMSON:  Thank you.  Your Honor, we'll



       22   call Mike Giles.



       23              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Giles, could you swear



       24   to tell the truth?



       25              THE WITNESS:  I do.
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        1              Is that better?  There we go.



        2              I do.



        3                        MICHAEL GILES,



        4   called as a witness by and on behalf of Frontier



        5   Communications, having been first duly sworn, was



        6   examined and testified as follows:



        7                      DIRECT EXAMINATION



        8   BY MR. THOMSON:



        9         Q.   Please give us your name.



       10         A.   Mike Giles.



       11         Q.   And are you employed by Frontier



       12   Communications?



       13         A.   Yes, I am.



       14         Q.   In what capacity, sir?



       15         A.   Currently, I serve as local manager for



       16   Frontier.



       17         Q.   And in that position, can you briefly



       18   describe your duties?



       19         A.   Currently, I'm an operations supervisor, is



       20   technically what I am, and so I'm over the technicians



       21   and all the services provided in the State of Utah for



       22   Frontier as well as in Arizona.



       23         Q.   How long have you been with the company?



       24         A.   This is my 40th year.



       25         Q.   And have you worked in Utah that entire time?
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        1         A.   No.  I worked in Arizona and California and



        2   -- the largest amount of time in Utah, some 20 years.



        3         Q.   Are you familiar with issues in Castle



        4   Valley?



        5         A.   I am.



        6         Q.   Can you describe Frontier's network leaving



        7   Moab and going into Castle Valley?



        8         A.   Castle Valley and where Sorrel is, in



        9   Professor Valley, is currently served by a radio that



       10   goes from Moab up to a mountaintop called Bald Mesa



       11   approximately 9,000 feet.  And then that microwave radio



       12   shot hits a bluff above Castle Valley and then down into



       13   our Castle Valley office, and then SRR is served via



       14   copper facility from that office, some five miles out to



       15   their location.



       16         Q.   And when you say "office," describe what



       17   exists on the ground at the end of the microwave radio



       18   shots.



       19         A.   Our Castle Valley remote office is what we



       20   call a central office.  It's basically a wire center in a



       21   location where we have equipment to serve not only voice



       22   but data from that office.



       23         Q.   Does anyone physically work there --



       24         A.   No.



       25         Q.   -- on a daily basis?
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        1         A.   No.



        2         Q.   So would this be characterized as a remote



        3   terminal?



        4         A.   It's a remote terminal, correct.



        5         Q.   And how is the signal taken from the Moab



        6   central office to Bald Mesa?



        7         A.   Via microwave radio.



        8         Q.   Was there ever any copper cable into Castle



        9   Valley that was used to serve customers there?



       10         A.   No.  It's been radio for the entire time.



       11         Q.   And when you say "the entire time," how long



       12   has that radio been in existence?



       13         A.   I'm aware they've had phone service out there



       14   for some 50 years.  Could be longer, but I'm aware of at



       15   least 50.



       16         Q.   Is there any cell service in that valley?



       17         A.   Extremely spotty, depending on the -- you



       18   know, the provider.



       19         Q.   So you've described the terrain generally.



       20   Can you tell us a little bit about what exists at Bald



       21   Mesa?



       22         A.   Bald Mesa is a plateau in the La Sal



       23   mountains, and I would describe it as extremely remote.



       24   There's a forest road that goes by it, but it's a couple



       25   miles to get up to Bald Mesa.  It's a radio site that's
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        1   not -- used only by Frontier, but other entities as well.



        2         Q.   So it's two miles off the forest road?



        3         A.   I believe two miles is the shortest.



        4         Q.   Do you know why Frontier changed the radio



        5   there in December of 2018?



        6         A.   The radio was changed out primarily for



        7   Connect America Fund to increase data out to --



        8   there's -- there was some pressure to increase the



        9   internet usage out there and the data out there.  So as



       10   -- part of that radio changeout was to increase the



       11   bandwidth to provide to the customers in Castle Valley,



       12   Castleton and Professor Valley.



       13         Q.   And Connect America Fund is something managed



       14   by the FCC, correct?



       15         A.   That is correct.



       16         Q.   Do you recall how much it cost to replace



       17   that radio?



       18         A.   I do not have the exact figures in there.



       19   Somewhere in the neighborhood of a hundred thousand.



       20         Q.   Mr. Giles, after the formal complaint was



       21   filed, what has Frontier's response been, at least



       22   internally to manage the service?



       23         A.   A couple of things that go -- number one,



       24   daily calls, because we were aware of the issue after the



       25   radio was changed out on the 18th of December.  We've had
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        1   daily, weekly calls to manage those issues, as well as



        2   formulate plans going forward.  Monitoring -- constant



        3   monitoring not only on the radio, but with calls to



        4   customers and those people that were affected by that.



        5         Q.   Are there any alarms or other monitoring



        6   devices that are being used on those circuits at this



        7   time?



        8         A.   Test equipment.  So we're able to look at it



        9   and see if we had any radio hits, any delays.  We're able



       10   to see that now to monitor whether or not the service is



       11   down or just it took temporary hits that may or may cause



       12   outages.  It may or may cause dropped calls.



       13         Q.   And I'm looking at, I think, what's been



       14   marked as Sorrel River Ranch Exhibit 2.



       15              Are you familiar with this document -- this



       16   spreadsheet?



       17         A.   I've seen it.  One of the things that I



       18   looked at -- this is the outages in the Moab exchange.



       19   This is how we measure things, as far as outages not



       20   specifically to a particular area.  Now, Castle Valley



       21   outages could be in here, but this is all the outages at



       22   the Moab exchange in this time period on here.



       23              For instance, the one we talked about just a



       24   minute ago, that 41-hour outage, did not affect Castle



       25   Valley.  That was south of Moab.
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        1         Q.   Roughly, how many customers are served on the



        2   radio network that provides service to Sorrel River



        3   Ranch?



        4         A.   Just under 300.



        5         Q.   And how many customers are served by the Moab



        6   central office?



        7         A.   I don't recall a number at this time.  I



        8   mean, I'm not sure.



        9         Q.   But the number would be greater than --



       10         A.   Oh, much greater than that, yeah.



       11              MR. THOMSON:  One moment, Your Honor.



       12              THE WITNESS:  I was going to say 25, so



       13   2,300 access lines, from our document.



       14              MR. THOMSON:  I don't have any further



       15   questions, Your Honor, and I'll release the witness for



       16   cross.



       17              HEARING OFFICER:  Before we move on to



       18   cross, just to clarify, the 2,300 access lines you just



       19   referred to are in what area?



       20              THE WITNESS:  Moab exchange itself.  So



       21   Castle Valley being an area part of that exchange.



       22              HEARING OFFICER:  And Castle Valley has



       23   approximately 300?



       24              THE WITNESS:  Just under 300.



       25              HEARING OFFICER:  And one other point of
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        1   clarification.  I believe when Mr. Thomson was asking



        2   you questions, he referred to what is referred to --



        3   what has been marked as -- what he referred to as SRR-2.



        4   He was referring to the spreadsheet that the company



        5   provided of its recording of outages.  I believe that's



        6   SRR-3.



        7              MR. THOMSON:  Is that 3?  Okay.  I stand



        8   corrected.



        9              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Mecham, does that



       10   comport with your understanding?



       11              MR. MECHAM:  Yes.



       12              HEARING OFFICER:  Then we will move to



       13   Mr. Mecham for cross-examination.



       14              MR. MECHAM:  Okay.  Thank you.



       15                      CROSS-EXAMINATION



       16   BY MR. MECHAM:



       17         Q.   Mr. Giles, how far is it from Bald Mesa to



       18   Moab?



       19         A.   I believe it's 15 miles driving, and I don't



       20   know the airline -- I don't know the air -- as the crow



       21   flies, how far it is.  I believe it's about 15 miles.



       22   You go out to Pack Creek and then back up on the loop



       23   road to get to Bald Mesa.



       24         Q.   So it's not like it's across the state or



       25   anything like that or across the county?  It's 15 miles
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        1   away?



        2         A.   Across the county, yes; across the state, no.



        3         Q.   Okay.



        4         A.   I believe there's about a 6,000-foot



        5   elevation climb, somewhere, plus or minus on that.



        6         Q.   And is 44 outages every two years normal?  Is



        7   that normal for Frontier?



        8         A.   I don't -- I'm not sure what -- how to answer



        9   that.  I know 44 outages depends on where.  In an



       10   exchange like Moab -- with Moab itself, that would be



       11   normal.



       12         Q.   Normal for Frontier?



       13         A.   I serve in a lot of areas.  I mean, there's a



       14   lot of -- these are every outage over 30 minutes, some of



       15   Frontier's issues, some external.



       16         Q.   Do you know why Frontier has not sought



       17   Universal Service Funds from the State?



       18         A.   No, I don't -- I don't have the specific



       19   information on why.  That's not a part of my



       20   responsibility.



       21         Q.   Who would?  Is anybody here or on the



       22   telephone who would know that?



       23              MR. THOMSON:  I believe Mr. Erhart may have



       24   information regarding that.



       25              MR. MECHAM:  And would he know and
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        1   understand why or if Frontier did not qualify for State



        2   Universal Service Funds?



        3              HEARING OFFICER:  We still have the witness



        4   who is testifying to answer.



        5              THE WITNESS:  I don't know if he does or



        6   not, so...



        7         Q.   (BY MR. MECHAM)  Well, let me ask you this,



        8   Mr. Giles, and I'll get back to that in a minute.



        9              How long has Frontier or any of its



       10   predecessors served Castle Valley and Moab in that area?



       11         A.   Fifty years or so.



       12         Q.   So the terrain --



       13         A.   I've been here 40 years, and I started in



       14   Utah.  We served it then.  That's maybe the best way to



       15   answer that.



       16         Q.   So it's nothing new to you?



       17         A.   No.



       18         Q.   I mean, you know how to provide service in



       19   that area?



       20         A.   Correct.



       21         Q.   It's rugged, but there are a lot of rugged



       22   places in Utah served by independent rural telephone



       23   companies?



       24         A.   Yes.



       25         Q.   And you do know -- well, let's go to the
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        1   Universal Service Fund.



        2              MR. MECHAM:  I don't know if Mr. Erhart --



        3   were you intending to bring him on in direct or how



        4   would you -- because I'd like to go to that to try to



        5   figure out the age of the network and the condition of



        6   the network.



        7              MR. THOMSON:  We didn't intend to present



        8   Mr. Erhart as a witness today.



        9              MR. MECHAM:  Is he on the line?



       10              MR. THOMSON:  He's sitting to my left,



       11   beyond Mr. Giles.



       12              HEARING OFFICER:  If you want to call



       13   Mr. Erhart, we can address that.  Why don't you wrap



       14   your examination of Mr. Giles first?



       15         Q.   (BY MR. MECHAM)  Okay.  Mr. Giles, have you



       16   looked at the document SRR-3?  I guess you did, since you



       17   were looking at it with Mr. Thomson.  You pointed one out



       18   in the Moab office.



       19              Are you aware of how many of these would have



       20   affected Castle Valley?



       21         A.   I'm not.



       22         Q.   Okay.  So that one, perhaps, didn't, but



       23   maybe 35 or 40 might have?



       24         A.   In my tenure -- well, going on 12 years that



       25   I've been back in Utah, I'm aware of two major fiber cuts
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        1   that lasted just under 24 hours, in 12 years, that



        2   affected all of Moab that would have affected Castle



        3   Valley as well.



        4         Q.   Okay.



        5         A.   These were major fiber cuts that would be on



        6   here, outside of this four months that we're talking



        7   about with Castle Valley.



        8         Q.   Mr. Giles, before the changeout of the radio



        9   first in December of 2018 and then second in March, were



       10   you aware of other issues with dropped calls and need for



       11   upgrade of Frontier's facilities in the area?



       12         A.   Dropped calls are something that Frontier and



       13   any other providers deal with from time to time,



       14   including the cell companies as well.  We did not have a



       15   ration of dropped calls until December, because -- and I



       16   base this on my interaction with customers and, you know,



       17   trouble tickets that were called in at that time.



       18              The dropped call situation and intermittent



       19   dial tone situation ramped up after that radio was placed



       20   on the 18th of December.  Prior to that, looking at this



       21   Binary report, I'm not aware of the outages or dropped



       22   calls prior to that on a large-scale basis.



       23         Q.   And so why did -- why did you change out that



       24   radio?  Why did you need to change out that radio in



       25   December?
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        1         A.   The radio, that was changed out as part of



        2   the Connect America Fund upgrade to -- basically for



        3   data, not for voice.



        4         Q.   So the Connect America Fund is the federal



        5   fund?



        6         A.   Correct.



        7         Q.   So you qualified for that; otherwise, you



        8   wouldn't have gotten the funds, right?



        9         A.   Correct.



       10         Q.   And what is the process in the company -- if



       11   you need an upgrade in order to serve your customers



       12   well, what do you have to do to get the resources here?



       13         A.   Submit a request to -- and it goes to various



       14   departments, whether it's -- starting in operation and



       15   engineering and the Capital Funding Finance Group as



       16   well.  Personally, I'm not involved in that piece of it,



       17   I just know it as a general process.



       18         Q.   So in response -- and this is in -- in the



       19   overall response, SRR-2 when asked what other



       20   expenditures have been made other than for those radios,



       21   the response was "outside of those listed elsewhere, we



       22   can" -- "we can identify no expenditures."  So there



       23   hasn't -- at least in the last three years -- so there



       24   hasn't been any other expenditure made to upgrade the



       25   services in the area, other than these radios that were
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        1   paid for by CAF funds; is that correct?



        2         A.   Not -- I -- no, not -- I'm not aware of any.



        3   Other than, you know, card changeouts or repair or



        4   anything like that, I'm not aware of any capital money,



        5   other than the hundred thousand dollars for that



        6   changeout of the radio.



        7         Q.   And that really -- that was federal funding



        8   available to all companies that you qualified for, but



        9   not capital provided by Frontier; is that correctly



       10   characterized?



       11         A.   I don't know how that's figured.  There



       12   again, not really part of my direct responsibility on



       13   where that funding comes and if it's subsidized or



       14   totally funded.



       15         Q.   How old was the radio that was replaced?



       16         A.   There again, I don't recall exactly when it



       17   was replaced, but I would say in -- since I've been here



       18   in the last -- eight years, maybe, old, when that radio



       19   was replaced.  Two --



       20         Q.   So the first radio -- sorry, go ahead.



       21         A.   Excuse me.  Really, to add bandwidth, not to



       22   change the voice side of it, on both occasions.



       23         Q.   So the first changeout was in December and



       24   apparently that was a disaster.  Why?  What happened?



       25         A.   I'm going to divert that question to somebody
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        1   that knows a little bit more about the radio itself.  But



        2   a couple of things from my observation, as a general, you



        3   know, local manager, is the vendor that Frontier used in



        4   -- the radio application for that particular device was



        5   inadequate for what we needed.  And we realized that and



        6   started procedures -- processes in January -- late



        7   January to replace that vendor, which we ended up doing



        8   on the 21st of March.



        9         Q.   And did you have to refund the CAF fund or



       10   did the vendor have to do it?  I mean, it was either what



       11   you didn't need or it was faulty, but, in any case, you



       12   didn't duplicate the funding, did you?



       13         A.   Not to my knowledge, but I'm not -- there



       14   again, not part of my -- I'm not aware of any refund



       15   fund, other than just go and replace the vendor and



       16   faulty equipment, and then what goes on there, I think,



       17   is still in process.



       18         Q.   So there may yet be a refund to the CAF fund



       19   for the first radio that didn't work?



       20         A.   I wouldn't know that.



       21         Q.   Who would?



       22         A.   I don't know if any -- I don't know at this



       23   point.



       24         Q.   And so the new radio that went in in March,



       25   apparently there still must be issues, because there are
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        1   outages and lost calls.  What -- what can Sorrel River



        2   Ranch expect from Frontier with that second radio?



        3         A.   Well, I'll take part of that, and then I'll



        4   defer the second part to Carlos when he testifies.  But I



        5   will tell you that my complaints have almost ceased from



        6   the other customers -- the residential customers in that



        7   area since the changeout at the end of March.



        8              As far as dropped calls, as far as outages,



        9   there have been a couple of additional radio hits since



       10   that time, but, overall, I have not had -- other than



       11   normal, you know, out -- normal customer trouble tickets



       12   that were not above normal since the 20th of



       13   March -- 21st of March.



       14         Q.   And when you say "not above normal," what



       15   does that mean?  How many trouble tickets or issues do



       16   you have normally?



       17         A.   I don't know if I can answer that, really.



       18   I'm just saying, at this point in time -- there obviously



       19   was an issue this winter and, at this point in time, I



       20   may go to Castle Valley twice a week, at the most, to



       21   work on an individual's trouble that could be in



       22   Frontier's network or customer issues or just typically



       23   -- and I'm answering this generally -- typical service



       24   issues that you would have anywhere.



       25         Q.   So in response to one of our data requests
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        1   you -- or Frontier, anyway, gave us a list of complaints,



        2   and I printed a couple of those out.  One of them is from



        3   the Castle Valley Fire Department, which I think was



        4   created March 18th of 2019.



        5              Is that after the second radio was --



        6         A.   No, that was before.  The second radio



        7   changeout was the 21st of March.



        8         Q.   Okay.  Mr. Giles, in your testimony I believe



        9   you said that there were a couple of radio hits after the



       10   March 21st installation of the second radio.



       11         A.   Correct.



       12         Q.   What do you mean?



       13         A.   Loss of signal, at that point in time, and



       14   our monitoring.  I think we talked about those in our



       15   discovery.  One had happened the day before that that



       16   would probably create a dropped call situation.  There's



       17   been a couple other days where we've come in and had



       18   errors on the signal since that time, but no additional



       19   trouble tickets per se.



       20              And I think Dave mentioned on the discovery



       21   call that he was aware of that.  I think it happened at



       22   10:00 at night and 2:00 in the morning, the previous day



       23   of our discovery, to my recollection.



       24         Q.   And when you have radio issues -- radio hits,



       25   who dispatches -- where do they come from?
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        1         A.   Currently -- I mean, normally, they're



        2   dispatched from trouble calls, unless it's an outage



        3   itself, and then once the alarm comes in, then we'd go.



        4   Because we're monitoring this circuit, and have been



        5   since December, then we're, I would say, more fully aware



        6   of -- or more sensitive about this circuit and this



        7   particular service because of the issues we've had.



        8              So first thing that my central office



        9   technician does in the morning is check his test meter to



       10   make sure that the circuit didn't take any hits and that



       11   we haven't had any issues, that we didn't have



       12   any -- when I say "hits," any hesitation in the radio or



       13   any -- I can't think of the word I want to use right now,



       14   but just to make sure that there may have not caused any



       15   issues.  Verify that with the folks that are monitoring



       16   the radio.



       17              And then Mitch has taken weekly trips out



       18   to -- to Sorrel to look at our meter that's out on



       19   site -- our modem out on site and to pull the data from



       20   that to make sure it coincides what we've seen from the



       21   radio site.



       22              These are not normal practices that we would



       23   be able to do for all our customers, but we've tried to



       24   be more responsive on this piece of it.



       25         Q.   But if you have to repair the radio, is



                                                                47

�







        1   someone in Moab able to do that, or do they have to come



        2   from Salt Lake or some other place?



        3         A.   They can log in remotely and look at it.  So



        4   those experts can log in remotely and look at the radio,



        5   and they're monitoring as well.



        6         Q.   But I mean to repair it, not to -- just to



        7   monitor.



        8         A.   It depends on the outage.  A lot of repair



        9   now is software changes and to be able to make



       10   adjustments on software, not physically.  Physically,



       11   yes, that may require some outside services to come in,



       12   absolutely.



       13         Q.   So, remotely, if it's software; if it's



       14   physical, they come from someplace else?



       15         A.   They may have to, if it's not something that



       16   my local technicians can fix.



       17         Q.   And that -- if they -- where would they come



       18   from, Salt Lake?



       19         A.   Various places.  Depends on the location of



       20   vendors and where our internal support people are.  It



       21   just depends.



       22         Q.   Mr. Giles, towards the end of last year, did



       23   you have a lot of discussions with Sorrel River Ranch?



       24         A.   Personally, no, I did not.  My technician



       25   talked to their front desk.  There was some
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        1   correspondence via email, but I did not -- I do not



        2   recall having a conversation face-to-face or -- and/or



        3   over the phone.  I'm not denying it, I just don't recall



        4   it.  I think that's a better way to answer that.



        5         Q.   And with the December changeout of the radio,



        6   was it the Company's view at that time that that was the



        7   solution, that it was done, there was nothing more to do?



        8         A.   Nothing more to do as --



        9         Q.   As far as repairing the network in order to



       10   provide the service.



       11         A.   Yeah.  That was our understanding, is that



       12   would provide the service required for -- to satisfy the



       13   bandwidth and data requirements.



       14         Q.   But then it didn't work out?



       15         A.   It did not work out.



       16         Q.   In your opinion, what should Frontier have



       17   done in order to avoid this in the first place?



       18         A.   I'm trying -- obviously, we would have liked



       19   this to have gone much smoother than it did.  We relied



       20   on a vendor to provide a radio that was reliable to us



       21   and that did not work out.  So, you know, I'd start with



       22   that.



       23              Could there have been other things handled



       24   better?  There always is, communication, things like



       25   that.  Internally, we tried several things to improve
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        1   that service and work with that vendor to improve that



        2   radio.  We made several software changes.  We made some



        3   physical changes.  We had some difficulty getting up to



        4   the location from a weather standpoint.  Probably the



        5   worst weather year that that area has had in all that I



        6   can recall.



        7              So there was some challenges that could have



        8   been handled better or could have had better luck with



        9   the weather.  It was a factor in some of the response



       10   times.  But, overall, we relied on a vendor that we've



       11   done business with in the past, and they didn't deliver



       12   for us.



       13         Q.   Did Frontier make the appropriate



       14   expenditures in order to maintain the system before the



       15   radio problem emerged?



       16         A.   I really -- I really can't answer that from



       17   my position.



       18         Q.   Who can?



       19         A.   I don't -- it may be -- Carlos may be able to



       20   speak to that.  He's a radio expert on that.  He may have



       21   a little bit more of an idea on that piece of it, so...



       22         Q.   You've testified several times that the area



       23   is remote, mountainous, subject to the bad weather.  Why



       24   did you wait to December to change it out?



       25         A.   That was when the project was approved and
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        1   the funding came through.  It wasn't my -- that's when it



        2   came.  We didn't -- we didn't plan the date for it,



        3   that's just when it was put out there.



        4         Q.   When did you apply for it?



        5         A.   Apply for?



        6         Q.   The money to change out the radio, the CAF



        7   funds.



        8         A.   There again, I have no idea when that was



        9   done.  That wasn't part of my responsibility.



       10         Q.   I mean, is Frontier anticipating these issues



       11   to try to ensure that service remains high quality or at



       12   least adequate?



       13         A.   Yeah, I would say so, as somebody that's



       14   worked for the company for a long time.  This was



       15   everything -- every effort is done to try to prevent



       16   things like this.



       17         Q.   But none of this terrain is a surprise to



       18   you, right?  I mean, you've been doing this for, you say,



       19   50 years -- not you, but the company.



       20         A.   Well, the answer -- terrain-wise, getting up



       21   to Bald Mesa, I've never had an eight-man snowcat stuck



       22   in the snow up there in my, you know, 40 years of dealing



       23   with mountaintops.  I've never had that situation.  So,



       24   you know, it was an unusual challenge.



       25              Obviously, December and January wouldn't have
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        1   been the ideal times to do that, as far as wanting to go



        2   up there, but we've had to go up there in the wintertime



        3   before on existing radio issues, so -- you know, from



        4   that standpoint.  But I've never seen the kind of snow



        5   and weather that we had to deal with this year.  I'm not



        6   using that as an excuse, I'm just saying it was a fact



        7   this winter, that it was unusually difficult to get up



        8   there.



        9         Q.   But the outage report represented on SRR-3



       10   shows plenty of outages.  And as you say, maybe they



       11   don't all apply to Castle Valley, but there are plenty of



       12   them that occurred well before any of this trouble



       13   emerged at the end of 2018; isn't that correct?



       14         A.   This document shows everything in Moab, and I



       15   would say Castle Valley represents a very small part of



       16   the outages on this report.



       17         Q.   But it's -- it seems to me that 44 outages is



       18   extraordinary, whether it affects Castle Valley or not.



       19   Does that not reflect on the kind of equipment and the



       20   age and condition of the equipment Frontier is using?



       21         A.   These outages are various, from data outages



       22   to voice outages.  You know, so as far as whether it's



       23   adequate or not, I don't have a comparison to what other



       24   companies run in that same time period.  This was all the



       25   outages, every last one of them, during that time frame,
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        1   from small to large outages.



        2         Q.   Anything over 30 minutes?



        3         A.   Anything over 30 minutes appears to be on



        4   this report.



        5         Q.   Okay.



        6         A.   Every one of these outages didn't affect



        7   everybody in the Moab exchange, so...



        8         Q.   All right.  Who -- is it Mr. Erhart who knows



        9   something about the Universal Service Fund?



       10         A.   That's my understanding.



       11              MR. MECHAM:  Maybe we could swear him.



       12              HEARING OFFICER:  Let's conclude examination



       13   of this witness.  Do you have any additional questions



       14   for this witness, Mr. Mecham?



       15              MR. MECHAM:  No, at this time.



       16              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Moore?



       17              MR. MOORE:  Just a couple of questions.



       18                      CROSS-EXAMINATION



       19   BY MR. MOORE:



       20         Q.   Do you know if Frontier maintains a report of



       21   every time Sorrel Ranch issued a trouble report to you



       22   concerning the problems with the services?



       23         A.   Yeah.  I think that's documented in one of



       24   the -- that we haven't entered in yet, but I believe so,



       25   yes.
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        1              MR. MOORE:  Are you -- can I ask your lawyer



        2   if you're planning on entering that in, and then I'll



        3   wait for these questions, then.



        4              MR. THOMSON:  Your Honor, I'd be happy to



        5   enter this.  It was produced -- let me back up a little



        6   bit and, for the record, say that this was a document



        7   that was produced as a result of a discovery request



        8   from Mr. Mecham, and it's a log of the repair tickets



        9   called in by Sorrel River.  They asked for a two-year



       10   period, we supplied the last decade worth of trouble



       11   tickets.



       12              So it's a single page.  It's a table, looks



       13   like this.  We'll be happy to enter it into evidence.  I



       14   can have Mr. Giles validate this on redirect, if we want



       15   to do that.



       16              HEARING OFFICER:  If you're willing to do



       17   so, and it will be responsive to Mr. Moore's question.



       18   Do we have copies for everyone?



       19              MR. THOMSON:  I have one copy, Your Honor.



       20              MR. MECHAM:  I have copies.  I have no



       21   objection to it being entered.



       22              HEARING OFFICER:  Please distribute them.



       23   So, Mr. Thomson, would you like me to mark this as the



       24   company's exhibit?



       25              MR. THOMSON:  We can do that, Your Honor,
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        1   sure.  We can mark that Frontier-1.



        2              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Let this be



        3   marked Frontier-1.  And Mr. Thomson has moved for its



        4   admission.  Is there any objection?



        5              MR. MECHAM:  No.



        6              (Frontier Exhibit No. 1 was



        7                marked for identification.)



        8              HEARING OFFICER:  It's admitted.



        9              MR. THOMSON:  Thank you, Your Honor.



       10              HEARING OFFICER:  Before you continue



       11   Mr. Moore, Mr. Mecham had just expressed a little



       12   interest in a break.  It's been about an hour and 20



       13   minutes.  Since we've just received a new exhibit, it



       14   may benefit the parties to look at it a little bit



       15   before we continue.



       16              Is there any interest in a 10- or 15-minute



       17   break?



       18              MR. MOORE:  That would be fine.



       19              MR. THOMSON:  Fine with us.



       20              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  We will be in



       21   recess until 11:30.



       22              MR. THOMSON:  Thank you.



       23              (A recess was taken.)



       24              HEARING OFFICER:  Let's go back on the



       25   record.
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        1              Mr. Moore, I believe we were with you and



        2   your cross-examination of Mr. Giles.



        3         Q.   (BY MR. MOORE)  Yes.  Mr. Giles, I was



        4   speaking about Frontier Exhibit 1, I believe.  That's the



        5   Sorrel River Repair Ticket History.



        6              Do you have that before you?



        7         A.   Okay.  I've got it, yes.



        8         Q.   Now, this lists every time Sorrel -- every



        9   time Sorrel River issued a formal trouble report to you;



       10   is that correct?



       11         A.   That is correct.



       12         Q.   What are the procedures that Sorrel River



       13   must go through to issue a trouble report?



       14         A.   They call a central location, 800 number, and



       15   report their -- whatever issues they have to that.  That



       16   creates a trouble ticket in our system and is



       17   subsequently dispatched to whatever group is going to



       18   handle that issue.  Could be the field where my employees



       19   are, it could be a long-distance group, various different



       20   areas.  Not all of these would come out to the field and



       21   require a field visit.



       22         Q.   Could you look, if it's available to you, for



       23   Sorrel River Ranch Exhibit No. 1?  I'm referring to about



       24   the -- your Response to Discovery Requests.



       25         A.   I'm not sure.  Sorrel River 1 is what?
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        1         Q.   It's your response -- I believe it's your



        2   response to Sorrel River's discovery requests.



        3         A.   Okay.



        4              HEARING OFFICER:  I believe that's SRR-2.



        5              MR. MOORE:  That's SRR-2.  Sorry about that.



        6         Q.   (BY MR. MOORE)  Will you look at page 4,



        7   Request 1-5?



        8         A.   Okay.  I'm there.



        9         Q.   And that provides that "Frontier made only



       10   one dispatched service to Sorrel River Ranch in response



       11   to a trouble ticket in the past 12 months."



       12         A.   Correct.



       13         Q.   "There were an additional 6 technician visits



       14   in response to Owner and/or Managing Director emails over



       15   the past 5 months."



       16         A.   Correct.



       17         Q.   Help me out here.  Does that mean the six



       18   technicians in the past five months were dispatched



       19   without a reporting on your repair ticket?



       20         A.   That is correct.  Those were visits made to



       21   the site in response to either something that we observed



       22   or an email from SRR.  We made visits out to the site to



       23   start monitoring their PRI circuit which provides their



       24   voice.



       25         Q.   But the email didn't generate a formal --
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        1         A.   No, did not.  This was on our -- this was us



        2   taking active -- proactive -- I guess reactive to the



        3   email, but proactive stance to go out and visit, check



        4   with the front desk to make sure they hadn't had any



        5   dropped calls, and to retrieve data from our device out



        6   on site there and look at the previous week's report.



        7         Q.   Is there any specific record that deals with



        8   your response to email requests that don't go through the



        9   800 number?



       10         A.   No.



       11         Q.   Does Frontier have a program of PRI testing,



       12   inspection and preventative maintenance?



       13         A.   We have a preventative and maintenance



       14   program, yes.



       15         Q.   Have you filed a description of this program



       16   with the Commission?



       17         A.   I do not know that.



       18         Q.   You say that you're not sure why you do not



       19   qualify for services in the Utah Public



       20   Telecommunications Service Funds; is that correct?



       21         A.   That's correct.  I don't -- personally am not



       22   involved in that process at all.



       23         Q.   Do you know if you get any other federal



       24   assistance, other than the CAF assistance that you



       25   referred to earlier?



                                                                58

�







        1         A.   I do not know.



        2         Q.   Did you make a profit last year?



        3         A.   That, I don't know specifically.



        4              MR. MOORE:  That's all I have.  Thank you.



        5              HEARING OFFICER:  A couple of questions from



        6   me, Mr. Giles.



        7              When you were asked about the problems that



        8   began in the aftermath of the radio changeout in



        9   December of 2018, you alluded to a vendor.  Can you help



       10   me understand what the actual physical problems were?



       11              THE WITNESS:  Physical problems were the



       12   reliability of that particular radio that we put in.



       13              HEARING OFFICER:  Was it a compatibility



       14   issue with the model or that particular radio was



       15   somehow dysfunctional?



       16              THE WITNESS:  I'm going to defer that to the



       17   expert on that piece of it, okay?  And he'll -- I



       18   understand he's going to testify, so...



       19              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  And that radio



       20   was installed to increase bandwidth for internet



       21   service; is that right?



       22              THE WITNESS:  Correct.



       23              HEARING OFFICER:  Was that implemented in



       24   connection with an advertised increase of services to



       25   customers?
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        1              THE WITNESS:  No, not until after.  And we



        2   have not advertised any because of the subsequent



        3   problems, we've held off on that.



        4              HEARING OFFICER:  When the complainant's



        5   witness, Mr. Ciani, was testifying, he alluded to



        6   certain billing credits that it has received on its



        7   statement from Frontier.



        8              Can you speak to those credits, why they



        9   were issued and the amount of them?



       10              THE WITNESS:  I personally cannot.  You



       11   know, I wasn't involved in that piece of it.  So that's



       12   all I know, is credits were issued to all the customers



       13   out in that area.  I just don't have the specifics on



       14   it.



       15              HEARING OFFICER:  And, in your view, as we



       16   sit here today, are there technical issues that exist



       17   that need to be remedied in order for Frontier to



       18   provide the ranch adequate service?



       19              THE WITNESS:  We don't want them to have any



       20   issues.  So if there's any issues that we can control or



       21   fix or whatever, then that's our goal, so...



       22              The complaints and the issues that we were



       23   having have diminished significantly.  Are there still



       24   issues, tweaks that have to be done to the system to



       25   provide any issues?  We've had a couple of what I'd call
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        1   radio hits since then.  There again, I'll defer that to



        2   someone that's the expert on the radio.  But at this



        3   point in time, we'll continue to watch it.



        4              HEARING OFFICER:  I don't want to ask you



        5   for a legal conclusion, that wouldn't be fair.  But, in



        6   your view, in your experience, having worked for the



        7   company for many decades, is this service that the



        8   company is providing to Frontier today reasonable and



        9   adequate?



       10              THE WITNESS:  That we're providing to SRR?



       11              HEARING OFFICER:  To the Ranch, yes.



       12              THE WITNESS:  To the Ranch.  At this point,



       13   I believe it is.  But there again, that's just a general



       14   opinion.  Obviously, we don't want any outages and we



       15   react to any that we know about, so...  There's still



       16   challenges, you know, it's -- and to serve that area in



       17   particular, there's still challenges and will probably



       18   continue to be.



       19              HEARING OFFICER:  Is there any specific



       20   action plan that the company has, as of today, in order



       21   to further investigate or address the Ranch's continued



       22   complaints?



       23              THE WITNESS:  There's ongoing calls every



       24   single day to evaluate where we're at, where our clients



       25   are for the future.  This is not typical.  This is in



                                                                61

�







        1   response to the issues we've had and to the customers



        2   out there that we'll continue, until we're satisfied and



        3   they're satisfied that the issues have been resolved.



        4              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.



        5              Any redirect, Mr. Thomson?



        6              MR. THOMSON:  No, Your Honor.



        7              HEARING OFFICER:  Does any other party have



        8   additional questions before we move on?



        9              MR. MECHAM:  Perhaps just one.



       10                  FURTHER CROSS-EXAMINATION



       11   BY MR. MECHAM:



       12         Q.   Mr. Giles, you talk about those radios going



       13   in for internet purposes, but don't the telephone calls



       14   go over the same network -- over the same circuits?



       15         A.   They do, but I don't know specifically.  And,



       16   there again, you can direct those questions to a radio



       17   expert to better answer it.  But, initially, the radios



       18   were replaced to increase the bandwidth out to that area.



       19   More pressure on the internet than there was on the voice



       20   part of it as well.



       21         Q.   Is there a more reliable -- well, isn't there



       22   a more reliable way to provide the service?



       23         A.   I really couldn't answer that.  I mean, I



       24   don't know what your definition of "reliable" is.



       25              MR. MECHAM:  Thank you.
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        1              HEARING OFFICER:  Any follow-up?



        2              MR. THOMSON:  No, Your Honor.



        3              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Well,



        4   Mr. Mecham had expressed interest in asking questions of



        5   Mr. Erhart.  I think it's probably procedurally



        6   appropriate to stick with Mr. Thomson for the time being



        7   and ask you who your next intended witness is.



        8              MR. THOMSON:  We're going to call Carlos



        9   Cardona, who is an employee for Frontier.



       10              HEARING OFFICER:  Do you intend to call



       11   Mr. Erhart?



       12              MR. THOMSON:  I did not, no, Your Honor.



       13              HEARING OFFICER:  To the extent the other



       14   parties have questions for Mr. Erhart, do you have



       15   objection to his being sworn and answering questions



       16   today?



       17              MR. THOMSON:  No.  I don't think the parties



       18   should have expectation that Mr. Erhart is prepared for



       19   everything they might ask, but I don't have an objection



       20   to Mr. Erhart being sworn in and testifying to what he



       21   knows.



       22              HEARING OFFICER:  Well, we'll stick with



       23   your preferred order of the witnesses now, then, and



       24   I'll ask you to call your next witness.



       25              MR. THOMSON:  Thank you.
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        1              Mr. Cardona, are you still on the line?



        2              MR. CARDONA:  Yes.  Does everybody hear me?



        3              MR. THOMSON:  Yeah.  Thank you.  Would you



        4   state your name --



        5              HEARING OFFICER:  Two quick questions.



        6   First, I assume there's no objection to the witness



        7   telephonically.



        8              MR. MECHAM:  No, we agreed.



        9              HEARING OFFICER:  Then I need to swear you.



       10   Mr. Cardona, is it?



       11              MR. THOMSON:  Yes, sir.



       12              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Cardona, do you swear



       13   to tell the truth?



       14              MR. CARDONA:  Yes, I do.



       15              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Go ahead.



       16              MR. THOMSON:  Thank you, Your Honor.



       17                       CARLOS CARDONA,



       18   called as a witness by and on behalf of Frontier



       19   Communications, having been first duly sworn, was



       20   examined and testified as follows:



       21                      DIRECT EXAMINATION



       22   BY MR. THOMSON:



       23         Q.   Carlos, would you state your full name for



       24   the record, please?



       25         A.   Carlos J. Cardona.
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        1         Q.   And would you spell your last name, please?



        2         A.   C-A-R-D-O-N-A.



        3         Q.   Thank you.  Are you an employee of Frontier



        4   Communications?



        5         A.   Yes.



        6         Q.   How long have you been employed by Frontier?



        7         A.   Five-and-a-half years.



        8         Q.   Mr. Cardona, what is your job title?



        9         A.   I'm the principal senior wireless architect



       10   for Frontier Communications.



       11         Q.   And in the capacity as the principal senior



       12   architect for wireless communications, can you give us a



       13   general overview of your duties?



       14         A.   Yeah.  We oversee, for companywide,



       15   nationwide, all the technology that gets deployed.  We



       16   oversee 450 microwave links that we have deployed and



       17   over 700 tower sites that we have deployed nationwide.



       18         Q.   So you're familiar with microwave radio



       19   systems like Sorrel River's and the other customers in



       20   Castle Valley?



       21         A.   The path -- the path from the microwave



       22   network that is taken from Moab to Bald Mesa -- Bald



       23   Mesa, Castle Valley, yes.  I'm not familiar from Castle



       24   Valley forward.  I don't have any familiarity whatsoever



       25   of what is happening on the network.
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        1         Q.   Okay.  Fair enough.  Were you involved with



        2   the December 18th replacement of the radio on Bald Mesa?



        3         A.   Yes, I was.



        4         Q.   Can you describe for us what the purpose of



        5   that replacement was?



        6         A.   The current radio that was installed, it was



        7   what is called a TDM radio.  It's a radio only to deliver



        8   analog circuits, voice, and data.  Analog circuits are



        9   low speeds in -- for augmenting data for CAF, Connect



       10   America Fund, purposes.



       11              We required these radios, so we implemented



       12   these radios over the network.  We have the same vendor



       13   that we deploy.  We've already been utilizing them for



       14   four years.  We have over 42 links nationwide with them,



       15   and we did not register any issues in the last four years



       16   with them.  We implemented the network in order to



       17   augment the circuit, and that's why the radio was



       18   replaced.



       19         Q.   This was intended to be an upgrade?



       20         A.   Yes.



       21         Q.   And what was the name of the vendor whose



       22   radio you used on December 18th?



       23         A.   Cambium Networks.



       24         Q.   Can you spell that for the record, please?



       25         A.   C-A-M-B-I-U-M Networks.
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        1         Q.   Okay.



        2         A.   They are -- their headquarters are Rolling



        3   Meadows, Illinois.



        4         Q.   And once that radio came on line, what



        5   happened next?



        6         A.   The radio came on line, everything started,



        7   all the processes and the cutovers came on line until



        8   issues started affecting the performance on fading, and



        9   we started to engage into mitigating those problems.  And



       10   it's --



       11         Q.   And when you say -- I'm sorry.



       12         A.   And it's -- yes.



       13         Q.   When you say you started to engage the



       14   vendor, what happened?



       15         A.   The vendor never provided adequate support,



       16   so we ended up stranded.  We were with a contractor that



       17   we had on the site and only phone support.  They were not



       18   sending us new equipment, they were not sending us their



       19   engineers to the site.  So we were dealing back and forth



       20   with that situation.



       21              Every time we adjust -- make adjustment into



       22   the network, make adjustment to the radios, they'd work



       23   for three or four days and then they start causing issues



       24   again and to a point that I made a decision to switch the



       25   radio.  And Mother Nature prevented me to change the
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        1   radio earlier than I wanted to.



        2         Q.   When did the radio get replaced?



        3         A.   The radio got replaced in March.  I think



        4   it's the week of March 20th.  That's when with the



        5   weather -- you know, the weather was very, very



        6   impenetrable, that mountain.  You know, having a snowcat



        7   and not being able to bring it up is not safe for the



        8   tower climbers.  Bald Mesa mountain is very risky when



        9   there is a lot of ice on it.



       10         Q.   And when you replaced the radio in March, did



       11   you use another Cambium radio?



       12         A.   No.  We eliminated them as a vendor for the



       13   company.  We used an Aviat radio, A-V-I-A-T.  They are



       14   out of Austin, Texas.



       15         Q.   And what happened when you replaced the



       16   radio?



       17         A.   When we replaced the radio, we -- the



       18   complete -- complete coordination with my technicians and



       19   performance when testing, the timing calibrations, and



       20   traffic got more stable and more adequate at that time,



       21   removing the radio that was not holding the service



       22   agreement or the quality agreement that it was assigning



       23   to.



       24         Q.   These are sometimes referred to as service



       25   level agreements?
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        1         A.   Yes.  Yeah.  When we -- when we approve



        2   equipment internally in Frontier Communications, it goes



        3   through our lab process -- our lab testing process.  We



        4   put them through all these test processes.



        5              Now, apparently, these new radios that were



        6   sent out has a new voice queue.  And we approved that and



        7   we determined service level agreements on operation with



        8   the manufacturers.  Once those service level agreements



        9   are not met, we eliminate the vendor from the network.



       10         Q.   And what is your opinion regarding



       11   performance of the new radio versus the Cambium radio?



       12         A.   Well, the log says it all.  You know, that



       13   radio, since it was put on, it -- it had no hiccups.  We



       14   are now in the process of replacing the second leg,



       15   another Cambium radio that is mounted that might refer



       16   some hits here and there, and we're trying to clean those



       17   too.  So we are replacing with another Aviat radio.  The



       18   project got approved last night, and looking to replace



       19   that radio next week.



       20         Q.   And this is on the second leg?



       21         A.   The second leg that will be Bald Mesa to



       22   Castle Valley.



       23         Q.   Okay.  And what do you expect that second



       24   radio replacement to do?



       25         A.   Clean the errors, the hits.  And also when
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        1   the weather -- the situation on -- over the radio link is



        2   that we have one path that is Bald Mesa to Castle Valley



        3   that goes to a passive repeater.  A passive repeater is a



        4   billboard that does not have any electronics.  Basically,



        5   we're bouncing the signal to the mountain to the tower.



        6   Every time we get weather, fog, diffraction, refraction,



        7   which fades the radio signal, the QAM modulation of the



        8   radio decreases.  The QAM modulation is the capacity of



        9   the radio to maintain the bandwidth -- projected



       10   bandwidth for certain receive level, then it effects



       11   signal.



       12              So the hits that Mike is seeing every time we



       13   get wet fog, every time we get heavy rain or heavy fog,



       14   this radio tends to fade and is not holding the QAM



       15   modulation.  It does not drop the traffic completely



       16   down, but it just holds it enough that it will -- the



       17   test set that we have right now is connected 24/7



       18   monitoring has registered those hits.



       19              So I just made a decision to replace all the



       20   radios and make this entire network completely flawless



       21   at least from the RF side from end to end from Moab to



       22   Castle Valley.



       23         Q.   And RF is radio frequency?



       24         A.   Yes, sir.



       25         Q.   Mr. Cardona, how much experience do you have
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        1   with microwave systems?



        2         A.   I've been working on microwave radios since



        3   1994.



        4         Q.   And have you worked in other challenging



        5   locations?



        6         A.   Yes.  I spent seven years in the entire



        7   continent of Africa.  I spent years in South America,



        8   Central America, and the Caribbean dealing with a lot of



        9   receptive recovery and a lot of terrain situations as



       10   well.



       11              MR. THOMSON:  Your Honor, we don't have any



       12   further questions at this time.



       13              HEARING OFFICER:  We'll go to Mr. Mecham.



       14              REPORTER:  Mr. Cardona, I need you to speak



       15   up, please.



       16              HEARING OFFICER:  That was the court



       17   reporter asking you to speak more loudly, Mr. Cardon.



       18              THE WITNESS:  Yes.



       19              MR. MECHAM:  Thank you.



       20                      CROSS-EXAMINATION



       21   BY MR. MECHAM:



       22         Q.   Mr. Cardona, so now that that radio has been



       23   switched out, as of March, there are no further problems



       24   in Castle Valley?



       25         A.   Well, on Castle Valley, Mike testified that
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        1   there's been some hits here and there.  That's why I made



        2   the decision to replace that second leg already.



        3         Q.   So all of the customers, including Sorrel



        4   River Ranch, can expect the network to be up and running



        5   99 point something percent of the time?



        6         A.   Four nines.  My goal is on the radio



        7   network -- solely on the radio network, the goal is four



        8   nines reliability.



        9         Q.   Is what?  I'm sorry, I couldn't --



       10         A.   Four nines, 99.99.



       11         Q.   Were you aware of the problems before



       12   December 18th that were going on that required the first



       13   switchout?



       14         A.   No, I was not.  I was involved on the Connect



       15   America Fund project to run 18 radio projects to be



       16   addressed, and this was one of them.



       17         Q.   And there was nothing that could have been



       18   done to prevent what did happen and what seems to



       19   continue to be happening at Sorrel River Ranch?



       20         A.   After the radio -- I wanted to replace this



       21   radio in January and the weather was kicking heavy duty.



       22   So the situation right now on the radio and the -- after



       23   the new radio was replaced, the network is being very,



       24   very stable.



       25         Q.   But we act as though the radio was the cure,
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        1   and yet there were still outages well before



        2   December 18th of 2018.  Weren't there problems in the



        3   network before that?



        4         A.   Before December 18th --



        5         Q.   Correct.



        6         A.   -- I was not aware of huge outages at that



        7   time.



        8         Q.   Well, you are aware of the response that



        9   Frontier gave, which was marked as SRR-3, that show



       10   outages, not all of which affected Castle Valley, but



       11   certainly some did and well before December 18th of 2018.



       12   In other words --



       13         A.   I'm not -- my duty's as the architect, I'm



       14   not directing both in operations.



       15         Q.   So you only focus on the microwave radio?



       16         A.   On the microwave part -- part of the house,



       17   yes.  Nothing on the operations.



       18         Q.   So the troubles before that weren't your



       19   concern?



       20         A.   I was not aware of -- we were aware of, we



       21   were working to mitigation, but we were not aware of



       22   anything regarding that.



       23         Q.   Do you know if Frontier has taken any action



       24   against the first vendor, Cambium Networks?



       25         A.   We are in process.  I'm not allowed to speak
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        1   any further about it, but we are working internally.



        2              MR. MECHAM:  And that's it for now,



        3   Mr. Hammer.



        4              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Moore?



        5                      CROSS-EXAMINATION



        6   BY MR. MOORE:



        7         Q.   Just for the record, when will this second



        8   radio be up and running?  When will the system be fully



        9   operational after you set in the second radio link?



       10         A.   Which one, the new one that I'm trying to



       11   replace now or --



       12         Q.   The one you're trying to replace.



       13         A.   -- the second one that we were --



       14         Q.   I'm sorry.  The one you're trying to replace



       15   now.



       16         A.   Okay.  Yeah.  First, I have to coordinate the



       17   maintenance window with Mike Giles.  He's the officer



       18   that will create the maintenance window.  The goal is to



       19   do the cutover between Friday and Saturday.  That's the



       20   goal.  But we're still working on some logistical



       21   situation, but that's the goal, to do that next week.



       22         Q.   So the -- the repairs on the second radio



       23   will be done this time next week?



       24         A.   We will be doing early morning hours, 1:00 or



       25   2:00 a.m. in the morning, yes.
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        1              MR. MOORE:  Thank you.  I have no further



        2   questions.



        3              HEARING OFFICER:  Just a point of



        4   clarification from me, Mr. Cardona.



        5              With respect to this -- what we'll call the



        6   second radio that you're working to have installed next



        7   week, there is not presently a radio at that location,



        8   right.



        9              THE WITNESS:  Yes.  There is a Cambium radio



       10   installed right now, which completes the circuit from



       11   Bald Mesa to Castle Valley.  We are going to replace



       12   that Cambium radio with another new Aviat radio.



       13              HEARING OFFICER:  I'm sorry, I misunderstood



       14   you.  So this will simply be an upgraded radio?



       15              THE WITNESS:  Yes.  We're going to upgrade



       16   the radio.  Upgrading this radio will also include more



       17   reliability and a little bit more QAM modulation to add



       18   a little bit more bandwidth to the network, adding more



       19   stability.



       20              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Thank you.



       21              Mr. Thomson, any redirect?



       22              MR. THOMSON:  No, sir.  Thank you.



       23              HEARING OFFICER:  Do you have something?



       24   All right.  Thank you, Mr. Cardona.



       25              Your next witness, Mr. Thomson.
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        1              MR. THOMSON:  We'll call Mr. Erhart, Your



        2   Honor.



        3              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Erhart, do you swear



        4   to tell the truth?



        5              THE WITNESS:  I do.



        6                         CARL ERHART,



        7   called as a witness by and on behalf of Frontier



        8   Communications, having been first duly sworn, was



        9   examined and testified as follows:



       10                      DIRECT EXAMINATION



       11   BY MR. THOMSON:



       12         Q.   Mr. Erhart, would you state your name for the



       13   record, please?



       14         A.   My name is Carl E. Erhart.



       15         Q.   And are you employed by Frontier



       16   Communications?



       17         A.   Yes, I am.



       18         Q.   In what capacity?



       19         A.   I'm vice president for regulatory and



       20   governmental affairs.



       21         Q.   And what jurisdictions do you cover in that



       22   capacity?



       23         A.   I oversee several state jurisdictions



       24   primarily in the western half of the country, but for



       25   California.
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        1         Q.   Including Utah?



        2         A.   Including Utah.



        3         Q.   How long have you been with the company, sir?



        4         A.   Been employed with Frontier for just over



        5   three years.



        6         Q.   Are you familiar with the Connect America



        7   Fund for efforts that the company's conducting?



        8         A.   I would say generally.



        9         Q.   And can you give us a short overview of what



       10   the Connect America Fund is designed to do?



       11         A.   Sure.  The Connect America Fund, at a high



       12   level, basically replaced the prior Universal Service



       13   high-cost support for voice services in the state, and



       14   the Connect America Fund is meant primarily to support



       15   the deployment of broadband services in very high-cost



       16   areas.



       17              And so for companies like Frontier that are



       18   price cap companies at the federal level, funding was



       19   made available for companies to accept on a state basis



       20   for deployment of broadband services that met certain



       21   speed requirements in certain census blocks that the FCC



       22   had identified as high cost.



       23         Q.   Do you know if there's a company contribution



       24   toward these projects?



       25         A.   There could be.  I mean, the FCC model
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        1   determined a -- you know, based on their model, an



        2   estimate to deploy broadband services and, therefore,



        3   made funding available based on that.  And once the



        4   company accepts the money, they're committed to deploy



        5   service past the predetermined number of households and



        6   business locations within those census blocks.



        7         Q.   And, to your knowledge, were CAF funds used



        8   to replace the radio in December of 2018?



        9         A.   That's my understanding, that it was part of



       10   the CAF deployment for the census blocks within the Moab



       11   exchange.



       12              MR. THOMSON:  Your Honor, I don't have any



       13   further questions.



       14              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Mecham?



       15              MR. MECHAM:  Thank you.



       16                      CROSS-EXAMINATION



       17   BY MR. MECHAM:



       18         Q.   Mr. Erhart, in what we've marked as SRR-2,



       19   the general responses to Sorrel River Ranch's data



       20   requests at 1.12 we asked why Frontier has not tried to



       21   obtain funds from the state Universal Service Fund in



       22   order to upgrade the network facilities serving Castle



       23   Valley and Professor Valley and Sorrel River Ranch, and



       24   the response was less than detailed.



       25              You'll see there that it says, "Eligibility
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        1   for State High Cost Universal Fund Support is determined



        2   by the PSC, which is now based on an annual DPU analysis



        3   and recommendation."



        4              Does that mean that Frontier can't qualify



        5   under the criteria?



        6         A.   My understanding is the PSC determined that



        7   Frontier no longer qualified for Universal Service Funds



        8   support beginning sometime in 2007 and hasn't qualified



        9   since.



       10         Q.   And do you know what was the



       11   disqualification?



       12         A.   I don't know.  I wasn't employed by Frontier



       13   in 2007.  I assume it was an analysis done by the DPU.



       14         Q.   But you've been employed for the last three



       15   years and haven't qualified for any of those years?



       16         A.   That's correct.



       17         Q.   Okay.  I have an exhibit.  I guess we're up



       18   to 4.  You'll see, Mr. Erhart, this is a memorandum from



       19   the Division of Public Utilities to the Public Service



       20   Commission.  It's in Docket 18-041-02, which apparently



       21   is the analysis that the Division did to determine



       22   whether or not Frontier qualified for USF funds then,



       23   which, of course, was only six or seven months ago.



       24              And if you look at the second page under



       25   Discussion No. 3, it says, "Accumulated Depreciation -
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        1   Citizens reported," which is Frontier's parent company,



        2   as you know -- "Citizens reported more than $117.7 of



        3   accumulated depreciation.  Over 95 percent of the



        4   company's assets are fully depreciated.  There is very



        5   little rate base left as a basis for return on



        6   investment."



        7              Doesn't that indicate that Frontier is not



        8   investing in the State of Utah?



        9         A.   No, I wouldn't agree with that.



       10         Q.   Why?



       11         A.   Well, a couple of things.  One, I don't think



       12   this is uncommon for ILECs in the industry to be in this



       13   position, and I would say it's analogous to where the



       14   water companies are.  And I think what's happened with



       15   telecom, and Frontier, in particular, has been a



       16   significant decline in a number of access lines that it



       17   serves.  So we have a large rate base that has been on



       18   the books for a number of years that's being depreciated



       19   that was initially deployed to serve a much greater



       20   number of customers.



       21              And over the years, because of the line loss,



       22   that vast network, if you will, serves fewer customers.



       23   So if you just look at the investment, you might conclude



       24   that it hasn't been significant relative to the total



       25   rate base.  But relative to the number of customers that
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        1   remain on the network, I would say the company continues



        2   to invest in the network.



        3         Q.   With 5 percent -- 5 percent investment,



        4   essentially?



        5         A.   Again, the access lines have decreased



        6   significantly.  It's not uncommon since 2004 ILECs to



        7   have lost 70 to 80 percent of the access lines that they



        8   once served.



        9         Q.   Are you aware of how many other independent



       10   rural companies don't get Universal Service Funds?



       11         A.   In Utah?



       12         Q.   Yes.



       13         A.   No, I'm not.



       14         Q.   Would you accept, subject to check, that it's



       15   very few, it might be two?



       16         A.   If that's a representation, I have no reason



       17   to disagree.  Also, understand, CenturyLink wouldn't



       18   qualify for it, either.



       19         Q.   CenturyLink wouldn't.  They're the large



       20   incumbent.  They've never gotten Universal Service Funds



       21   from the state ever.  But the rural independents,



       22   including Frontier, and Contel before, have, until 2007,



       23   both, according to your response as well as the response



       24   in the data request.



       25         A.   Well, again, I think as the company responded
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        1   in the data request, the determination of whether



        2   citizens of Utah would qualify for Universal Service



        3   Funds could be done on a couple different bases.  For



        4   example, I think if you looked at the company's



        5   intrastate operations, the company's net operation -- net



        6   operating margin is negative.



        7              So many states look at the qualifications of



        8   Universal Service Funds on the basis of intrastate



        9   operations, and they look at it on the basis of a



       10   net-operating-margin basis, not on a return-on-rate



       11   basis.



       12              So if you looked at it on that basis, then



       13   Frontier's operating company could qualify for Universal



       14   Service funding and it could be significant, as it was --



       15   as I understand, back in the mid 2000s, the company



       16   received roughly $1.5 million a year.



       17         Q.   Well, it just seems to me that it looks like



       18   neglect of the state if 95 --



       19         A.   I've never heard of --



       20              MR. THOMSON:  Your Honor, I'm going to



       21   object to that.  I don't object to leading questions,



       22   but I don't want argument inserted into the question.



       23   If Mr. Mecham has a question, he should ask it.



       24              HEARING OFFICER:  I'll sustain the



       25   objection.  I hadn't heard a question yet, but you were
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        1   interrupted.  So if you'd like to rephrase and offer a



        2   question, you're welcome to.



        3         Q.   (BY MR. MECHAM)  Do you know how the formula



        4   works for the state USF?



        5         A.   At a high level.



        6         Q.   So you know that in order to qualify, you



        7   have to have undepreciated rate base, you have to have



        8   costs that exceed your authorized rate of return to make



        9   up that difference, or do you not know that?



       10         A.   I would say in addition to that, the state



       11   also looks at the non-intrastate jurisdiction.



       12         Q.   That is correct.  I agree with that.  That's



       13   part of the statute to ensure that you don't get unjustly



       14   enriched by the interstate side.  Is that your



       15   understanding?



       16         A.   I assume that's the logic behind it.



       17         Q.   Okay.



       18         A.   But, again, if you were to determine the



       19   company's cost of service, I'll say for rate case



       20   purposes, it would be on the basis of intrastate results,



       21   which, again, based on the company's most recent annual



       22   report, its net operating margin on an intrastate basis



       23   is negative.



       24              And earlier you seemed to imply that the



       25   company could qualify for Universal Service Funds support
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        1   on some type of project basis.  But, again, my



        2   understanding of current rules and the statute is that



        3   that is limited to a non-rate of return regulated



        4   company, which in Utah would only be CenturyLink.



        5         Q.   Right.  CenturyLink has never qualified for



        6   funds.



        7         A.   Right, but could, on a project basis.



        8         Q.   A one-time basis.  That may have happened a



        9   time or two, I can't remember.



       10         A.   Right.



       11              MR. MECHAM:  Okay.  I think that's it for



       12   me, Mr. Hammer.



       13              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Moore?



       14              MR. MOORE:  Just one quick question.



       15                      CROSS-EXAMINATION



       16   BY MR. MOORE:



       17         Q.   As -- you work with regulatory affairs for



       18   the state -- state regulatory affairs?



       19         A.   I do, across a number of states.



       20         Q.   Do you know if there's a description of



       21   Frontier's inspection and maintenance and testing program



       22   filed with the Public Service Commission?



       23         A.   I am not aware.



       24              MR. MOORE:  That's it.



       25         Q.   (BY MR. MOORE)  You're not aware of -- I'm
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        1   sorry.  Would you know if one was filed?



        2         A.   I would not necessarily know.  Frontier has a



        3   centralized, I'll say, compliance team that would prepare



        4   a report like that, assuming there's one that's required



        5   to be prepared.  So I'm not aware of whether there is a



        6   report required to be filed or not.



        7              MR. MOORE:  Thank you.  I have no further



        8   questions.



        9              MR. MECHAM:  Mr. Hammer, I neglected to move



       10   for admission of SRR-4.



       11              MR. THOMSON:  We don't object, Your Honor.



       12              HEARING OFFICER:  It's admitted.



       13              I don't have any questions for Mr. Erhart.



       14              Did you intend to call any other witnesses,



       15   Mr. Thomson?



       16              MR. THOMSON:  No, Your Honor.  We're going



       17   to rest.



       18              HEARING OFFICER:  And, Mr. Moore, you had no



       19   witnesses?



       20              MR. MOORE:  No witnesses.



       21              HEARING OFFICER:  If the parties don't mind,



       22   I have just a couple of questions I'd like to go back



       23   and ask a couple of witnesses for clarification,



       24   beginning with Mr. Giles.  I think you're the most



       25   appropriate party for this question.
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        1              The discussion we just heard about the



        2   company's eligibility for Utah USF seems to imply that,



        3   perhaps, if additional capital were made available for



        4   Utah, that the service in this area could be improved.



        5              Are there particular improvements that



        6   you're aware of that could be made if the company were



        7   willing to spend the money that would increase the



        8   reliability of this service to the Ranch?



        9              MR. GILES:  No, I'm not aware of any.  I



       10   mean, the second leg that Carlos talked about will



       11   certainly help this clarification that the radio that



       12   was replaced initially was Moab to Bald Mesa, and then



       13   the Bald Mesa to Castle Valley was not replaced in



       14   March.  That wasn't, at that time, indicated that was



       15   the issue.  Now we're going to replace that second leg



       16   that I talked about.  The assumption at this point in



       17   time is that will provide the reliable service to that



       18   area.



       19              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Mecham -- and I'll



       20   allow you to answer this question in the form of simple



       21   argument from counsel, if you like, or you're welcome to



       22   offer a witness's testimony.  But the way I read that



       23   line of questioning was that there's potentially a



       24   concern that there's money that could be spent to fix



       25   things or make them better and it's not being spent.
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        1              Do you have any idea on -- what that money



        2   might be spent on to do so?



        3              MR. MECHAM:  We're aware that there is at



        4   least -- well, let's put it this way:  I've heard from



        5   one other company who would like to serve the territory



        6   and do what's necessary in order to serve that area.  I



        7   also am aware of another company who is making the



        8   investment to serve the area, and they're using



        9   different technology than this.



       10              I think that there is better technology to



       11   implement and, in fact, there's precedent to require new



       12   and different technology by the Supreme Court in a



       13   Public Service Commission case in 1994, what's called a



       14   modernization case, to force the upgrade of the network



       15   to provide the kind of services -- it doesn't matter



       16   that they're remote, there are remote areas all over the



       17   state being served so much better than what Frontier is



       18   doing to the point that it's laughable to say that what



       19   they're doing has done the job or will do the job.



       20              And, in fact, I would argue that -- two



       21   things.  One, the instance that there is a competitor or



       22   competitive option, everybody, including and especially



       23   Sorrel River Ranch, should be relieved from any contract



       24   they've signed if they can get better service than what



       25   we're getting now at comparable or better rates.
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        1              And, two, if this can't be resolved in the



        2   next week or two -- as you've heard from Mr. Ciani,



        3   they're already down $214,000 in their business year to



        4   date.  So I, frankly, would move that there be an order



        5   to show cause why Frontier should not have their



        6   certificate revoked in that area.  That's the kind of



        7   service that they're getting and that's how serious we



        8   are.



        9              So I've -- Mr. Hammer, I've not held myself



       10   out as a technology specialist, but I know inadequate



       11   and terrible service when I see it.  And I know that



       12   there are other areas of the state served by other



       13   companies with new and different technologies, fiber,



       14   for instance, that can serve this area much better than



       15   what's going on right now.



       16              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  We'll table



       17   discussion of your motion and discuss potential remedies



       18   when we're through with testimony.  Thank you for



       19   answering my question.



       20              I will -- since you offered some significant



       21   argument on that point, I'll allow Mr. Thomson an



       22   opportunity to speak to it, if you'd like to at this



       23   time.  You'll also have an opportunity to offer any



       24   closing argument you like.



       25              MR. THOMSON:  Well, aside from the
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        1   jurisdictional issues that Mr. Mecham's argument raises,



        2   you know, there's been no evidence placed in the record



        3   that there is better technology that's available at a



        4   reasonable price to serve the ranch.



        5              Now, his presumption that fiber to the ranch



        6   might be a good idea, that might be true, but at what



        7   expense?  The company is already not earning, as a



        8   matter of fact is negative, as shown by the testimony of



        9   Mr. Erhart.  So the available capital to deploy



       10   something like this -- certainly, we could build a



       11   better mousetrap if we had an unlimited amount of money.



       12   But as we've already seen today, there's no state USF



       13   money available to the company to improve this network.



       14              The company's taken advantage of the federal



       15   funds available to improve this network, and it



       16   continues, based on the testimony of Mr. Cardona, to



       17   improve the network.  The insinuation that this is



       18   horrible, terrible service may be a fair comment with



       19   regard to the period between December 18th and



       20   March 21st, when the defective radio was installed and



       21   then had to be replaced.  Post that, even with the



       22   software -- which we don't really have a foundation for



       23   understanding, the software report submitted by



       24   Mr. Ciani, there is nothing after one incident reported



       25   in April.
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        1              And we don't know what this "Minutes



        2   Downtime" means.  I mean, as we understand it, this



        3   software really looks at the ISP's performance, not a



        4   network performance.  Those are apples and oranges, so



        5   I'm not sure that that tells us much with regard to the



        6   service quality that Mr. Mecham maintains is not



        7   adequate.



        8              HEARING OFFICER:  I think you've answered my



        9   question.  I definitely will give both parties an



       10   opportunity to present any closing argument they want.



       11   I want to get back to just the factual issues that I



       12   want to address.



       13              MR. THOMSON:  Certainly, Your Honor.



       14              HEARING OFFICER:  But thank you.



       15              Mr. Ciani, Mr. Thomson actually anticipated



       16   a question I was going to ask you with respect to



       17   Exhibit SRR-1, the report from Binary Canary, if I



       18   recall the name of that correctly.  The last reported



       19   incident of the software reflects a date of April 15th.



       20              Have there been incidents since April 15th?



       21              MR. CIANI:  You know, that I'm aware, I know



       22   that there was at least two, potentially three,



       23   instances, after the microwave was -- or the radio was



       24   installed and there was at least one occurrence -- and I



       25   sent an email to, I believe, everybody that was in the
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        1   chain on these communications leading up to this



        2   hearing, letting everybody know that we were down again.



        3              And I believe at least two times Mitch, who



        4   may still be on the phone, came to visit the property.



        5   And by the time he had shown up to the property, the



        6   issue had been remedied.  I cannot confirm exactly what



        7   day this report was pulled, so -- and I'm not always



        8   physically on the ranch, but what I can tell you is that



        9   we've had at least several.  And I think that Frontier



       10   has confirmed their radio hits after they fixed the



       11   issue that continues to happen.



       12              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  And I'm going



       13   to jump around just a bit.



       14              Mr. Cardona, if you're still on the line,



       15   feel free to answer this.  Mr. Thomson, if you have



       16   another witness that you think is prepared to answer it,



       17   that's fine.  I'd just simply like to know --



       18   Mr. Cardona referenced the second repair of the radio



       19   was made the week of March 20th.  Do we know the date?



       20              MR. THOMSON:  March 21st, Your Honor.



       21              MR. GILES:  21st.



       22              HEARING OFFICER:  The complainant's Exhibit



       23   SRR-1 shows two relatively significant outages on



       24   March 21st and 22nd.  Were there problems in the



       25   immediate aftermath of the installation that were being
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        1   worked out, to your knowledge?



        2              MR. GILES:  There was a significant outage



        3   the day of changing that radio out, yes.  And I don't



        4   know -- there again, I am not familiar with this report



        5   at all.  I don't even know what binary report it is.



        6   There were -- it might have spilled into the 22nd.  Time



        7   frame-wise, Carlos may be able to answer, but it was a



        8   significant outage that day, yes.



        9              MR. MECHAM:  Mr. Ciani can shed some light.



       10              HEARING OFFICER:  He's welcome to.



       11              MR. CIANI:  Yeah.  After the radio was



       12   changed, we had significant challenges the first couple



       13   of days immediately following the change.



       14              As it was explained to me by Frontier, there



       15   is a process of -- and Mr. Giles can probably testify to



       16   this much better than I can, but there is a process of



       17   balancing out the frequencies.  And that is something



       18   that was explained to me previous to all this kind of



       19   catastrophic challenge that we had, was that, you know,



       20   when there's weather, wind, rain, there's all sorts of



       21   manual requirements from Frontier's side to keep the



       22   service not just functioning, but functioning to a level



       23   that we can actually communicate with our guests and



       24   other people across the line.



       25              Which lends itself to the repeated issues
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        1   we've had over the years of not complete service



        2   interruptions, but challenges with static and other



        3   types of hearing impairments on the line.  And we had



        4   those issues immediately following the microwave -- we



        5   had at least two outages after the microwave was



        6   installed.  And we still, from time to time, have issues



        7   with the quality of the reception.



        8              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  And,



        9   Mr. Ciani, sticking with you just for a moment, during



       10   your testimony earlier you alluded to some billing



       11   credits that your employer had received from Frontier.



       12              Can you provide additional detail as to when



       13   and the amounts?



       14              MR. CIANI:  Yes, I can.  I mean, I have all



       15   the detail here.



       16              MR. MECHAM:  Do you mean posthearing or



       17   right now?



       18              HEARING OFFICER:  If he has them now, that



       19   would be convenient, but...



       20              MR. CIANI:  Yeah.  So I printed out a



       21   variety of the bills and have brought them, you know, to



       22   prepare for this hearing.



       23              HEARING OFFICER:  If you're not prepared to



       24   summarize, then that's fine.  I can --



       25              MR. CIANI:  What I can tell you -- this is
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        1   what I can tell you, is that they told us that -- all of



        2   the period that we were down, that our service would be



        3   credited.  I asked repeatedly for them to confirm



        4   exactly how much that was and how we were going to see



        5   that, and I never got any response.



        6              And many of these communications where



        7   everybody was included -- you know, we were copying all



        8   of this chain of emails that had gone back and forth, I



        9   am starting to see credits on the accounts.  It's



       10   incredibly frustrating for me, because I can't easily



       11   reconcile what the credits are for.  And they're coming



       12   on future bills, so we're getting new bills.



       13              So, in one case, I have a date of a bill



       14   here and it says, "New charges due date 5/10."  The



       15   billing date is 4/22 and I have a previous balance of



       16   $1,346.  I have other charges and credits of $348.60,



       17   and it shows I owe $2,400.



       18              However, clearly, Frontier owes us, you



       19   know, several thousand dollars back from this winter,



       20   and I have yet to be able to understand how they're



       21   applying the credits and how much these credits are all



       22   eventually going to total and when we will get to a



       23   point where all the credits have been applied.  And



       24   considering that we've already overpaid then paid, I do



       25   think it would be more appropriate that we immediately



                                                                94

�







        1   receive whatever refunds back versus wait for future



        2   credits to be applied toward future bills.



        3              HEARING OFFICER:  Understood.  Mr. Thomson,



        4   do you have a witness or would yourself like to speak to



        5   the history of the billing credits that have thus far



        6   been issued?



        7              MR. THOMSON:  Yes, Your Honor.  As we



        8   indicated in our -- I believe it was our status report



        9   to you and the Commission, it may take as many as two to



       10   three billing cycles for these credits to post.



       11              The Ranch buys a number of different



       12   products.  There are billing systems that deal with each



       13   specific product, and the credits sometimes may take a



       14   series of months, as I indicated in that answer, to



       15   post.  So I would expect that they will post next month



       16   and the month after as well.



       17              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  I think my



       18   factual questions have largely been addressed, to the



       19   extent they could be, I think, today.  It would be nice



       20   to offer counsel an opportunity to offer a closing



       21   argument, and Mr. Mecham even suggested making a motion,



       22   so we'll turn to you, Mr. Mecham.



       23              MR. MECHAM:  Thank you.



       24              Service to Sorrel River Ranch has been not



       25   just inadequate, but terrible.  And it isn't just the
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        1   period from December 18th to March 21st.  There have



        2   been outages well before that and after that.  It has



        3   caused serious harm to Sorrel River Ranch, business



        4   harm.  It has made it difficult for their reputation and



        5   to appeal to their clientele.



        6              We hear promises of what's going to happen



        7   to make it better.  We hear that it's been stabilized.



        8   Maybe it's slightly better today, I don't know, than it



        9   was during that period.  This is not the first time.  As



       10   I went back and researched other complaints, you had a



       11   complaint in Docket 15-04-102 in the same area, Hole in



       12   the Rock.  There were promises of improved service



       13   there, which didn't occur, and the Commission required



       14   certain things to happen to ensure that that customer



       15   received improved service.



       16              We've got to have better service, and we've



       17   got to have it now.  And if that cannot be done, as I



       18   said in my statement before, there are providers ready,



       19   willing, and able to step in.



       20              And my -- two motions.  One would be that if



       21   any alternative ever comes to that area and can provide



       22   service at a better quality at the same or better rates,



       23   that Sorrel River Ranch be relieved of their contract



       24   that began in February of this year and extends for



       25   24 months.
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        1              And two, if we don't see this 99.9 percent



        2   performance within days, that Frontier show cause why



        3   their certificate, at least in that area, not be



        4   revoked, so that we can get a provider there that will



        5   provide the kind of service that is required by the



        6   statute of any public utility.



        7              And as I alluded to, there is a Supreme



        8   Court case that enables the Commission and gives them



        9   vast, broad authority.  It's found at 882 P.2d 141,



       10   1994, U.S. West Communications vs. Public Service



       11   Commission.  It's known as the modernization case.



       12              U.S. West's network was providing far more



       13   adequate service than what we're seeing from Frontier,



       14   and the Commission felt as though the technology was



       15   behind -- leaving Utah behind and ordered



       16   them -- ordered U.S. West to improve and put in new



       17   technologies to ensure that their Utah customers, now



       18   CenturyLink's customers, had access to the most modern



       19   services available, and the Supreme Court upheld the



       20   Public Service Commission.



       21              I would say exercise that authority in this



       22   case to ensure that the people of Castle Valley,



       23   Professor Valley, and Moab and that entire area get the



       24   services they deserve.  It is no more remote than so



       25   many other remote areas of this state receiving much



                                                                97

�







        1   higher quality service from companies who invest in the



        2   state, who qualify for Utah State Universal Service



        3   Funds, not just CAF, and they spend some of their own



        4   capital in order to ensure that the networks are modern



        5   and technologically able.



        6              What we're getting at, Sorrel River Ranch is



        7   not adequate.  It is so far below that, including



        8   today -- including today.  And that's the reason that



        9   this complaint is before the Commission today, and



       10   that's why we're here.  Thank you.



       11              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Thomson?



       12              MR. THOMSON:  Thank you, Your Honor.



       13              A couple points.  I'm not sure the



       14   Commission wants to get involved with dictating



       15   decisions about technology, generally or specifically.



       16   I think that even by the testimony heard today, the



       17   replacement of the radio in March significantly improved



       18   the service to the Ranch.  Is the service perfect?  No.



       19   Is service perfect anywhere?  No.  The service, we



       20   contend, is adequate.  Is it as good as we want?  No.



       21   And that's why the company, although we've spent a



       22   hundred thousand dollars to replace the radio, intends



       23   to spend more money to replace the second radio, in



       24   response to the customer's complaint.



       25              I would point out that this is a -- I'll
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        1   call it a nonstandard process that we're involved in



        2   today.  Despite the fact that Frontier could have



        3   insisted on a much more extended process in this



        4   particular docket, i.e., the filing and prefiled



        5   testimony; the exchange of discovery between the



        6   parties, perhaps more than one round from us to Sorrel



        7   River Ranch, is evidence that the Company is trying to



        8   work with the customer to improve their service.



        9              The Company did not deny its service was



       10   poor during the period December 18th through March 21st



       11   of this year.  That's been admitted, repeatedly.



       12              We talked about the challenges that we faced



       13   on replacing the radio at Bald Mesa.  We would have done



       14   it earlier, but weather was a problem.  I won't rehearse



       15   that -- or restate that, but I'll just point to that as



       16   an issue that ought to be considered by the Commission



       17   in this particular docket.



       18              The Company may be willing to look at issues



       19   around whether or not a term that the Ranch is signed up



       20   for could be terminated early without a fee.  However,



       21   pulling a certificate of public convenience and



       22   necessity is -- of necessity is a last resort.  Whether



       23   or not -- I hadn't thought about this earlier, but



       24   whether or not you could pull a certificate for a



       25   geographic location that serves less than 300 customers
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        1   would probably be absolutely a case of first impression



        2   at this Commission.



        3              Whether or not there is a competitor



        4   available to serve that area is not known to Frontier.



        5   I'm not sure from the testimony that happened today



        6   whether this is something that the Ranch could take



        7   advantage of today or that they're going to have to wait



        8   some period of time for one or two of these unnamed



        9   competitors to extend their networks into the valley.



       10              I don't know what source of funding those



       11   competitors are using to do this purported extension.  I



       12   can't comment on that.  But I can say that I don't think



       13   the Commission ought to get in the business of dictating



       14   the technology used by the company to serve the



       15   customers, assuming the service can be made adequate.



       16              We feel the service will be adequate,



       17   particularly, and it's adequate now and will improve at



       18   the end of next week or whenever they can get the



       19   radio -- second radio exchanged to get rid of the vendor



       20   that didn't perform and replace it with our current



       21   vendor, who we feel provides much better service.



       22              I'll stop there.



       23              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Mr. Moore?



       24              MR. MOORE:  We have no comment.  Thank you.



       25              HEARING OFFICER:  Is there anything else
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        1   before we adjourn?



        2              MR. MECHAM:  No, Your Honor.  Thank you.



        3              MR. THOMSON:  Not from us, sir.



        4              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you everyone for



        5   your participation.



        6              MR. THOMSON:  Thank you, Judge.



        7              MR. CIANI:  Thank you.



        8              (The hearing was concluded at 12:38 p.m.)
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